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Sydney, Australia, 1853
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/887, 01/01/1853

MAITLAND QUARTER SESSIONS

A number of additional cases are down on the Quarter Sessions list for trial, as follows:

AARON VAUGHAN, attempting suicide; Singleton bench.

WILLIAM FOLEY, assault with intent; Armidale bench.

ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday an old man named JOSEPH HUNT was engaged in driving a load of palings for Mr. Nicholson to the Race Course, and took the road from High-street down Bourke-street.  He had that day unfortunately, instead of using a cart, as usual, taken an old dray from the yard, and in going down the steep incline at Bourke-street, the palings not being kept back by the cart front, slipped forward on the horse, which started off, when the old man was thrown down, and the wheel passed over his arm, and mangled it in a shocking manner.  He was taken to the hospital almost immediately, and was very ill last evening.
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Monday an inquest was held at the Cross Keys Inn, before HENRY GLENNIE, Esq., coroner, and a jury of twelve, touching the death of LOUISA BOMBAY, who had suddenly expired on Sunday evening, at about six o’clock.  From the evidence of EDWARD and SARAH ROSE, whose house was within a short distance of the one inhabited by the deceased, deceased had that day complained of pains in her chest and head, but as she was much addicted to intoxication they did not take much notice, but upon Mrs. Rose going into the deceased’s house, at about six p.m., she was found leaning upon the table quite dead.  Verdict – died from natural causes.

DEAD BODY FOUND.  -  On Monday morning the dead body of a man was found by constable CARROLL near Rushcutters’ Bay [See below].   Deceased appeared to have been about forty years of age, sandy whiskered.  He was dressed in a blue frock coat, tweed trousers, and Wellington boots.  He had neither hat nor waistcoat, and had bit sixpence about him.  The body now lies in the dead-house of the Infirmary for identification.  On the deceased’s shirt is marked “A. FLEMING, No. 7.”  Herald, Dec. 29.

CORONER’S INQUESTS.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, King-street, on the body of --------  CALBERT, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  As reported in yesterday’s Herald, the body of the deceased was found by Constable CONNELL, in the bush, at Rushcutter’s Bay.  There were no marks of violence on the body.  CORNELIUS GILCHRIST, residing at Paddington, stated that he knew deceased, whom he saw alive on Monday last.  He was then drunk, and much addicted to intemperance.  Verdict, suffocation from intemperance.  -  A second inquest was held at Quigley’s public house, Goulburn-street, on view of the body of JAMES STAPLETON.  From the evidence of Mrs. RAFFERTY, the landlady of the deceased, it appears that he was a barrowman, and very much addicted to drink.  On Tuesday night he left his lodging, complaining that he could not sleep for the mosquitoes, and about six o’clock yesterday morning he was found dead in an adjoining yard.  There were no marks of violence on the body.  Verdict, died by the visitation of God.  Herald, Dec. 30
MURDEROUS ASSAULT.

About a quarter past six o’clock on Tuesday evening, Serjeant DIXON apprehended a man named JOHN KEENAN, for committing a violent assault on his wife.  Dixon removed the woman to the Benevolent Asylum, where she expired in the course of the night.  The coroner has directed a post mortem examination of the body of the unfortunate woman to be held, and the matter will be investigated in the coroner’s court today.  Empire, Dec. 30
HORRIBLE DEATH.  -  On Thursday last the attention of a shepherd named JOB BOARDMAN was attracted by a dog in the bush near Gore’s water holes on the Wellington road, and at almost the same moment two eagle hawks rising from the ground not far distant from the dog.  He immediately drove his sheep in the direction of the spot indicated, and to his horror and astonishment found a man lying face downwards, with both eyes plucked out and the sockets full of maggots, the only article upon his person being a shirt.  From his motionless position Boardman at first supposed him dead, but perceiving a slight movement of one of his limbs he shook and spoke to him, when, as if in a state of great alarm he cried out “don’t murder me,” and said that he had no coat, no trousers nor moneys, and talked as if he believed himself inside a house.  In reply to a question asking his name, he called himself WILLIAM BAILEY, and it has since been ascertained that a person of the same name and answering to his description lately resided with Mr. PEARCE, of Guyong.  His various articles of clothing were found at different places not far from the spot where he was lying, and his wooden leg, the unfortunate man being a cripple, about 40 yards off.  He appeared to have changed his place of lying five or six times, every movement bearing traces of having been followed by his dog, which had lain beside him.  Boardman obtained assistance as early as possible, and a horse and cart were procured from the “Rocks.”  A little wine and water was offered to him, but he could not taste it, and in about a quarter of an hour afterwards he expired.  An inquest was held upon the body on Thursday at the Rocks public house, before the District Coroner, when a post mortem examination was instituted by Dr. MACHATTIE, who discovered that the stomach was quite empty, and from this circumstance and the general appearance of the system he gave it as his opinion that death was the result of exhaustion.  He was further of opinion from the saturated condition of the clothes, although there had been no rain for the past three days, that the unfortunate sufferer had been lying there since Monday.  At present the manner in which he made his way to the spot where he was found and other circumstances of his condition remain a mystery.  A verdict in accordance with the foregoing particulars was found by the jury.  Bathurst Free Press, 25th December.
WILFUL MURDER.    ABRAHAM MARCUS and STONE, at Ovens??

DEATH BY A FALL FROM A HORSE.

An inquest was held yesterday, at the Three Tuns Tavern, on the body of RALPH HOUSE, then lying dead in the Infirmary.   Constable KELLY stated that on the afternoon of the 15th instant he observed the deceased lying a short distance off the road, in Parramatta-street, near the Newtown Road.   Witness found that he had fallen from his horse; he was bleeding on the right side of the head, and covered with dust; witness had the deceased conveyed to the Infirmary.  Dr. M’EWAN stated that the deceased was never perfectly sensible from the day upon which he was received into the Infirmary.  He was suffering from concussion, and possibly from fracture.  Verdict – Died from injuries accidentally received.  Empire, Dec.29

ACCIDENT BY FIRE.  -  Between 11 and 12 o’clock on Friday night, the neighbourhood of Upper Fort-street was alarmed by an alarm of fire at the residence of Captain KEMP, opposite the Flagstaff.  Mr. Inspector CONNOR and the whole force of his division were promptly on the spot, and by their exertions the flames were quickly subdued, but not before Captain and Mrs. Kemp were seriously burned.  It appears that on retiring to rest they incautiously left the candle burning at the bedside, which before very long set fire to the bed-curtains.  We regret to add that Mrs. Kemp was so severely injured that it is scarcely possible she can survive. Herald, Dec. 27
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  An accident occurred at Botany, on Monday last.  On the steamer Tamar anchoring in the Bay, orders were given for the boats to be lowered, to put the people ashore; one or two of the sailors and ANDREW McLEAN, the carpenter, got into one to lower it, when the boat tilted over and McLean was thrown into the water.  The boat was then lowered; but the sailors being drunk, and there being no tholepins in one side of the boat, the man sunk before they got near him, and rose no more.  A gentleman named THOMPSON jumped into the water to try and save him, but when he reached the spot the man had sunk.  Empire, Dec. 29

THE LATE MURDERS ON THE OVENS.

From intelligence I received last night (25th), it appears doubtful that Mr. SINCLAIR, late of this town, fell by the hands of the bushrangers.  The latest information states that in a fit of temporary insanity he wandered away from his camp, and had not been found either dead or alive, although a strict search had been made for him.  The yield at the diggings was still immense.  Empire’s Goulburn Correspondent.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/888, 05/01/1853
SUICIDE.  -  On Thursday an inquest was held at the Upper Paterson, before Mr. PARKER, on the body of FRANCIS STEPHENSON.  It appeared that Stephenson, a tenant farm on Mr. E.G. Cory’s estate, had for some time been addicted to drink, and in particular had been drinking for some weeks past; he had appeared desponding for a few days, and had some trifling disputes with his wife, but nothing passed that aroused any suspicion that he meditated self-destruction.  On Wednesday he did not go on with his reaping, from the great heat, and drank a good deal of rum that day; on Thursday morning, soon after breakfast, he took the opportunity of the temporary absence from the house of all his family in the field, to shoot himself through the head with his gun, causing instantaneous death; the report of the gun was heard by his young daughter as she was returning to the house from the field, and on hurrying into the house she found her father lying dead on his bed, grasping the gun in his right hand.  The jury returned a verdict that he destroyed himself while labouring under delirium tremens, brought on by intemperance.
INQUEST.  -  The old man THOMAS HUNT, the accident to whom in driving his cart down Bourke-street we recorded in our last, died in the hospital yesterday morning.  The injuries he sustained were a compound fracture of the left arm, the fracture of two ribs, and some trifling injuries on the head.  From his being so old and debilitated, it was seen that his case was a hopeless one when he was received into the hospital.  Every attention was paid to him, but he died yesterday morning about seven o’clock.  An inquest was held in the course of the day, and a verdict of accidental death returned.

MURDER IN THE LUNATIC ASYLUM, PARRAMATTA.  -  A man named GEORGE WATKINS, an invalid in this establishment, on Tuesday, the 28th December, murdered another invalid, named EDWARD SOHAN, without apparently the slightest provocation, by striking him three heavy blows with a spade, fracturing the skull.  The murder was seen by other invalids, and was described by all, at the inquest, in the manner mentioned by the following witnesses:-

PATRICK COLLELLY, per ship Pekoe, deposed – I am an invalid attached to the factory.  In knew the prisoner (George Watkins), and also a man named Edward Sohan, who called me and told me to sit on his bed, as he had something to tell me.  I did so, and prisoner Watkins came out of the ward, stood opposite Sohan, and smiled.  He then went out to the yard, and returned with a shovel, and struck Sohan a blow with the iron part of the shovel on the head.  The blood gushed out, and he fell, crying, “Lord! Lord!”  As he lay on the ground the prisoner struck him twice with the shovel.  He made a fourth blow at Sohan, but missed him.  I called out murder, and keeper KNOCKSTON came, and floored the prisoner.  I never knew them to quarrel.  I have known the prisoner for seven years, and he is a very quiet man.  Abridged from the Herald.
INQUEST.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held at the Wellington Inn, George-street south, on the body of BRIDGET KEENAN, whose husband ----------- Keenan, a pensioner, was in custody on suspicion of having caused her death by violence.  But although the evidence disclosed the fact, that he had ill-used and beaten her frequently, had used vague threats for shortening her life, and that on Tuesday he had been heard beating her severely, she crying out “murder” at times, while at four o’clock that afternoon she was found by the neighbours lying insensible on the floor, with blood issuing from her mouth, and died about midnight, never having recovered her senses – yet the post mortem examination made by Dr. NORRIS, of the Benevolent Asylum, showed that the body presented no marks of violence, except bruising on the face; that the cause of death was most probably apoplexy of the lungs; the internal organs showed long standing disease, and an effusion on the brain had probably produced the insensibility; caused by a bow or fall, yet other things might cause it, and there appeared nothing to show that death occurred from in juries by violence.  The jury returned a verdict of death from pre-existing disease.  Abridged from the Empire, Dec. 31

COMMITTAL FOR SHOOTING AND INFLICTING GRIEVOUS BODILY HARM

On Sunday evening last, at Pennant Hills, a drunken quarrel took place between a man and his wife named CLARK; the former of whom took down a loaded gun from the mantel-piece, when a person named PITMAN interfered to prevent mischief, and in the struggle between the three the woman pulled the trigger, and the charge was lodged in the groin of Pitman, who is at present suffering much, with but little hope of his recovery, in the Parramatta Hospital.  The man was brought up, and committed.   Parramatta Correspondent of the Herald

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/889, 08/01/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.

I understand that Mrs. TANNER, for attempting to murder whom her husband was yesterday apprehended, is in a fair way of recovery.  Tanner was brought up this morning before the Mayor, and remanded until Monday next.

   The unfortunate woman M’GRATH, who about ten days ago received a stab in a fracas with her husband (for which he a few days since was taken into custody), is said to be on the point of death.  Mr. M’LERIE attended to-day to take her dying deposition.

MR. SINCLAIR.  -  We have further proof in contradiction to the report of the murder of Mr. SINCLAIR.  By a letter received from a Mr. M’KEON, it appears that his brother, who had been searching for him for several days, came up to a dray, the driver of which told him that Sinclair had been riding on his dray, but getting bogged near Reid’s Mill on his way to Albury, he advised Mr. Sinclair to get off the dray and rest on the grass, while he endeavoured to extricate the dray; that while doing so, Sinclair, without being perceived by the drayman, walked off into the bush, and although the man used his best endeavours to find him, he was unsuccessful.  He has not been seen or heard of since.  Being somewhat of unsound mind, it is expected that he wandered away and lost himself, and that he has miserably perished in the bush.  It may however yet turn out that while wandering he was attacked, robbed, and murdered.  Goulburn Herald, Jan. 1

DUNGOG.  -  On Monday our New Year’s races commenced, and were carried on with great spirit, Mr. Monaghan’s Gohanna taking the head prize.  About four o’clock, JOSEPH TAYLOR, a settler on the Melbee Estate, who was proceeding towards the course at good speed, and riding a spirited horse, was thrown, and I may say was killed on the spot, as he only lived two hours after the fall.  An inquest was held on the body this day, by Thomas Cook, Esq., coroner, when a verdict of accidental death, while under the influence of liquor, was recorded.

Dungog, January 4, 1853.
ATTEMPTED MURDER.  -  Early yesterday morning, in consequence of information conveyed to him, Sergeant DITCHEM, of the Sydney police, proceeded to the house of a man named TANNER, in York-street, and found Mrs. Tanner with a wound in her neck, caused by her husband’s attempt to cut her throat with a knife.  Dr. RUTTER was immediately sent for, and was promptly in attendance, the man in the mean time having been locked up.  The woman’s wound was sewed up by Dr. Rutter after which Sergeant Ditchem took steps for her conveyance to the Infirmary, where she yet remains.  Herald, Jan. 6

MAITLAND QUARTER SESSIONS.

DISCHARGE.  -  AARON VAUGHAN, committed for trial for attempting suicide, was discharged.

INQUEST ON MR. GREGORY BLAXLAND.  -  An inquest was held at the Vineyard Estate, on Saturday last, 1st January, before Mr. LYONS, coroner, and a respectable jury, on view of the body of GREGORY BLAXLAND, Esq., then and there lying dead.  JOSEPH KAY, having been sworn, deposed that he rented the garden adjoining the premises of deceased and that he saw him daily; knew that Mr. Blaxland had no occupation, but employed himself in reading; he used to say he was the same age as the late Duke of Wellington, viz., 84 years; his habits had been extremely abstemious; witness knew that in the hot weather deceased was accustomed to be affected in the head, and a little delirious; yesterday had been an unusually hot day; witness had slept in the room adjoining Mr. Blaxland for the last three nights; that morning witness woke a little before five, and before going out asked deceased if he wanted anything, to which he replied in the negative.  It was at the request of the deceased that he slept in the adjoining room, on account, as he said, of his being light-headed, and might get up and fall; at eleven o’clock witness’s wife called and asked him did he know where Mr. Blaxland was?  After searching about he went up stairs to a loft, where he found deceased suspended by his neck with a line to the beams.  He was quite dead, but warm.  Mr. J. BLAXLAND, son of deceased, rode up to the house, as usual, to see his father, at the moment of the discovery, and on hearing the melancholy tidings turned his horse to go for a doctor.  Witness took the body down.  Deceased had not had his clothes on for a week past; deceased wanted for nothing; he had sufficient means and everything comfortable about him; witness was under no obligation to sleep in the house with deceased, but did so from knowing him to be ill in the head; witness’s wife had attended on the deceased for the last three years.  -  ANN KAY, wife of the previous witness, deposed that she saw deceased in bed before eight o’clock that morning, and asked him if his head was better, to which he replied, “Not so well, that it was hot;”  deceased had always complained of giddiness in the head in hot weather; witness had never heard deceased say that he would destroy himself, but, on the contrary, always expressed his utter abhorrence of such a thing; witness have deceased his breakfast and he ate more heartily than usual.  On witness asking what time she should return, deceased replied whenever she liked.  Al eleven o’clock witness came back to supply more tea, when the unfortunate discovery was made.  -  Dr. RUTTER, having been sworn, deposed to his knowledge of deceased for twenty years.  He had lately been suffering from pains in the head, and general debility; witness had been called in that morning, and found Dr. GREENUP in attendance; he had opened the temporal artery, and was trying to restore respiration; the fluid that had escaped was serous, indicating death, and the blood was coagulated; witness had been attending deceased for the last six months, at intervals; at the first he was labouring under a hapolic affection, but lately with pains in the head; three days ago witness had advised a blister to the back of the head, and after its application deceased expressed himself better.  He, Dr. Rutter, was of opinion that those pains, and the late extremely hot weather, had caused temporary aberration of intellect; deceased had been in the habit of reading abstruse works, and witness had supplied works of a lighter character, to divert him from them.  He had spoken at various times of the kind and constant attention ns he received from the last two witnesses, and that he wanted for nothing.  The jury, through the foreman, Captain FINCH, returned a verdict that “deceased had put an end to his existence whilst labouring under a temporary fit of insanity.” Herald’s Parramatta Correspondent.
SUFFOCATION.

Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, Elizabeth and King streets, on view of the body of a female named MURPHY, then lying in the Infirmary.  It appeared from the evidence of JOHN ALLSOP, residing in Prince-street, that between ten and eleven o’clock yesterday morning he was passing along George-street, in front of the site of the old gaol, and saw the deceased lying on the waste ground, with her head down the hill.   She appeared to be trying to crawl into a large cask, as if to endeavour to obtain shelter from the heat of the sun.  She was nearly exhausted.  The witness sought for assistance, and Dr. M’KELLAR came to the spot, but she died almost immediately, and the body was conveyed to the Sydney Infirmary.  Verdict, “Died from suffocation.”  Herald, Jan. 4

WILFUL MURDER.

CATHERINE BODDY, committed by the Dubbo bench for murdering her husband, CHARLES BODDY, by cutting his throat with a razor, arrived at Bathurst gaol on Monday last.  The only particulars of the awful event which have yet transpired are that the husband and wife had charge of a station on the Castlereagh River as shepherds, in the service of Mr. ROBERT BENNET; that the husband, who had been to the shearing, returned home with a “bum-boat,” or locomotive sly-grog-shop, which supplied them with the means of nine days’ debauchery; and that whilst both were in a state of intoxication, and stimulated by a feeling of jealousy, she committed the dreadful crime.  So far as we understand, she frankly confesses her guilt, and betrayes no desire to escape the subsequent punishment.  Her trial will take place at the ensuing assizes.  Bathurst Free Press, Jan. 1
BERRIMA.

An inquest was held before the coroner, J.J. HIGGINS, Esq., on the 30th December, at the Cross Roads, Queen’s Arms Inn, on view of the body of JOHN GRAY, surgeon, R.N.  It appeared that the deceased had been living an itinerant life for some time, and was of a most penurious disposition, and had been recently living in a wretched hut near the Cross-roads, totally destitute of any articles of furniture, save some straw and an old rug which he lay on.  He had been on and off at the Queen’s Arms Inn for the last six weeks, and had sold some property to the landlord of the Queen’s Arms, and received the sum of £10 in part payment of same.  On Christmas Day the deceased went to the residence of a Mrs. HAMILTON, a short distance from his hut; he seemed ill at the time, and lay down on a sofa.  He continued so, but was moving about the place, and died suddenly on the 29th December.  Under the pillows of the sofa, where deceased lay, Mrs. Hamilton found the sum of £7 18s.  The deceased was a surgeon in the Royal Navy, and was possessed of some considerable property.  He came to this district about two years ago, and led a miserable life and neglected his person; he was often heard to speak of a wife and family he had in England.  The jury found a verdict of – died of natural causes, accelerated by his miserable and penurious habits.  Herald Correspondent.
SYDNEY.  – A man named MURPHY was to-day committed to take his trial at the Quarter Sessions for being one of the party who, on last Saturday fortnight, committed an outrageous assault upon a publican named GOUGH.  One KELLY was committed about a week since as a participator in the same affair.  The police are on the look-out for a third party, who has been described to them by the assaulted man.  Unless they had intended to murder the man it is surprising that they could have so maltreated him, and it is looked upon by the medical men as next to a miracle that he survived at all.  He is, however, in a fair way of recovery.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/890, 12/01/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A woman named DAVIS, on Saturday, endeavoured to commit suicide by swallowing a dose of laudanum.  By some means it reached the police, who took immediate steps for her removal to the Infirmary, where, in a state to which unaccustomed individuals had every appearance of irrecoverable torpor, she was placed under Drs. HOUSTON and M’LOUGHLIN, through whose judicious treatment she is to-day convalescent.

FATAL AND DISTRESSING OCCURRENCE.  -  On the night of Christmas eve, the bedroom of Captain KEMP of the Emigrant took fire; it is supposed that the bed curtains were accidentally ignited.  Captain Kemp was burned at the time in his arms, in his attempts to quench the fire, and Mrs. Kemp was very seriously injured by the fire, so much so, that she was speechless and unable to give any explanation of the origin of the fire.  After lingering in great agony, the unfortunate lady breathed her last on Thursday.  The deceased was in the 39th year of her age.  Bell’s Life, Jan. 8

FATAL CONSEQUENCES OF SKINNING A DISEASED BULLOCK.  -  A few days since, a comfortable farmer, and very old resident of Dapto, named JAMES HALPIN, skinned a beast which had just died, in which operation he was assisted by his son PATRICK.  Two days afterwards the old man’s hand swelled, when active inflammation set in, and worked up the arm into the neck, terminating in death by mortification, on Wednesday night, the 29th.  The son had also been touched with the virus, and had some ugly sores on the hand, below the elbow, but it is to be hoped, by care, that the inflammation will not extend above the elbow, in which case it is supposed that his life will be saved.  Herald, January 8

DEATH FROM LOSS OF BLOOD.

On Monday last, the 3rd January, an inquest was held at the Peacock Inn, Church-street north, Parramatta, before Mr. C.B. LYONS, coroner, on view of the body of ELLEN MANN, wife of a respectable confectioner of this town.  JANE NEILLE, wife of Mr. WILLIAM NEILLE, deposed that she resided next door.  About half past eleven o’clock on Saturday night witness thought she heard deceased calling out that she was bleeding to death; witness entered deceased’s house and found her right leg bleeding very much; witness inquired what was the matter, and deceased said she went out for a piece of wood, and her leg had burst.  Mrs. M’LAREN, a midwife, had warned her to bandage the leg the day before; she died in about forty minutes after; deceased had lost a great deal of blood; several years since something similar had occurred, witness believed arising from various circumstances.  Dr. BASSETT deposed, that about midnight of Saturday he was called in to see Ellen Mann, but she was dead before he arrived; deceased had the appearance of having died from exhaustion from loss of blood; any strain might cause rupture I n a person suffering from varicose veins; she was far gone in pregnancy; witness delivered her, but the child was dead; witness tried to resuscitate it; there was every appearance of death having ensued from loss of blood.  Verdict, ‘Died from the rupture of a varicose vein.”  Herald, Jan. 8
THE OVENS DIGGINGS.  -   Dec. 24.  -  I have made it my business to obtain an authentic list of deaths on this gold field since the 11th November last: they amount to seven, viz., the two cases of murder, Stone and Marcus, two cases of accidental death, Mr. Hill and Mrs. Penzig, and three deaths from disease, viz., Pettit, Howard, and a child who died this morning.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/891, 15/01/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A woman named JERRARD was found dead in her bed this morning.  She was in conversation with her husband only about an hour previously.  She was of intemperate habits, which probably had something to do with her melancholy end.  The inquest has not yet been held.

DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  On Tuesday morning last, a young man named JENKINSON TEW was drowned in the Wollondilly River, whilst bathing.  It appears that deceased was working at Mr. JOSHUA MOORE’S, and that on the 4th instant, about six o’clock in the morning, he went down – as he as in the habit of doing – to bathe in the river; an hour afterwards he was found dead by a labouring man.  The deceased, we have since learnt, was subject to epileptic fits, and it is surmised that he was seized with one of these whilst in the water, which thereby caused his death.  An inquest was held on the body at the “Sir John Barleycorn,” on the following day, when a verdict of “accidentally drowned,” was recorded.  Goulburn Herald, Jan. 8

MELANCHOLY DEATH.  -  On Tuesday last a person named SAMUEL WELHAM met his death in the manner hereinafter described.  It appears that he was in the service of Mr. KENNEDY. Manager of the Bank, and had been sent to Mr. WM. LEE, senr. to do some repairs at a well which was out of order.  Having lowered a quantity of burning charcoal to the bottom of the well, to enable him to do some soldering, he provided himself with the necessary implements, and descended.  He had not been long down, however, before he commenced ascending, hand over hand by the rope, driven up, as it believed, by the suffocating fumes of the charcoal, and had mastered about forty feet of the ascent, when, probably overpowered by stupefaction, he left his hold and fell, striking several of the cross-trees in his descent.  Efforts were immediately made for his recovery, but when found he was quite lifeless.  An inquest was held upon his body on the following day at Mr. Lee’s premises, before Captain SUTHERLAND, and a verdict returned in accordance with the above facts.  Bathurst Free Press, Jan. 8

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/892, 19/01/1853

CORONER’S INQUESTS.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday at the Three Tuns Tavern, in Elizabeth-street, on view of the body of WILLIAM FLETCHER, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  It appeared from the evidence that the deceased was about eight years old, and was a son of the cook on board the Chieftain, schooner, then lying at Smith’s Wharf.  He was in the habit of going on board to see his father.  On Thursday afternoon the father of the child went ashore for a few minutes, leaving the deceased sitting on the combing of the main hatch.  The child was missed on his father’s return, and was seen no more until his body was found floating in the water, on Friday afternoon by Mr. NDREWS, the owner of the schooner.  Verdict – accidental drowning.  -  Another inquest was held at the Wellington-inn, on the body of MARY ANN COADY, then lying dead in the Benevolent Asylum.  It appeared that the deceased child had been born in the Asylum, and was a few months ago taken back there, as she was suffering from a burn.  She was ultimately attacked with diarrhoea, and a few days ago the nurse in attendance gave her a powder by mistake.  The child took a turn for the worse, and died on Thursday night.  The jury returned a verdict – died from diarrhoea accelerated by having taken an improper medicine by mistake.  Empire, Jan. 17
LOGAN RIVER.

One of Mr. PRIOR’S Chinamen was found drowned in a water-hole a few days ago, and is supposed to have been seized with the cramp while bathing, and thus to have met his death.  His clothes and hat were found on the bank, and there were no signs of struggling to lead to the inference that the death was other than accidental.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Jan. 4

JEALOUSY.  -   A man called PADDY THE RUSSIAN, working for one THOMAS DAVIES, a shoemaker, at Maryland, in a fit of jealousy attacked Mr. HITCHCOCK’S superintendent, with pistol and knife, and afterwards shot himself.  He was enamoured of Davies’s daughter, a girl 13 years of age.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Jan. 4.
MANSLAUGHTER.  -  A warrant has been issued by the Burnett Bench for the apprehension of a man named GEORGE MAY, charged with the manslaughter of JOHN COURTENAY, at Couranga, on the 14th October last.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Jan. 4
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/893, 22/01/1853

DEATH FROM DRINKING COLD WATER WHILE HEATED.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held at Mr. Russell’s, Stony Creek, by Mr. PARKER, on the body of DONALD M’DONALD, a Scotch immigrant, lately arrived, who was employed in Mr. Russell’s boiling down establishment.  It appeared that on Tuesday morning, the weather being very hot and close, the deceased was employed about his usual work, and imprudently drank freely of cold water while very heated; Mr. ROBERT RUSSELL observed it, and checked him, telling him it was dangerous; in about an hour afterwards M’Donald complained that he was unwell, and went to his hut, and getting rapidly worse.  Mr. Russell went into town for Dr. M’CARTNEY, but before the Doctor could reach the spot, M’Donald was dead.  The jury returned a verdict of death by the visitation of God.

DEAD BODY FOUND NEAR NEWCASTLE.  -  Some weeks since a paragraph was published in the Mercury describing the finding a human body near Newcastle.  With a view to the identification of the remains we repeat the information now.  On the 5th December the body of a youth apparently about fifteen years old was found near the residence of Mr. C. SIMPSON, Waratah, Newcastle, and reported to the police.  An inquest was held on the body the next day by Mr. STACY, and a verdict returned of “found dead.”  The remains had apparently been lying there for some time; the deceased lad had on a green shooting coat with gilt buttons, a cap, and kangaroo boots, lacing up the ancle inside.  A portion of the clothes, and a key, were kept by the chief constable of Newcastle, for the purpose of identification.
SHOCKING ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday forenoon two little boys, the elder [JOHN THOMPSON] being about eight years of age, whose parents reside at Pyrmont, were for a short time left alone in the house.  The mother’s feelings may be better conceived than described when on her return home she found that during her short absence the elder boy had taken up a fowling-piece, which, having been left loaded, went off in his hand, and the contents of the barrel were lodged in the head of the younger boy.  Medical aid was called in, but the injuries were irremediable, and the poor child shortly afterwards expired.  Herald, 30th January,   

MANSLAUGHTER.  -  A person named SKELTON HEAD was brought before the Sydney bench of magistrates, in consequence of a warrant having been issued for his apprehension by the Tamworth bench.  It was stated that a person named BENJAMIN BOORER was engaged in a pugilistic encounter at Tamworth, and Head had urged him to fight.  Boorer was so badly beaten that he died in consequence.  Head was apprehended at Bathurst, and brought down under guard to Sydney.  He was remanded to the Tamworth bench.  Empire, Jan. 20

THE MURDER ON THE CASTLEREAGH RIVER.

Some short time since we copies from the Bathurst Free Press, a brief notice of the reception in Bathurst gaol of a woman named BODDY, charged with the murder of her husband, CHARLES BODDY, at a station on the Castlereagh River.  We have been favoured by a gentleman with the following particulars of the case as deposed in the evidence taken.

   ANDY POTTS, a notorious sly-grog seller, for some days previous to Sunday, the 12th December, had been encamped with his grog cart at Ulamago, a sheep station of Mr. ROBERT BENNETT’S, of Curbin, on the Castlereagh River, in the squatting district of Bligh, about seventy miles from Dubbo.  Potts had been repeatedly warned off by Mr. CONN, the superintendent, but he had remained selling his rum to the men, who were shearing at the time.
   At the station of Ulamoga a man named Charles Boddy and his wife, and a shepherd named JONATHAN JACKSON, resided.  On Sunday two of the men employed at Curbin, named JOHN CORBETT and JOHN ANDERSON, went to Ulamoga before dawn, where they began to drink with the residents there, and drank, as far as their recollection served them, four or five pint pots full of rum – In fact, as stated by one of the witnesses, they were drinking all the day pint after pint.  Towards dark Boddy made a bed on the floor, and the men Corbett and Anderson lay down, being then much in liquor.  Boddy and his wife also went to bed in a second room, and all seemed very quiet.  Jackson, who had returned before dark with his sheep, made a damper, and put it on the fire outside the hut to bake.  After he had done so he sat by the fire a few minutes, when Boddy came out of the hut, and sat down quite close to him.  Jackson, after some conversation, removed a little distance, and laying down began to doze.  Boddy called out “Jack, my throat is cut”; and on getting up Jackson found that Boddy had gone in to the hut, and on looking in he saw him lying dead with his throat cut, and a large pool of blood about him.  The men Corbett and Anderson had just been roused up by Potts and Boddy’s wife, who said repeatedly that she had killed him, and she was ready to die for him, that she was satisfied he could go no more with black gins.  When Jackson went away to lie down Boddy was sitting against the fire-place, and there were two black gins lying at his feet, and some blackfellows lying beside him.
   On the alarm being given at Curbin, the superintendent, Mr. Conn, with some of the men, proceeded to the station at Ulamoga, where Mrs. Boddy was apprehended.  She then again admitted that she had killed her poor Charley, and pointed out the razor which was lying on the floor at the fire-place open, and covered with blood.

   Om Monday morning intelligence was sent on to the police at Dubbo, where Mr. Inspector DAY had arrived the morning before.  The next day Mr. Day proceeded to Curbin, taking Dr. TOOGOOD and the Dubbo police with him.  An enquiry into the case was held on Wednesday, when the facts before stated were taken in evidence, and the surgeon, having examined the body, deposed that the wound in the throat, which was about six inches long, beginning close under the right ear, and dividing all the principal vessels, including the carotid artery, was sufficient in his opinion to cause immediate death.  The woman was committed to the Bathurst gaol for trial, and immediately forwarded on to Dubbo, where she was received on the 18th.
   The habit of sly grog-selling is carried on to a great extent in the Castlereagh district, and it is much to be feared that many deeds of violence and bloodshed arise from it, which are never made known. In this instance Potts fled at once, having first broken up his kegs, and let his rum flow out.  A bottle containing a strong infusion of tobacco was found on the spot the dray stood on.

CARELESS DRIVING.  -  About 8 o’clock on Monday morning, a girl named [ELELANOR] FLEMING, of about three years of age, was run over in Sussex-street, by a milk cart driver, one ALDERSON.  About mid-day the child died of the injuries then inflicted, and the driver of the cart was taken into custody soon after by Inspector SINGLETON for having, by his careless driving, caused the death of the child.  Yesterday morning Alderson was, in due course, brought into custody before Mr. Hill, and by him remanded to the Coroner’s Court.  Mr. Hill embraced the opportunity of calling the intention (sic) of the police to the careless and furious driving which had latterly become so prevalent; and recommended Mr. WEARIN, the chief inspector, to instruct his subordinates to take into custody at once all persons thus endangering the lives of passengers; while the reckless conduct of drivers was becoming every day more glaring, the danger was increasing to at least an equal degree by the population becoming every day more dense.  Mr. Wearin expressed his earnest desire to put down the practice, and would see that the constables exercised the powers with which they were armed in this matter.  Herald, Jan. 19

FATAL ACCIDENT.

Yesterday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Saracen’s Head, Sussex-street, on view of the body of ELEANOR FLEMING.  GEORGE ALDERSON, the driver of a milk cart, was in custody.  From the evidence of neighbours, it appeared that the deceased, a child of about three years old, was crossing Sussex-street on Monday morning, when a cart, driven by the man in custody, knocked the poor thing down, the wheel passing over it.  The witnesses stated that the unfortunate affair was purely accidental, that the driver immediately got down and gave every assistance in his power, expressing the most bitter regret at what had happened.  Dr. CUTHILL was immediately sent for, but the child was then insensible, its pulse almost imperceptible, and it died in about an hour after the accident.  The jury returned a verdict of “accidental death,” and Alderson was discharged out of custody.  Herald, Jan. 19

ATTEMPT TO MURDER.  -  WILLIAM TANNER who had been a long time in custody for inflicting a wound in the throat of his wife, was again placed at the bar.  Mrs. Tanner, now recovered from the wound, refused for some time to take the oath, asserting that she could not do so without doing violence to her own conscience, and that she had no charge to prefer against the man.  The Mayor informed her that unless she complied with the order of the bench, she would be committed to prison.  She then took the oath, but from her testimony it seemed that the wound she received was accidental.  Two woman named COLLINS and EVANS were sworn, but their evidence was immaterial.  The prisoner was again remanded for the evidence of Dr. RUTTER.  Empire, Jan. 19
SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Saturday, the 1st inst., an enquiry was held at Mr. Mackie’s farm, Dunn’s Plains, on the body of EDWARD M’KINDRY, an exile and shepherd in the service of Mr. Mackie.  It appears that M’Kindry was for some time in ill health, and that to-day he suddenly disappeared, and his sheep being scattered in the bush, the alarm for his safety was considerable, as it was known that he had cash about his person, and the more so as he was a very sober and attentive man.  No sooner were these circumstances known than some twelve horsemen, well mounted, were seen dashing through the scrub in anxious search, and in a few hours Mr. JOSEPH GOLESBY, of Bathurst, found him prostrate and lifeless within half a mile of his hut.  Captain STEEL, our worthy J.P., was soon on the spot.  There was not the slightest appearance of violence about him.  On his person was found the sum of fifty pounds.  A verdict in accordance with the circumstances was returned.  Correspondent of Bathurst Free Press.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/894, 26/01/1853
SYDNEY NEWS.

A man named JOHN alias THOMAS PAYNE, under committal from Newcastle to Cockatoo Island, on Saturday night jumped overboard from the steamer, coming up the harbour, when off Bradley’s Head, and has not since been seen.

SHOCKING ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday afternoon the Coroner assembled a jury to enquire into the circumstances which caused the death of a child, the son of a bricklayer named THOMPSON.  It appeared, from what transpired, that John Thompson, aged eight years, the brother of the deceased, was amusing himself in the house on Wednesday, while his father was away at his work.  His mother was also absent.  An uncle of the deceased was in the habit of going out shooting, and on that morning he inadvertently left his gun in the room to which the children had access.  The gun was loaded, and the man forgot to take off the percussion cap.  The boy took hold of the gun, and was dragging it across the room – actually dragging it by the hammer – when his hand slipped, down went the hammer, the cap exploded, and the charge went through the head of his brother, a child only six years of age, killing him instantly.  The jury returned a verdict of accident death.  Empire, Jan. 21
CORONER’S INQUEST.  

On Saturday evening an inquest was held before the Coroner, at Mr. Collins’ Inn, Parramatta-street, on view of the body of MARY CASH, then lying dead at Cooper’s Buildings, Newtown Road.  MICHAEL WALKER CASH, the husband of the deceased, was in custody.  Sergeant BOURKE, of the Sydney police, stated, that on Saturday morning, from information which he had received, he proceeded to the residence of Cash, then in custody, and found deceased lying in the bed-room.  He confined Cash on suspicion of being an accessory to her death, the prisoner having admitted that he had struck his wife with a cane on Wednesday last.  The evidence of the neighbours disclosed a fearful case of depravity.  It seems that the unhappy woman was a habitual drunkard; that on Wednesday last she and her husband were heard quarrelling, but he was not seen to strike her.  She stated to her neighbours that she slept out on that night under the verandah of the toll-house.  Medical assistance was sent for on Friday, as she appeared dying, but the surgeon who was sent for did not attend.  She died on Saturday morning.  The evidence was in favour of the husband’s kind treatment to her after the night of Wednesday.  Dr. NATHAN stated that he had made a post mortem examination of the body of the deceased.  There were bruises on the hand and face of some days’ standing; and the neck, face, and other parts of the body were swollen from anasarcha.  On removing the scalp he saw marks of other bruises on the pericranium; but there were no corresponding marks on the brain; the brain was dropsied; there were also dropsy of the chest and abdomen; in his (Dr. Nathan’s) opinion, dropsy was the cause of death, and that it might have been accelerated by intemperate habits and sleeping out at night.  The Coroner having commented in feeling terms upon this unhappy case, the jury found that deceased had died from natural causes, accelerated by habits of intemperance, and exposure to cold.  The husband was then discharged out of custody.  Herald, Jan. 24
MANSLAUGHTER.

Yesterday, an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, Elizabeth-and King streets, upon view of the body of JAMES INGRAM, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  JAMES and CATHERINE CARTY were in custody. JOHN MEARS, a barman at the Australian Inn, Clarence-street, stated that the deceased was lately engaged as a cook at the inn, but left about a week since.  He was addicted to drinking. On the evening of Friday, the 4th instant, deceased and the male prisoner were then in custody, were drinking together in the bar of the said inn.  They were both drunk, and an altercation ensued as to who was the best man, and the deceased challenged the prisoner to fight.  The latter did not seem inclined to accept the challenge, and deceased struck him a blow.  Both then fought for about three quarters of an hour.  After the fight deceased appeared very much exhausted (Carty having beaten him in the fight).  He was placed on a sofa, where he remained for some time, and he was subsequently removed to a bed-room.  He remained there the whole of the next day, but although suffering violent pain, no medical assistance was sent for.  No surgeon could be found to attend to the case, and the witness applied to the Colonial Secretary, who at once gave an order for the admission of the deceased into the Infirmary.  Carty paid for the cab, and he and deceased seemed quite friendly.  Carty accompanied the latter to the Infirmary, and evinced the greatest sorrow for what had happened.  The witness further stated that the fight was a fair one, each one having a second to see fair play.  The female prisoner took no part in the matter, except to go between the two men and endeavour to prevent them from fighting.  Mr. J.S. DOWLING, Police Magistrate, stated that he produced the deposition of the deceased, taken in the presence of James Carty.  This document was only corroborative of the evidence of the barman; the unfortunate deceased admitted that he was very drunk; and had no recollection as to who struck the first blow.  The evidence of a person named LUCAS, who was present at the Australian Inn when the drunken brawl began, went to show that deceased was the aggressor, and that seven rounds were fought, in which he was worsted.  The female took no part, except as a peace maker.  Dr. M’EWEN, described the appearances of the body (the painful details of which it is not necessary to publish), and stated that the injuries described by him were sufficient to cause death.  The jury found a verdict of manslaughter against James Carty only; and the female prisoner was discharged out of custody.  Herald, Jan. 21
FATAL ACCIDENT AT DRAYTON.  -  A most melancholy and fatal accident occurred to a little boy named JOSHUA MANN, on the 29th December.  He was sent with two horses to the old boiling house, riding one and leading the other.  Shortly after he had left, the horse he had been riding returned, and the boy not making his appearance, search was made for him, but it was not until the following day he was found dead about three miles from the township.  The boy had tied that halter of the horse which he led round his arm, and he must have been pulled from the horse he was riding and dragged to a considerable distance.  His head and body were dreadfully bruised, and the halter had nearly severed the hand from the arm.  The unfortunate boy was only ten years of age, and much beloved by all who knew him.  Moreton Bay Free Press.

SERIOUS ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday last a gentleman, having business with Mr. BURGE, saddler and harness-maker, Parramatta, rode into the yard and fastened his horse to the fence.  A little boy of Mr. Burge’s, at the interesting age of three years, went to that part of the yard where the horse was standing, and having a stick in his hand he began to touch the animal, which kicked out, and struck the poor child in the face, thereby completely dislodging one of the eyes, and leaving a fearfully contused wound on the temple and cheek.  Dr. BASSETT was soon in attendance, and did all in his power to alleviate the sufferings of the child.  Herald, Jan. 22

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/895, 29/01/1853

A WOMAN FATALLY BURNED IN SAVING HER HUSBAND.  -  An inquest was held yesterday, before Mr. BRENAN, the Coroner, and a jury, at the Sir Maurice O’Connell Hotel, Riley-street, Wooloomooloo, on the body of JANE MALONE.  SUSAN MALONE being duly sworn, deposed – The deceased was my mother; my father has been confined to bed during the last eleven weeks, in consequence of his leg having been accidentally broken.  On the morning of last Tuesday week he was lighting his pipe at a candle which was burning on the table; it was then about three o’clock.  One of my little brothers at the same time got out of bed to get a drink of water, and he upset the candle, which set fire to the curtains.  My mother rushed through the flames to get my father out of bed, and she exerted herself with such strength as to carry him into an adjoining room; but in her efforts she herself was severely burned.  My mother was in the prime of life; she had only her night dress on at the time.  Her clothes were enveloped in flames, and she ran into the yard to get some water to dash over herself, but the wind out of doors was very high, and blew the flames over her face.  A neighbour, who was aroused by the noise, got up and put out the flames, which were burning her.  Dr. O’BRIEN was sent for, and he arrived in about half an hour after the accident; he attended on my mother ever since.  After lingering in great agony, she breathed her last this (Tuesday) morning, at three o’clock.  My father is about 60 years of age.  The other evidence corroborated this.  Verdict, death from accidental burning.  Empire, Jan. 26
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/896, 02/02/1853

DEATH OF TWO CHILDREN FROM WANT AND DISTRESS.  -  A distressing case has been reported to us by a gentleman who has just come down the country.  A gold digger, located with his wife and seven children at the Hanging Rock, recently resolved to go to the Meroo, taking his family with him; but instead of going by the usual road, he took the cattle track across Liverpool Plains.  On leaving Breeza he took with him a supply of water, but after travelling some distance further this supply was exhausted, while no water was met with on their journey; as the children were beginning to suffer much from thirst, he left them and returned back to Breeza for a supply of water, but unhappily too late; when he rejoined his family two of the youngest children were dead; the others were not so far gone but that they recovered when supplied by him with water.

ACCIDENTAL DEATH.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held at Black Creek, before Mr. PARKER, on the body of JOHN KING.  It appeared that young King, who was twelve years old, and a son of Mr. King, publican, of Black Creek, was on Sunday riding with his sisters, and had just passed them; he was descending a hill rapidly when his horse came against a large tree, and he was thrown off with great violence, and injured so much that he expired the next morning.  Medical assistance was sent for immediately after the accident, but the injuries received were fatal.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death.

AN AUSTRALIAN JACK SHEPPARD.  -  The youth THOMAS or JOHN PAYNE, whose daring escape by jumping off a steamer in the harbour, while in custody of the police, we published in Tuesday’s paper, is about 19 years old, and a native of the colony.  His mother lives at Parramatta.  Payne was, in the first instance, apprehended at Mudgee, and when being marched by the constable from Mudgee to Bathurst, he effected his escape, but was found secreted in a cave, and secured.  He was tried at the Circuit Court, Bathurst, in February, 1852, for felony, and sentenced to six years hard labour on the roads.  He was sent to Newcastle, to work his term of years on the breakwater, but he escaped, and when re-taken it was considered futile to try and keep him there.  He was sentenced to an additional year of punishment for escaping, and was put on board a steamer to be conveyed to Sydney, en route for Cockatoo Island.  While the steamer was passing up the harbour, Payne jumped overboard and escaped to the shore.  He is still at liberty.  Empire, Jan. 28

SHOCKING DEATH OF A CONSTABLE.  -  THOMAS MACGUIRE, a constable of the Brisbane police, met his death on Tuesday last, in the following shocking manner:- Having been sent with Constable TREDENNICK to execute a warrant at Durandur, on a man named HENRY WAINTLING, who had been charged by Mr. DUNCAN CAMPBELL with having threatened his life, the deceased remained behind, about forty miles from town, telling his companion he would follow.  Not arriving that night at Durandur, Tredenick went back to look for him, and after a search found the body of the unfortunate man, lying on the ground and dreadfully scorched by the bush fire, which had been raging round.  The Coroner, Dr. SWIFT, having been informed of the event, proceeded to the place, and after the official enquiry, pronounced the death of Macguire to have been caused by suffocation, while the deceased was intoxicated, and the body to have been subsequently burnt by the bush fire.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Jan. 18

A RESTORATION TO THE WORLD.

Many of our readers will remember the case of Mr. WM. MASON, formerly a stock holder on the Pine River, and who was accidentally shot in the hip, while mounting his horse, three years ago last March.  Mr. Mason is at length sufficiently recovered to be discharged by the surgeons, and accordingly left the hospital this week, after having been an inmate there for four years all but two months.  Moreton Bay Courier, Jan. 8

A BOY KILLED BY FALLING FROM PRECIPICE.  -  The Sydney papers of Friday report an inquest held on the body of the little boy HENRY PORTER, who, as previously reported, was so much injured by falling on the previous Monday over the precipitous rocky cutting in Argyle-street.  The rock is 23 feet high, and no one saw the accident but play-mates of the little fellow, who was only four years old; a by-stander passing first afterwards took the suffering boy to Dr. M’KELLAR’S, and his mother subsequently took him to the Infirmary, where he died on Wednesday evening, the 26th, his skull having been fractured.  Inspector M’COOK described another case in which he rescued a little boy from falling over, and he said the fencing was too insecure, and too low.  The jury found that death had been caused by injuries accidentally received; and added the following rider:- “The jury earnestly request the coroner to communicate with the necessary authorities in order that the fencing and enclosing the cut in Argyle-street may be instantly and efficiently repaired, or replaced with a new and substantial fence, the present being now in the most discreditable and dangerous state, and reflecting great disgrace and blame on the Corporation, or other responsible parties.”

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/897, 05/02/1853

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  Two young men, on Monday last, named ELLIOTT, who resided about six miles from Yass, took it into their heads to have a race in the bush.  Unfortunately one of them was thrown from his horse and dashed against a tree.  Dr. CAMPBELL was immediately sent for but before his arrival life was extinct.  An inquest was held the same day, and a verdict of, -“died from injuries accidentally received,” returned.  Goulburn Herald, Jan. 29
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/898, 09/02/1853

HUMAN REMAINS FOUND.  -  On the morning of the 22nd inst. a bullock driver in the service of R.I. BARTON [?], Esq., of Boree, who was on his onward journey from Sydney, discovered the remains of a human being in an advanced state of decomposition, about half a mile from the River Lett bridge, and sixty yards from the road side, on what is called the river Lett hill.  The deceased, who was of the male sex, and as nearly as could be imagined about 60 years of age, appeared to be a stranger, but his features were so much decayed as to render them undistinguishable, as judging by appearances the body must have been lying there full six weeks.  It is conjectured that overtaken by sickness or fatigue he had laid down, and as it appears to rise no more.  His dress consisted of a black hat, moleskin trowsers, regatta shirt, and dark waistcoat, and a small bundle lay by his side containing a rug, a shirt, and a pair of trowsers.   An inquest was held upon the body the same evening at Mr. Hood’s, Coach and Horses Inn, and a verdict returned in accordance with the circumstances of the case.  Bathurst Free Press, Jan. 29
DEATH FROM THE KICK OF A HORSE.  -  An inquisition was held at the “Australian Arms,” Eastern Creek, on the 24th ultimo, before Mr. C.B. LYONS, coroner of the district of Parramatta, on view of the body of a man named WILLIAM HEWITT, then and there lying dead.  From the evidence of the first witness, WILLIAM JOHNSON, a gardener in the employ of the landlord of the house, Mr. THOMAS DEAN, it appears that one of the horses in the charge of deceased, who was hostler in the service of Mr. THOMAS HILL, coach proprietor, bolted out of the stable; Hewitt followed the horse; in about five minutes after, witness went to look for Hewitt, and found him on the ground, at the back of the stable.  Witness asked him what was amiss, and he replied that the horse had kicked him in the stomach; he was groaning hard, and requested one of the men to come to him.  GEORGE LODGE came.  Deceased was perfectly sober, and had been assisting the present witness just before to take the horses out of Hill’s coach; and the horse that kicked him was a young horse.  Witness never heard him speak after he had told Lodge what was the matter, and he died in a couple of hours.  The other evidence corroborated this, and the post mortem examination showed that death occurred from an injury in the abdomen, which left no external mark.  Verdict – “killed by the kick of a horse.”  Herald, Feb. 1
WOLLONGONG.  -  FEBRUARY 1. – FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Another melancholy accident, terminating in death, occurred last week, at Kiama.  From information communicated to us by respectable authority, it appears that a recent arrival in the colony named ARMSTRONG, a strong hale man, had felled a cabbage-tree on Wednesday, the 26th ultimo, when the top of the tree fell on the branch of another, and the butt slipping off suddenly struck the unfortunate man, dislocating the knee in a fearful manner.  Surgical attendance was procured, and on the following Saturday the limb was amputated by two of the medical men in that neighbourhood.  Armstrong did not long survive the operation, for he died the next morning thereafter.  Herald Correspondent.

A BOAT FOUND.  -  A fisherman of the name of THOMAS CURTIS found a boat, bottom upwards, with all the sails set, off Bradley’s Head, yesterday morning.  It had apparently been a waterman’s boat.  Curtis brought the sail to the Water Police Office for identification.  Fears are entertained for the safety of the presumed occupants.  Empire, Feb. 3

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/899, 12/02/1853

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

GEORGE WATKINS was indicted for the wilful murder of EDWARD SOHAN, on the 27th December, in Parramatta gaol.  This case was fully reported at the time; the two men being both invalids, and Watkins, a man of habitually weak intellect, suddenly seizing a spade, and without the slightest provocation cutting the unfortunate Sohan down.  The jury returned a verdict of not guilty, on the ground of insanity, and Watkins was remanded to prison.

JAMES CARTY was indicted for the manslaughter of JAMES INGRAM, at Sydney, on the 14th January.  This was the case, recently published in the Mercury, where the two men fought in a public-house for several rounds, and Ingram received injuries from which he died; Ingram was the party most anxious to fight.  Not guilty.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/900, 16/02/1853
INQUEST.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held, at the Maitland Hospital, on the body of WILLIAM BOURKE, who had died there that morning.  Bourke had, it appeared from the evidence, been for a length of time groom at the Northumberland Hotel, and having latterly been suffering much in his throat, his employer, Mr. WELCH, gave him some medicine, and told him that if he did  not get better he ought to get regular medical attendance.  Mr. Welch got poorly himself, and saw little of Bourke for some time, but one day Mr. G.B. MULLINS, in passing through the yard, noticed that Bourke was moaning; and as Bourke had been an out-patient of the hospital while Mr. Mullins was resident apothecary there, he asked Bourke what was the matter, and on examining him thought his lungs were affected; he told Bourke he ought to be attended to, and said he would do anything in any shape or form for him; Bourke asked Mr. Mullins to give him a bottle of a particular medicine which had always eased his throat while he was a hospital patient; Mr. Mullins (who stated in his evidence that, although he holds no diploma himself, he is visiting medical attendant for his father, who is a member of the Royal College of Surgeons of London, and who prescribes on his information) accordingly made up Bourke some medicine, the composition of which Mr. M. stated; shortly afterwards he met Bourke in East Maitland, when Bourke told him he was better; either then or subsequently Mr. Mullins, who had refused to take payment from Bourke, told Bourke he ought to go to the hospital, as he considered him dangerously ill.  Bourke told different persons that he had derived benefit from Mr. Mullins’s medicine, but although he was reluctant to go to the hospital, he at length, getting worse, told Mr. Welch he must knock up; Mr. Welch advised him to go to the hospital, if he wanted better advice, and if he did not choose to go he could stay where he was as long as he liked.  Bourke did not then go to the hospital, but a few days afterwards, on Friday last, Mr. Welch, who was still unwell himself, was informed that Bourke was very ill, and he then sent him up to the hospital.  Bourke was there seen by Dr. M’CARTNEY, who found him labouring under an ulcerated sore throat, which had passed into a chronic state, and left scarcely any hopes of his recovery, and next morning Bourke died.  A post mortem examination, made by Dr. BEARDMORE, in the presence of Dr. M’Cartney, showed that death was caused by extensive inflammation and ulceration of the larynx and trachea, the other organs being healthy.  Both medical men deposed that timely and scientific treatment would have afforded Bourke a fair chance of recovery, and Dr. M’Cartney, being asked the question, said that the medicine described by Mr. Mullins was not a fit one for Bourke, nor calculated to do him any good.  The jury returned a verdict as follows:- “We find that deceased died from neglect in not calling in a medical man in time, and that the disease (sore throat) which deceased was suffering from at the time was improperly treated by Mr. Mullins, who it appears is not a medical man, and we would suggest that the coroner would caution Mr. Mullins not to interfere in such matters again.”
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS.
MANNING RIVER

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On the 27th January last a most melancholy accident happened to one of our most industrious and exemplary settlers, DONALD M’LENAN.  While planting the very last of his late corn, a rotten branch of a tree, under which he was working at the time, fell and struck him on the head.  Death is supposed to have immediately ensued, as the end of the branch protruded right through his brain to his eye.  He has left a wife and a small family to deplore their loss.  What renders the circumstance remarkably singular is, that about a fortnight before he had a remarkable dream, which made a strong impression on his mind.  He dreamt that a person came to him and pronounced this solemn warning – “Prepare to change this situation for another, for you will be judged out of the books according to your works.”  He was in the prime of life, and respected by all who knew him.  Manning River, Feb. 3, 1853.

DEATHS BY DROWNING.  -  Yesterday, an inquest was held before the Coroner, on view of the body of JAMES MURRAY.  From the evidence it appeared that the deceased was a painter by trade, and much addicted to drinking.  On Thursday evening he was seen staggering about the Gas Company’s wharf, and was shortly afterwards seen struggling in the water.  The standers-by thought he was swimming for amusement, and took no immediate steps for his rescue; but at last a boat pushed off, and the body was taken out of the water and conveyed to the Gas-house.  Every means was taken to restore animation, but without effect.  Verdict, accidental drowning.  Herald, Feb.11   - Yesterday, an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Royal Oak Tavern, Miller’s Point, upon view of the body of WILLIAM RIPPINGALE.  From the evidence it appears that deceased was a seaman belonging to the barque Proteus, now lying at Smith’s Wharf.  On Thursday morning he was engaged in scraping the seams outside the vessel.  The plank he stood on was a narrow one, and his weight being heavy, and the pressure of scraping giving additional weight, the plank gave way, and he fell into the water.  He sank immediately.  A shipmate, ALFRED ROBERTS, dived after him, but could not find the body.  Assistance being procured, drags were used, and the body was soon found, but life was extinct.  It was supposed that in rising the deceased must have struck the ship’s bottom.  He was a fine young man, about twenty years of age.  Verdict, accidental drowning.  Herald, Feb. 12
APPREHENSION OF “BILLY BARLOW.”  -  An aboriginal native, believed to be the same for whose apprehension, under the name of “Billy Barlow,” two warrants, one of suspicion of murder and the other for assault and robbery, was brought before the Brisbane Bench last Tuesday.  He had been apprehended by Mr. SKYRING, after considerable difficulty, and handed over to the police.  The Bench remanded him till Monday next, for evidence.  Moreton Bay Courier, Feb. 5

COMMITTAL FOR MURDER.  -  A man named JAMES SMART was received into Brisbane gaol on Thursday evening, having arrived by the Sydney steamer, under committal from the Gayndah bench, on a charge of murdering a black gin named KITTY.   We are not in possession of the particulars of the case, but have been informed that the deceased with living with the prisoner, who was in the service of a gentlemen in the Wide Bay district.  Moreton Bay Courier, Feb. 5

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/901, 19/02/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  On last Saturday night or early Sunday morning the premises of the Rev. JOHN MORRIS , Surrey Hills, were entered and robbed of a saddle and bridle, sundry wearing apparel, and a quantity of provisions prepared for Sunday’s use.  On Tuesday afternoon a man named BRANDON, who had been for some months in the employ of Mr. BAPTIST, of Surrey Hills, gardener, was apprehended by constable LAWLESS, of the Sydney detective force, on suspicion of having been the perpetrator of the felony.  Some circumstances or other, not yet transpired, led to the suspicion that he also was the individual who was foiled by the bravery of the servant woman in his attempt to rob the premises of Mrs. MILES, at Wooloomooloo, on Tuesday morning (the particulars of which you will find in this morning’s Herald), in revenge for which he inflicted wounds which must ere long result, if they have not already resulted, in death.  He was this morning taken to the dying woman, who identified him as the man with whom she had the contest, and who inflicted wounds of which she expected she would die shortly.  The Mayor took her deposition or statement; and when the prisoner declared she did not know him, she replied, “I ought to know you well enough.”
  M’SPADDEN, the murderer of Mr. KERWAN, at Cooma, on the 15th Oct., and for whose apprehension rewards have been offered, both by the Government, and by the neighbours of the deceased, gave himself into custody at Liverpool the day before yesterday, and arrived in Sydney by steamer from Parramatta this morning.  He will be brought before the bench to-morrow.

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Sunday afternoon three young gentlemen (Germans) belonging to the establishment of Messrs. Rawack Brothers and Co. went down the harbour in a boat.  They had with them a porter belonging to the firm, who was an experienced sailor.  When near the Sow and Pigs, while endeavouring to wear the boat, a sudden squall caused her completely to capsize, and she went down immediately.  They were all swimmers and struck out at once for the shore.  The accident was observed from the light-ship, and a boat with two men, put off instantly to their rescue.  However as much as three quarters of an hour is said to have elapsed before they could reach the spot where they were struggling in the water.  The boat picked up three, two of the young gentlemen and the porter, and was directing her course towards the fourth, when he was heard to utter a heart-rending shriek, and immediately disappeared.  The name of the unfortunate young gentleman was GOTTFRIED FULDA – his age was 22.  His untimely end has cast a deep gloom over his friends and associates, to whom he was endeared by his amiable disposition.  Empire, Feb. 5

OUTRAGE AND ROBBERY.  -  About three o’clock yesterday morning, the premises of Mrs. MILES, Bourke-street, Wooloomooloo (widow of the late Commissioner Miles), was entered through the rear, by a man whose name is unknown.  A young married woman, named MARY ANN DUNN, who lived as servant to Mrs. Miles, hearing the noise, went down stairs, and saw a man enter the pantry; at the same time she noticed that the back gate was unfastened, so she went and fastened it for the purpose of “securing him,” to use her own expression.  In returning to the house she met the man making his way towards the gate; he was carrying a carpet bag containing linen belonging to Lieutenant GOING, of H.M.S. Calliope; also a bag containing a quantity of spoons, forks, tea, sugar, &c.  The young woman knowing the carpet bag, seized hold of it to take it from him.  The robber struck her several times with his fist, and afterwards stabbed her with a dagger or knife.  Sergeants DITCHAM and COX, being informed of the circumstance, hastened to the place and found her lying in bed with a great quantity of blood upon her clothes and person.  Sergeant Cox picked up a hat near the house, and in the yard he picked up a pair of boots and two bags.  Mrs. Miles does not miss any property.  Dr. M’EWAN examined the woman, and reports her to be in a dangerous state; she was stabbed twice in the right and once in the left breast; she also had a severe wound on the right side of her stomach.  Late yesterday afternoon the Mayor took the deposition of the unfortunate young woman, as there were no hopes given of her recovery.  Mr. M’LERIE, the superintendent of police, took up a man during the evening on suspicion.  He was taken to the presence of the young woman for the purpose of identification, but she was unable to identify him – she believed the robber was taller.  About eight o’clock Dr. NATHAN saw Mrs. Dunn; she was in a very sleepy state, with a pulse at 160.  He gives no hope.  Empire, Feb. 16
MURDER OF THE LATE MR. KIRWIN.  -  Liverpool, February 14th.

The man JOHN McSPADDEN, who shot the late JAMES KIRWIN, at Cooma, gave himself up on Saturday last to Mr. JOHN BULL, of Liverpool, with whom he had hired as a farm servant.  He was brought before R. SADLIER, J.P., and fully confessed that he was the person who committed the bloody dead.  He has been remanded to Sydney gaol for further evidence and enquiry.  It appears that he fled to Sydney after the commission of the offence, thence to Brisbane Water, where he worked as a sawyer.  Restless and unhappy, he wandered about until at length he found his way to the neighbourhood of Liverpool, where he hired with Mr. Bull, but again visited Sydney for a day or two, when he finally retraced his steps to Mr. Bull’s, and delivered himself up to justice.  The description of him does not appear to correspond with his appearance, which probably is the reason he was not sooner identified.  Empire Correspondent
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/902, 23/02/1853
MAITLAND CIRCUIT COURT.

This Court commences on Monday, the 7th March.  … The following are the prisoners in gaol:-

MARY WEST alias FURLONG, manslaughter; Maitland coroner;

WICKETY WEE and MORRIS (aboriginals), assault; Singleton bench.

ORIGINAL CORRESPONDENCE.

To the Editor of the Maitland Mercury

SIR – I beg to call your attention to certain errors, which appear in your last Wednesday’s report of an inquest, held at the Northumberland Hotel, on the body of Wm. BOURKE.
   It is stated, that the doctors affirmed that had timely treatment been adopted, deceased might have had a chance of recovery.  Why Dr. BEARDMORE most distinctly swore, and has since stated to me and others, “that no human aid could have saved him.”

   Therein is also, that Dr. M’CARTNEY stated, that the medicine given by me would do no good.  Dr. M’Cartney’s verbatim words were – “From the smallness of the dose the medicine could do no good or harm.”  Yet recollect, Dr. WELSH swore, as also constables M’MANUS and KEDWELL, that deceased had told them, “that he had received more benefit from Mr. MULLINS’S medicine than that any other doctor in the colony.”

   And as regards the verdict of the jury (which consisted of but five members) I beg to furnish you with a verbatim copy of a certificate received, and signed by the foreman of the jury, and Mr. ELLIOTT (another of the jury).  I have also the sanction of Mr. SMITH, (a third of the jury) previous to going up country, to contradict verdict in Mercury.  The other two jurors, I have reason to believe, have gone up the bush.

   “We hereby certify that the verdict returned on the body of William Bourke was as follows:-  We consider that deceased died from his own neglect in not calling in time professional aid; (and on enquiry from coroner whether we found any blame against Mr. Mullins) We stated - no blame to any one; only we suggest that the coroner caution Mr. Mullins not to interfere in such cases for the future, lest he become amenable to the law. – J.J. M’NEALE, foreman. – TITUS ELLIOTT.  Feb. 21st, 1853.”
   As regards the discrepancies, I do not attribute them to any one connected with your valuable paper, but to the party who took down the depositions for the coroner, and who it was remarked by more than one in the room, was more anxious to place down whatever might be against me, than what was in my favour.  With these remarks, I am, Sir, your obedient servant.

                                                      G. B. MULLINS

Feb. 21st, 1853.

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  It is rumoured to day that there is even yet a probability of the heroic Mrs. Dunn surviving the injuries received on last Tuesday morning, although every hope was abandoned yesterday, they are revived to day in consequence of the formation of an abscess in, near, or upon the wound which was held mortal.  Not being up in surgery I cannot explain the thing, but it is reported on first rate authority.

   BRANDON, the man in custody for the assault on Mrs. DUNN, as well as for the robbery at the Rev. Mr. Morris’s, stands remanded until Monday.

M’SPADDEN.

This worthy was yesterday morning brought before the police magistrate by Sergeant M’GEE, charged with the wilful murder of his master, JAMES KIRWAN, of Cooma, inn-keeper, on the 8th October last, by shooting him with a gun or pistol.  M’Gee deposed that on Wednesday morning he received the prisoner from one of the Parramatta police; he told prisoner the offence with which he was charged; he admitted the shooting, but denied the murder.  He said that he and his master had some words, which led to a struggle, in the course of which a gun, which he had in his hand, accidentally struck against the slabs of the hut, which caused it to explode, and the contents were received by Mr. Kirwan.  Mr. ALEXANDER MONTAGUE, of Cooma, storekeeper, deposed that he knew the late Mr. Kirwan; last saw him alive on the morning of the 8th October, and about two hours saw him again, but he was then dead; there was a wound on the right side of the body; he heard the report of a gun shot in the hut occupied by the prisoner, which stands about two hundred yards from the house in which Mr. Kirwan lived; and in a minute or two afterwards heard the report of another shot; knew prisoner as JOHN M’SPADDEN, and as servant to Mr. Kirwan; a magisterial enquiry was held on the body by Dr. ROBERTSON and Mr. LAMBERT.  When M’Spadden was asked if he had any question to put to the witness, he replied he had not, but that Mr. Montague was mistaken as to the second shot – that was a pistol and not a gun shot.  The prisoner was then remanded to gaol for eight days.  Herald, Feb. 18
TO THE PUBLIC GENERALLY.  -  Long and detailed advertisement re G. MULLINS, giving details of his education and training (but no Diploma) and signed by his father, D.V. MULLINS, Surgeon.

SUICIDE OF A LADY.

An inquest was held at Baulkham Hills on Sunday last, at the residence of Mr. WILLIAM SMITH, before Mr. LYONS, coroner for the district, on view of the body of Mrs. EMMA MARIA DIGHT, a niece of Mr. Smith, who had lately become a widow, and was labouring under mania with delusions.  From the evidence adduced it appeared that the lady had been at Baulkham Hills scarcely a week, that she was much deranged at times, hardly speaking a word, and getting quite melancholy.  Dr. GREENUP had visited her, and was in continual communication with her friends.  The disease (puerperal mania) first exhibited itself after the last confinement, and on the recent death of her husband.  She fancied that neither she nor her children could get anything that was proper to wear or to have in any way, and that her children were suffering both in body and mind, often calling them little idiots, &c.  She appeared to be in such a desponding state that Dr. Greenup had warned her friends to have her watched to prevent self-destruction; and accordingly the door of her room had been locked every night outside, but on the Saturday night the key was missing and could not be found.  She was in much better health and spirits that night, than she had been for some time.  On account of her great disinclination to see Dr. Greenup, he had, (thinking it would only aggravate the disease) discontinued visiting her.  On Saturday, he had, as required by law, given a certificate of insanity, to be laid before the Chief Justice, in order to procure her admission into the Tarban Creek Asylum.  Between six and seven o’clock on this (Sunday) morning she was found hanged by a rope to a pear-tree near the house; Mrs. Smith, on going that way first discovered it, and screamed out, when CHRISTOPHER ONAN, a servant on the estate, heard it, and hastened to the spot, where he, with the assistance of a fellow-servant named THOMAS GRANT, cut the rope down, but the lady was quite dead.  She was suspended by the neck, and was but a foot from the ground.  The jury, through their foreman, ANDREW M’DOUGALL, Esq., J.P., returned a verdict that deceased, Emma Maria Dight, had hanged herself while in a state of insanity.  Herald’s Parramatta Correspondent, Feb. 17
SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Monday morning last, as Mr. EDWARD FULLER was on his way from his residence at Castle Hill to Parramatta, he was accosted by Mr. CRANE, a neighbour, with the compliment of the morning, and “how do you find yourself?”  Mr. Fuller replied in a satisfactory way, and during the conversation was taken with a fit of coughing, when he burst a bloodvessel.  A person standing by jumped into the cart in which Mr. Fuller was and supported him; but he expired in a few minutes.  Mr. Fuller was much respected, and has left a widow and several young children.  Herald, Feb. 19
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/903, 26/02/1853

DEATH BY BURNING.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Hinton, on the body of a child named SARAH STEVENS, four years old.  It appeared that about a month since the little girl was playing about as usual, and either approached too near or was playing with a fire lit out of doors, when her clothes accidentally caught fire, and she received injuries from which she lingered for some weeks, and then died.  A verdict was returned in accordance with the evidence.

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A man named SHEPHERD, who has been lodging at Titterton’s public-house, Brickfield-hill, was last night found dead in his bed.  And about eleven last night the body of a man, whose name I have not heard, was found dead in the water off the Union wharf.  He had lately come from Broulee to Sydney in the Dove, the master of which, it appears, had given him permission to sleep on board.  He is supposed to have been returning on board, and accidentally fallen into the water.  No inquest however has yet been held in either case.  Whatever the reason, it is very rare to have an inquest holden, however pressing it may be, until all the law offices have closed for the day.

THE MURDER OF MRS. DUNN.  -  The Sydney papers of Wednesday report fully the proceedings at the inquest held on the body of MARY ANN DUNN, the servant of Mrs. MILES, who was mortally stabbed by a burglar in the yard of her mistress’s premises, early on the morning of Tuesday, the 15th February.  The gallant woman, who, it will be remembered, attempted to take from the robber, when she met him in the yard, the carpet-bag he was stealing, died on Sunday evening, the 20th, from the wounds the cowardly ruffian inflicted with a knife on finding that he could not release himself from her grasp.  He husband, who was on a journey to the diggings, read an account of the matter in a newspaper, and hurrying back to Sydney, reached Mrs. Miles’s house on Saturday evening, to the evident delight of his wife, although she was by that time speechless.  The evidence included the dying declaration of Mrs. Dunn (already made public), wherein she described the occurrence and identified a man named JAMES BRANDON as her murderer.  The additional evidence, besides the evidence tending to show the condition of Mrs. Dunn after receiving the wounds, was circumstantial against Brandon.  He was a servant at Mr. BAPTIST’S, but from Sunday night to Tuesday afternoon, was absent;  up to between twelve and one on Monday night he was in a public-house in Pitt-street, sober, when he left.  A knife, borrowed by him on Sunday night from a fellow servant at Mr. Baptist’s and returned by him on Tuesday afternoon, corresponded to some extent with the wounds inflicted, although two or three of the wounds were broader than the blade.  A hat and a pair of boots were found in or near Mrs. Miles’s premises, but neither were traced directly to the prisoner.  The wounds inflicted on Mrs. Dunn were five: one, a slight one, on the back; two deep wounds on the left breast; a superficial wound on the right breast, and a deep wound below the right breast.  The injuries inflicted by each of these wounds were described by Drs. M’EWAN and NATHAN, who made the post mortem examination, and they said that the injuries inflicted by the three deep wounds were undoubtedly the cause of death, although death might not necessarily have followed the injuries from any one of them by itself.  The prisoner contented himself with a general assertion of his innocence.  The jury returned a verdict of wilful murder against him, and he was fully committed for trial.
BOAT ACCIDENTS.  -  Yesterday afternoon, as three men belonging to the Dutch ship Vriendschaap were cruising about the harbour, they were caught in the southerly squall off Dawe’s Battery Point, when the boat capsized, and one of the men was drowned.  There was also a boat capsized yesterday off Billy Blue’s Point, and another man drowned. Herald, Feb. 21

THE MURDER OF MR. KIRWAN.  -   JOHN M’SPADDEN, the man charged with shooting Mr. KIRWAN, was sent in charge of the escort to Goulburn, where he will be tried for the offence.  Goulburn is 130 miles distant from Cooma, where the murder was committed.  A person who knew Mr. Kirwan and his assassin, informed our reporter that M’Spadden has a wife and seven or eight children, and also that M’Spadden, prior to the deed, was generally considered by the people in the neighbourhood as not altogether in his right mind – that he was in the habit of carrying a gun across his shoulder, when following Mr. Kirwan’s sheep, appearing apprehensive that some people meditated mischief towards him.  Empire, Feb. 21
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/904, 02/03/1853

SHIPPING NEWS.  -  The following extract from a letter, received yesterday, from Captain EDWARD BOND, of the Fawn, hence for Moreton Bay, gives the melancholy intelligence of the loss of the second officer.  The extract runs as follows:- “I am sorry to have to inform you that the first night out, when seventy miles east of Sydney, I had the misfortune to lose the second mate, JOHN GADSBY, while taking in the second reef in the mainsail.  He fell overboard from the taffrail.  I used every exertion to save him, but failed in doing so.  It was blowing a heavy gale from the north-east at the time.  After which I stood in again for the land, and sighted the Sydney Light about ten o’clock on the Saturday night.  On the Sunday morning, about one o’clock, the vessel was struck with a very heavy southerly gale, which split almost every sail I had set.  The weather has been so very heavy that the vessel has been like a half-tide rock ever since I left Sydney; from the N.E. the gale increased to a perfect hurricane, and I have never had a rougher passage.  The passengers are all well.”  Feb. 25
   The Christopher George, from the Richmond River, reports the loss of one of her foremast hands, named CHARLES STEVENS, on her outward passage.  It appears that the unfortunate man had been suffering from a fit of delirium tremens, and jumped overboard.  This occurred on the 13th January, about four o’clock a.m., it was very dark at the time, and the vessel was close hauled; she was immediately put about, and the boat cleared, and though every effort was made to save the man, no trace of him could be found after his first immersion in the water.

INQUESTS.

An inquest was held on Thursday at Coleson’s, Market Wharf, on the body of a man who had been found drowned just off the wharf.  It appeared that he had come up from Moronya in the schooner Dove, but his name was unknown; he had been ashore and had a glass or two, and in going aboard fell off the wharf.  Verdict – accidental drowning.  -  Another inquest was held on the same day at the house occupied by the late Mrs. TITTERTON, Brickfield Hill, on the body of JOSEPH SHEPHERD, who had lately come down the country and been lodging in the house since.  He complained of being unwell, but was able to attend to his business.  He died on Wednesday night.  Dr. WEST made a post mortem examination, and found that death was caused by disease of the heart.  The jury returned a verdict accordingly.  People’s Advocate, Feb. 26

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/905, 05/03/1853

MAITLAND CIRCUIT COURT.  -  This Court opens on Monday morning next, the 7th instant, at ten o’clock, and witnesses and jurors should be in attendance at that hour.  

… the case of THOMAS OWEN, THOMAS TAAFE, and ELIZABETH JOHNSON, committed for manslaughter, by the Maitland coroner, the latter two being on bail.

DEATH FROM INTEMPERANCE.  -  On Monday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Glebe Inn, Morpeth, on the body of HUGH GALLAGHER.  It appeared from the evidence that Gallagher had been at the diggings, and since he returned from thence, some two months since, he has been constantly drinking, never going to bed sober, notwithstanding all the efforts of his wife to prevent it.  On Friday, the 23rd ult., he returned home as usual drunk, and brought a bottle of rum with him, but next morning he was seized with delirium tremens, and the fits increasing in violence a doctor was called in, but Gallagher expired on Sunday.  The jury returned a verdict of death from delirium tremens, brought on by constant intemperance.

BATHURST CIRCUIT COURT.  -  (Before his Honor the Chief Justice.)

Monday. Feb. 22.  -  THOMAS DUNY was indicted for the wilful murder of THOMAS HENAGHAN, at Tambaroora on the 9th of November last.  The prisoner and the deceased had been on good terms for years.  On the 19th of November they had been drinking together and were the worse for liquor.  Mrs. Henaghan endeavoured to persuade her husband to leave off drinking, when he struck her and a woman named GLIDE, with whom the prisoner cohabited, having taken Mrs. Henaghan’s part; he deceased abused Glide and dragged her out of the tent by the hair of her head.  Prisoner said nothing at the time, but went out of the tent of the deceased, and in four hours returned, when he said to the deceased, “Now, I’ll have it out of you.”  The deceased answered, “As soon as you like.”  Prisoner went to his tent, and got a bayonet fixed on a stick, whilst the deceased produced a stick which was used to stir the fire.  They met between the two tents, when the deceased struck the first blow, and drew blood.  The prisoner then wounded the deceased with the bayonet in one or two places, one of the wounds being inflicted in the left eye, and a portion of the bone driven into the brain.  The unfortunate man died almost instantaneously.  His Honor having summed up with great minuteness, and explained to the jury the difference between murder and manslaughter, the jury retired for a few minutes and found the prisoner guilty of murder.  His Honor ordered sentence of death to be recorded against the prisoner, intimating that he should recommend to the Governor General that the punishment of death should be foregone, in consideration of the prisoner being worked upon the roads or public works of the colony for the term of ten years.
THE LATE MRS. DUNN.  -  The death of the heroic young woman who was recently stabbed by a midnight robber, whom she attempted to capture on the premises of her mistress, in Bourke-street, has naturally awakened a melancholy interest throughout the community.  This feeling has taken exactly the form most benefitting the sad occasion.  A subscription list has been opened for the purpose of erecting a monument to the memory of the murdered woman.  Subscriptions cane be paid at the Mayor’s Office; and, as the object aimed at is more one of wisdom than benevolence – to mark the public respect for pure courage and moral excellence – we trust a sufficient sum will be raised to erect a monument which shall prominently record the fine example of fidelity and virtue which cost Mrs. DUNN her life.  Empire, March 1

BATHURST CIRCUIT COURT.  -  Friday, Feb. 25

FRANCIS ARMSTRONG was indicted for the wilful murder of WILLIAM RICHMOND, at Ryalston, on the 2nd March, 1852.  The two men were drinking together at a public house, and got fighting; after separating they returned and had more drink; and after a time got into a fight again in the yard; Armstrong was thrown by Richmond, who fell on him, but as Richmond was rising Armstrong pushed him from him, and stabbed him in the abdomen with an open knife which he had in his hand at the time.  A person named WILLIAM HENRY OWEN, who practised as a surgeon, attempted to dress the wounds, but did so unskilfully, as was proved by Dr. M’DONALD, and Richmond died.  The defence offered was that the wounding was accidental, and not intentional.  The jury returned a verdict of guilty of manslaughter, and Armstrong was sentenced to two years’ imprisonment, with hard labour.  Owen was sentenced to six months’ imprisonment, for prevarication in giving evidence as to his qualifications to practise as a surgeon.  Abridged from the Herald. 

SYDNEY NEWS. Thursday evening.  A man named Hanley, a costermonger, was this morning knocked down by his own horse, the wheel of the cart passed over his body, and he was killed on the spot.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/906, 09/03/1853

THE CALENDAR

The following is the list of persons still awaiting trial at the present Circuit Court, …

ELIZABETH JOHNSON, THOMAS OWEN, and THOMAS TAAFE, manslaughter; Maitland Coroner;

MARY WEST, alias FURLONG, manslaughter; Maitland Coroner;

SKELTON HEAD, manslaughter; Tamworth bench;
PAINFUL OCCURRENCE.  -  Mr. MYERS, of the South Head Road, tailor, on Saturday afternoon missed two daughters, one aged seven and the other five years.  Search having been made, the poor girls were found in a water-hole near the gaol, quite dead.  The feelings of the afflicted parents we will not attempt to describe, and only parents will be competent to form an idea of the state into which such a calamity would throw them.  Herald, March 7
ACCIDENTAL DEATH.  -  Yesterday, an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Britannia Arms, George-street, on view of the body of JOSEPH HARTLEY, then lying dead in Goulburn-street.  It appeared from the evidence that deceased was a feeble old man, and that he was in charge of a horse and cart on Tuesday morning, when, from some cause not ascertained, the horse started away, and knocking the deceased down, the wheel went over his head.  He was promptly attended to by Dr. M’PHEE, but the injuries were of too fatal a character.  No blame seems to have been attributable to any one.  It is supposed that the deceased, in a fit of weakness, was unable to restrain the plunging of the horse.  Verdict, died from injuries accidentally received.  Herald, March 4

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/907, 12/03/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Melville, on the body of CATHERINE BRADY, aged 50 years.  It appeared that Mrs. Brady, with her husband and Mr. MARGARET MAHONEY, had been into Maitland with a dray load of wheat, a lad named MICHAEL MOYLAN, 16 years old, driving the team of six bullocks.  On their return home, after crossing the river, they had to go down a little descent just before reaching a sharp turn in the road, and the bullocks moving quickly, Moylan, who was riding, was unable to control the bullocks round quickly enough to avoid a large stump lying at the angle, and the wheel going over it the dray was completely turned over, falling on the two woman, and throwing Moylan off in advance, partially stunning him.  Brady was walking behind, and running forward instantly he found Mrs. Mahoney uninjured, but his own wife dead, her neck being dislocated, although on subsequent examination not a single bruise of mark of violence was found on her body.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death, and the coroner cautioned Moylan, who is a recent immigrant, that he ought always to walk beside a team of bullocks, when driving them.
BATHURST CIRCUIT COURT.

Friday, and Saturday, March 4 and 5.
CHRISTINA BODDY was placed at the bar charged with the murder of CHARLES BODDY, at Curbin, on the 13th of December last.  It appeared from the evidence that prisoner and deceased, her husband, were in the employment of Mr. BENNETT, at Ullamago, and that a sly-grog seller named ANDY POTTS had been supplying them and some visitors with rum on the 13th December; the deceased got very drunk, and the prisoner was the worse for liquor.  They went to bed, and in the course of the night some of the men in the hut were aroused, and found that the prisoner had cut her husband’s throat; she next morning pointed out to several witnesses the spot where she had inflicted the wound, and the razor with which she had killed him, and stated that two black gins were on each side of her husband at the time.  It appeared that her child had been drowned a few months before, and that her manner had been eccentric ever since.  The jury, without leaving the box, found the prisoner guilty, and his Honor ordered the sentence of death to be recorded against her.

SAMUEL WELHAN pleaded not guilty to an information charging him with the murder of GEORGE MELVILLE, at Mudgee, in September last.  The trial was postponed until the next assizes, owing to the absence of a material witness.  Mr. HOLROYD, on the part of the prisoner, applied that he should be admitted to bail.  His Honor refused the application.  Abridged from the S.M. Herald

MANSLAUGHTER

SKELTON HEAD was indicted for feloniously killing and slaying BENJAMIN BOORER, at the Hanging Rock, on the 20th October, 1852.

   Mr. PUREFOY appeared for the defence; attorney Mr. C. NICHOLL.
   The Attorney General, in his opening address, said he had difficulty in placing the case before the jury in a complete form, one of the witnesses being absent, and another since dead.

   The witnesses called were Dr. RICHARD LEWIS JENKINS, THOMAS BOORER, and ROGER KENNEDY.

   Dr. Jenkins remembered being called to see a man who said his name was Benjamin Boorer, about the 19th or 20th October, on Oakanville Creek; had seen a man named JOHN BURNS in that tent at other times; he was a butcher, and kept a store; Boorer and Burns came up together; Boorer complained of great tenderness in his neck; he had no sensation or motion, all the body below the neck being paralysed; this was caused by some injury to the neck, which might have been owing to a blow or a fall; witness had no hopes of his recovery, and told him so that same night; Boorer could speak, and was perfectly sensible; on the following Sunday, about four or five days after, Boorer died, witness being at that time away from that part of the country.  Boorer received witness’s remark that he had no hopes of his recovery in silence, and appeared thoughtful; on the day following witness saw Boorer again, and told him that he had better settle his affairs, and prepare for death, as there was not the slightest hope; he received the remark in silence; witness also told his brother, Thomas Boorer, the same; witness thought Boorer must have been conscious of his approaching death.  A violent fall backwards from a blow, in which the neck came across a log, would produce such an injury and paralysis.  The injury to the neck was the cause of death. A blow struck by the fist would scarcely cause such an injury, unless very severe indeed.  Cross-examined: A blow and fall was a more probable cause.  -  Thomas Boorer, brother to the deceased, saw Benjamin Boorer the same night on which he had been fighting, the 19th October; Dr. Jenkins came that same night and next day; deceased told witness several times that he had no hopes of his recovery; he continued getting worse and worse, and died on the Sunday; deceased told witness how he was injured. [After objection and judgement[?], this statement was admitted as a [dying?] declaration, subject to a reserved objection.]  Benjamin Boorer told witness that he was tossing with Skelton Head, the prisoner, and some words arose [here Mr. Purefoy objected anew to the parole dying declaration]; that after some disputing Skelton Head charged Boorer with unfair play, and pushed Boorer; that Head then hit Boorer, on which Boorer offered to give the money up, but Head refused it, saying, he’d fight; that they fought two or three rounds, how many he did not know, and that Boorer got thrown by a cross-buttock from Head, and fell on his neck; that he rebounded on his knees from the fall, but could move no more afterwards, and that they took him into a tent.  Head came into the tent more than once while witness was there, and was told Boorer was very bad; Head told witness on the day after the fight that if he wanted anything he was to get it at his (Head’s) expense.  Burns was there at the time, but witness believed he was now dead; Burns said he lived at Hinton.  -  Roger Kennedy, a constable in the Maitland police, knew John Burns, who used to live at Hinton; he went to the diggings in company with prisoner last September; Burns returned, but had since died.
   Mr. Purefoy addressed the jury in defence, not doubting that some altercation and fighting took place between the prisoner and Benjamin Boorer, but what was there before them to prove that prisoner killed him.  Supposing even that Boorer’s death was caused by an injury received when he was thrown as described, possibly falling on some hard projecting substance, his death was clearly purely accidental, and not at all directly caused by the fight with the prisoner.

   The jury returned a verdict of guilty, but recommended the prisoner to mercy.  The prisoner was sentenced to six months’ imprisonment in Maitland gaol.
   The court then adjourned till nine o’clock the same evening, the jury in Ryan’s case being still locked up.

   At nine the court re-assembled, and after the termination of Ryan’s case, as recorded above, the court adjourned till ten o’clock on Thursday morning.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/908, 16/03/1853

MAITLAND CIRCUIT COURT.

Monday, March 14, 1853.  Transfer to Non Hom
DISCHARGE ON BAIL.  -  At a later period of the day, on the application of Mr. PUREFOY, not opposed by the Attorney General, his Honor directed the discharge of STEPHEN RYAN, charged with assault on MARY ANN PONTER with intent, on bail to appear at the next Circuit Court, himself in £200, and two sureties in £100 each.

INQUEST.  -  On Sunday an inquest was held, by Mr. PARKER, at the Upper Paterson, on the body of THOMAS BROWN.  It appeared, from the evidence of HENRY STOCKWELL and RICHARD MERCHANT, settlers, and of Dr. PARK, that deceased, who was 62 years old, had for years been known as a drunkard.  Latterly he had become afflicted with dropsy, and went to the Sydney Hospital, but came back to the Paterson district again.  On Wednesday last he called at Mr. Merchant’s, saying he was very ill; remained there two days, and then went to Mr. Stockwell’s, at Campsie, to try to see Dr. Park, Mr. Merchant lending him a horse for the purpose.  He reached Mr. Stockwell’s about nine on Friday morning, and Dr. Park soon afterwards passing by, Mr. Stockwell called him in, but Dr. Park found Brown was dying, and that nothing could be done for him.  Brown died a few hours afterwards.  The jury returned a verdict of death from disease, brought on by acts of intemperance.
Saturday, March 12, 1853
MANSLAUGHTER.  -  THOMAS OWEN was indicted for the manslaughter of JAMES FISH, at Maitland, on the 20th June, 1852, by assaulting him and throwing him to the ground, there beating and kicking him, and throwing at and wounding him with an instrument called snuffers on the left arm, left temple, left eye, ribs, and chest, thereby inflicting divers mortal wounds, bruises, and contusions, whereof he languished until the 5th July, and then died.  In a second count he was indicted for killing and slaying Fish, without the mode being stated.

   Mr. PUREFOY appeared for the defence; attorney, Mr. WARD.
   The witnesses called were THOMAS TAAFE, ELIZABETH JOHNSON, JOHN PENNY, and Dr. ALFRED ORE[?] EDYE.

   Thomas Taafe, a horse jockey, was on that night in the house occupied by Elizabeth Johnson, in West Maitland; two woman, AGNES M’GRATH and MATILDA HOWSON were there, drunk; the deceased, Fish, came into the house about one o’clock that night; about ten minutes afterwards the prisoner came in, bringing two bottles of liquor with him; prisoner offered glasses to those present, and some of them drank, Fish drinking several glasses; prisoner then said that Fish ought to being in a bottle of grog as well as him, but Fish said he had drunk none of his, and would not; they quarrelled, and were going to fight; Fish put down a pound, and prisoner picked it up, and put it in his pocket, and then denied that he had it; after some more words they got into the middle of the floor, Fish turned up his sleeves, and they got hold of each other, and struck blows, prisoner getting Fish into a corner, and hitting him about the head; Fish, in the struggle, fell backwards over a sofa, and prisoner fell on him; prisoner had a small pointed thing in his hand, which he had snatched up from the table close by, and with it struck Fish repeated blows about the face and breast, jobbing (sic) him; could not say what instrument this was, whether a pair of snuffers or not, but the pointed end was about an inch long; they were fighting ten minutes; at Johnson’s wish, witness went for a constable, she saying he’d better do so, or he’d murder the man; Johnson also went for the watchman; witness could see no constable, and returned to the house, and found Fish laying on the sofa, and prisoner laying on a bed in another room, where Matilda Howson was laying drunk; Fish’s face was all cut and bleeding; prisoner came out, and accused witness and Johnson of stealing his purse, containing £3 or £4, and he kept Johnson against the bed till he found his purse somewhere, and said it was all right.  Fish lay on the sofa till morning, bleeding.  Johnson said the watchman refused to come.  Matilda Howson was drunk, and so was Johnson; witness was sober.  At a later hour Fish went to the bed where prisoner was, with a pair of snuffers in his (Fish’s) hand, and said prisoner had stabbed him, and he’d prosecute him; prisoner told him to go to h---, and that he might do his best.  Fish left the house first, walking away.  Prisoner, before he left, put the bloody pillow-case into the fire, on which Fish had lain, saying, that should tell no tales.  Three weeks afterwards witness was returning from Mudgee races, and saw prisoner near Jerry’s Plains, prisoner called witness to him, and told him a warrant was out for him (witness) for the death of Fish, and that all the blame was thrown on him (witness), and that they did not know him (prisoner) in the matter, and asked him not to say anything about him.  Cross-examined: Witness was apprehended, and committed for trial for killing Fish; Elizabeth Johnson was also committed for trial; prisoner was not committed at the same time; witness became a witness for the Queen, instead of being charged with the crime; was then a friend of Elizabeth Johnson’s, but did not live at her house; was positive prisoner was the man; Fish was a tall thin man.  By a juror: Heard at the inquest that Elizabeth Johnson was charged with stabbing Fish with the snuffers.  -  Elizabeth Johnson said she formerly kept a house of ill fame, but did not now; witness was not sober on the night Fish was at her house, but recollected what passed; could not identify Owen, the prisoner, as the young man who came in after Fish did, although she had frequently seen prisoner before and since; could not say whether prisoner was or was not the man; she and Taafe left soon after the fight began, to look for the constables, and on their return found Fish laying on the sofa, and the other laying or leaning against the bed in the other room; she did not look at Fish at all, but lay down herself and went to sleep; saw blows with the fist on both sides before she went for the constables, but saw no instrument used; did not use any instrument herself; did not see Fish next morning, but saw him about four o’clock the next afternoon, when his face looked injured; could not say if his face was or was not injured when he entered the house on the night of the 19th; saw no snuffers on the table; the watchman, STONE, told her he would not go to her house because he was not paid.  -   John Penny, a candle-maker, knew Fish, who worked with him at Mr. HEUGH’S establishment, in Maitland; on the night of Saturday, the 19th, parted with him in the street, about eleven or twelve o’clock; he was in health, and not injured about the face; on Sunday afternoon Fish came to witness’s house, and brought with him a pair of snuffers, with which he said he had been stabbed on the arm, body, and in his left eye; witness thought Fish lived for twenty-four days after, and then died; Dr. SCOTT attended Fish, and he and two other doctors, Dr. SLOAN and Dr. Edye, performed a post mortem examination; Fish was delirious at times, but before he died was conscious he was about to die; the snuffers now produced were the same; the wounds in the eye were such as might be produced by the point of the snuffers; they had blood on them; witness saw Fish the day before the day he died; he was not then sensible, not was he scarcely thoroughly sensible for the last five or six days.  Cross-examined: Deceased was quite a stout made man, not a tall thin man, quite the contrary.  -  Dr. Edye attended the inquest, and assisted at the post mortem examination; there were small punctured wounds in the arm, and about the chest, one near the eye, and one through the left eye; the point of the snuffers produced would produce such wounds; death was caused by suppuration of the brain, caused by the instrument that penetrated the eye, inflicting a wound which led to inflammation; in all other respects the body was perfectly healthy; Fish might be about 40 years old.  Cross-examined: Witness visited Fish three times with Dr. Scott; found him always unable to answer questions coherently.  -  Elizabeth Johnson re-called by Mr. Purefoy: The snuffers produced were not witness’s; other women in the house had snuffers.
   Mr. Purefoy addressed the jury for the defence.  No doubt Fish died from a wound in the eye, but the question was did the prisoner inflict it.  It appeared to him that the evidence of the one witness, Taafe, on which the whole case against the prisoner rested, could never induce a jury to convict a man of so serious a crime.  Taafe’s character, as disclosed by his own statements, was such that it would be most unsafe to rely on his statements, uncorroborated by any other; or rather almost contrary to the evidence of Elizabeth Johnson, the only other eye witness brought forward.  They must remember that Taafe never said a word respecting prisoner until he himself had been committed for trial on the charge of killing the deceased.  The learned counsel went through Taafe’s evidence to show that in itself it was not worthy of credit, so unsatisfactory was it in many points.  He would call some few witnesses to show whether Taafe was worthy of belief.  -  Mr. ISAAC GORRICK knew Taafe well; from his knowledge of his character he would not believe him on his oath; this was from the very disreputable character Taafe bore, and from his personal knowledge of him.  -  Mrs. ELIZABETH TURNER from her personal knowledge of Taafe’s character would not believe him on his own oath; he was habitually of bad, drunken habits.
   His Honor pointed out to the jury the general rules which in cases of this kind, where weapons were used in a fight, distinguished murder from manslaughter, the evidence of Taafe, if they believed it, clearly showing that this was a case of manslaughter, inasmuch as the snuffers were not used from the commencement of the fight, but snatched up hurriedly in the middle of it.  The credibility of the witness Taafe was in fact the principal question for the jury, as if they believed him they could scarcely hesitate in concluding that prisoner inflicted the wound which caused Fish’s death, while if they did not there remained very little that could bring home the crime to the prisoner.

   The jury retired for ten minutes, and returned with a verdict of not guilty.  Owen was discharged.

SENTENCES.  -  MARY WEST, alias FURLONG, charged with manslaughter, was discharged by proclamation.

BATHURST CIRCUIT COURT.

(Before his Honor the Chief Justice)

Monday, March 7.  -  His Honor said, in reference to the case of CHRISTINA BODDY, convicted of Saturday last of murder, that circumstances had come to his knowledge which, had they come out on the trial, would have left him no alternative but to have passed sentence of death upon her.  As sentence of death had been recorded, it would, in all probability, be commuted to imprisonment with hard labour for ten years.

Tuesday, March 8.

PATRICK M’CARTHY, alias JOHN GRADY, was indicted for having murdered HENRY WILLIAMSON, at Bookimbla, on the 28th of October last.  It appeared from the evidence, that on the 27th of October, the prisoner was a shepherd and the deceased was a hutkeeper, on a station of the Messrs. Lowe, called Bookimbla; on that day the sheep overseers visited the station, and the deceased was then alive; a few days previously to the 27th, the prisoner had procured an axe for the station; on the 30th the overseer visited the station again, and found the prisoner’s sheep in the yards, where they appeared to have been for two or three days; the door of the hut was shut, and hasped outside; on opening the door there was an appearance as if a fire had been made in the middle of the hut; human remains were found partly burnt, which were identified as the body of the deceased.  The skull was fractured on the left side of the head, and a blow with an axe had been inflicted across the eyes; and under the body the head of an axe was discovered with the handle burnt out.  On the 6th of November the prisoner was apprehended by PATECEL, the chief constable of Mudgee, one hundred miles from Bookimbla, on the Peel, and on him was found a pair of boots, a Californian hat, and a pair of tailor’s sheers, supposed to have belonged to the deceased.  The jury retired for ten minutes, and then found the prisoner guilty.  His Honor passed sentence of death upon the prisoner, without holding out the slightest hope of mercy, or mitigation of punishment.  The prisoner received the sentence unmoved.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/909, 19/03/1853

ORIGINAL CORRESPONDENCE.
SIR – You are no doubt aware that the gentlemen who composed the jury to pronounce a verdict of “guilty or not guilty” upon the man RYAN were locked up in the jury-room for upwards of eight hours, and when released from their untoward incarceration they unanimously assured his Honor that there was not the slightest chance of the twelve being one, or, in other words, agreeing; ……

DREADFUL ACCIDENT.

On the evening of Thursday last, as a woman named CHARLOTTE ERBY was returning from Goulburn to her home at Darby Murray’s Flats, when about two miles from home, near Stewart’s fence, the cart in which she and her child, about five years old, were sitting, passed over a log, capsized, and buried both mother and child beneath it.  GEO. ERBY, her husband, uneasy at her continued absence, started from home on foot to meet her.  When near the spot where the accident occurred, he heard an indistinct struggling, but from the darkness of the night could not see what it was.  He proceeded on to Goulburn, and there ascertained that his wife had left about two o’clock in the afternoon.  He instantly retraced his steps, and when near the spot where he heard the noise, he called his child by name; she replied; he then went up to the spot, where he found the cart overturned, the horse lying on his back, and the child on the ground, with its thigh underneath the cart; of his wife he could see nothing, except her legs and feet, the remaining portion of her body being buried completely underneath the cart.  She was quite dead.  He then proceeded home, and obtained gthe assistance of his brother and another man, by whose united exertions the deceased and child were conveyed home.  The child afterwards told her father that when the cart upset, her mother never spoke a word.  An inquest was held yesterday on the body before R. WAUGH, Esq., coroner for the district.  The jury returned a verdict of “Died from the effects of injuries accidentally received.”  Goulburn Herald, March 12
SUDDEN DEATH.

A coroner’s inquest was held yesterday at the Cockatoo Inn, Surry Hills, o n view of the body of JANE CLARKE.  -  HARRIET WALLS stated that she knew the deceased, who was an elderly woman, and had been for some time complaining of a cough.  About 7 o’clock on Monday evening she was in her usual health, and standing outside her house in conversation with a neighbour.  Between 9 and 10 o’clock at night, a little girl called out “Mother, come, Mrs. Clarke is dying!”  Witness hastened into the house, and found the deceased lying on a sofa, very ill, and ejecting blood from her mouth.  She almost immediately died.  She was very much afraid of lightning, which was very vivid the same night.  The deceased was a temperate, sober woman.  Verdict: - “Died by the visitation of God.”  Empire, March 16

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/910, 23/03/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday evening a barrowman, from the neighbourhood of Parramatta-street, was employed by a Mrs. KNEE, of Maitland, to convey her luggage to the Australasian Steam Company’s Wharf, at Sussex-street North.  The man carried the luggage on board the Tamar steamer, and was descending the steps into the fore-cabin, when he missed his footing, and fell through a hatchway into the hold.  He was assisted by some of the sailors to the wharf, where he was placed in a sitting posture, and appeared to recover, and seemed to have received but slight injury.  In the course of about an hour he was observed by the wharfinger to be in a drowsy state, and upon examining him the wharfinger became alarmed.  He applied to the police, who procured a cab and conveyed the injured man to the Benevolent Asylum.  Upon his arrival there he was insensible; and although he was immediately provided with medical aid, he sunk rapidly, and died in the course of an hour.  His name or residence has not hitherto been ascertained.  An inquest will be held on the body to-day.  Empire, March 21. [see 11/911, 26/03/1853 below: William Garewood]
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS.

PORT STEPHENS.

There has been little police news here since my last letter.  Mr. Cook, one of the magistrates who usually sit on our bench, has been absent from illness, arising, I understand, from cold or exposure during a journey to the Gloucester, to hold an inquest on a person who had died suddenly there, named YORKY LITTLE.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/911, 26/03/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Tuesday evening a pedlar named McKENZIE was seen in a state of intoxication, driving his horse and cart along the Parramatta-road.  Yesterday morning a man named BRIANT found the man lying dead on the road, the cart upset.  The horse was also killed.  McKenzie lived in Kensington-street, off Parramatta-street, and has left a widow and some children.  Empire, March 24

MURDER BY BUSHRANGERS.  -  The man FREDERICK DAY, who was shot by the bushrangers at Reedy Creek, on the 27th ultimo, died this morning in hospital.  The poor fellow was considered much improved on Sunday last, but on the evening of that day he became delirious, and continued in that state up to his death.  An inquisition was held this day before Dr. BLAKE, coroner, and a jury of twelve, touching the death of the deceased, when, after hearing the evidence of Dr. CAMPBELL and chief constable M’GENNETT, the jury returned a verdict of wilful murder against some person or persons unknown.  It came out during the investigation, that a party residing in the neighbourhood, although informed of the horrible outrage, took no steps to have the wounded man attended to, and inhumanly left him to lie on the road from Sunday to Monday, when a party of diggers had him conveyed to the next public house.  It is reported that the miscreants are still committing outrages on the road; no person is safe, unless travelling with a strong party, for, ever since the squatting club in Macquarie-street deprived us of that very efficient force, the mounted police, we are at the mercy of any ruffian that may take the road, revolver in hand.  Empire’s Yass Corespondent, March 16.
FATAL ACCIDENT.---Yesterday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Wellington Inn, George-street south, on view of the body of William Garewood, then lying dead at the Sydney Infirmary.  From the evidence it appears that deceased was a wharf labourer at the Australasian Steam Navigation Company’s Wharf, and that on Thursday last he slipped down the fore-hold of the Tamar, steamer.  Dr. Norris stated that he had made a post mortem examination of the body of deceased, who was received into the Benevolent Asylum on the evening of the 17th instant, and died about ten o’clock the same night.  He found that death had been caused by the rupture of a blood vessel on the brain, producing apoplexy.  There were no marks of violence on the body.  A fall down the fore-hold of a vessel might cause the rupture of the blood vessel.  The jury found a verdict in accordance with the opinion of Dr. Norris.  Deceased was about 67 years of age, and a hardworking and sober man.  Herald, March 22.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/912, 30/03/1853

SUDDEN DEATH FROM CROUP.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Phoenix Park, on the body of ELIZABETH HARRIS, a girl of nine years old.  It appeared from the evidence of her father, WILLIAM HARRIS, that on the morning of Good Friday he left his house to attend divine service; his daughter was then quite well, but when he returned in the afternoon she appeared to suffer from a cold, and had a weasing in her chest; she got worse as the evening advanced, and at ten o’clock began to cough with the sound peculiar to croup; her father, now seriously alarmed, went for medical advice, and obtained some medicine, but about half-past twelve o’clock that night the poor girl died, in convulsions.  The jury returned a verdict of death from croup.
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  EFFECTS OF DRINK.  -  On Monday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Morpeth Hotel, Morpeth, on the body of DANIEL SHEA, aged 35 years.  It appeared from the evidence that on Saturday afternoon, about five o’clock, three men, Daniel Shea, Wm. HOY, and JOHN READ, were proceeding towards Morpeth (from East Maitland), in a bullock dray; all three were drunk, and Hoy was lying asleep in the dray.  Shea and Read appear, from the confused evidence that could be obtained, to have alternately driven the dray after leaving Mr. Keogh’s public-house, and were driving rather quickly when Mrs. PRICE, who lives by the road side, saw Shea fall off the front of the dray on to his head, and the next instant the wheel passed over him.  Read also fell off, but was not injured.  Shea, who could not speak, was fatally hurt, and having been lifted into the dray by the persons passing, he was driven on to Morpeth, but died before arriving there.  A post mortem examination by Dr. WILTON showed that death was caused by dislocation of the neck, probably caused, as the Dr. thought, by a fall on the head; no external injury was perceptible.  The jury returned a verdict of death by falling from a dray while intoxicated.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS.

MERRIWA

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  An inquest was this day held at the New Inn, Merriwa, by THOMAS A. PERRY, coroner for the district, and a jury of five, on the body of WILLIAM WILSON, late of Singleton.  It appears that deceased, who was travelling to the diggings with his own dray, loaded, drank rather too freely at Merriwa, after he had passed which some miles, he attempted to spring on to the pole of his dray, and fell over it, the wheel passing over his neck, which it broke.  The jury returned a verdict to that effect.  Deceased was considered a steady, hard working man, and, we regret to say, leaves a wife and three children at Singleton.  Merriwa, 24th March 1853

THE MURRUMBIDGEE.  -  TARCUTTA, MARCH 19.  -  One or two serious accidents have recently occurred on the line of road near Tarcutta and Gundagai.  A woman named Mrs. COLES died the other day of injuries received from a throw off a cart.  She was the wife of a respectable person lately in the employ of Mr. GUYSE, of Hele Hele Wah Station, as overseer.  About five weeks ago she was proceeding to Sydney in a two horse cart driven by her husband. Before they had got nine miles past Tarcutta the horses took fright, and ran off with great violence.  The unfortunate deceased became alarmed and immediately jumped to the ground, but before she had time to recover herself one of the wheels of the cart passed over her body, inflicting the most frightful injuries on several parts of her person. She was immediately taken to the house of Mr. MITCHELL, of Mundarlo, where she received the utmost attention and kindness for nearly five weeks, when she expired after enduring great physical agony.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/913, 02/04/1853

BRAIDWOOD.  -  Among the painful matters of the week I regret to mention another of those accidents which have been of so common occurrence – the falling in of a large bank of earth.  In this case three men were buried under the heap, and although taken out alive, but slight hope is entertained of their recovery.  A little care might have prevented these terrible accidents.  Why is it not exercised?
WOLLONGONG, MARCH 28.  -  Another awful and melancholy accident, involving the sacrifice of human life, transpired yesterday (Sunday) afternoon.  JOHN M’GUIRE, shoemaker, with an old settler of Charcoal Creek, on Mr. Jenkins’s estate, was riding from the Fig Tree towards his own residence, when he turned in, as it is supposed, to water his horse, off the main road, in a lane or narrow track bearing towards the Five-Island Farm.  The horse ran away, throwing the unfortunate rider against a post.  Death was instantaneous.  We have not yet heard the result of the post mortem examination, which we presume has been or will be this day held on the body.
SUDDEN DEATH,

On Saturday afternoon Mr. EDWARD COWEY, residing at Irishtown, on the Liverpool Road, where he kept a school, came into Sydney in a light cart, on some private business.  When he arrived at Clifton’s public house, near the boundary stone, feeling unwell he got out of the cart, and was soon afterwards seen by Mr. CLIFTON sitting in his tap-room very ill, and breathing stertorously.  Mr. Clifton called up HARRIS, the constable, and he advised Cowey to get into the Benevolent Asylum, but he declined to do so, saying he would soon get better, and go back home.  Dr. MACLACHLAN was sent for, and constable Harris took Cowey into the air to revive him, and he died instantly and most unexpectedly.  Empire, March 24

WILFUL MURDER.  -  Intelligence has reached Bathurst of the wilful murder of HENRY CHEESEMAN, sheep overseer in the service of Mr. LAWSON, at Flyer’s Creek, by an exile in the establishment named JOSEPH MORRIS.  The few scattered particulars which have come to hand are to the effect that the people who occupy the Triangle Flat sheep station, which is situate about three miles from the farm, had been drinking, and of course neglecting their duty – that Cheeseman remonstrated with them on the impropriety of their conduct and afterwards left the place, when he was followed by Morris, who was absent some time – and that when asked upon his return what had become of Cheeseman, he replied “I’ve settled the b----r and thrown him into the creek.”  Several days elapsed without any tidings of him, when at length the creek was flooded and the body, washed a distance of a mile and a half, was found upon the bank, near the horse paddock, with a severe fracture in the skull, which in all probability was the cause of death.  Information of these circumstances having been forwarded to Carcoar, Morris was apprehended on his own statement, and at the conclusion of the inquest held upon the remains, fully committed to take his trial.  The name of Cheeseman has been connected with sheep farming from the earliest days of the district.  He came out to the colony in charge of a number of fine-wooled rams, and when knowledge of sheep management was a scarce commodity, his own experience quickly earned him the reputation of being one of the best judges of sheep in New South Wales.  Since that period, now upwards of thirty years ago, the greater portion of his life time has been spent in Mr. Lawson’s service, the remainder having been devoted to the accumulation and dissipation of a fortune.  Bathurst Free Press, March 26

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/914, 06/04/1853

A WOMAN DROWNED.  -  Yesterday afternoon, between five and six o’clock, a woman, whose name we did not learn [MARY ANN GENTLE], was drowned in the Hunter, at M’Dougal’s Falls.  As we were informed she had descended the steep bank at Mr. M’Dougal’s and was about to step into the ferry-boat to cross over, when she slipped and fell in, and sunk immediately.  The water is there very deep, the brisk stream that runs down the falls cutting a kind of hole, while there is a good deal of fallen timber in the river.  Great efforts were made to recover the body, with drags, &c., but at dark the body had not been found.

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  One unfortunate fellow, private of the 40th regiment, named SPURGEON, cannot possibly recover; … (page 2 e)

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday at the Three Tuns Tavern, in King-street, on the body of CATHERINE LYNCH, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  The deceased was servant at Mr. Hurley’s public house, the Coach and Horses, in Cumberland-street.  On Monday last, she was busy cooking dinner, when her screams attracted the attention of a person named FLORENCE HARRINGTON, an inmate of the house.  He (sic) ran into the kitchen, and found the deceased with her arms extended, and her clothes in flames; she creamed, “O! my God! I’m dead, I’m dead!”  Harrington and another man extinguished the fire promptly, but not before the deceased was severely burned.  A pot had fallen off the fire, and he believed the burning was accidental.  The deceased was at once removed to the Infirmary, where she died early on Saturday morning.  -  MARY JORDAN, nurse in the Infirmary, stated that when the deceased was admitted into the Infirmary it was discovered that she was burned in her arms, legs, chest, neck, and stomach.  She said herself that the occurrence was quite accidental.  She had not any family in the colony.  Verdict – “Accidental burning.”  Empire, April 4

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On the 31st of last month, a man named JAMES BYRNE was driving a team of bullocks in a dray, on the Liverpool Road.  He had an outrigger upon which he was seated, when he fell off, and one of the wheels of the dray passed over his body.  He expired almost immediately.  He was sober at the time.  The Coroner held an inquest on the body on Friday and the jury returned a verdict – Died from the effects of injuries accidentally received.  Empire, April 4

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On the evening of the 31st March, a man named JAMES BYRNES, of Campbelltown, fell accidentally from off his dray, on the Liverpool Road; the wheel passed over his body and killed him on the spot; he was quite sober at the time, and was a teetotaller.  Two other draymen, in the same service, were on the road with him at the time.  Empire, April 2

ACCIDENTS.  -  On Wednesday last, a lad named GEORGE STRENTON, about five years of age, fell into Breakfast Creek, and was drowned.  Another child, on Sunday last, fell into the river, at South Brisbane, but was fortunately rescued by a butcher in the employment of Mr. ORR.  Moreton Bay Free Press, March 22

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/915, 09/04/1853
DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER on the body of MARY ANN GENTLE, the woman who was drowned in the river on Tuesday evening, as we mentioned in our last.  It appears that Mrs. Gentle, who with her husband, was in the service of Mr. M’DOUGAL, 
was in Maitland that afternoon, and when on her way home was intoxicated, but could walk; she was seen to go down to the beach as usual to Mr. M’Dougal’s boat, which was on the Maitland side, probably left there by her, and she got into the boat, and pulled herself across the river; the tide was running down strongly, and she missed the landing place, the boat being carried against or under a willow tree partly fallen in, and she then fell out of the boat.  The person who saw her, Mrs. COIL, living on the Maitland side, was a considerable distance off, but heard the unfortunate woman call out twice.  The bank on Mr. M’Dougal’s side being steep, and the houses some short way back, no one on that side heard Mrs. Gentle’s cry, or saw the accident, but Mrs. Coil gave the alarm, and persons were very soon on the spot, making every search for the poor woman, but in vain.  Her body was found next morning, near the willow-tree where she sunk.  The jury returned a verdict of death by drowning, by falling out of a small boat, when intoxicated.  [It is possible that the unfortunate woman’s death was occasioned by the fallen willow-tree, for every one who knows anything of boating is aware of the great danger to an incautious person which arises when as stream carried a boat under a projecting rock of other body.  As the spot is much used as a ferrying place, it would be a humane precaution to clear away any fallen trees near the landing place, lest other accidents should occur.]
A CHILD DROWNED IN A POOL OF WATER ONE FOOT DEEP.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Halton, Upper Paterson, on the body of THOMAS HANDCOCK, a little boy, eighteen months old.  It appeared that the little fellow was playing at home, his grandmother, Mrs. BUNN, being the only other person at home at the time; he little boy had a small basket, and was dragging it about by a string outside the door, talking to his grandmother, who was sitting indoors; she missed his voice and steps for two or three minutes, and rising to look for him saw his pinafore in a small pool, one foot deep, which lay about ten yards from the door; her husband was returning at the moment, and picked the little boy up, finding him lying in the water, face downwards.  He was instantly taken into the house, laid before the fire, and well rubbed, but though he exhibited signs of animation when brought in, he dies almost immediately.  The jury returned a verdict of death by drowning in a pool of water.
MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday afternoon, about three o’clock, EMMA ROSE, a girl of fourteen years old, the only child of Mrs. Rose, a widow, matron of the National School at Hinton, was accidentally drowned in the Paterson River, at Hinton.  Emma Rose was playing with a little girl, daughter of a farmer named STEVENS, at Stevens’s place, when she told the little girl to see how quick she could run down the steps leading down to the river (cut in the bank); she did run down, but could not stop herself, and plunged into the river, and sunk almost instantly.  The river is there deep, and although several men hurried to the spot immediately the little girl Stevens gave the alarm, they could see nothing of Emma Rose, nor way her body found until noon yesterday.  The unhappy occurrence excited great commiseration for Mrs. Rose in Hinton, as she has during the short time (about three months) she has been in Hinton, acquired general respect from her quiet and obliging character.
THE LATE FATAL AFFRAY IN CAMPBELL-STREET.  -  Yesterday afternoon a highly respectable jury was empanelled by the Coroner, at the Central Police Court, in inquiry concerning the death of PATRICK JOHN SPURGEON, a private in H.M. 40th Regiment.  MAURICE WALSH, landlord of the Beehive public-house, his wife, BRIDGET WALSH, and BERNARD NEALE, JOHN PIPER, JAMES MACDONALD, THOMAS MOLLOY, JAMES DELANEY, JOHN HOPKINS, and TIMOTHY RYAN, were brought in as prisoners.  The Coroner requested the jury to discard from their mind any out of doors reports which they might have heard, and to give their decision solely in accordance with the evidence.  He also stated, that the officer in command of the 40th Regiment, had engaged the legal assistance of Mr. JOHNSON, as solicitor for the prosecution.  Messrs. NICHOLS and ROBERTS were engaged for the defence.  The jury were then provided with conveyances to the Victoria Military Barracks, to view the corpse of the deceased soldier, and upon their return to the Court, the inquest was adjourned until Monday next, at 11 a.m. -  Empire, April 7.
SUDDEN DEATH.  -  About half-past eleven o’clock on Monday night, a Mrs. SHORT, of Palmer-street, Wooloomooloo, was found dead on her sofa by some neighbours.  Only a child about seven or eight months old was in her house at the time.  Her husband was killed about a year ago.  An inquest was held yesterday afternoon at the Fitz Roy Hotel on the body of the aforesaid MARCELLA SHORT.  It appeared that she was a young woman who had for some time past been unfortunately addicted to drinking.  The jury returned a verdict – Death from natural causes, but accelerated by habits of intemperance.  Empire, April 6

MURDER AT THE TURON.  -  Intelligence reach Sydney yesterday, of the murder at the Turon of a person named PATRICK DUFFY, of Harrington-street, Sydney.  We have no other particulars than that he was murdered, as is supposed, for the sake of some nuggets he had found, and his body thrown into a hole sixteen feet deep.  We shall probably have further particulars down today.  Herald, April 6

THE DEAD BODY OF A CHILD FOUND.---Yesterday the dead body of a child was discovered, burtied near a fence not far from the Burial ground Hill, West Maitland.  An inquest was commenced on the body in the afternoon by Mr. Parker.
SYDNEY NEWS.

It is said that Dixon, one of the soldiers concerned at the affray at Walsh’s public house on last Saturday, has this day deceased, but I am not authoritatively informed of the fact.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/916, 13/04/1853

SYDNEY NEWS. 

The inquest on sergeant SPURGEON, who died in consequence of injuries received at an affray at Walsh’s public house, Hay-market, on Saturday week, was resumed this morning, is still sitting, and is not expected to close until a late hour, if at all to-night.  The other man, DIXON, who was reported in one of the daily papers on Friday as dead, yet lives, but no hopes are entertained of his recovery.

   An old woman named O’NEIL, lately an inmate at the Benevolent Asylum, was found dead yesterday on the Ultimo Estate, near Sydney.
CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT

Saturday, April 9. – (Before the Chief Justice)

JAMES BRANDON was indicted for the wilful murder of MARY ANN DUNN, in Bourke-street, Wooloomooloo, on the 15th February last.  He was defended by Mr. DARVALL and Mr. STEPHEN, who were the counsel assigned to him by the court; attorneys, Messrs. JOHNSON and JOHNSON.  The evidence adduced was similar to what was given at the inquest, a summary of which appeared in the Mercury at the time.  Mr. Darvall addressed the jury in a powerful speech for the defence.  After the Judge had summed up with great care, the jury retired for a few minutes, and returned with a verdict of not guilty. 
VIOLENT ASSAULT IN CAMPBELL STREET.  [Connect with previous issue, 11/915, 09/04/1853]
On Saturday evening last, about seven o’clock, some soldiers of the 40th Regiment went into a public house in the Hay Market, known as the “Beehive,” kept by a person named MAURICE WALSH, where they had some drink.  Several other persons were in the house drinking, and a man named RYAN was playing a fiddle.  Some dispute arose, and one of the soldiers struck a man named NEALE, who had been treating another soldier.  One of the soldiers said something to the landlady which seemed to annoy her, and went dancing about the room, shouting “I’m a Tipperary man, and care for nobody.”  The landlord said he did not wish to have any row in his house, and with the assistance of some of the persons in the house he put the soldiers outside and shut the door, but did not fasten it.  Shortly after the soldiers re-entered the house, and another fight commenced, but in the second fight it does not appear whether the civilians or the soldiers struck the first blow.  The soldiers were again put out, and the house was cleared of all persons, except the landlady, the fiddler, and a carrier from Mudgee, named THOMAS MILTON, who was at the time lodging in the house.  The landlord, Walsh, went out of the house at the same time; and on his return into it, an attack was made from the outside upon the windows, several of which were smashed.  This appears to have excited the wrath of Walsh, who seized a New Zealand war club from behind the counter, and attempted to go out when his wife said to him “For God’s sake do not go out to them;” he replied, he was not to have his windows smashed in that manner, and went out.  It appeared that just about this time two other soldiers of the same regiment, named Wm. BYFORD and PATRICK SPURGEON, were walking in the Hay Market, and seeing some soldiers and a number of people squabbling at Walsh’s door, they went over to see what was the matter.  Just at this moment the landlord met Spurgeon and struck him a blow on the head, either with a New Zealand club or a bar of iron, which knocked him down.  Mrs. Walsh afterwards came out of the house and struck Spurgeon on the head with a bottle.  Two other soldiers were also knocked down by severe blows upon the head.  By this time Sergeant M’KAY, of the mounted police, accompanied by two or three troopers, arrived, and apprehended every person they found in the house.  These were Maurice Walsh, landlord, BRIDGET WALSH, his wife, JOHN PIPER, BERNARD NEALE, JAMES MACDONALD, JAMES DELANEY, JOHN HOPKINS, TIMOTHY RYAN, (the fiddler), and THOMAS MOLLOY.  On Tuesday the soldier, Spurgeon, died from the effects of his wounds, and a coroner’s jury was empanelled on Wednesday, to hold an inquest on the body.  The inquiry was commenced on Wednesday, at the Police-office, when the coroner stated that Mr. R. JOHNSON had been retained by the officer commanding the regiment, for the prosecution, and Mr. G.R. NICHOLS and Mr. ROBERTS for the defence.  The jury proceeded to the Military Barracks to view the body, and on their return the inquest was adjourned until Monday next.  The parties concerned in the affray were, in accordance with the remand, brought pro forma before the police bench on Thursday, when the Mayor stated that in consequence of one of the soldiers having died, an inquest had been commenced on Wednesday, which had been adjourned until Monday, and he would therefore again remand the prisoners for eight days, by which time the inquest would be concluded.  The whole of the prisoners were then taken to Darlinghurst gaol in cabs.  People’s Advocate, April 9
CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.
Thursday, April 7.

In consequence of the unavoidable absence of Mr. DARVALL, the counsel assigned to the prisoner JAMES BRANDON, charged with the murder of MARY ANN DUNN, the trial which had been fixed for Friday was postponed till Saturday.  Abridged from the Herald.
MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On Saturday, the 19th March a report having reached trooper JOHN NICHOL, of the mounted police stationed at Ben Bullen, Mudgee Road, that the Mudgee mail had been again stopped and robbed on Cherry-tree Hill, he (Nichol), with his usual zeal, started immediately for the spot where the robbery was reported to have been committed, and when about one mile north of Crown Ridge, on descending a steep and ragged hill was thrown from his horse, falling on his head and fracturing his skull in a shocking manner.  The first person who found deceased was a Mr. WALTON, innkeeper of Running Stream, who had started in company with Nichol, but owing to his horse being jaded could not keep in sight of him.  Descending from the hill alluded to, Walton first picked up a carbine, and immediately afterwards found Nichol lying on the ground with his face downwards, and on turning him over he found the vital spark had fled.  According to Walton’s statement it could not have been more than ten or fifteen minutes from the time he had quitted company with deceased, and he was a lifeless corpse.  THOMAS CADELL, Esq., J.P., was quickly on the spot, and ordered the body to be removed to the barracks.  An inquest was held on Monday before THOMAS BROWN, Esq., coroner, and a highly respectable jury, and after adjourning to the Ben Bullen Inn and hearing the evidence, a verdict to the following effect was returned:- That the deceased John Nichol had been killed by a fall from his horse whilst in the execution of his duty.  Deceased was a very active officer, and highly respected by the inhabitants of the district.  He has left a widow to deplore her sudden bereavement, for whom, we are glad to find, a subscription has been set on foot.  It is a strange fact, and worthy of notice, that we are allowed two mounted troopers for this road, but since the detestable new gold regulations have come into vogue, one is taken away to assist at Sofala in collecting licenses; we are therefore trusting to one, or at least were, when the sad accident occurred.  Hence the occasion of this man’s death and another mail robbery.  Correspondent of Bell’s Life.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/917, 16/04/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.

The inquest on the bodies of the two soldiers killed in the affray at Walsh’s public-house, on Saturday week, has not terminated, and it is doubtful if it will be concluded this evening.

INQUESTS.  -  The Coroner having been during the week engaged daily at the Police Court, in inquests upon the bodies of two soldiers, the Water Police Magistrates held several magisterial inquiries into cases of sudden deaths.  The first was an inquiry into the death of ELIZABETH FRANCES FREYBERN, aged four years and eight months.  It appeared from the evidence, that the deceased accidentally fell into a well, in a paddock off Woolloomooloo, and was drowned.  Finding – Accidental death.  -  An inquiry was held into the circumstances connected with the death of JANE O’NIEL, whose body was found lying dead on the green at Pyrmont.  There were no marks of violence upon her person.  Dr. NORRIS, resident surgeon at the Benevolent Asylum, stated that on Sunday the body of deceased was brought to the Asylum.  There were no bruises or wounds to account for death.  She had been under witness’s care off and on, for several months, for contusions caused by falling down when intoxicated.  He believed she died from continual habits of intemperance.  Finding – Died by the visitation of God.  -  Another inquiry was held touching the decease of WILLIAM ROWE PENNY, late a seaman in H.M.S. Acheron.  The deceased was about 21 years of age, and a native of the Isle of France.  The deceased was found drowned.  The finding was accordingly, but how the deceased came into the water did not plainly appear.  -  An inquiry was held upon the body of PETER LEWIS BEMI.  Dr. RUTTER stated that he was sent for to visit the deceased, whom he found lying on the landing of his apartment quite dead.  Dr. R. was of opinion, that death was occasioned by effusion of blood, caused by the rupture of an aneurismal sac, connected with the aorta.  Finding – Died by the visitation of God.  Empire, April 14
THE LATE FATAL AFFRAY IN CAMPBELLTOWN.  

The Inquest touching the deaths of two soldiers of the 40th Regiment was resumed yesterday.  Orders had been given by the Coroner not to allow any more strangers to enter the court than the seats set apart for spectators could accommodate; but soon after the proceedings had commenced a violent rush was made by the crowd outside, which required all the force of the police in attendance to resist.  Mr. NICHOLS submitted to the Coroner that the court ought to be cleared if such disgraceful conduct interfered with the investigation of so important a case as this.  The levity of the spectators, their hissing the military witnesses on Monday, and their laughter during the evidence of the females, who on the following day were describing a most painful and deplorable case, were truly lamentable exhibitions in a coroner’s court.  The Coroner said that he had not observed the hissing referred to, and declined to make any order in regard to clearing the court.  The taking the evidence was then resumed, and continued until nearly six o’clock in the evening, when the further hearing of witnesses was postponed until eleven o’clock this morning.  Herald, April 14

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  In Wednesday’s issue I noticed a paragraph headed “Murder at the Turon.”  I have made inquiries concerning it, and find the following to be the particulars:- On Monday, the 26th March, one PATRICK DUFFY, a gold digger on Oakey Creek, challenged another digger, nick-named BLACK BILL, to fight, to which he appears to have consented, but after a short scuffle Duffy was thrown on his head, and the combatants were separated; Duffy went to his tent and took to his bed, being unconscious during Tuesday; on Wednesday morning he got up about daylight, and passed his mate, who was asleep in the tent; but a few minutes could have passed before he was heard crying for help; assistance being got he was pulled out of a hole (near the tent) into which he had fallen.  Dr. WILMOTT was sent for from the town, but the sufferer died a few minutes after his arrival.  Mr. Commissioner JOHNSON examined into the case on Thursday, and has sent the evidence to the Attorney General, Black Bill being at large, having given bail for his appearance when called for.  A few of the deceased’s friends got up a subscription list for the assistance of the widow and orphans, and they have lodged the sum of £24 in my hands, for safe keeping, until they have an opportunity of forwarding it to Sydney.

WOLLONGONG, APRIL 9.  -  It is our painful duty to announce to you the sudden death of Mr. WILLIAM GARD, inn-keeper, of Kiama.  He was found drowned yesterday evening about four o’clock, something more than midway from the north side of the Minumarra River, at the crossing place between Shell Harbour and Kiama.  We are informed that the deceased made one of a party from Kiama who went to collect shells at the Minumarra, but how he separated from the party, or got into the river, he have not as yet accurate information.  He was found floating with his back uppermost, as if recently in the act of swimming, and it is supposed he was endeavouring to swim to the south side when his life became the lamentable sacrifice of the rash attempt.  … Herald Correspondent
THE LATE FATAL AFFRRAY AT CAMPBELLTOWN.

Yesterday, upon the jury re-assembling to resume the inquiry (adjourned from the previous day) touching the death of private JOHN SPURGEON, of the 40th Regiment, the Coroner apprised them that the death of a second soldier of the same regiment, namely, PATRICK DIXON, who had been embroiled in the same unhappy affray of the 2nd of April instant, had been reported to him; and that as the two deceased soldiers had seemingly met their deaths under nearly the same circumstances, he proposed, with the concurrence of the learned advocates on both sides, that the present jury should be re-sworn to find a verdict on the second case, and that they should then proceed to the hospital at the Military Barracks to view the body of Patrick Dixon.  He, the Coroner, further proposed that upon the return of the jury, all the evidence taken on the preceding day should be re-sworn by the different witnesses, and that the advocates on both sides should be allowed to examine and cross-examine in respect to any matter which related to the assault on Patrick Dixon.  This course was agreed to by the advocates, and carriages were provided for the jury, who proceeded to the Military Hospital.  Upon their return, the Coroner stated that it was his intention to file proceedings against the toll-bar keeper at the Paddington turnpike gate, who had demanded toll from the jury, although distinctly told they were on public service, and had grossly insulted and abused them.  The inquiry into the causes of the two deaths was then proceeded with, and the whole of the evidence taken on the preceding day was read over before the respective witnesses, who were re-examined on a few points by Mr. JOHNSON for the officers of the regiment, and by Mr. NICHOLS and Mr. ROBERTS for the prisoners.  Several new witnesses were examined; and at six o’clock the Coroner notified to the jury that the Superintendent of Police required for the service of the city the police force then in attendance in the court, and in whose custody the prisoners were.  Under these circumstances he felt it necessary to adjourn the inquest until to-day, at half-past one o’clock.  During this, and the previous day, the conduct of the people who crowded the court was disgraceful in the extreme.  Whilst the evidence of the soldiers was being taken, hissing, yelling, laughing, and groaning, were indulged in by the crowd, many of whom were seen not only to exchange nods and laughter with the prisoners in the dock, but also to shake hands with them.  The Coroner once or twice threatened to have the court cleared, but his threats were loudly laughed at.  More painful scenes can scarcely be conceived.  Herald, April 13
SERIOUS ACCIDENT.  -  HENRY EDMONDS, one of the light-keepers at South Head, was thrown out of a cart, in which he had proceeded for a load of fuel.  The horse, it appears, took fright and bolted; the cart capsized, tossing Edmonds upon his head; and he was discovered lying on the road side in a deplorable condition.  He was conveyed to the Infirmary, and we regret to hear that but small hopes are entertained of his recovery.  Herald, April 13

SERIOUS ACCIDENT.  -  On Monday last a man named WILLIAM BENTON, who was travelling with his horse train across Pretty Plains, met with a serious accident by the upsetting of his dray, which cost him the loss of one of his legs.  It appears that at the time of the capsize he was riding on the dray which threw him on the ground, the guard iron falling upon his leg.  In this painful position the unfortunate man remained for two hours, when the merest accident (the road being little travelled) brought him relief.  When released it was discovered that the lower portion of the leg, and the foot was so dreadfully smashed that immediate amputation was considered necessary by Dr. MACHATTIE, who was in attendance on the following morning, and performed the operation.  The sufferer is doing as well as the nature of his case will permit.  Bathurst Free Press, 9th April

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  About half-past ten o’clock on Monday night, Mr. BEMI, a surveyor by profession, who lodged at Mr. Burrows’s public house in York-street, died suddenly from the bursting of a blood-vessel.  Empire, April 13.

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  About five p.m., on Monday, a little girl named ELIZABETH FREEBURN, living with her parents in Little Forbes-street, off Burke-street, Woolloomooloo, fell into a well and was drowned.  She was only six years of age.  Empire, April 13

EXECUTION.  -  MACARTHY and the BLACKFELLOW were executed yesterday morning, but for want of space we must defer particulars to our next issue.  Bathurst Free Press, April 9

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/918, 20/04/1853

INQUEST.  -  On Sunday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Cleveland, Upper Allyn, on the body of CLARA SMUTTER, a little girl of twenty months old.  It appeared from the evidence, and the post-mortem examination made by Dr. PARK at the request of the jury, that the little girl died from acute inflammation in the stomach and bowels.  The disease must have been incipient for some time, but the little girl appeared healthy and cheerful till the middle of last week, when she became relaxed in her bowels, and complained of pain, after nibbling a green cucumber that she had picked up.  On Thursday morning she got worse, and the mother sent for a neighbour (the father being from home), whose husband went that evening to Dr. Park’s, two miles off, and obtained some medicine, no suspicion being then entertained of the dangerous illness the child was suffering from.  Next morning she was much worse, and died in the course of the morning; Dr. Park was sent for, but being from home at the time, he did not see the child till Saturday morning.  The jury returned a verdict that death was the result of acute inflammation of the bowels.
WILFUL MURDER.
(From the Herald, April 15)

The inquiry which was opened before the coroner and a jury of thirteen on Thursday, the 6th instant, at the central police office, touching the death of PATRICK SPURGEON, a private of the 40th regiment, and then remanded until Monday, and continued from day to day until yesterday, was concluded last night.  Inasmuch as on Tuesday last the death of a second soldier, PATRICK DIXON, had been reported to the Coroner, it was arranged that the inquiry into the two fatal cases should be conducted by the same jury: and as the proceedings of Tuesday were a recapitulation of these on the proceeding (sic) day, it will be convenient, in order to give our readers a clear account of this singularly and painful case, to place it before them in the form of a summary, rather than to publish at length the conflicting evidence of 33 witnesses, in the examination of whom the greater part of six days have been occupied.

   On Saturday, the 2nd instant, about 7 o’clock in the evening, three soldiers of the 40th regiment, named EUSTACE, WOODS, and DUNN, were drinking in the Bee Hive public house, Campbell-street, when a civilian who was present came to the bar where they were drinking, and asked Dunn to give him a glass of rum.  The latter told him, “if he wanted a drink to pay for it himself;” whereupon the civilian struck Dunn in the mouth.  Eustace attempted to part them, but received a blow, and two or three civilians rushed from an adjoining room, and commenced an onslaught on the three soldiers; WALSH taking an active part, and a voice from behind the bar, (sworn to be that of Mrs. Walsh) cried out “murder the red-coated devils, so that they cannot tell who beat them.”   The soldiers having been furiously beaten, were forced into the street, and the door shut upon them.  They attempted to re-enter, and by this time the alarm having been given, several soldiers who were in the neighbourhood came up; but as they neared the house, the door was thrown open from the inside, and several persons rushed out; one arrived with an iron bar, about four feet long and three inches wide; another with a heavy nullah nullah or waddy; and a third with a pointed stake about three feet long.  Armed with these weapons, they indiscriminately attacked the soldiers.  One, an elderly man, Private JOHN SPURGEON, who had not been in the house, and who was casually passing at the time, was about the first who was felled to the ground by the man that was armed with the iron bar, and when on the ground he received a second blow from the same weapon across the skull.  Several witnesses distinctly swore that when this unfortunate man was lying thus stricken down and insensible from the effects of these two deadly wounds, a woman, identified as the female prisoner Walsh, came out of the house and struck him over the head with a glass bottle.  No sooner had Spurgeon been so savagely assaulted, than another soldier, PATRICK DIXON, was similarly treated, his wounds being, if possible, of a more frightful character; and as the wretch who was armed with the bar turned to deal a blow on a third victim, another person (Sworn by one witness to be the same woman who had broken the bottle over Spurgeon’s head) came out of the house, and with a heavy weapon, thought to be the nullah nullah, inflicted several fearful wounds upon the back and shoulders of Dixon as he lay with his face upon the ground.  Other soldiers (more particularly Woods, Dunn, and Eustace, who had been inside the house) were also cruelly wounded and beaten.  By this time, however, Mrs. HANCOCK, the wife of a trooper of the mounted police, who, passing by, had seen the affray, ran, screaming “murder,” to the troopers’ barracks; and the whole of the men stationed there turned out in a few minutes, and aided by several constables of the Sydney police, proceeded to the house, which by this time was closed, and entering, after considerable resistance from the inmates, took them all into custody.  The prisoners were MAURICE WALSH, the landlord, and his wife; JOHN PIPER, THOMAS MOLLOY, JAMES M’DONNELL, JAMES DELANEY, JOHN HOPKINS, and TIMOTHY RYAN.  Upon searching the premises the iron bar, the nullah nullah, and the stake already described, were found covered with blood and hair, and thrust into places as if hasty concealment had been attempted.  The prisoners were conveyed by a strong guard to the watchhouse, and every possible attention paid to the wounded soldiers.  They were conveyed into the house; Dr. WEST was immediately in attendance; and as soon as possible these men who were insensible were conveyed to the Military Hospital, where they were promptly attended by Assistant Surgeon TITMAS, of the 40th Regiment.  The fearful wounds inflicted upon Spurgeon and Dixon forbade all hopes of recovery from the first, and the former died on the 5th instant, and the latter on Monday last.  Eustace, Woods, and Dunn, have since sufficiently recovered to enable them to give evidence, although still evidently suffering severely.  Woods, in particular, in consequence of a violent blow on the head, could scarcely open his teeth when giving evidence; yet this proof of the treatment to which he had been subjected, imparting to his delivery a painfully peculiar character, was marked by shouts of laughter by the ruffians who crowded the court.
****

The jury retired at 9 o’clock, and returned into the court at half-past ten last night.  The found a verdict of wilful murder against Maurice Walsh, and Bridgert Maria Walsh, his wife; against John Piper, James Macdonnel, and Thomas Molloy; they further found that Bernard Neil and James Delaney were guilty of aiding and abetting in the murder.  The prisoners were committed for trial, and immediately placed in carriages and conveyed under a strong escort of horse and foot police to Darlinghurst Gaol.  Some thousands of people were around the gates awaiting the result of the inquest.  The prisoners throughout displayed the most reckless indifference, joining in the disgraceful laughter of the spectators when some cruel wounding of a soldier was described.  On Wednesday Mr. NICHOLS threatened the female prisoner that if she continued to conduct herself with such shameless indecorum he would retire from the case.
DESPERATE ATTEMPT TO BREAK OUT OF BRISBANE GAOL.

On Thursday evening last, at six o’clock, Mr. FEENEY, the gaoler, proceeded as usual, with the principal turnkey and four other turnkeys, to muster the prisoners in Brisbane gaol.  The turnkey on duty (GLEESON) opened the door of No. 1 Ward, where the committed prisoners were confined, and called upon them to fall in as usual, but, instead of doing so, some of them immediately made a rush at the door, which they attempted for force wide open.  JAMES SMART, a prisoner under committal on a charge of having murdered a native black woman in the Wide Bay district, was foremost in this attempt, and made several blows at the turnkeys with a piece of iron hoop – a formidable weapon, which appears to have been wrenched from one of the night tubs, and was doubled at the end, and partly sharpened.  The blows were partly warded off by the sticks of Mr. Feeney and the other turnkeys, and, with their assistance, Gleeson succeeded in preventing the prisoners from forcing a passage through the door.   … Subsequently, …[put in irons, and later ordered to remain in irons]  None of them made any defence, and Smart remarked that they could not place him in a worse condition than he was in – or something to that effect.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/919, 23/04/1853

SUICIDE FROM INTEMPERANCE.  -  On Wednesday morning a great sensation was caused in West Maitland by the news that HENRY COMPTON, aged 24 years, the son of Mr. STEPHEN COMPTON, plasterer, and old and respected inhabitant of Maitland, had cut his throat while suffering from delirium tremens.  An inquest was held on the body the same day, when it appeared that for some days young Compton’s mind had been wandering from continued intemperance, and that his relatives were obliged to keep a watch over him.  On Tuesday night he suffered greatly from the horrors, keeping his family up almost all night in dread of his doing something violent.  On Wednesday morning he eat a hearty breakfast, but some short time after his father and one brother had left to go to work, he got some hot water, saying he wanted to shave himself, and got a razor by force from his mother; he refused to shave in her presence, and ran up stairs towards his own room, and although his brother James followed immediately Henry cut his throat on the landing place with the razor, so deeply that he died instantly.  The jury returned a verdict that deceased killed himself while labouring under temporary insanity from intemperance.  -  The feeling that this act created in Maitland was increased by the statement that one of young Compton’s boon companions was in the same state of mind, having actually been pulled out of the river after throwing himself in; and that a third young man was very ill from similar causes.

EXECUTION OF MACARTHY AND THE ABORIGINAL PADDY.  -  On Friday morning last the sentence of the law for wilful murder and rape was executed upon MACARTHY, and PADDY THE BLACKFELLOW, in presence of some two or three hundred souls, amongst whom as usual there was the ordinary admixture of females, though we are happy to say in far smaller proportions than on former occasions.  Macarthy was accompanied by the Rev. Mr. KEATING, and followed by the sable unfortunate, who was attended by the Reverends THOMAS SHARPE and WILLIAM LISLE.   After it was made known to the condemned convicts that there was no hope of any mitigation of sentence, they yielded themselves up to the counsel of their spiritual advisers.  Poor Paddy, however, was slow to entertain such a conviction, evidently actuated by the hope that as the life of Peter, another aboriginal, who was convicted of rape, two years ago, had been spared, there was the like chance for him.  Both, however, finally became resigned to an inevitable lot, and, from what we have since learned, died truly repentant of their crimes.  Paddy attributed his misfortunes to intoxication, and desired, amongst his last requests, that a letter should be written to his brother at Mudgee, warning him to beware of the intoxicating cup.  Abridged from the Bathurst Free Press, 16th April.

MURDER OF AN ABORIGINAL NEAR ORANGE LAST MONTH.  -  A most horrible murder was committed on an aboriginal named “PORT PHILLIP CHARLIE” by another of the same genus who goes by the name of JEMMY D’ARCY, or COUNT DORSAY.  Charlie had been in the service of Mr. MOULDER since the 1st January, and was regularly engaged to break in horses, an occupation for which he was well suited.  In the early part of last month Jemmy D’Arcy came to Orange in company with another blackfellow, and meeting Charlie on the Wellington road, near Mr. Hanrahan’s house, some difference took place between them, which was settled by D’Arcy breaking the skull of Charlie with his waddy.  The poor fellow lived but a few hours, and the murderer has escaped, but it is to be hoped his tribe will make him suffer for the deed.  Both these blackfellows may be said to have been semi-civilised, and spoke English remarkable well.  Charlie had been in the service of the late Benjamin Boyd, Esq., and made two or three trips to Port Phillip with stock.  Jemmy D’Arcy is well known about Carcoar, and has been in the service of THOMAS ICELY, and other gentlemen.  He was married to a South Sea Island woman, one of the importations of Mr. Boyd.  Communicated to the Bathurst Free Press, April 16

GUNNING, APRIL 12, 1853.  -  CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held on the body of LAURENCE TIMMINS, a very old man, at the White Hart Inn, on Friday last.  The deceased came into Gunning, on Thursday, with a dray and four bullocks, for the purpose of getting some repairs done to a plough that he had with him on the dray.  During his stay in Gunning he drank rather freely, and on his return home, when about two miles from Gunning, it appears by the information received, he was found dead.  A young man named POLLARD brought the information.  This occurred in the evening, and his body was brought in, and left for the inquest at the St. Patrick’s Inn.  Early on Friday morning some interested party went in quest of the dray and four bullocks, which, after a search, were found; the two bullocks attached to the pole were dead, and the leaders were fast; the plough on the dray was found to be broken, as also two gallons of rum in a keg, of which latter, it is supposed, deceased drank freely, as he has been known to be a habitual drunkard.  The unfortunate man has left a very infirm old woman, his wife, of the age of 70, to lament his loss.  The coroner and jury having viewed the body, witnesses were called, but nothing of any note transpired.  Verdict – Died by the visitation of God.  Goulburn Herald
GOVERNMENT GAZETTE.

TUESDAY, APRIL 19, 1853

CORONER.  -  His Excellency the Governor General has been pleased to appoint DONALD RANKIN MACDONALD, Esq., to be Coroner for the district of Mudgee.
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HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

ARMIDALE.  -  A man named JOHN HOPKINS, well known as a carrier between New England and Maitland, was found dead yesterday, in his room at Mr. M’Donald’s inn, Armidale.  The unfortunate man had been for some months drinking to excess, which superinduced an attack of apoplexy, of which, after a post mortem examination by Dr. MARKHAM, he was pronounced to have died.  Armidale, April 21, 1853 
MURDER OF AN INFANT.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, Elizabeth and King-streets, upon view of the body of a female infant unknown, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  SAMUEL MOFFITT, residing near to the North Shore Ferry, stated that yesterday morning, on returning from his breakfast to his work, he went to the upper end of Mr. Corcoran’s wharf, and there observed what he thought to be a bundle of rags on the edge of the wharf, just at high water mark.  He had the curiosity to open the bundle, and found that it contained the deceased infant.  There was a stone of about two or three pounds weight in the bundle.  He immediately reported the circumstance to the police.  Dr. NATHAN stated that he had examined the body of the infant the subject of the inquiry.  On Opening the chest the lungs were inflated with air, giving positive proof that the infant had breathed after birth.  Dr. Nathan added that, from the child’s appearance, he thought it probable that death was the result of suffocation by drowning, and that some days must have elapsed since the child’s death.  The jury found a verdict of wilful murder against some person or persons unknown.  Herald, April 22
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  An accident of a very melancholy character occurred yesterday afternoon at the Patent Slip.  A man of the name of HORTON, who had just come in from Parramatta, was standing on the tailboard of his cart, when his foot slipped, and he fell on his back, striking his head against the wall.  Immediately assistance was rendered and a surgeon promptly arrived, but in less than five minutes life was extinct.  The deceased wore a cabbagetree hat and red woollen shirt, and appeared to be an intending digger.  The body was removed to the Infirmary, where it awaits the inquest to be held this day.  Empire, April 23
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HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS.

WOLLOMBI.  -  On Tuesday evening last, an inquest was convened by Major SULLIVAN, Coroner of the district, touching the death of a man named THOMAS IRONMONGER, who was in the forenoon of that day drowned in a water hole.  It appeared from the evidence of JOHN SURGEY, sole witness in the case, that the deceased had been threshing wheat early on that day in a barn contiguous to the water hole, and near to where Surgey was employed at the plough, that subsequently the noise of threshing was observed to cease, and that Surgey on going to drink at the water hole in question, found Ironmonger lying therein, back upwards, quite dead, where the water was hardly sufficiently deep to cover him.  Verdict, accidentally drowned.  Poor Ironmonger was an old hand in this district, and, from his well-known honesty and inoffensive manners, was much liked among the inhabitants.  Wollombi, April 29, 1853
CAPTURE OF JEMMY D’ARCY, OR COUNT D’ARCY, THE BLACK, FOR MURDER, BY CAPTAIN BATTYE.

On Saturday last Captain BATTYE arrived in town and started again the following day, having received inform ation on his way up from Sydney of the whereabouts of JEMMY D’ARCY, the black, who early last month committed a most brutal murder at Orange on another black named CHARLIE, in the employ of Mr. JOSEPH MOULDER.    He succeeded in taking him at a sheep station near to the Conoblas, and the next morning conveyed him to Orange.  The case was heard by the bench, and the prisoner was remanded until next Wednesday for the appearance of other witnesses.  From what we have heard the murder appears to have originated in an old quarrel at the Turon some months ago, when Charlie struck Jimmy D’Arcy on the head and laid it open.  They met again at Orange last month, and when in camp, about 140 yards from Mr. Hanrahan’s public house, “Jemmy D’Arcy” struck Charlie with his nullah nullah, and knocked his brains out, in which state he was found by Mr. Hanrahan and his men, who hurried to the spot on hearing the blows.  Both blacks are very intelligent, and can speak English remarkable well, having for some years past been in the constant employ of English people.  Bathurst Free Press, April 23

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On the 29th of March constable JOHN RETAGH, of the Carcoar police, was unfortunately drowned in the Abercrombie River.  An inquest was held on the body by S. NORTH, Esq., Police Magistrate, when it appeared the deceased (who was on duty with the chief constable) was giving his horse a drink at a deep water hole.  The bank gave way and both man and horse slid in.  The chief constable not being able to swim could afford no assistance, and both were drowned.  The body was found the next day.  Verdict – accidentally drowned.  Bathurst Free Press, April 23
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BIRTHS.
At her residence, near Ipswich, on Monday, April 4th, Mrs. JOSEPH FLEMING, of a son, still-born.

MUDGEE.  -  A melancholy accident happened on Saturday last, by the upsetting of our mail near Tanabatta, about 16 miles from our township, whereby a little girl named LANDRIGAN, aged 3 years, was killed on the spot.  It appeared from the magisterial inquiry, which was held this morning, the 25th instant, before ROBERT LOWE, Esq., and R.D. MACDONALD, Esq., that the deceased and her mother, in company with two other persons, were travelling in the mail, when suddenly the vehicle was overturned.  No serious injury occurred beyond that of the unfortunate loss of this little creature.  The mother of the deceased was going to join her husband at the Maitland Bar.  From the careful way in which the coachman was driving, no blame could be attached to him, and the result of the inquiry was – accidentally killed.  Herald, April 30

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/923, 07/05/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday Mr. BRENAN, the coroner for Sydney, held an inquiry into the circumstances attending the death of PETER O’HARA, then lying dead, at Mrs. Carron’s public house, on the Parramatta-road.  JOHN KELLY deposed, that he resided on the Parramatta-road, and between seven and eight o’clock on Monday night he was walking along the road, near the public house, with a  candle, looking for a chain which had been lost on the road.  He saw the deceased lying on the road.  There was a quantity of dust over him, and he moaned three times.  He then immediately expired.  There was a mark upon his chest as if a wheel had passed over him.  Witness had previously seen the deceased going towards Sydney with a dray laden with straw, and drawn by three horses.  The horses were going as fast as they could when they were returning.  Some accident must have caused the horses to wheel round and return.  Mr. NEAL O’HARA, father of the deceased, stated that he sent the deceased to Sydney with a load of straw.  Two of the horses were well trained, but one was rather wild.  The deceased was sober, and of sober habits.  Finding – That the deceased came to his death from the wheel of a dray accidentally passing over his body.  Empire, May 5
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  About ten days ago a youth of the name of DIAMOND met with his death at Jujyong in a very sudden and distressing manner.  He was returning from the Ovens diggings with a dray, and while in the act of drawing a loaded fowling piece, by the muzzle, from off the load, the hammer went down, and the contents lodged in his chest.  Instantaneous death was the result.  The deceased was the brother of the wife of Mr. JAMES CLARKE of this town.  Goulburn Herald, April 30

LAMENTABLE OCCURRENCE.  -  A respectable woman, the wife of a an named M’CONNELL, who was for some time employed in Mr. Bradley’s mill, was killed one day last week at Grabben Gullen, by a dray wheel passing over her abdomen.  The deceased was on her road to Bendigo with her husband, who was taking a dray-load of property to the mines there, when she met with her death.  It appears that she was sitting on a bed on the dray, which, unobserved slipped from under her, throwing her under the wheel, which passed over her before her critical position was observed.  The body was brought into Goulburn, and an inquest held upon it by the coroner, ROBERT WAUGH, Esq., at which a verdict of accidentally killed was returned.  Goulburn Herald, April 30

EFFECTS OF DRUNKENNESS.---On Monday afternoon two men, both under the influence of liquor, were seen near Battle Bridge, on the Parramatta Road, riding on their drays, in the direction of Sydney; one of the unhappy men fell off the shaft, the wheel passed over him, and he was killed on the spot.  When the other man was overtaken and apprehended by trooper Lambe he was so thoroughly drunk that he could not be made to understand the fate of his fellow, nor even to tell his own name.  Herald, May 4.
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LUNACY.  -  Yesterday a young man named JOHN STANTON was brought before the bench, having been brought from the Maitland Hospital, in consequence of his having attempted there to commit suicide while labouring under delirium tremens.  The necessary evidence to this effect having been given, as well as the requisite medical certificate of Drs. M’CARTNEY and WILTON that he was a dangerous lunatic, he was ordered to be sent to gaol, to await the Governor’s pleasure.
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ABUSIVE LANGUAGE.  -  Yesterday JAMES QUIN appeared before the bench, charged by GEORGE SANDERS with using abusive language to him in the public street, at Hinton, on the 7th April.  Mr. O’MEAGHER appeared for the complainant, and Mr. TURNER for the defendant.  It appeared that the words used by Quin were, “He is a brute, and deserves to be kicked,” referring to a rumour that Mr. Sanders, a schoolmaster, was in some way the cause of a girl, one of his pupils, being drowned, although the verdict of the coroner’s jury completely exonerated him from all blame. … ultimately, they dismissed the case, as the information was not sustained.

ESCAPE OF JEMMY OR COUNT D’ARCY THE BLACKFELLOW.  -  On last night week JEMMY or Count D’Arcy, the blackfellow, who was committed by the Orange bench for the murder of another blackfellow named CHARLIE, managed to escape from his custodians, constables KNIGHT and NASH, when within a short distance from the Rocks.  Bathurst Free Press, May 7
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DEATH FROM ACCIDENTAL INJURIES.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held at the Maitland Hospital, before Mr. PARKER, on the body of JOHN MORRISON.  It appeared from the evidence that Mr. Morrison, engineer and miller, of Aberdeen, near Scone, about three weeks since was driving his own dray from Scone towards Aberdeen, when the horses ran away and he became insensible, and his leg was broken in some way that he did not know; a passer-by saw the horse sunning, and succeeded in getting the dray home with Mr. Morrison in it.  Dr. FOWLER, of Scone, was called in, and after some days he told Mr. Morrison that his leg must be amputated.  To this Mr. Morrison was very averse, and at his earnest solicitation he was brought down to the Maitland Hospital, Dr. Fowler and Mrs. Morrison accompanying him.  Dr. M’CARTNEY immediately saw that amputation was the only chance of saving his life, and in the then state of the leg even that afforded no great hope.  The operation was consented to by Mr. Morrison, and was performed by Dr. M’Cartney, assisted by Dr. Fowler, and by Mr. RILEY, the resident apothecary.  Mr. Morrison bore the operation well, and for some days appeared to be doing well, every possible means being used to aid him, but mortification set in, and he died, from exhaustion, on Monday morning.  In Dr. M’Cartney’s opinion his life might have been saved had amputation been performed earlier.  The jury returned a verdict of died from injuries accidentally received.
DEATH FROM INTEMPERANCE.  -  On Friday, the 6th instant, an inquest was held at Four Mile Creek, before Mr. PARKER, on the body of JOHN THREADGOLD.  It appeared from the evidence of his mate, THOMAS ADDAWAY, that Threadgold lived at Four Mile Creek, with Addaway, and was much addicted to drink; on Thursday, the 5th, they were in East Maitland with a load of firewood, and Threadgold drank so much rum on his way home that he was seized with the “horrors” in the night, and died within an hour after Addaway was awakened by his moaning.  Dr. GETTY examined the body, and found no marks of violence, and had no doubt from the evidence that Threadgold died from the effects of intemperance.  The jury returned a verdict to that effect.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

MERTON. 

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  INQUEST.  -  On the evening of Monday last a most distressing accident occurred at about four miles from this township.  A young man named JOHN GALVIN came by his death, under the following circumstances:-  He had left Mr. Ward’s public house that afternoon, about four o’clock, in his cart, being at the time slightly intoxicated.  Nothing more was heard of him till the following morning, when a girl named BUCKLEY discovered his cart capsized on the Dalswinton-road, and the horse lying on its side.  She immediately gave the alarm, and some of the neighbours soon arrived on the spot.  The cart was raised, and Galvin was discovered underneath, in a crouching position; both his arms had been completely jammed under the head of the cart, and in this position he had remained for about eighteen hours.  On being lifted he was alive, though very weak, but quite sensible.  They immediately removed him to Mr. Ward’s, where Dr. WEST was already in attendance.  Every means were taken to restore him, but in spite of all endeavours he expired that evening.  An inquest was held on his body the following day, by the coroner, Dr. West, and a jury of five, when the above facts were sworn to by several witnesses; the jury at once returned a verdict of “accidental death from the capsizing of his cart.”  The poor fellow has left a wife and child to lament their loss.  Merton, 5th May, 1853.
DRAYTON.  -  A South American named EMANUEL ROTERNAI fell down dead at Clifton on Wednesday last; death is supposed to have been caused by disease of the heart.  He was a stockman to Messrs. Gammie.  Drayton, May 7th, 1853.

BRISBANE.  -  Arrival.  -  The New Orleans left San Francisco on the 10th March, bound for Sydney.  On the 11th March, at five p.m., a steerage passenger named M’LAUGHLIN jumped overboard in a fit of insanity, and was drowned.  A boat was immediately lowered and sent after him, but without effect.
BURNETT DISTRICT.  -  We are informed by a person just arrived from Gayndah that the native police had captured one of the aboriginals charged with thr murder of the late Mr. TREVETHAN, and had lodged him in the lock-up at Gayndah, where he is awaiting the arrival of a witness who can identify him.  Another of the murderers was shot in the attempt to take him.  We are further informed of several parties having passed Gayndah on their way to the Port Curtis country.  The blacks in that direction were said to have already displayed symptoms of hostility.  Moreton Bay Courier, May 7
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SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A labourer named CLARK yesterday fell off a wool press at the Circular Quay, and received injuries so severe that he died in consequence at an early hour this morning.

HORRIBLE MURDER.  -  Our town has been thrown into a state of great excitement by the report of a shocking murder, which took place on Monday night last or early on Tuesday morning.  It appears that the Rev. Dean COFFEE was proceeding from his residence towards the Windsor Road, and saw the mangled body of a female lying in the scrub, a short distance from the gaol.  The body was identified as that of MARY ANN FERGUSON, some time since in the service of Mrs. OAKES, of Church-street.  The person apprehended and suspected of being the murderer is JAMES WOODWARD, alias Long Bill the shoemaker, whose residence adjoins the toll bar, at Brockenback Bridge.  It seems that the banns of marriage had been published at Mansfield church last Sunday, between the deceased and Woodward.  Parramatta Correspondent of the Herald.

THE BODY OF A MURDERED MAN FOUND.  -  Last night Inspector COWELL apprised us that the body of a man had been found by the water police at Neutral Bay, across a spring where a boat is moored.  His skull was battered in, and bags of stones were attached to his legs.  An inquest will be held on the body to-day. Herald, May 19

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  Yesterday, an inquest was held before the coroner at the Three Tuns Tavern, Elizabeth-street, on view of the body of a man, whose name was unknown, then lying dead at the Sydney Infirmary.  Constable HAGGARTY, of the water police force, stated, that from information received, he, with a party of constables, proceeded on the previous day to Bradley’s Head, and there found the body of deceased lying on the beach at high water mark.  Deceased appeared to be a Chinaman, and what slight apparel he had upon him was of that description usually worn by his countrymen.  The body was in a state of decomposition.  It had most probably been washed by the tide to the spot where it was found.  The jury returned a verdict of “found dead.”  Herald, May 18
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DEATH OF A CHILD FROM FIRE.  -  On Friday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Seaham, on the William, on the body of ELIZA BRYANT, a child of five years old.  It appeared that on Wednesday Bryant and his wife were in the field husking corn, and had left their four children in the house, in charge of the eldest, MARIA, ten years old.  Eliza went to put some wood on the fire; in doing so her clothes caught firer, and as soon as she saw it she cried out, when her eldest sister, who was husking corn in the adjoining room, ran to her assistance, and tried to put out the fire, which had blazed up all round her; in doing so Maria got much burnt in the hands, nor could she succeed till nearly all the clothes were burnt off her sister.  Meanwhile Mrs. Bryant was approaching the house, and got to the door before the fire was got out, and she immediately ran to the river with her daughter, and plunged her in.  Bryant immediately went to Raymond Terrace for medical assistance, and Dr. CADELL was at the house two hours after the accident, but the poor girl was so terribly burnt that he at once saw there were no hopes of saving her life.  On Thursday mortification set in, and the child was released from her sufferings.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death from burning.

MURDER OF A WOMAN.  -  An inquest, held at Parramatta on the 18th instant, on the body of MARY ANNE FERGUSON, is reported at length by the Parramatta Correspondent of the Sydney Morning Herald.  A man named JAMES WOODWARD, a shoemaker, with whom the deceased had lived for about a month, and to whom she was about to be married, was in custody, and at the close of the enquiry the jury returned a verdict of wilful murder against him.  Woodward and the woman were at an inn together till about ten o’clock on Monday evening, the 16th, and left together, being then very friendly.  Between eleven and twelve o’clock a Mrs. ATKINS heard a man and woman passing her place, the man talking loudly, and the woman in a tone as if trying to persuade him to go home; peeping out Mrs. Atkins saw a very tall man (the prisoner is 6 feet 3½ inches high) and a woman holding each other, and she heard the man say “You b-----y wretch, why do you follow me?” several times they passed the house as if quarrelling, and then left.  About twelve that night Mr. EDGAR was aroused by hearing a noise as if some person was dragging another; heard the voice of a man and woman, the man saying “If you don’t come I will make you;” but in a few minutes all became silent again.  Next morning the dead body of Mary Ann Ferguson was found about fifty yards from Mr. Edgar’s, and some greater distance from Mrs. Atkins’s; it was much cut, bruised, and scratched, the deadly blow being struck on the right side of the head, causing extensive effusion at the base of the brain; the cuts about the head appeared to have been struck by an edged weapon or an angular stone.  Woodward himself told different persons next morning early that Ferguson had been killed, and that he had first heard of it from a woman, having left Ferguson at eleven o’clock the previous evening.  But besides Mrs. Atkins’s belief that Woodward was the man she saw with the woman, a Mrs. SLEEP deposed that late that night she was out after one of her horses, and saw Woodward and a young man she believed to be ALFRED JACKSON approach the spot where the body of Ferguson was subsequently found; one of them lit a candle, and Woodward carried the candle to a particular spot[?] and stooped down for a few minutes; [line missing through crease] don’t want a light to go home, there is no one about;”  they then left the spot, and she followed them and saw them go into the yard next CHARLES JACKSON’S (father of Alfred Jackson); next morning at daybreak she saw Woodward walk past the spot where the body lay, and return to it again, and stoop down.  Alfred Jackson was called as a witness, but he denied altogether being out with Woodward that night, or out at all; Woodward worked for his father, Charles Jackson, and he and the deceased woman lived in a house in his father’s yard. 
FATAL ACCIDENT ON THE WESTERN ROAD.  -  Early yesterday morning, a loaded dray, belonging to Mr. E.COX, of Mudgee, was proceeding along the Western Road, in charge of two men, one of whom was sleeping on the top of the dray; when about four miles beyond Parramatta, the vehicle came in contact with the fence of a bridge over a dry creek, which immediately gave way, the dray and horses being precipitated into the watercourse, the dray falling upon the unfortunate man who had been sleeping on it.  His companion immediately set off to procure assistance, but twenty minutes elapsed before the man could be got from beneath the dray, when he was found to be quite dead.  Empire, May 20
COUNCIL PAPERS

MURDERS BY ABORIGINES IN THE NORTHERN DISTRICTS

Return to an address from the Legislative Council of New South Wales, dated 27th July, 1852, praying that his Excellency the Governor General would be pleased to cause to be laid upon the table 

“A return showing the number of murders committed by the aboriginal natives on the white population in the county of Stanley, and districts of Clarence and Darling Downs, Moreton, Burnett, Maranos, and Wide Bay; also the names and occupations of the sufferers; the dates on which the murders were committed; and what steps have been taken to punish the offenders; commencing from the 1st January, 1847, to the 31st December, 1851.”

POLICE DISTRICT OF BRISBANE (STANLEY).

William Boiler and William Waller, sawyers, 10th September, 1847.  An aboriginal named Muk-i-light apprehended, tried, found guilty, and sentenced to death; afterwards liberated, in consequence of strong doubts being entertained as to his identity.

Thomson, about 1848; the remains found in the bush, supposed to have been murdered by the blacks.

Charles Gray, mariner, September, 1849.  Warrants issued for aborigines on Bribie’sIsland, but not executed.

POLICE DISTRICT OF GRAFTON (CLARENCE).
John Gray, hut-keeper, 17th February, 1850.  Supposed to have been perpetrated by a black called Tommy, or Old Man Tommy.  Apprehended on the 5th March, 1850, and forwarded to Sydney on the 17th May, to take his trial in the Supreme Court.  Brought up for trial in August, 1850, and discharged on his own recognizance.

POLICE DISTRICT OF CASSINO (CLARENCE).

N.B. The bench at Cassino state that thirteen murders were perpetrated in that district in the four years preceding the date named in the address.

POLICE DISTRICT OF DRAYTON (DARLING DOWNS).

Unknown, shepherd, August, 1847.

Unknown, shepherd, September, 1848.

William Barker, shepherd, October, 1848.

Wm. Robinson, hutkeeper, October, 1848.
Unknown, shepherd, 1848.

Unknown, shepherd, October, 1848.

Cameron (a boy), October, 1848.

Unknown, shepherd, April, 1849.

Unknown, bullock-driver, April, 1849.

Unknown, hutkeeper, April, 1849.

Unknown, overseer, August, 1851.

No information is given on this head by the bench of magistrates (Drayton), who furnished the return.

POLICE DISTRICT OF IPSWICH (MORETON).

---- Cater, hutkeeper, November, 1849.

Saml. Whittaker, hutkeeper, November, 1850.

No information is given on this head by the bench of magistrates (Ipswich) who furnished the return.

POLICE DISTRICT OF GAYNDAH (BURNETT).

John Rogers, labourer, June, 1847.

Opossum Jack, labourer, July, 1849.

William Chester, labourer, 7th March, 1850.

John Wills, labourer, 7th March, 1850.

William Davenport, labourer, 13th November, 1850.

William Dixon, labourer, 22nd November, 1850.

Peter Couray, labourer, 13th August, 1851.

Ellen Couray, 13th August, 1851.

No information is given on this head by the bench of magistrates (Gayndah) who furnish this report.

William Street, grazier, 13th August, 1851.  Warrants issued.

Thomas Colaney, labourer, September, 1851.

William Ronald, labourer, October, 1851.

Alexander Ross, grazier, 23rd October, 1851.

--- Seboo (Coolie), hutkeeper, 23rd October, 1847.
--- Serenun (Coolie), shepherd, February, 1849.

No information is given on this head by the bench of magistrates (Gayndah), who furnished the return.

N.B. Nine other murders stated by the bench to have occurred in this district, on dates subsequent to that mentioned in the address.

POLICE DISTRICT OF SURAT (MARANOA).

William Law, September, 1848.

John Gore, September, 1848.

John Bull, 21st March, 1849.

William M’Caverty, 21st March, 1849.

John Burns, 21st March, 1849.

Edward Foley, 4th May, 1849.

Joseph Flaherty, 4th May, 1849.

In the employment of Messrs. A. and W. Macpherson.  No information is given on this head by the bench of magistrates (Surat) who furnished the return.
Anthony Cox, December, 1850, in the employment of Henry Eckford.  The murderer in this case was shot immediately on the perpetration of the crime.

POLICE DISTRICT OF MARYBOROUGH (WIDE BAY).

James Graham, 28th August, 1850.

Thomas Howard, 18th August, 1850.

Alexander Drummond, 26th September, 1850.

John Roberts, 18th October, 1850.

Warrants issued; blacks followed without success.

Denis Macarthy, 11th August, 1851; body never found.

No information given on this head.

N.B. Another murder is reported to have occurred in this district, subsequently to the date named in the address.

MUDGEE.  -  An inquiry touching the death of a woman named JANE EARLD, was held at Richardson’s Point, Meroo, before Dr. R. MACDONALD, Esq., J.P., on Monday, the 9th instant.  A man of colour, named RICHARD EDWARDS, was in custody for the offence.  It appeared from the evidence of several persons, that the deceased and the prisoner were living together, when, on the 20th ult., they quarrelled, both being in liquor at the time.  The prisoner Edwards [paper creased] manner, and after having knocked her down, was seen by one of the witnesses examined to shovel up a quantity of fire and throw it in the direction where the deceased was lying.  From the testimony of the medical gentleman, Dr. FOULIS, who was called in previous to her decease, it appeared that she was suffering dreadfully from the effects of the burns when he saw her, and in his opinion the deceased’s death was caused by excessive exhaustion, arising from the extensive burns; her death was accelerated by intemperance and the remedies administered previous to his being called in by Edwards to attend the deceased.  -  A very melancholy accident occurred on the evening of the 14th instant, at a place called the Sawyer’s Fat, about eight miles from Mudgee, by the upsetting of a dray, which killed an unfortunate individual named DAVID MARTIN, dead on the spot.  It appeared from the magisterial inquiry held in Mudgee, that the deceased, with two other persons, was coming on towards Mudgee, when the dray suddenly overturned, and the upper part of the dray fell on the deceased’s neck, and immediately choked him.  It caused a gloom over the place, from the deceased having been well-known and respected in Mudgee.  Herald Correspondent
MURDER.  -  CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held yesterday at the King’s Head, George-street, on view of the body of a man, whose name is unknown, then lying at the Water Police Office.  CHARLES JORDAN, an officer in the water police, deposed to finding the body of the deceased in the water at Neutral Bay.  The body was lying across a rope leading from the wharf to a buoy in the stream.  The corpse had on a dungaree jacket, and some cotton garments underneath.  A soogee bag, containing two stones, upwards of fifty pounds in weight, was tied by a cord to one of his ankles.  There was a severe cut on the back of the head; the body was that of a Chinaman.  The body appeared to have been in the water about a fortnight.  The cord which fastened the bag to the ankles was secured by two half hitches and a round turn, sailor fashion.  Part of one leg was eaten by fishes.  Dr. SILVER deosed that he inspected the body, and observed a semi-curved wound, about four or five inches long, on the back of the head.  The body was in a state of decomposition.  The heart and lungs presented the appearance usual in persons drowned.  There was a fracture of the skull, the wound of the integuments extending to the occiput.  The wound might be inflicted by a tomahawk, or by a scraper such as is used on board ships.  Or it might have been occasioned by the head being knocked by any such as a substance as a sharp rock or oyster shells adhering to a rock.  In his (Dr. Silver’s) opinion, death was occasioned by asphyxia, caused by submersion under water, and the wound on the head had been inflicted during life.  WILLIAM WALSH, the coroner’s officer, stated that he had made every possible inquiry concerning the deceased, in order to have the body identified, but was unable to obtain any information as to the name of the deceased.  Witness communicated with Captain TOWNS, at his wharf, where there were a number of Chinese.  Captain ALLEN, of the Spartan, lately arrived in port, with a number of Chinese immigrants on board, also said he missed none of them.  Witness also applied to Mr. CAESAR, the interpreter, but he knew nothing of the deceased.  Verdict, wilful murder against some person or persons unknown.  Empire, May 21
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner at the Bee Hive, Prince-street, on view of the body of WILLIAM CLARKE.  From the evidence it appeared that deceased was a labourer, employed in pressing wool at the Circular Quay.  On Wednesday afternoon, deceased and a fellow-labourer were running down, and the former volunteered to lash the bales, and stepping down for that purpose, fell from the plank to the ground.  He struck the side of his head, and was quite unconscious when picked up.  Dr. SMITH was sent for, who found him in a comatose state, bleeding from the right ear profusely, with sterterous breathing, and the pupils dilated.  Dr. Smith tried the usual remedies, but there was no reaction.  Verdict, died from injuries accidentally received.  Herald, May 20
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LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.

MURDERED CHINAMEN.  -  Dr. DOUGLASS inquired whether the Inspector General of Police had received any information relative to the bodies of three Chinamen, evidently murdered, recently found in the harbour at Port Jackson; one, he understood, was lying at the Water Police Office, and another, found on the 21st, was still lying at the dead-house, no inquest having been held.

   The INSPECTOR GENERAL stated that in case of two of the three there were strong grounds for suspecting that they had met death by foul means; but in regard to the third there were no marks from which it could be believed death was the result of violence.  In one of the two former, an inquest had been held, a verdict of wilful murder returned; and in regard to the other, the police were still pursuing their inquiries.
INQUEST.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Northumberland Hotel, on the body of MARY ANN CORMIE.  It appeared from the evidence of THOMAS MOSS and JOHN CAMPBELL, that Cormie, a woman of loose character, was on the night of Thursday, the 19th, in the tap of the Northumberland, kept by Moss for Mr. Welch.  A man named HUGH KELLY was there also.  Kelly was quite drunk, and he treated Cormie, who was also in liquor, to some wine.  He and Cormie left the tap together shortly before ten o’clock, and had not been gone ten minutes when Kelly hurried into the tap again, and told Moss the girl was smothering in the tub, and he asked Moss to come out and see her.  In the yard is a large tub four or five feet deep placed there to receive from a pipe the warm waste water from the steam mills near, which is used for washing the feet of horses.  Running over to the tub Moss found the unfortunate woman in it, head downwards, nor could he and Kelly pull her out; Moss ran over for Campbell, who was in the tap, and Moss and Campbell got her out at once, her mouth and eyes being filled with mud, and she unable to speak.  Kelly said she fell in, when asked how it happened.  Dr. M’CARTNEY was immediately sent for by Mr. Welch, and he had the woman at once removed to the hospital.  She then appeared in a dangerous state, but improved under the treatment administered, and appeared likely to recover, till the following Wednesday, when unfavourable symptoms came on, and on Thursday she died.  A post mortem examination made by Dr. M’Cartney, showed that apoplexy was the cause of her death, caused, in his opinion, by long habits of intemperance, and probably accelerated by congestion, arising from her being immersed in the water in the tub.  The jury returned a verdict of death from apoplexy, appending a rider calling Mr. Welch’s attemtion to the danger of leaving the tub uncovered.
EXPOSURE.  -  Yesterday JOHN RAFFERTY appeared before the bench, charged by constable PETER NAYLOR with indecent exposure, in the public street, at Hinton, on the 23rd instant.  Constables Naylor and JOHN LITTLE having deposed to the facts, and that they had to remove Rafferty from the spot, Rafferty said he was overcome by a glass of liquor, taken by the order of a medical man.  The bench convicted him, and sentenced him to two months’ imprisonment.  [See also preceding column, part cited following:-

NEGLECT OF DUTY BY CONSTABLES.  -  Yesterday constables PETER NAYLOR and JOHN LITTLE appeared before the bench, charged with neglect of duty. …. Could not say whether the constables were then at Mr. Newman’s, as they had been taking RAFFERTY away, for indecent exposure. [also 11/930, 01/06/1853; “The bench said the defendants exhibited some laxity of conduct, to say the least, but the majority thinking it more an error of judgement than intentional neglect, they dismissed the case, hoping it would act as a caution to all the policemen of the force.]
BRISBANE CIRCUIT COURT.  

This court was opened on Monday, May 16, before Mr. Justice Therry, but no business was conducted on that day.

Wednesday, May 18.  -  JAMES SMART was indicted for the murder of an aboriginal woman named KITTY, in the Burnett district, on the 5th November, 1852.  Smart lived with Kitty, and when they were in the kitchen together a blow was heard, and the first white man who entered saw Kitty lying dead, and Smart struggling with an aboriginal man, who was trying to take a stick from him, two other blacks being also in the kitchen; Kitty had been killed by a heavy blow on the head.  Smart admitted that he had given the woman a good hammering, and told another witness he wanted to kill her, but did it to save himself.  Mr. FAUCETT, for the defence, and in cross-examination, suggested that Kitty had been killed by the blacks, from revenge for her living with Smart.  Guilty of manslaughter; six years on the roads, the first two in irons.

ROBERT BOULTON and ELIJAH SMITH were indicted for the manslaughter of an aboriginal named DIAMOND, at Maryborough, on the 4th October, 1852.  The two men had apprehended Diamond on a charge of robbery, and he tried to escape, when they threw a rope over his head with a running noose; he fell into the river, at the ferry, and when he was got out he was dead, the rope being quite tight round his neck.  Not guilty; discharged.

MICKEY, an aboriginal, was indicted for stealing a quantity of flour and other supplies, the property of ANDREW GREGOR, at the Pine River, on the 18th October, 1846.  The prisoner was positively identified by the sole witness as having been one of the party of blacks who on that day attacked Mr. Gregor’s  station, when Mr. Gregor and Mrs. SHANNON were murdered, and the station plundered; prisoner took part in the plundering, but not in the assaults and murder.  Guilty; six months’ imprisonment, with hard labour.

Friday, May 20.

MICKEY, an aboriginal, was indicted for the wilful murder of MARY SHANNON, at Pine River, on the 18th October, 1846.  This was the same prisoner previously convicted of robbery, and the same witness deposed to the facts, but his memory proved confused on some minor points.  Guilty; sentence of death recorded.  Abridged from the S.M. Herald

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/930, 01/06/1853

SUICIDE.  -  On Monday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Mr. Murphy’s, the Crown and Anchor, Morpeth, on the body of FREDERICK STILEMAN MAYS.  It appeared from the evidence that Mr. Mays, who was a book-keeper, in the employ of Mr. JAMES CAMPBELL, of Morpeth, had for a length of time been subject to occasional fits of melancholy or low spirits, caused apparently by the belief that he was an ailing man, and that his heart was diseased.  For some months past he had been in this state more than usual, but no particular attention was attracted to him by any expressions.  On the morning of Monday, the 18th May, a noise of moaning was heard from Mr. May’s room, in Mr. Campbell’s house, and on persons going in they found that he had cut his throat with a razor.  Dr. GETTY was sent for, and applied every remedy, but although Mr. Mays lingered on till the 30th, he then died from exhaustion.  He admitted that he cut his throat himself, and expressed regret that he did not do it more completely.  The jury returned a verdict that he died from cutting his own throat, while labouring under temporary insanity.

SUICIDE.  -   Among the passengers by the Tamar, steamer, which started from Sydney to Morpeth on last Monday night, was WILLIAM SNODGRASS, Esq., a newly-appointed Commissioner of Crown Lands.  It was discovered that the unfortunate gentleman was labouring under delirium tremens, and at about half-past four o’clock on Tuesday morning, he succeeded in gaining the deck of the steamer, and jumped overboard.  The commander of the vessel caused the engines to be instantly stopped, and a boat was lowered, but in vain, as Mr. Snodgrass was not once seen to rise to the surface.  He had previously made an attempt to jump overboard, but was prevented; and about a quarter of an hour before his tragic end, he had thrown his pocket-book and its contents overboard.  Mr. Snodgrass appeared about thirty-five years of age.  Empire, May 27

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

ARMIDALE.

I am painfully compelled to forward you the melancholy intelligence of two awfully sudden deaths.  The first is that of Mr. JOSEPH PERKINS, superintendent to Mrs. RICHARDS, of Winterbourne.  Mr. Perkins was also an engineer.  He had been effecting some repairs to Mr. Allingham’s mill, and on returning home on Friday last, in company with the Rev. Mr. MORRISON and another person, with whose name I am unacquainted, he suddenly fell from his horse and died almost instantaneously.  He is much and very deservedly regretted by all who knew him.  -  The second case is that of Mr. ALEXANDER M’KINNON, of Emu Creek, who, on Friday last, was married by the Rev. Mr. Morrison, and on the next Saturday, going out cautiously to shoot ducks on the creek, in the eagerness of pursuit he inconsiderately drew the gun through the long grass with his hand grasping the muzzle and pointing to his body, when he met with a shocking and instant death by the sudden explosion of the gun, the contents passing through the lungs, and perforating the heart.  It was Mr. Morrison’s painful duty to perform the last offices over both of these persons, now departed.  Mr. M’Kinnon has been long known in this district, and his untimely end is felt by all his friends as a great deprivation.
CORONER’S INQUESTS.  -  On Saturday, an inquest was held at the Central Police Office, George-street, on view of the body of a Chinaman, whose name was unknown, then lying dead at the Sydney Infirmary.  Constable JORDAN, of the water police, stated that on Saturday, the 21st instant, he saw the body of the deceased off Gibbs Point on the North Shore.  It was floating in the water, and a crew of the water police boat brought it on shore.  Deceased was dressed in a blue dungaree jacket, with white gown underneath.  There was a bag of stones tied with a small hemp line to the right leg.  TSE, a Chinaman, was then sworn to act as interpreter for the next witness, who deposed that he came to Sydney from Amoy in the ship Spartan.  There were 264 Chinamen on board.  He saw three dead Chinamen thrown overboard near the Light-ship in this harbour.  This occurred about four weeks ago.  Their disease appeared to be palpitation of the heart, and they died before they were thrown into the water.  The master of the ship, Captain ALLEN, ordered them to be “chucked overboard.”  They were thrown over in the same condition as the body was that the jury had viewed.  Stones were put into the bags fixed round the leg of each man.  The ship was at anchor when the dead men were thrown overboard.  This statement was corroborated by another of the Chinese immigrants.  Mr. Inspector M’COOK stated, that he had gone on board the Spartan on several occasions to make enquiries in respect to the dead Chinaman.  Every obstacle was thrown in his way.  He asked to be allowed to take two or three Chinamen on board to identify the body of the deceased.  Captain Allen told him that none could be spared as they were all busy below, but that he would come ashore himself and bring a Chinaman with him; in place of which he brought an Englishman.  Captain Allen distinctly assured him, Inspector M’Cook, that none of the Spartan Chinamen had been thrown overboard.  Dr. NATHAN stated that he had examined the body of the subject of this inquest.  There was a bag full of stones of considerable weight attached by a cord to the right ankle.  The body had the appearance of being in the water for some time – at the least a fortnight – the face was very much gnawed, as if by fishes, and other parts of the body presented the same appearance.  He had made a post mortem examination of the body, and found some old adhesions.  From the length of time that the body had been in the water all traces of death from drowning had been destroyed, if they ever existed.  The mucous membrane of the stomach and oesophagus presented the appearance described by [Mathieu Joseph Bonaventure] ORFILA [died 12 March 1853] to exist in drowned persons, and he (Dr. Nathan) thought it probable from this appearance, and from the absence of all other appearances of a cause of death, that deceased might have died from suffocation by drowning.  The jury returned a special verdict.  They desired to state that in their opinion, the body of the Chinaman then lying dead in the Infirmary, was one of those thrown overboard from the Spartan, and that he died from natural causes.  The jury further set forth they were unanimous in expressing their disapprobation of the inhuman conduct of the captain of the Spartan, in throwing the bodies of the Chinamen overboard, and subsequently refusing the necessary information to the police.
A second inquest was held by the Coroner at the Woolloomooloo Inn, Woolloomooloo, on view of the body of DONALD M’BAIN.  From the evidence of several witnesses, it appeared that deceased, who was a careful sober man, about 35 years of age, had been sent with a dray on the Darlinghurst Road, where about eight on Friday evening the dray was found upset, and the deceased underneath.  He was then dead.  Verdict – death from accidental injuries.

A third inquest was held at the Boomerang Hotel, Woolloomooloo, on view of the body of JAMES HOGAN.  From the evidence of Dr. M’VITIE, and the employer of the deceased, it was shown that deceased had died in an apoplectic fit.  The jury found a verdict in accordance with the evidence.  Herald, May 30

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held yesterday on board the Royal Alice, at Buchanan’s Wharf, Miller’s Point, on the body of JOHN HOLLAND, late a seaman on board.  It appeared from the evidence of Mr. C. NELSON, second officer of the ship, that on Friday evening the deceased was employed in the ballast boat, which was alongside, helping the crew of the boat to shift their mast, prior to getting out the ballast.  In getting the mast over end, the tackle fall broke, and the mast fell on the head of the deceased, inflicting a wound over his left eye, and bruising his head, which was jammed between the mast and the ballast.  The deceased was released from his situation as speedily as possible.  He seemed dead, excepting a barely discernable pulsation at the wrist.  Dr. HARRISON hastened to the ship, and applied some means to restore the deceased, but soon found that his aid was unavailing, life being extinct.  Dr. Harrison testified that death was caused by fracture of the base of the skull, caused by a blow received by the mast of a ballast boat falling on his head.  Verdict, accidental death.  Empire, May 28

SERIOUS CHARGE AGAINST A PUBLICAN.  -  In the month of April ultimo, MAURICE DALTON, a publican at the Maitland Bar, on the Turon, was committed for trial by the Mudgee Bench of Magistrates for assaulting a policeman named OXLEY.  Mr. Dalton was admitted to bail, but as the case assumed a serious aspect, and Oxley has died, Mr. Dalton’s sureties surrendered him to the Gold Police, from whom he effected his escape, and is still at large.  Empire, May 30

DEATHS.

At New England, on the 20th May, between Armidale and Winterbourne, from apoplexy, Mr. JOSEPH PERKINS; aged 41 years.

At Emu Creek, New England, on May 21st, suddenly, Mr. ARCHIBALD M’KINNON, overseer to GILBERT ELLIOTT, Esq., aged 31.

At Morpeth, on the 28th May, Mr. FREDERICK STILEMAN MAYS, aged 37 years.

MAITLAMD MERCURY, 11/931, 04/06/1853

MELANCHOLY AND FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Sunday morning, the 15th instant, the body of JOHN HUGHES, farmer and carrier of Big Meadow Flat, Campbell’s River, was found on the road near Mount Tamar, by some person who was passing by.  It appears that the deceased had been to Bathurst on the previous day (Saturday) with his team, and was returning home rather late in the evening, when judging by appearances, he must have been thrown upon the ground, and so severely injured by the dray wheel passing over his abdomen as, in all probability, to cause immediate death.  An inquest was held over his remains by Captain SUTHERLAND on Monday, and a post mortem examination conducted by Dr. MACHATTIE led to the evidence above given.  The unfortunate deceased has for a long period been a resident upon Campbell’s River and the neighbourhood, and by dint of industry and economy, has realised a rather considerable property for a person in his sphere.  He has left a wife and large family to deplore his untimely fate.  Bathurst Free Pres, May 28
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/932, 08/06/1853

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Friday an inquest was held at Hexham, by Dr. STACEY, on the body of SAMUEL SERGEANT, aged 58, who it appeared had been found dead in his bed the morning previous, by Mr. Smith, the landlord of the hotel.  The jury returned a verdict of “Died from the visitation of God, and not from any foul means.”  Serjeant was an old man, much respected, and well known to nearly all persons passing on the road, to and from Maitland and Newcastle.

SYDNEY NEWS.

On Saturday afternoon, a young man named WEST was drowned in Cook’s River, near Canterbury, within a few yards of his residence.  An inquest has not yet been held, so that the particulars have not yet reached town.

DEATH BY BURNING.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday, at the Forth and Clyde public-house, in George-street, on the body of ELLEN HINTON, a child about six years of age.  MARGARET CORRIGAN stated that she knew the deceased child and its parents; they had resided near her, in a lane off George-street, during the last eight or nine weeks.  Witness had never seen the mother “what she called drunk, though she might have had a little.”  On Wednesday last Mrs. Hinton was busily employed hanging out clothes to dry, and was not tipsy.  About 5 p.m. on that day witness was ironing some clothes, when she heard a scream outside, and on going to the door perceived the child with her clothes on fire.  The child’s mother was not at home, having gone to the baker’s to procure bread.  Witness took the child into a neighbouring house, where it was at once undressed, but it had been severely burned.  The mother of the child soon returned, and was in an agony of grief when she learnt the sad intelligence.  Dr. CUTHILL deposed that on Thursday he was called to see the child.  She was dreadfully burned, especially about the abdomen and arms; witness was at once certain that the child could not survive, but he prescribed the usual remedies.  The burning was the cause of death.  The child’s mother told witness that she had left the deceased sitting at the door-step with another child of the same age, while she was away at the baker’s.  Verdict, died from accidental burning.  Empire, June 6
CHILD MURDER.  -  On Saturday afternoon, Mr. BRENAN, the Coroner, called together a respectable jury at the Wellington Inn, George-street South, on the body of an infant, then lying in the dead-house of the Benevolent Asylum.  Inspector CONNER, of the City Police, stated that, in consequence of information he received, he went that morning to Glebe Point, and found the deceased infant lying there on a rock; it was wrapped in a few old rags.  The body was first discovered by a boy.  Witness had not been able to ascertain that any unmarried female in the vicinity had any suspicious circumstances against her.  The place where the corpse was found was distant about three hundred yards from any house, and is a close bushy place.  Dr. RADCLIFFE deposed that he had examined the body externally, but found no marks of violence upon it.  He had also made a post mortem examination, from which he arrived at the conclusion that it had been born alive.  The umbilical cord had not been properly secured, and witness was of opinion that death had ensued from the hemorrhage caused by that neglect.  Witness was positive that the child had breathed.  It was a female infant, and had come to full maturity, or nearly so.  The jury returned a verdict of “wilful murder” against some person or persons unknown. Empire, June 6
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Saturday morning, a man named JOHN NEVILLE, better known by the cognomen of SAILOR JACK, was accidentally drowned in the river, opposite to Mr. Eldridge’s farm.  He was employed on the Swallow punt, which was a little above the farm, and had taken a bag of flour and a bag of salt out of the punt into a dingy, and was rowing it down river, when the boat, it appears, came in contact with the bough of a tree, and upset.  He almost immediately disappeared.  Mr. MONKS, in the employment of Mr. ELDRIDGE, witnessed the accident, but was too far off to render any assistance.  Moreton Bay Free Press, May 24
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/933, 11/06/1853

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.
Monday, June 5. – Before the Chief Justice.

ANN KERNS was indicted for the manslaughter of her infant child, on the 28th March.  The prisoner had lain drunk on the bank of the river M’Leay, with her infant in her arms, and the child rolled out of them and was drowned.  Guilty, but recommended to mercy; twelve months’ imprisonment.
Before Mr. Justice Dickinson.

MARY HILL was indicted for the wilful murder of her husband, JAMES HILL, at Narellan.  The cases sustained by the evidence was that of great ill-treatment of Hill by his wife, when he was lying in bed, suffering from disease of the liver and kidneys, but no violence was proved to which the medical man could attribute Hill’s death, although he said Hill died principally from want of care on the part of his wife.  Expressions used by the wife were proved, in which she said she hoped her husband would die.  The Attorney General gave up the charge of murder, but submitted that the case should go to the jury, as one of intent.  Mr. HOLROYD thought it was unnecessary for him to address them.  The jury returned a verdict of not guilty.
Tuesday, June 7. – Before Mt. Justice Dickinson.

JAMES WOODWARD was indicted for the wilful murder of MARY ANN FERGUSON, at Parramatta, on the 17th May. This case was very recently reported in the Mercury from the Sydney papers; Woodward lived with the woman, and one morning she was found dead in the bush, the last person seen to have been with her being Woodward, who was also said to be the man with whom she was seen quarrelling at a late hour.  Mr. BROADHURST pointed out the slight proof that Woodward was this man, and suggested that it was some other man, whom Ferguson met with after she left Woodward.  Not guilty; discharged.

Wednesday, June 9.  -  Before Mr. Justice Therry.

MARY NAIRNE was indicted for the manslaughter of WILLIAM PATRICK RILEY, an infant of tender years, and her own illegitimate offspring, with neglecting to provide him with proper nourishment, &c., and HONORAH M’KELLIGHAT was indicted for aiding and abetting the said felony.  Not guilty.  Abridged from the Sydney papers.

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  Between eight and nine o’clock on Thursday night, a man named JAMES LEE was found lying dead on the footpath in Market-street.  Dr. SALTER examined the body, and stated that the man died from a fit of apoplexy.  The body was conveyed to the Infirmary.  Empire, June 8

DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  On Saturday afternoon, JOHN WEST, aged 26 years, the son of Mr. West, publican, at Canterbury, went to wash his hands and face at Cook’s River, near his father’s house.  He fell in head foremost, and before the body was recovered, life was extinct.  Empire, June 7

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/934, 15/06/1853

OUTRAGES BY THE BLACKS.  -  We regret to learn that two men accompanying Messrs. Hay and Holt’s party to the Port Curtis district have been killed by the blacks, and two flocks of sheep gone astray in the bush.  The 1st section of the native police were to proceed to the assistance of Messrs. Hay and Holt’s party on the 14th inst., where most probably they will have a month’s sharp shooting.  Moreton Bay Free Press, May 31
INQUEST.  -  On Thursday, the body of the unfortunate man NEVILLE, who, as reported in our last, was accidentally drowned in the river on the preceding Friday, was found about ten miles up the river.  It was brought down to Brisbane, and taken to the hospital.  On Friday morning an inquest was held at the Sovereign Hotel, and a verdict returned of accidentally drowned.  Moreton Bay Free Press, May 31

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/935, 18/06/1853

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday, on the body of THOMAS WALSH, then lying in the Sydney Infirmary.  It appeared from the evidence, that the deceased was an ordinary seaman, on board the Tartar, lying in Man-of-War Bay.  He asked for leave to go ashore on Monday (yesterday week), but was refused.  On the same evening, about six o’clock, he fell overboard.  It was dark, and although a boat was lowered from the ship, and a waterman’s boat likewise hastened to his rescue, he was drowned.  His cries were heard plainly by the rowers, as the poor fellow cried out, “lower a boat! Lower a boat!”  He had only been ten days shipped as a seaman.  He has left a widow and two young children who depended upon him for support.  On Friday last, the body was discovered by two young lads, who gave notice to a waterman named REYNOLDS.  He pulled the corpse out of the water with a boat-hook.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental drowning.  Empire, June 14
CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

Tuesday, June 14.  – Before Mr. Justice Therry

MARIA WALSH was arraigned for the murder, on the 2nd April, 1853, of one JOHN SPURGEON.  The prisoner is the wife of MAURICE WALSH, convicted on Friday of manslaughter, and the indictment in the present instance was substantially the same as that against Maurice Walsh, except that Maurice Walsh was not charged as principal in the murder.  The trial lasted throughout the day.  The jury retired to their room at a quarter past ten o’clock.  At the desire of Mr. PUREFOY, his Honor agreed to reserve the following point:- “that there was no evidence of preconcertance and common design, such as to render the parties present when Spurgeon was killed, aiders and abettors in that homicide.”  After some discussion, the following was added by desire of the counsel for the defence:- “That you ought to have directed the jury that unless they believed the persons present in the house were there by previous concert and design to aid and assist in the murder of Spurgeon, they are not guilty of aiding and abetting.”  At a quarter to 11, the jury returned into Court with a verdict of manslaughter, strongly recommending the prisoner to mercy in consideration of her children.

Wednesday, June 15.  -  Before Mr. Justice Dickinson.

JAMES M’DONALD was placed at the bar, charged with the murder of JOHN SPURGEON.  The prisoner pleaded not guilty, and was defended by Mr. DARVALL and Mr. HOLROYD.  Mr. Holroyd submitted the same objection against the information as had been submitted by Mr. PUREFOY for MARIA WALSH, namely, that as the two former prisoners had only been convicted of manslaughter, the charge of murder could not be sustained.  After some observations in reply from the Attorney General, his Honor reserved the point.  The evidence was substantially the same as that under which Walsh and his wife have already been convicted of manslaughter.  The prisoner was found guilty of manslaughter, and remanded for sentence.  Abridged from the Sydney papers

SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.

On Sunday night, Captain CHADWICK, of the Harriet, went on board the Australian, emigrant ship, off the Cove, taking two men with him in his boat, and when about to leave, one of the boatmen [WALTER HUSSELDEN] in going down the side, unfortunately fell overboard, and was drowned.  The body has not been yet found.  June 14

CENTRAL DRIMINAL COURT

Thursday, June 9.  -  Before the Chief Justice

MAURICE WALSH, JOHN PIPER, JAMES M’DONALD, THOMAS MOLLOY, MARIA WALSH, BERNARD NEIL, and JAMES DELANEY were indicted for the wilful murder of JOHN SPURGEON, at Sydney, on the 2nd April.  The indictment contained three counts.  The prisoners were remanded after being arraigned.

Friday, June 10.  Before the Chief Justice

MAURICE WALSH was put on his trial for the murder of SPURGEON, the counsel for the defence of some of the prisoners declining to act if they were all tried together.  The trial occupied the whole day, and did not terminate till three o’clock in the morning, when the jury brought in a verdict of guilty of manslaughter.  The general circumstances of the case were fully reported in the Mercury from the Sydney papers, at the time.  Walsh was remanded for sentence.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/936, 22/06/1853

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT
Saturday, June 18.  -  Before the three Judges.

MAURICE WALSH, convicted of manslaughter, was brought up to receive sentence.  On being asked whether he had anything to say why sentence should not be passed upon him, the prisoner handed in a certificate of character, signed by several of his neighbours, among whom were some of the witnesses for the crown in the case.  The Chief Justice proceeded to pass sentence, and after commenting on the enormity of the offence, said the duty of the court was in this case to pass the heaviest sentence the law allowed, and that was that he be kept to hard labour on the roads or other public works of the colony for the term of fifteen years, the first three of these to be served in irons.  On hearing the period of his sentence the prisoner’s countenance visibly changed.  He was then removed.
JAMES M’DONALD was then called up.  Mr. HOLROYD said that as the prisoner had only been found guilty on the second count wherein he was charged as principal in the second degree, and as the evidence for the crown pointed to him as guilty of murder as the man who had inflicted the blows with the iron bar, he could not be found guilty on that particular count.  After some argument the point was reserved, and Mr. Justice Dickinson proceeded to pass upon the same sentence as that passed on Walsh.

MARIA WALSH was then brought up.  Mr. Purefoy applied to have two points reserved, which was acceded to by the court.  Mr. Justice Therry then passed sentence.  He expressed his conviction, that she was the most culpable of all those engaged in this bloody business.  The sentence of the court was, that she be imprisoned in the house of correction at Parramatta, and be kept to hard labour for the period of seven years.  The prisoner exhibited no signs of feeling whatever, and was removed.

JAMES DELANEY, THOMAS MOLLOY, JOHN PIPER, and BERNARD NEIL, who had been committed and arraigned with the prisoners already sentenced, having been placed at the bar, the Attorney General gave his consent that they should be discharged upon entering into their own recognizances to appear, if called upon, in answer to this charge.  The prisoners then entered into the necessary recognizances, to the extent of £100 each, and were discharged.

THE CHINESE IN SYDNEY.
It appears that many of these poor creatures who are brought to the colony are frequently found to be so perfectly useless as to be unable to procure employment.  The consequence is that they are picked up by the police, wandering destitute in the streets, and are sent to the Sydney Infirmary, to the exclusion of the destitute poor of the British race, for whom, it is well known, the Infirmary is inadequate.  Yesterday a poor wretched Tartar outcast, with meagre cheeks, matted hair, lack-lustre eyes, and gibbering like an idiot, was brought before the Mayor by constable Ellis, for being destitute in the streets.  The name given by the wretch, and which was written against him on the police sheet, is the most blasphemous imaginable.  Mr. Wearin proposed that he should be sent to the Infirmary.  The Mayor replied that he would not send the man to the Infirmary, as the Chinese died there at the rate of two or three a day, and he (the Mayor) had heard that their deaths were occasioned principally by starvation.  The Chinaman was then discharged.  Empire, June 17.  [see also 11/938, 29/06/1853 below]
APPREHENSION OF A SUPPOSED MURDERER.  -  In the beginning of the month of April in the present year, a very brutal murder was committed at Leroy’s public house, in the town of Bathurst, near Sydney.  It originated in a half drunken quarrel, and ended in the death of WILLIAM SCOTT, the reputed murderers being WESLEY MARTIN and HENRY DUBOIS, both of whom made an exit from that colony.  Since then the New South Wales police authorities have made every exertion to procure the apprehension of the fugitives, and for this purpose Mr. PIERCE, the chief constable for the county of Bourke, was communicated with, and the capture now recorded is owing to his vigilance and activity.  For some time a man named Wesley Martin had been quietly carrying on the business of a hairdresser, in a small shop in Bourke-street, and at a late hour on Wednesday night he was rather surprised by a visit from the district police, but his surprise was not diminished when he was informed that he was charged with the Bathurst murder.  He was conveyed to one of the watch-houses, and upon a careful examination of the prisoner’s description, as detailed in the Government Gazette, it was found to correspond almost in every particular.  In the course of yesterday he underwent a pro forma examination at the county police court, and was committed to gaol, with the view of forwarding him to Sydney, and thence to Bathurst for identification.  Herald, June 10

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

Friday, June 18, 1853. – Before Mr. Justice Therry.

MAURICE WALSH was indicted for the murder of PATRICK DIXON.  The information contained in this instance but one count, charging Walsh as the actual murderer.  The prisoner was defended by Messrs. FOSTER and PUREFOY.  The evidence was substantially the same as that adduced on the previous trial of Walsh for the murder of SPURGEON and of the other persons accused of participating in that offence.  According to the medical testimony, death had ensued from blows inflicted with the iron bar or some similar instrument, and the other evidence went to confirm this view, although there was some proof of Walsh having struck the deceased with the club.  The defence was based on the total absence of any proof that Walsh’s hand had inflicted the fatal injury, and to the fact that the evidence pointed rather towards this conclusion, that this had been inflicted by another.  There, being, as before stated, no count in the information charging the prisoner as a principal in the second degree, he was consequently, it was contended, entitled to an acquittal.  His Honor declined, when applied to, to withdraw the case from the jury, but charged them to acquit, unless they were convinced that deceased had actually met his death from Walsh.  The jury returned a verdict of not guilty.

SHOCKING DEATH.  -  An unfortunate youth, named JOHN MAHON, met with his death in an extraordinary manner in the latter part of last week, near the Winburndale Creek.  A magisterial inquiry was held upon his remains by G.F. WISE, Esq., J.P., in the absence of the coroner, who was indisposed, when the following 
particulars transpired.  The deceased was employed by a person named RICHARD MALLION, driving sheep, and had arrived at Winburndale Creek from Sofala on the evening of the accident, where himself and companion resolved upon camping.  They accordingly lit a fire against a large dead tree, at the point where a heavy branch joined the trunk, the other extremity resting upon the ground.  After partaking of their evening’s meal they made their bed on the opposite side of the trunk and retired to rest.  In the dead of the night the survivor was awoke by a noise, when to his consternation he discovered that the log, burnt loose by the fire, had fallen over the trunk upon the head of the unfortunate youth, and literally smashed it to pieces, of course killing him instantaneously.  The weight of the log may be gathered from the fact that it required the utmost efforts of three men to remove it off the deceased.  A remarkable circumstance in connection with the affair was, that the agreement between the deceased and Mallion terminated at Sofala, but at the earnest solicitation of the latter, he proceeded on to Bathurst, and was congratulating himself before retiring to rest upon that being his last night’s exposure to the severity of the weather, little thinking that it would be his “last night” in this world.  Verdict – accidental death.  Bathurst Free Press, June 11

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held yesterday, at the Green Dragon, in Erskine-street, on the body of CHARLES MAYNES. The deceased was a lighterman, and had part management of a ballast boat, of about thirteen tons burthen, belonging to Mr. LORD.  On Sunday morning the wind was blowing fresh, and the boat was sailing to Moore’s Wharf with a load of ballast.  The deceased went forward, and fell overboard.  His mate, JOHN KIMESTER, tried all in his power to save him, but he let go his hold of the oar which was held out to him, and was drowned.  He was quite sober, and was only twenty-four years of age.  Empire, June 14
DEATH BY BURNING.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Lord Rodney Inn, on view of the body of AGNES HEPBURN.  From the evidence of JOHN MEEK, the deceased’s step-father, it appears that she was 13 years of age; that on the 11th instant he was alarmed by the cries of the deceased, and that upon running down stairs he saw her enveloped in flames.  He ran to her assistance, and wrapped her in a blanket, and afterwards tore her clothes off.  She was nevertheless very severely burnt about the thighs and lower part of the body.  Dr. LLOYD was called in, and attended her until Monday last, when she died.  The account given by the poor girl herself was, that she was whitening the hobs of the kitchen fire, when suddenly she felt a heat, and found that she was in a blaze.  She then ran shrieking through the passage, calling, “Father, father.”  Scarcely two minutes elapsed before witness ran to her, but his aid was useless.  The jury found a verdict of death from accidental burning.  Herald, June 17 
MYSTERIOUS AS YET.  -  PATRICK HALPIN, a settler in Dapto (son of Mr. JAMES HALPIN, who lately perished through skinning a diseased beast) was in Wollongong on Monday afternoon, and thence proceeded to Mr. Way’s public house in Dapto, within about a mile of his own residence, where he remained for some time, when Mr. Way saw him safely across Barrett’s Creek.  From that time up to the present nothing has been seen of him, but as his horse was found the following morning on the off side of a little bridge adjacent to his house, and one of the stirrup leathers was found on the other side, there is every reason to suppose that the unfortunate man must have perished, and no doubt, if so, another victim of intemperance.  Herald’s Wollongong Correspondent.
KIAMA.  -  A very melancholy accident occurred here, which terminated yesterday in the death of Dr. PARROT, our only resident medical practitioner.  On Thursday last, 9th instant, the unfortunate gentleman was called on to visit a man named WILLMOTT, who had cut his throat.  On the road his horse suddenly fell, and the Doctor fell with him; the horse in his struggles rolled over him and injured him so severely that he died yesterday.  Willmott still lives.  Herald Correspondent

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/927, 25/06/1853

CORONER’S INQUESTS.  -  An inquest was held yesterday, at the Three Tuns Tavern, on the body of WALTER HUSSELDEN.    It appeared from the evidence that the deceased was 46 years of age, and boatswain’s mate on board the ship Harriet.  On last Sunday week the deceased went with a boat’s crew and the chief mate to the Australian, then lying off Dawes’s Point.  The deceased accidentally fell overboard from the ship’s ladder.  A boat was immediately lowered but as the deceased was right beneath it, the sailors held on until the deceased should float astern.  He sank before he was from beneath the boat.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental drowning.  -  Another inquest was held at the Angel and Crown, in Sussex-street, on the body of JOHN WILLOUGHBY.  Dr. M’PHEE stated that he was called in to see the deceased on Sunday, but he was dead.  Witness had attended on him previously for a less violent attack than the last, when he had a fit.  He was predisposed to epilepsy, and witness believed that the fit of which he died was accelerated by intemperance.  Verdict, died from epilepsy.  Empire, June 21
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/938, 29/06/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  About midnight on Sunday, a man named ABRAHAM QUINSEY, of Rushcutter’s Bay, was returning home from Sydney, where he had been with a few friends.  He was intoxicated, and drove the horse at a gallop, so that his servant, JAMES MARTIN, was compelled to quit it for fear of an accident.  The horse was found drawing the cart at the toll-gate, and the deceased was found soon after by his wife lying senseless on the road.  A person named THOMAS MARTIN was returning to Rushcutter’s Bay from Woolloomooloo at the same time, and saw the deceased fall from the cart.  The cart did not pass over him.  Martin tried to take him home, but he could not stand, and he hastened to the toll-bar and gave the alarm.  He continued insensible till four a.m. on Monday, when he breathed his last. Verdict – Accidental death, while under the influence of intoxicating liquors.  Empire, June 24
DEATH OF A WOMAN FROM DROWNING.
An inquest was held yesterday at the Three Tuns Tavern, on the body of ROSE HOLLAND.  It appeared from the evidence that the deceased was a dissolute woman, upwards of forty years of age.  On Tuesday night she became intoxicated, and went on board a vessel at the Flour Company’s Wharf, in company with another woman of ill-fame.  She wrangled with one of the sailors, and about two o’clock on Wednesday morning she attempted to quit the vessel, but, although the stage to the wharf was a very good one, she was so much in liquor that she fell off it into the water.  Constable DAWLEY hearing the cry for police, hastened to the wharf and found her lying on the jetty, her clothes wet, and she greatly exhausted.  He conveyed her to the Infirmary, where she expired about seven o’clock yesterday morning.  Verdict – Accidental drowning.  Empire, June 25

WOLLONGONG, JUNE 23.  -  THE MYSTERY SOLVED.  -  With reference to the paragraph in our last communication, headed “Mysterious as yet,” in which we stated that a settler named PATRICK HALPIN was supposed to have been drowned in a creek near his own house, having disappeared since Monday evening, the 13th instant, we now have to state that our supposition proved but too true, for the body of the unfortunate man was found on Saturday morning in the position indicated.  Herald Correspondent.

CHINAMEN.---A correspondence is published in the Empire of Friday last, from which it appears that the Mayor of Sydney was not correctly reported in the remarks made by him recently with reference to the death of Chinamen who had been sent to the Sydney Infirmary.  What he really stated was that he had heard that one or two Chinamen were dying weekly (not daily) in the Infirmary, and that their deaths principally arose from exhaustion arising from starvation endured before they were taken to that institution.  [see 11/936, 22/06/1853]
FATAL ACCIDENTS AND SUDDEN DEATH.  -  Two fatal accidents have occurred in this neighbourhood during the past few days.  On the 5th instant, a man of the name of HENRY PRESTON, commonly known as Old Harry, was found dead in the Eton Vale Creek, the ration cart which he was driving having upset, and the wheel passing over him crushed him.  He was a very old man, having been at the battle of Trafalgar, and had been 12 years in Mr. Hodgson’s service.  -  On the 6th instant, another sad accident happened to a man named GEORGE MULLINGER, commonly known as Mr. Hughes’s ‘Big George,’ having been in that gentleman’s service 13 years.  He was riding from Drayton towards Westbrook, after sunset, and rather the worse for liquor, when his horse threw him violently against a tree, which smashed his head and broke his arm and collar bone.  He died almost immediately, being perfectly insensible.  This unfortunate man had only returned from the Turon diggings four days previously, and had walked up to Drayton.  He had obtained gold to the amount of only £35 during the three months he was digging, and his mates JOSEPH ARCHER and WILLIAM TURNER were equally unfortunate.  -  It is only a short time since that MANUEL RITORNIEL, a South American, and stockman to Mr. Gammie, at Clifton, fell down dead.  He was one of the best rough riders in the northern districts.  Drayton Correspondent of Moreton Bay Free Press
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/929, 02/07/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

DUNGOG

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  An old man named JOHN HORNE, who obtained a living by bricklaying, at Stroud, was found dead in his bed, on Saturday morning last.  He appeared to be an inveterate drinker.

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  Captain SKEY, late in command of the brig Java, and a man named CHADDOCK, expired suddenly and unexpectedly in fits yesterday, though both had been previously somewhat indisposed.  Inquests have not yet been held.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/940, 06/07/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A young man, named MARTIN, was brought up from Port Phillip yesterday, in custody of a Geelong mounted police trooper, under warrant; charged with having some time since committed a murder at Long’s public-house, Berrima, in this colony.  Nothing of the case has transpired in court, but it is said that the man said to have been murdered was, at a subsequent date, seen walking about Sydney.  Martin is remanded until tomorrow.
SUSPECTED LUNACY.  -  A young man, named FOYLE, was yesterday brought before the bench, on suspicion of being of unsound mind.  It appeared that, near midnight of Tuesday, he went to the residence of a man named MARJORIBANKS, stated that he had just arrived from Maitland, and was in want of lodging for the night.  There was something strange in his manner, but he was accommodated.  On Wednesday, they could make nothing of him whatever, and could not obtain a reply to any question put to him.  An order was obtained from Archdeacon M’ENROE for his admission into the Benevolent Asylum, but he was refused admission – they having no accommodation for, nor professing to receive, lunatics.  Mr. Marjoribanks therefore gave him into custody for protection as a lunatic.  His appearance was strongly indicative of lunacy, but he answered the questions of the magistrates without hesitancy, and in such a manner as contrasted strongly with his personal appearance and expression of countenance.  He said his name was Foyle, was a native of Gloucestershire, had been twelve years in the colony, and his friends were residents at or near Maitland.  Dr. RUTTER deposed that having conversed with the young man, he did not consider him of unsound mind, but believed he was suffering from a nervous affection.  Under these circumstances he was discharged from custody, and recommended at once to seek for employment, which might be in more than a pecuniary sense beneficial to him.  Herald, July 1
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/941, 09/07/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

MUSWELLBROOK

AWFULLY SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Monday, 4th inst., Mr. WILLIAM WATERS, boot and shoemaker, of this town, rose in his usual state of health, apparently well; and having eaten a hearty breakfast, took his gun, went a short distance from home, and fired at and killed a pigeon.  Almost immediately after he staggered up to a fallen tree, sat down, and expired.  An inquest was the same day held on the body, and a finding of “died by the visitation of God,” returned.  By this sudden bereavement four children, all very young, have lost the protection of an affectionate industrious parent, and our little community an inoffensive respectable member.  Mr. Waters was about 43 years of age, and a widower. “In the midst of life, we are in death.”
MYSTERIOUS DISAPPEARANCE.

Some twelve or fourteen days ago information reached Bathurst that Mr. JOHN NEVILLE, of the Daniel O’Connell Inn, of this town, had most unaccountable disappeared.  It has since transpired that he had been at his station on the Lachlan, and was accompanied downwards by his overseer, a man named DONALDSON, and his daughter.  They reached Carcoar in safety, where Mr. Neville transacted some business, and was known to have upwards of £60 in his possession.  Leaving Carcoar they proceeded to Mr. Stammers’, of the Five-mile Waterholes, where they remained all night, and started for Bathurst about noon of the following day.  They rode in company, until they reached a piece of elevated ground known by the name of the Red Hill, at which place, Mr. Neville, it is reported, was last seen by the overseer’s daughter, leaning forward, over his horse’s mane.  Since that time nothing has been seen or heard of him, although the country has been scoured in all directions by horsemen in scores.  Some two or three days afterwards a person named JOHN HOGAN, one of three brothers who reside upon Brown’s Creek, arrived in Bathurst with Mr. Neville’s horse, which he stated he found between the Five-mile Waterholes and King’s Plains, with the saddle upon him, but wanting the bridle.  Between the brothers and Neville some difference had taken place, arising out of a trespass by their infected sheep, which terminated in a summons, and the aforesaid John Hogan having remarked that he had awaited his arrival in Carcoar for several days in order that they might settle their differences, and having also dropped the expression that he had found the horse within a few yards of where Neville was murdered, he was apprehended on suspicion, and now stands remanded for further evidence.  A large sum of money was also found on Hogan’s person, but as yet nothing is known respecting it. Up to the time at which we write, no trace of the unfortunate man’s remains have been discovered, but there can be no doubt whatever as to his death.  Bathurst Free Press, July 2
MURDER.  -  STABBING.  -  WESLEY MARTIN, the young man mentioned in yesterday’s Herald as having arrived under escort from Port Phillip charged with having, at Berrima, murdered one WILLIAM SCOTT by stabbing, was brought before the bench, and remanded to Berrima for further examination.  Mr. NICHOLS attended on behalf of the prisoner.  From the evidence adduced, it appeared that on some night in February last an argument took place between the prisoner and William Scott, at Levy’s public-house, Berrima, about Yankees or Yankeeism; that the prisoner went into another room, and returned to the bar, across which he made several blows at Scott; no knife or other instrument was seen in the prisoner’s hand by either of the witnesses examined yesterday; simultaneously, however, Scott cried out that he was stabbed, and blood began to flow; he was wounded in three places – on the right breast, on the left arm, and in the abdomen; prisoner did not stop in the house, but of what direction he took, or how he travelled, there is as yet no evidence.  Scott was alive a few weeks since, but of his present condition no one present could speak.  Herald, July 6
DEATH FROM DROWNING,  -  On Sunday last the body of an aged man, name unknown, was found in the Vale Creek, between the bridge and the river, and removed to the Nugget Inn.  An inquiry was held on the following day, when it transpired in evidence that when discovered he was lying face downwards in a shallow part of the creek, having evidently fallen off the bank, upon the side of which the track of his foot was perceptible, while most probably in a state of intoxication, when it is surmised that stupefied by the fall he was unable to assist himself.  The deceased had been in the service of Mr. THOMAS JONES as a shepherd, but the latter being absent from town, there was no opportunity of ascertaining his name.  When found his faithful dog, a Scotch collie, was standing sentry over him, near the spot whence he fell.  Verdict – accidental death.  Bathurst Free Press, July 2

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/942, 13/07/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held at the Golden Fleece Inn, Singleton, before HENRY GLENNIE, Esq., coroner, and a jury of twelve, touching the death of THOMAS KIELY, then laying dead.  It appeared from the evidence of MARY KIELY (deceased’s wife) that on the 27th June last, deceased, who was a sheep overseer, in the employ of CHARLES BOYDELL, Esq., was returning home after taking out rations to some shepherds, and was riding one horse and leading another, when in crossing Glendon Brook, which was high, and running strong, and when opposite his own dwelling, and in sight of his wife and children, who were about to welcome him home, the horse he was riding stumbled, apparently over a sunken log, when he was precipitated into the stream, and carried down with the current, never to rise again in life.  Search was immediately made for the body, but it was not found till last Friday.  The deceased has left a widow and six small children.  The jury returned a verdict of accidentally drowned.  Singleton, July 11th, 1853.
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FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Red Lion Inn, East Maitland, on the body of EDWARD MEANEY.  It appeared from the evidence that Meaney was in the service of a farmer named THOMAS RYAN.  On Thursday they had been in the bush with a bullock dray getting a load of bark, and came into East Maitland with it early in the afternoon.  On the top of Newcastle-street, long noted for its deep and dangerous water channels crossing the roadway, is a water channel cut by the late rains, and as the wheel of the bullock dray crossed this the jerk threw off Meaney, who was seated on the bark in the dray, and the next moment the wheel of the dray went over his body and head, crushing his temples completely in.  He died instantaneously.  Ryan, his employer, was close behind on horseback, and he and several others were quickly on the spot, and Dr. WILTON was sent for, but life was extinct.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death caused by badness of the road, and added a rider requesting the Coroner to represent the badness of the road to the authorities, so as to have the same repaired before any more accidents occur.
HEAVY FALL OF SNOW AT GUNDAROO, AND LOSS OF LIFE.  -  On Tuesday, the 28th ultimo, heavy rain commenced and continued during the night; at daybreak, on Wednesday morning, the weather changed to snow, and continued descending until mid day; the sound of the branches and trees resembled a brisk cannonading.  The river rose nearly to the level of the flood of June, 1852.  The Queanbeyan River is still running high, which prevents all communication with the town.  Many persons who happened to be in on business on Tuesday, when the rain commenced, remain there at the present time; on Friday last, three men made an attempt to cross on a raft, which was carried away; two of them could swim, and saved themselves; the other, an old man (who was much respected,) known by the name of CHARCOAL WILLEY, was drowned.  Empire Correspondent.
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WILFUL MURDER OF A MAN, UNKNOWN. – DISCOVERY OF THE REMAINS
On Saturday last, the quiet little township of Marulan was thrown into a state of excitement by the report that the remains of a murdered man had been found close to the blind creek, about a mile on the Goulburn side of the settlement.  It appears that while a carrier, named BURGESS, who was on the road to Goulburn with loading for Messrs. Fawcett and Co., of this town, was in search of his horses in the dense oak scrub, about a mile this side of Marulan, he observed a heap of boughs with a log lying at the top of it, about 200 yards off the road.  Suspecting that something was planted there, he lifted up the boughs, when, to his horror, he discovered the bones, and a portion of the clothes of a fellow creature!  Information of the fact was immediately given to district constable PATERSON, and on Tuesday, the coroner, accompanied by Mr. GERARD, surgeon, proceeded to Marulan for the purpose of holding an inquest on the remains.  The bones were those of an adult male, about 18 or 19 years of age; there was a circular fracture of the skull near the top, the back part was beaten in, leaving no doubt in the minds of the medical men and the jury that the deceased had been barbarously murdered.  As the bones of the body and the limbs had been much gnawed by the native dogs, the probable height of the deceased could not be ascertained.  The following articles or portions of articles, of wearing apparel were found with the heap of bones:  a pair of cotton socks, a blue merino neck tie, the remains of a pair of moleskin trousers, a portion of a drab great coat, a regatta shirt with a blue wavy flower; there were no boots or hat found.  From the appearances the bones presented, it is supposed that the murder was committed fully twelve months ago.  It is very probable that the deceased was a gold digger returning to Sydney, and that he was waylaid and murdered; or probably murdered by his mate.  Goulburn Herald, July 9
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THE LATE MR. NEVILLE.
No further light has been thrown upon the mysterious disappearance of the late Mr. NEVILLE, and the public mind is in consequence much excited.   Bathurst Free Press, July 16
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THE TURON

The Turon has again been visited with a heavy flood, heavier than any we have experienced during the present year, and attended, I regret to say, with loss of life.  One individual we know has been hurried into eternity whilst in a state of inebriety, and circumstances have since transpired which tend to show that this is not a solitary instance.  The rain commenced on Sunday evening, and continued most of the night, but gradually abated towards morning, when it again commenced, and continued without intermission for several hours, descending at intervals in torrents.  The river commenced to rise in the afternoon, and rose with great rapidity.  A little after dark, and whilst the river was still rising, and heavy logs of wood were hurrying along with the impetuous current, a boat containing the owner, a Mr. CRIDLAND, and one or two persons, attempted to cross to Maitland Point.  They proceeded safely until they reached the centre of the stream, when the boat capsized, precipitating the persons it contained into the river.  An individual by the name of JOHN SHEEN, a native of Parramatta, commonly known by the soubriquet of “JACK THE BUTCHER,” hearing screams from the opposite side, plunged into the river while in a state of intoxication for the purpose of rendering assistance.  The unfortunate individual seems to have been drawn into a sort of vortex.  He was heard to utter a few indistinct sounds, and sank to rise no more.  Meanwhile Cridland, being an expert swimmer, managed to reach a heap of gravel, where he remained until the commissioners, with the assistance of the police, drew him to the bank with the aid of ropes.  Another of the unfortunates adhered firmly to the boat, which was carried under the rocks at Lucky Point, when he succeeded in grasping a rock and thus saved his life.  Some doubts have arisen as to how many attempted to cross in the boat, and as is generally the case, several reports are circulated.  If more than two, the probability is they are lost, if only two, the only person lost is the unfortunate Sheen.  Sofala, July 13, 1853
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BRAIDWOOD. -  July 16.  -  News of the flood begins to fly about.  The most distressing is that of a child being drowned in the Pound Creek, at Braidwood, which has swollen into a river.  The child’s name was FLANAGAN, and she appears to have been taken up by a man who was travelling in company with her on his horse.  Both were taken off the horse, and the man appears to have used but little exertion to recover the poor girl.  A magisterial inquiry was instituted at the court house, but, after a searching examination, no culpability beyond neglect can be attached to any parties.

DREADFUL FLOOD AT BRAIDWOOD, WITH LOSS OF LIFE.  -  JULY 19.

I have just seen the Braidwood mailman, who arrived here at ten o’clock, having left the township on Monday morning.  He gives an awful description of the floods there.  He states that Gordon’s mill has been carried away with the exception of the lower storey, the two upper stories succumbing to the weight of the water.  The mill at Queanbeyan, belonging to Captain FAUNCE, has also been carried away; but as yet no intelligence has reached me as to loss of life.  Not so as regards Braidwood; a girl on horseback, attempting to cross a blind creek at the back of the township, was carried away.  A man also met with the same fate, and another is missing, supposed to be drowned.  Goulburn Correspondent of the Empire

IPSWICH.

I regret having to begin this communication with the relation of two deplorable accidents – one, that of a man named JOHN SMITH, in the employment of Mr. John Smith, Longpocket, who was run over by the wheel of a dray, and his breast literally smashed.  The other, that of a boy about six years old, the son of Mr. HUGH MAXWELL of this place, who was so dreadfully burned in consequence of his clothes having caught fire, that he died the same day.  Correspondent of the Moreton Bay Courier, July 9
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DEATH FROM DRUNKENNESS.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held at Lochinvar, by Mr. PARKER, on the body of JOHN SCHOFIELD.  It appeared from the evidence that Schofield, who was about sixty years old, was an habitual drunkard; during the last few days he had been continually drinking in Lochinvar; and on Tuesday was nearly all day in the Gordon Arms, where, though he had no money himself, he was treated so frequently by others, that by the evening he was quite drunk; late in the evening some one asked him to have another glass, and he went forward to the counter to take it; he rested his elbow for a moment on the counter, and then fell on the floor, as if drunk; there he lay for some time, and when he was lifted to be removed to a place of rest for the night, he was found to be dead.  A post mortem examination by Dr. M’CARTNEY showed that death was caused by disease, brought on by long continued intemperance.  The jury returned a verdict to that effect.
WOMAN FOUND DEAD.  -  About 9 o’clock p.m. on the 25th instant, Mr. MILLS, of the Seven Stars public-house, Castlereagh-street, found a woman lying dead in his stable.  He had seen the same woman about five o’clock previously getting a glass of ale with a man called LANKEY, who used to saw wood in the neighbourhood.  This woman was also seen by Mr. COX, a neighbour, sitting near his house, and apparently sick, about 3 o’clock same afternoon.  No person identified her by name or residence.  Deceased seems about forty years of age, middle size, dressed in grew cotton gows.  The body lies in the Infirmary.  The deceased’s face has marks of blows received of old date, but no recent injury.  Herald, July 27

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  WILLIAM MARTIN, employed at Wright’s brewery, was yesterday evening taking his tea, when he fell off his chair in a fit, and in a few minutes was numbered with the dead.  Herald, July 26
SUICIDE.  -  A letter from Major’s Creek, dated 11th July, states that a butcher named WILLIAM HARRIS cut his throat on the night of the 10th July, and died on the following evening.  Herald, July 26

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  Yesterday morning, a man who had been confined on the previous day for intemperance, was found dead in his cell in the Darlinghurst Gaol.  The unfortunate man, whose name is understood to be GUILTLEY [GILLARDLEY], and who was a stonemason by trade, has latterly been several times before the bench, on account of his addiction to the vice which has at last cost him his life.  An inquest will be held on the body to-day.  Empire, July 28
MURDER.  -  Between the hours of seven and eight last evening a Sergeant of the 11th regiment was murdered by a private belonging to the same company.  Sergeant PEARSON, it appears, was reading at a table, in the barrack room, when private PATRICK CROWLEY took down his firelock from the stand and deliberately fired it off, the contents passing through the head of the unfortunate sergeant; a scuffle took place, Crowley was disarmed, who thereupon rushed to another part of the room, and took down a bayonet belonging to another messmate, who wrested it from him; immediately after this Crowley made his escape.  In the scuffle the light was extinguished, and it was not until the candle was relit that it was discovered that poor Pearson had been wounded.  It appears he dropped his head upon the table, and never uttered another word – he was killed on the instant.  Crowley is a man of about 5 feet 8½  inches in height, of sallow complexion, with dark or black hair.  He was dressed in a shell jacket, and had on neither cap nor belt.  Pearson is said to have formerly been a commissioned officer in the service, of gentlemanly bearing, and most inoffensive in his conduct.  Herald, July 26
THE MURDER AT THE NEW MILITARY BARRACKS.  -  The active search instituted by the police for the murderer of Sergeant PEARSON has at length succeeded.  PATRICK CROWLEY, who escaped immediately after he committed the fatal act, was not again seen until his apprehension, yesterday afternoon, about four o’clock, by ALEXANDER GRAHAM, one of the out-station police.  The murderer, who was a private of the 11th Regiment, had partially disguised himself, retaining his regimental trousers, but wearing a blue shirt and a cabbage-tree hat.  He was found at Canterbury, and, on being charged with the crime, surrendered without any resistance.  He was at one brought to Sydney, and is now confined in the George-street watch-house.  Empire, July 28

AWFUL FLOOD AT BRAIDWOOD AND QUEANBEYAN, WITH DESTRUCTION OF LIFE.

… It appears from what we gathered from MALONE, the Braidwood mailman, on Tuesday, that a most remarkable flood had visited that part of the country.  He (Malone) arrived in Goulburn a few hours before we saw him on Tuesday, having left Braidwood on the previous morning.  At that time he had been informed that a girl coming from Major’s Creek to Braidwood, on horseback, had, in attempting to cross the blind creek near the pond, then swollen to a sea, been swept away by the velocity of the current and drowned; her body was found on the day that Malone left.  On the same day a man lost his life in trying to cross the rapid tide; and another paid the same sacrifice in the Jemecumbene Creek.  It is highly probable that others have shared in the same fate.  Malone, our too enterprising mailman, swam the Warri on Monday, and then …
YASS.  -  FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Friday evening se’nnight, a report was brought in of a man lying dead on the road, near Mr. Davis’s, Yass Plains.  No steps were taken to ascertain the truth of the report until the following day, when the coroner and jury arrived, who found the body to be that of PETER DOYLE, a carpenter by trade.  It appeared from evidence that the deceased was on his way to Queanbeyan, and riding a spirited mare at great speed, came in contact with a tree with such violence as to cause instantaneous death, through the severe fracture of his head and collar bone.  He was followed to the grave on the following Sunday evening by a numerous circle of friends.  Correspondent of the Goulburn Herald
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Monday, 11th instant, as Mr. THOMAS FRANCIS, of the Little Meadow, Abercrombie River, was attempting to cross in a canoe, with rations to his shepherds, on the opposite side, the current was so strong as soon to sweep the canoe out of sight of those who were anxiously on the look-out; when next sighted it was without an occupant.  The body was found about 400 yards from where last seen alive.  Mr. Francis was one of the earliest inhabitants of Kangaloola, and much respected by all who knew him; he has left a widow and eight children to deplore the loss of a kind husband and an affectionate parent.  Tuena Correspondent of the Goulburn Herald

MURDER AT YASS.  -  An old man named JAMES LLOYD, residing in the township of Yass, was barbarously murdered, about ten o’clock at night, on the 18th instant.  An inquest was held before the coroner of the district, and, after a lengthened investigation, the jury returned a verdict of wilful murder against a man named JOHN HASSIT, who was already in custody for the offence.  Empire, July 27
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INQUEST.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, in West Maitland, on the body of MARGARET BARRY.  Rumours it appeared were afloat that Mrs. Barry died from the effects of violence inflicted by her husband, and one witness, MARY HORN, deposed that Mrs. Barry, some days before her death, told her that after a dispute her husband raised, while intoxicated, about some washing, he kicked her violently in the small of the back about the kidneys, and produced a flooding.  Mrs. Horn did not live near Mrs. Barry.  On the other hand, three other witnesses, neighbours of Mrs. Barry, one living under the same roof, not only never saw any violence inflicted by Barry, but never heard a word of such violence from his wife, although they were aware that Barry had words with his wife, and left her, to her great grief.  Two of these witnesses, woman, were told of the flooding by Mrs. Barry, but not as at all caused by violence.  All the witnesses described her as having been ill for months.  Dr. M’CARTNEY, who had been sent for to attend Mrs. Barry, but was unable to attend then, described the state her found her in; she died lying on the bed, dressed, apparently dying while asleep; no trace of injury was perceptible, and the cause of death was disease of the lungs of long standing; her under clothing was covered with blood, arising from natural causes.  The jury returned a verdict of died from natural causes.
ACCIDENT.

On Friday evening last an accident happened on the Dagworth Road to an old man of 83 years of age, named THOMAS HOLDEN, by which his left arm was broken.  Holden was riding on a dray, intoxicated, and putting his arm over the side iron the arm got entangled with the wheel.  Holden was extricated, and conveyed to the hospital, where he was promptly attended to, and the injury found to be a compound fracture.  At an early hour on the following morning amputation above the elbow was decided on, the operation being performed by Dr. M’CARTNEY, assisted by Dr. FOULIS and Mr. RILEY.  The patient stood the operation well, and up to the present time is progressing favourably.

SEVERE BURNING.  -  On the evening of the 26th ultimo a man named GEORGE HORTON, a resident of West Maitland, while under the influence of liquor, laid down to sleep near a burning log.  In his sleep his clothes ignited, and he did not wake up until he was enveloped in flames.  His clothes were with difficulty got off him by persons attracted to the spot, and he was at once conveyed to the Hospital, where on examination it was found that the whole of the left side of his body was fearfully charred.  He now lies in a precarious state, little hopes being entertained of his recovery.

THE MURDER AT THE MILITARY BARRACKS.  -  On Saturday, the inquest opened by the coroner at the Military Barracks, Paddington, on Wednesday last, on view of the body of Sergeant SHAFFNER PEARSON, late of H.M. 11th Regiment, and adjourned until the above day, was resumed.  Private PATRICK CROWLEY of the same regiment being in custody.  From the evidence of PATRICK FEILY, a private in the same regiment, it appears that, on the evening of Monday last, witness was with deceased, in the barrack room.  The latter was sitting at the table reading.  This was about half-past seven o’clock, two other privates, as well as Patrick Crowley, were present.  Suddenly the report of a musket was heard, the explosion extinguishing the candle at which the deceased serjeant was sitting.  As the candle went out, witness saw deceased’s head drop on the table.  There was another light at the end of the room; and when witness recovered from the shock, he saw Crowley with a musket in his hand; the bayonet fixed, and in a priming position.  He seized the firelock, and struggled with the prisoner for some minutes, endeavouring to wrest it out of his hands.  Witness asked him if he was mad, but he made no answer; and finding witness was too strong for him, he dropped the firelock, and running across the barrack-room, seized a bayonet which was on one of the pegs; just as he had drawn it from the scabbard, witness wrested it from him.  Crowley then dashed out of the room, making his escape by way of the barrack wash-houses.  Witness, finding that he could not overtake him, went back to the room, where he found the deceased with his head still on the table, and quite dead.  He must have died almost instantaneously.  Although witness did not actually see Crowley fire, yet from his position, and the other circumstances detailed, witness could have no possible doubt that he fired the fatal shot.  -  On Saturday (Crowley having been apprehended in the mean time) Private M’CARTHY stated that he was in the barrack room on the evening of the murder.  He noticed Crowley holding a musket in his hand, and pulling the ramrod up and down the barrel; and then fixing the bayonet on the firelock.  He then saw Crowley put the firelock to his shoulder and fire at the deceased, whose head immediately dropped on the table at which he was sitting.  Witness ran to the corner of the room where his own children were sitting, fearing that they might have received injury.  He found a bullet and a box in that corner of the room.  The bullet had struck the box.  Witness then described the struggle between the prisoner and private Feily, as before narrated by the latter.  He described the prisoner’s demeanour as being a short time before he committed the murder wild and strange.  He never heard the latter say one angry word about deceased.  Other evidence was taken, as to the peculiarities in the recent demeanour of the prisoner; as to his capture; and as to the nature of the wounds inflicted on deceased.  The prisoner occasionally uttered a few wild and incoherent words during the examination of the various witnesses.   The coroner, in charging the jury, said that whatever opinion might be formed as to the prisoner’s state of mind, that was a question for the Supreme Court of the colony to inquire into.   The prisoner would doubtless have counsel assigned to him; but in the present stage of the proceedings the duty of the jury was to return a verdict of wilful murder.  The jury found this verdict, and the prisoner was immediately conveyed under the coroner’s warrant to Darlinghurst gaol.  Abridged from the Herald, Aug 1  
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TURON.

I have little else to say, save that a person named MILES cut his throat a fortnight ago at the Maitland Point, the incision was about four inches long, in front of the pomum adami, and penetrated the windpipe; he inflicted it with a not over-sharp knife, or it would have been fatal.  Dr. C. M’KAY was called in, and the man conveyed to the hospital, where, under the skilful treatment of Dr. M’Kay, he is rapidly recovering.  A long run of bad luck, I believe, not drink, rendered him temporarily insane - hence the deed.

SUICIDE.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Fortune of War Inn, Lower George-street, on view of the body of Mr. JOHN DOWNES, of Lower George-street, trader, an old and respected citizen of Sydney.  From the evidence in this very melancholy case, it appears that the deceased had been suffering from severe illness during the last month.  He had been attended by Dr. MACKELLAR and Dr. O’BRIEN during the last fortnight.  They treated him for dropsy and anasarcha arising from disease of the heart.  They saw that the case was hopeless, and deemed it necessary to give him morphia for the amelioration of his pain.  He was at times delirious, and on Thursday evening, having been left alone for a few moments, he inflicted a severe wound in his neck with a razor, which was in the table drawer by his bedside.  Dr. Mackellar was sent for, but deceased had expired before his arrival.  The jury found that deceased had put a period to his existence by cutting his throat whilst labouring under temporary insanity.  Herald, July 30

DEATH IN THE GAOL.  -  An inquiry was held yesterday before the coroner, at the gaol, Darlinghurst, touching the death of JOHN GILLARDLEY, the man who was found dead on the morning of the previous day, in the cell in which he had been confined.  From the evidence adduced, it appears that the deceased was received into the prison on Tuesday, under a sentence by the police bench of twenty-four hours’ imprisonment for drunkenness.  He did not appear to be ill at the time.  Next morning, the turnkey, on going to open the cell, between six and seven o’clock, found him lying on his bed quite dead, the body being still warm.  Dr. GRANT, dispenser of the gaol, certified to having assisted Dr. WEST in making a post-mortem examination of the body.  The liver was found to be considerably enlarged, and the stomach and a portion of the intestinal canal were inflamed.  There was also a serous effusion on the brain.  These symptoms were sufficient to account for death.  The deceased appeared to be about 40 years old.  Verdict – died by the visitation of God.  Empire, July 29

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

List of cases, no names.
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GRAFTON.

A most daring and cruel outrage was perpetrated by the blacks on Sunday, the 24th ultimo.  A party of blacks went to one of Mr. Small’s sheep stations, within seven miles of Grafton, and finding no one in the hut but a poor helpless woman, three of the party dragged her out of the hut, and two stood over her with null nullas in their hands while the third used the poor helpless creature as he thought proper.  Five others plundered the hut, taking with them tea, sugar, flour, and blankets, and whatever was worth their notice.

   Such outrages as this, as well as murder, have been committed on the two stations nearest to Grafton, with impunity, by these savages, because they are not punished for their deeds.  They committed a similar act to this within one mile of Grafton, and another within eight miles; at all these places ravishing the women, and robbing the huts.  Now, the ends of justice are defeated from two causes.  First, the constable will not go out without a warrant naming each of these savages; and how is this poor woman, who lately arrived in the colony, to know their names or language.  She cannot therefore obtain a warrant.  On the other hand, even if she knew their names, she is bound by agreement to remain as hutkeeper, and her husband as shepherd.  When the employer hears of this outrage on his station, he may indeed be willing to do everything in his power to serve the poor victim, and punish the aggressors, but he is short-handed, and cannot get two men to go to his station while this poor woman and her husband are going to a magistrate to give their depositions---providing they could describe these blacks.  And ten to one if a magistrate could be found at the time.  But if we had a paid magistrate, living in the townshop, he might proceed to the hut where the outrage has been committed, there to take the necessary depositions, and fill up a warrant at once and hand it to his orderly, who might at once proceed to the camp of the aggressors.

   This is not the only great benefit a police magistrate would be to out district.  We see men for weeks together in the lockup, punished on the one hand, and on the other supported out of the public funds, all for want of a full bench.  So also masters and servants are in many cases put to a great inconvenience, from the same cause; the master may wish to punish his servant, and the servant may require his wages and his discharge, but there is not a full bench, and there is no paid magistrate in constant attendance.  We can find no fault with our present J.P.s., but we have not enough of them.  Grafton, July 27, 1853.
FATAL ACCIDENT THROUGH INTOXICATION.  -  An inquest was held yesterday by Mr. PARKER, at the Black Horse, East Maitland, on the body of ROBERT KNOX.  It appeared from the evidence that of Tuesday afternoon, Knox and another person were galloping in Newcastle-street, and Knox’s horse pulled up rather suddenly to avoid a dray; the shock threw off Knox, who was drunk at the time, and he fell heavily on his shoulder and head.  He was picked up insensible, and carried into the inn, and Dr. BROWN was sent for; Knox never recovered his senses, and on Thursday evening he died.  The jury returned a verdict of died by accidentally falling off his horse when in a state of intoxication.  

SUPPOSED DISCOVERY OF A MURDER BY A DREAM.  -  More than once in the experience of old New South Wales residents has it occurred that they have heard of the discovery of murders, the first clear clue to which arose from the dream of some relative or friend.  It appears likely that in the King’s Plains district, near Bathurst, another instance of the kind has occurred.  A Mr. JOHN NEVILLE, an old colonist, disappeared recently under circumstances that led to suspicion of foul play, nor has the most active search, and the offer of a reward, led to any trace of him or his remains.  His brother, Mr. P. NEVILLE, resides on Fish River, and it is stated by the Bathurst Free Press of Saturday last that on hearing of his brother’s disappearance Mr. P. Neville hastened to Carcoar, and related the following dream to a Mr. JEFFERIES and another:  He had dreamt, he said, that he saw the murdered remains of his brother lying not far from the Red Hill, near the stumps of two posts which had been sawn close to the ground, against one of which leant a sheet of bark.  He saw and knew two of the men who had been concerned in the murder, and whom he named, but a third party, who appeared to be an accomplice, stood with his back towards him, and he was therefore unable to say whether he knew him.  Impressed strongly with this story, Mr. Jeffries and the other party who was present when it was told started forth to look for such a spot as had been described, and whilst proceeding in a certain direction were met by one of the HOGANS, [suspected parties] who endeavoured to persuade them that it was useless going any further that way, remarking as he did so, that if Neville was thereabouts he must be lying on the side of a hill to which he pointed.  Finding, however, that they were not to be diverted from their track, he put spurs to his horse and galloped down a neighbouring gully.  Their search now led them about 150 yards further in the same direction, when they came upon two stumps of trees from which the trunks had been felled, one crossing the other in its fall in such a manner as to form an enclosure of several feet square, and, singular to say, against one of these stumps leant a sheet of bark in the manner described by PATRICK NEVILLE, and the embers of a large fire were found at about fifteen paces distant.  Having noted the appearance of the place minutely they returned to Carcoar, mentioning to Mr. STAMMERS, of the Water Holes, what they had discovered, who related the particulars to M’FADDEN and FINNERTY [two Bathurst policemen sent to race out the affair, if possible] on their arrival.  A minute inspection then ensued.  Inside the enclosure there were tracks upon the ground as if some heavy substance such, as a man sitting upright, had been deposited there, and the marks as if of heels were also discoverable.  Upon the trunk of one of the fallen trees were found a quantity of grey hairs, which corresponded with the colour of Mr. Neville’s hair, and the point of the log from which they were taken would be about the position of the head of a man seated in the enclosure in the manner described.  Outside the enclosure were tracks as if a horse tied to one of the stumps had been trampling backward and forward at the length of his bridle, and the dung of a stable-fed horse was observed at this spot.  The bark of the fallen trunk upon which the hair was found, appeared to have been recently trodden by some person wearing hob-nailed shoes, and near the fire above referred to, a sapling was picked up, which was burnt at the point in such a manner as led to the conclusion that it had been used as a poker.  The fire had evidently been a large one, and being situate about half a mile from the road, on the top of a steep hill, there is little probability of a team camping at the spot.  Nor had any sheep been running thereabouts for some time previously.  Other details are given in the Bathurst Free Press tending to strengthen the belief that at this spot Mr. Neville’s remains had been burnt (no trace of bones or clothing however is mentioned) and ultimately five parties were apprehended on suspicion, namely, JAMES CODY, JAMES KENNEDY, PATRICK  KENNEDY, MALACHI HOGAN, and WILLIAM HOGAN.  Above twenty witnesses had been subpoenaed to give evidence at the police office. 
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/950, 10/08/1853
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

WARIALDA

I am informed by the Calandoon postman that a woman has been murdered by the blacks on Jones’s River.  She is the wife of a shepherd in the employment of Messrs. Eaton and Robertson; both are Germans.  They have only one little boy, who fortunately had gone out with his father after the sheep that day, or in all probability he would have shared the same fate as his unfortunate mother.  I believe her scull was entirely beaten in.  These savages thirst for blood, and it is to be regretted so many of them escape detection. [see 11/956, 31/08/1853]
WILFUL MURDER.  -  An inquest was held at Yass, on the 20th instant, touching the death of a man named WILLIAM LLOYD.  It appeared from the evidence that while constables HASSETT and COSTELLO were proceeding up Comar-street, on duty, on Monday night, about ten o’clock, and when near the Royal Hotel, they saw a man lying on the ground, and one JOHN HASSITT standing over him.  On enquiring of this person, he said that the man had fallen down.  Constable Hassitt left the two men I n charge of constable Costello, to apprise Mr. Hart of the circumstance, during which time Costello made a prisoner of Hassitt; and after he had done so, he saw him step backward to a paling fence, with one hand behind him; the constable then stepped forward, when he found a broken, loose paling in his hand.  Lloyd was afterwards removed to a bed under a dray, where he had been in the habit of sleeping, and next morning, being insensible, was conveyed to the hospital, where he died the same night.  There were spots of blood on the prisoner’s clothes.  The deceased had received a severe fracture of the skull, such as a paling would inflict.  Hassitt was committed to take his trial for wilful murder.  Goulburn Correspondent of the Empire

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT

Thursday, (Before the Chief Justice)

PATRICK COWLEY, a private in the eleventh regiment, was indicted for the murder of Sergeant JOHN SCHAFFNER PEARSON; but on application from Mr. PUREFOY, the trial was postponed until the ensuing session, the prisoner having had no opportunity of preparing his defence.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/951, 13/08/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

MURRURUNDI

A deep gloom was cast over this township on the evening of Saturday last.  Mr. FREDERICK HORDER, of Murrurundi Steam Mill, was out riding with his brother, and came in contact with a tree.  The blow felled him to the earth, and he immediately expired.  He was in the bloom of youth, and in the midst of usefulness.  A man of great promise, universally respected and beloved.  A bereaved wife and child, relatives, and a large circle of friends, deeply lament and will not soon forget their loss.  Haydonton, Aug. 9th, 1853

BODY FOUND.  -  The body of a man, name unknown, was found in the water yesterday near the Union Wharf, Darling Harbour.  The deceased appears to be about 45 years of age, middle size, good countenance, brown hair, short whiskers, rather fair complexion; dressed in blue striped twilled shirt, old blue coat, faded colour black waistcoat, and dark moleskin trousers; a tin snuff-box and two shillings in his pocket.  He seems to have been recently drowned, and has been recognised by a servant in the Benevolent Asylum as being alive, in a state of drunkenness, near the corner of Liverpool-street and Castlereagh-street, on the evening of the 9th instant.  The body awaits an inquest at the Benevolent Asylum.  Herald, Aug. 11

INQUESTS.  -  An inquiry was held on Friday before the Coroner, at the Three Tuns, King-street, touching the death of a man, name unknown.  It appeared from the evidence that on Wednesday morning, about seven o’clock, a boatman, residing at the Government Dockyard, hearing a sailor who was in a boat off the wharf calling out that there was a dead body in the water, rowed, in company with another man, to the spot indicated by the sailor, where they found the body, which they pulled ashore.  The deceased, who appeared to be about thirty years of age, had apparently been a sailor.  Dr. NATHAN was of opinion that death was the result of suffocation by drowning.  Verdict – Found drowned.
Another inquest was held on the same day, and at the same place, on view of the body of a Chinaman, name unknown, then lying in the Infirmary.  Captain MARSHALL, of the Spartan, deposed that the deceased was one of the Chinese immigrants conveyed some time since to this port by the Spartan, from Amoy; deceased and another Chinaman were all that remained on board of the batch; there are at present no hands on board the Spartan; and on Tuesday night about nine o’clock, on returning on board the vessel, he found the remaining Chinaman crying, and on enquiring the cause he was given to understand that the deceased had fallen overboard; the deceased and his companion appeared to be at all times on good terms.  The body was subsequently picked up by GEORGE BARNETT, a boatman belonging to one of the pilot boats.  Dr. NATHAN deposed to having examined the body; he found a small portion of the scalp gone, which might have been eaten away by fishes; death was apparently the result of drowning.  Verdict – Accidental drowning.  Empire, Aug. 9
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/952, 17/08/1853

MANSLAUGHTER.  -  GEORGE EDWARD LANGFORD [Chief Officer of the Tory barque]  and EDWARD BARKER [Captain] were indicted for killing and slaying STEPHEN  TAYLOR, [a child] at Long Beach, on the 15th July, 1853.

Shipwreck, 3 columns.
The jury retired at twenty minutes past eight o’clock, and returned at a quarter to nine o’clock with a verdict of guilty against Barker, and not guilty as against Langford; adding that they considered the death the natural result of the wreck of the ship.  Captain Langford was then discharged, and Barker remanded for sentence.
SENTENCE.

EDWARD BARKER, convicted on Monday of manslaughter, was sentenced to seven years’ transportation.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

ARMIDALE

SHOCKING MURDER.  -  A most cruel and outrageous murder was committed on the 8th inst., by a man named GARDINER, at the Rocky River, about half a mile from M’Crossin’s Inn, on the body of his wife, accompanied by great violence.  The report was brought to Mr. M’Crossin’s, shortly after the occurrence, by a child about five years old, who witnessed the dreadful tragedy;  and who conducted a party of people direct to the spot in the bush, where was presented to them the lifeless and mangled corpse of the poor victim.  The murderer was shortly afterwards secured, and lodged at M’Crossin’s, pending the arrival of the police from Armidale, to whom immediate information had been sent.  Dr. MARKHAM, J.P., and the chief constable, directly started for the place, when, after an examination by the Doctor, the miscreant was forwarded to Armidale, and the remains of his unfortunate wife ordered to be interred.  When captured the murdered seemed not at all disturbed by his position.  He was covered with blood, and his knife, which he brandished before the face of his captors, threatening the lives of any who should approach him, bore all the marks of having been used very recently in some bloody performance.  The appearance of the poor woman was horrifying, the body being literally covered with deep wounds, and the skull fractured by some heavy instrument.  The deed is aggravated by her being within a short time of her accouchement.  She was only about fifteen years of age; the man five or six and thirty.  He has not yet been examined for want – a great want – of a second magistrate within a distance of twenty miles.
SOUTH WAGGA WAGGA, AUG. 3.  -  In my last I referred to the death, by drowning, of a young man in the employment of Mr. CHARLES COWPER, of Wivenhoe.  I am told the unfortunate sufferer was most respectably connected.  His body has not yet been recovered, and in all probability never will.  A fatality appears to have attended Mr. Cowper’s people.  After the accident referred to above, the men passed through this township (on the way to Mr. Cowper’s establishment at Chatsbury), on Tuesday week, and in attempting to cross one of the off-shoots of the river, two of them narrowly escaped death, having  been unhorsed in the stream.  Fortunately one seized the mane, and the other the tail of a pack horse, and so were saved, the animal dragging them out with him.  The third who attempted to pass the water was drowned instantly.  The poor fellow struggled hard, but, having a top coat on, was soon overwhelmed.  His name is CORRIGAN, I am told; and he is said to have a wife and two children in or near Sydney.  His body was recovered on Saturday, and it may be gratifying to his bereaved family to know (should this meet their eye) that he was buried with all the decency circumstances admitted of.  Herald Correspondent.
ATTEMPTED SUICIDE.  -  On Friday afternoon, in consequence of information received, Sergeant KERWIN, of the Sydney Police, repaired to one of the paddocks on the Newtown road, and there found an old man named ANDREW BRANDON, bleeding profusely from a wound in his arm, and a knife lying on the ground beside him.  Kerwin took Brandon into custody for having attempted to destroy himself, and at the station house he was visited by Dr. RUTTER, police surgeon, who found on his left arm a large incised wound, laying bare the tendons, and the man himself in a very low desponding state, the burthen of his replies being that he was tired of his life.  On Saturday, Brandon was brought before the Mayor, and the foregoing circumstances given in evidence.  He was sentenced to be imprisoned for a month in default of sureties for his good behaviour.  Herald, August 2
INQUESTS.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Wellington Inn, George-street South, on view of the body of EDWARD HAYES, lying dead in the Benevolent Asylum.  It appeared from the evidence that, on Wednesday, the body was found in the water, alongside the ketch Revenge, lying in Darling Harbour, whence it was conveyed to the asylum.  THOMAS SCOTT deposed that he knew the deceased, who was a fellow lodger of his, at Farrell’s lodging house, in Sussex-street; he saw him for the last time on Tuesday evening, at which time he was a little in liquor; the deceased was about 52 years of age, and had no friends or property in the colony that witness was aware of.  Dr. RATCLIFF deposed to having viewed the body, on which he found no marks of violence; he was of opinion that death was the result of suffocation by drowning.  Verdict – accidentally drowned.  -  Another inquest was held on the same day, at the Three Tuns Tavern, King-street, on the body of GEORGE THOMPSON, lying dead in the Infirmary.  Inspector HOLMES, of the police, deposed that he knew the deceased for the last six years; on the 2nd instant, he (the inspector) was in Pitt-street, when he saw a crowd collected in the street, and on going to see what was the matter, he found the deceased lying on the ground, with a cut on his temple; a baker’s cart was standing by, and the bystanders informed him that deceased had received the injury by falling under the wheel of the cart as it was passing; he had deceased conveyed to the infirmary, and was disposed to take the driver of the cart, whose name is JOSEPH BENNETT, into custody, until several bystanders assured him he was blameless.  Dr. M’EWAN deposed to deceased having been received into the infirmary on the evening of the day mentioned; he had a lacerated wound on the temple, two or three inches in length, which penetrated to the bone; and of this wound he died on the 10th instant.  Verdict – Died from the effects of injury accidentally received.  Empire, Aug. 13
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/953, 20/8/1853

DISAPPEARANCE OF MR. NEVILLE.---Intelligence reached Sydney on Monday, by a private letter from Bathurst, Friday, August 12, that the body of Mr. Neville had been found in the bush, with every indication of his having been thrown from his horse, and killed.  There was but one wound, and that was in the forehead, and had every appearance of being caused by a fall.  It has proved a melancholy satisfaction to his numerous friends in that district to have his mysterious disappearance accounted for.  Empire, Aug. 17
MURDER AND ROBBERY.  -  The murder and robbery of a German woman, at Billa Billa, that station of Mr. HENRY EUSTON, district of Warialda, is reported in the last Hue and Cry of the Inspector General of Police.  The suspected murderer is a civilised young aboriginal, named SHIPPY or SHEEPY, eighteen years old, well known in that neighbourhood as a stockman; who the day previous to the murder stole a double barrelled gun from Mr. Cory’s station, 18 miles off.  The unfortunate woman appears to have been killed at her hut, in her husband’s absence, by repeated blows on the head from a tomahawk.
SUSPICIOUS DISAPPEARANCE.  -  The mysterious disappearance of Mr. GRANGER, of Toloon, Castlereagh River, district of Dubbo, is reported in the last Hue and Cry issued by the Inspector General of Police; and also the simultaneous absconding of his six Chinese shepherds, the only servants on the station.  Their names are TSIN LING, TAH SIE, HING TIEK, LY SIEK, LIEN HOIE, and LY LAO; and they were last seen at Mr. Walker’s station, Gunning Gunning.
MURDER.  -  A young man named MAHONY, apparently a seaman, was yesterday brought before the Mayor, charged with murder.  The apprehending constable deposed that about two in the morning, in consequence of information that one QUIN had been stabbed in an affray on the Queen’s Wharf, he proceeded thither; he there learned that Quin was dead, and that his body had been removed to the dead-house of the Infirmary; a waterman named SPARKES, and another, said that they saw the whole affair, and offered to accompany him in search of the man who had perpetrated the deed; he accepted their offer, and after considerable search they found the prisoner lying against a wall, near Campbell’s Wharf, and a knife (produced) on which were marks of blood lying under him; prisoner was very drunk, and could say nothing to the charge.  Mahony said that he was very drunk on Tuesday evening, and had no recollection whatever of anything that had occurred; he found however that he was scarcely able to walk in consequence of a wound he had somehow received in his thigh.  The Mayor remanded the prisoner to the Coroner’s jurisdiction.  Herald, Aug. 18

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/954, 24/08/1853

ATTEMPTED SUICIDE.---On Monday Peter Nailer was brought before the bench, charged with attempted suicide by throwing himself into the river.  It appeared that he was not in a sound state of mind, and he was remanded to the gaol for eight days.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

ARMIDALE

THE RECENT MURDER.  -  The murderer GARDINER was examined on Monday, and adjourned till Tuesday, in consequence of the absence of the most material witness – the child.  The evidence given by all the witnesses was most conclusive, and he was then committed to take his trial at the next Sydney Assizes.  Too much praise cannot be awarded to Mr. M’CROSSIN, for his promptitude in securing the prisoner.  He in the first place sent for the gold police, two men stationed at Rocky diggings, but could get no assistance; he was therefore compelled to act as lock-up keeper in his own house, until relieved by the Armidale police.  The necessity of increasing the force at the Rocky is quite evident.  Here are two men, one of whom must almost constantly be employed in looking after the domestic duties of the tent, and cannot possibly leave his department, even in a case of murder.  Gardiner was forwarded downwards this morning.  Armidale, August 17, 1853.
INQUESTS.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday before the Coroner, at the Land We Live Inn, Lower George-street, on view of the body of WILLIAM PETTITT.  THOMAS HINNLEY, a drayman, deposed that he had known the deceased, who was also a drayman, for some time.  Between three and four o’clock on Friday evening, deceased loaded his dray with sugar at the Queen’s Wharf; he led the horse up the hill to George-street; on coming to the top of the street, the horse backed for several yards, and throwing himself on one side, jammed the deceased between the shaft of the dray, and a post on the wharf.  Deceased pushed the horse back, but immediately began to sink gradually on the ground; witness then jumping off his own dray seized the deceased in his arms, who, on being asked where he was hurt, exclaimed, “Oh, my side! my side!”  He was taken into the [???] and died half an hour afterwards.  Dr. M’KELLAR deposed to having been called to the assistance of the deceased, immediately after the occurrence; he found him breathing heavily, and completely insensible.  On applying his ear[?] to the chest of the deceased, he heard the gurgling of blood, which he believed was caused by the bursting of a blood vessel, in the vicinity of the heart; deceased breather his last in about half an hour after witness first saw him, there being every appearance that death resulted from internal haemorrhage.  Verdict – Accidental death.  -  Another inquest was held on the same day at the Gaol, Darlinghurst, on view of the body of ELIZA JOHNSON.  It appeared that the deceased was the infant child of an unfortunate woman who was imprisoned some time since under sentence of three months’ confinement, this being the fourth of fifth time she has been convicted under the several charges of drunkenness, disorderly conduct, and neglect of the deceased infant.  When last received into the Gaol, the child did not appear in such good health as formerly, and for a week previous to its death had been in the hospital of the Gaol, where it died between eight and nine o’clock on the morning of the 18th instant.  Dr. WEST deposed to having examined the deceased infant, who was found to have died from water on the brain.  Exposure to the cold was calculated to being on disease of the bowels, and water on the brain might result as a secondary consequence.  The mother at all times appeared attached to the deceased.  Verdict – died from natural causes.  Empire, August 22
MURDER.  -  An inquest was held on Thursday, at the Three Tuns Tavern, King-street, on view of the body of THOMAS QUINN, who had been stabbed, at the Queen;s Wharf, on the previous day.  DAVID MAHONY, a seafaring man, appeared in custody.   CHARLES W. WOOD, a licensed waterman, deposed that he had known the deceased, who worked as a labourer on the wharves, for three years; saw the deceased and the prisoner Mahony, about ten o’clock, at the Queen’s Wharf; prisoner and deceased, being then intoxicated, began to quarrel about their countries, and afterwards began fighting; both parties several times fell on the ground, and witness hearing, during the scuffle, some one say that one of the parties had a knife, he ran for a policeman; on returning, he found the deceased lying dead, having been stabbed during his absence.  Constable QUINN stated that he went in pursuit of the prisoner, whom he apprehended, about two hours after the occurrence, on Campbell’s Wharf; when taken into custody, the prisoner was in a half-intoxicated state; a large knife, produced, was found on the ground where he had been lying; prisoner said he was lame, and that blood was trickling down into his boot; there was blood on his hands and boot; when told that Quinn was dead he made no reply.  JAMES SPARKS deposed that he accompanied the deceased to the Theatre, on Tuesday night, and went back with him to the Queen’s Wharf; witness, deceased, prisoner, and some other man, went to a public house where they had some drink together; they brought a bottle of spirits back to the watchman’s hut, where they commenced drinking; the prisoner, after a time, became offensive, saying that the English, Irish, and Scotch were no good, and that he was a true-born Yankee; deceased made some reply, when they both commenced fighting in the hut; they afterwards went outside, and after several rounds were fought, witness heard deceased exclaim, “Ah, a knife – I’m stabbed!” when prisoner ran away.  Witness considered both men in their senses when they commenced fighting, as they stood firmly, and neither fell unless struck by the other.  JOHN JOHNSON, a waterman, deposed to having seen the prisoner running away, after killing the man, with a large knife in his hand.  WILLIAM WHEELER, a watchman employed on one of the wharves, deposed to having seen the commencement of the fight; he did not consider either of the men tipsy. Dr. NATHAN deposed to having made a post mortem examination.  He found three wounds, one in the groin, penetrating the abdomen; one penetrating the liver; and the third in the chest, penetrating the heart, which was quite empty of blood.  The last wound was the reason of death, which must have been almost instantaneous.  The knife produced would inflict such a wound.    The prisoner said he had no recollection of what had taken place, and denied that he ever had the knife produced in his possession.  He himself, he said, must have been stabbed, as there was a wound on his thigh.  Constable QUINN, being recalled, deposed that he examined the prisoner’s person, and found a flesh wound on his thigh, about an eighth of an inch in length.  The coroner having charged the jury, they returned a verdict of wilful murder.  The prisoner, who appeared to be not much more than twenty years of age, was then committed to gaol.  Empire, Aug. 20
BATHURST CIRCUIT COURT.

The sitting of this court will commence on Monday next, before Mr. Justice Dickinson – Mr. Callaghan prosecuting for the Crown.  There are twenty-two cases for trial, viz., three of murder (one of the accused being an aboriginal native); …two of assault with intent to commit a rape; …one of indecent assault on a female child;

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/955, 27/08/1853

INQUEST.  -  On Thursday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER on the body of WILLIAM HIRST, residing near the Victoria Bridge.  It appeared from the evidence that deceased, who was formerly an apothecary in England, had resided in the colony for some time, and was in easy circumstances, but depressed in mind; on Monday evening last he was intoxicated, and on Tuesday morning early he told his brother he had taken what was in that bottle, showing an ounce bottle marked “laudanum.”  Emetics were obtained and administered, and deceased remained sleepy all day; next day he recovered somewhat, and appeared better at night, but the next morning he was taken much worse, became insensible, and died before Dr. DOUGLAS, who was sent for, could apply the stomach pump.  Both Dr. Douglas and Mr. LIPSCOMB considered that the death could not have been caused by the laudanum, if he really took it, Dr. Douglas thinking it must have been from old disease.  The jury returned a verdict of death from natural causes.
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS
SINGLETON

ATTEMPT AT MURDER.  -  On Wednesday night our township was thrown into a state of great excitement owing to a report that a man had been shot.  Upon enquiry we found that the report was indeed too true, the victim being a man named JOHN MACKIN, who was shot through the left side by a pistol loaded with buck shot, the contents of which passed right through him, fracturing the top rib and part of his shoulder bone.  The perpetrator of the deed is a man of the name of AMBROSE GRAVES, and it is reported that they had had a previous quarrel.  Mackin’s deposition was taken yesterday, and he is now in a very precarious state.  As there will be a judicial inquiry, we forbear entering into the full particulars until then.  Graves was apprehended soon after the occurrence, and is still in custody.  Singleton, Aug. 26, 1853
COONABARABRAN.  -  I am sorry to say that it is reported that Mr. R.K. GRANGER has been murdered by three of his Chinamen, and found buried in the sheep yard.  There has been some of his property found in their possession.  August 21, 1853.

SYDNEY NEWS.  THE GOLD FIELDS.

THE TURON. (From the Bathurst Free Press.)

It has seldom fallen within my province to relate incidents of cruelty and bloodshed, but from the mysterious disappearance of a Frenchman under very suspicious circumstances, I fear it will be allotted to me to remit to you the details of a cold blooded and atrocious murder.  The individual whose mysterious disappearance has created some considerable sensation at Sofala, is a Frenchman by the name of Annat Rouchannat, a native of Avergne, who has been on the Turon some time, and was of a steady, sober, and penurious disposition.  Nearly three weeks have now elapsed and nothing has been seen or heard of him.  Little doubt exists therefore as to the cause of his disappearance.  A great deal of excitement prevails on the subject.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/956, 31/08/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS.

WARIALDA.  The black fellow reported as having murdered a German woman, in the service of Mr. Easton, in the district of Darling Downs, has been captured by the native police, and is now in durance at this place.  August 21st, 1853. [see 11/950.]

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON.  -  CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held at the Queen Victoria Inn, Glennie’s Creek, before HENRY GLENNIE, Esq., Coroner, and a jury of five, touching the death of MARY TOULOUSE.  From the evidence of JOHN WILKINSON and JOHN GREEN, carriers, in the employ of Mr. WILLIAM SPOKES, it appeared that they had been camping the last fortnight near the hut of the deceased’s husband, CHARLES TOULOUSE, who was also in the employ of Mr. Spokes, as a carrier; that on Saturday last they got up from under the dray, where they slept, but did not see the deceased about, as was her usual custom (she was alone, her husband being at Singleton); about ten o’clock in the day they looked in at the window, and saw the deceased hanging by the neck, suspended to a beam in the roof by a red comforter; they got in the hut, through the window, and discovered that she was dead, and cold; she was last seen alive about twelve o’clock on the night previous; she had complained of being ill.  -  JAMES TULLOCK deposed that the deceased arrived from New England about three months back, and occupied a hut of his; that she had had an attack of illness for about three weeks; was always in a dull and desponding state, and that he heard her say that she wished she were taken out of this world; he did not consider her in a sane state of mind previous to her decease, as she was suffering from her illness – The jury returned a verdict, that the deceased, Mary Toulouse, destroyed herself while in a state of temporary insanity.  30th August, 1853.

BARWIN RIVER.  

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  A man named DAVID KETTY, a native of Wiltshire, late in the service of H. DANGAR, Esq., on the 2nd instant lost his life by drowning in the Barwin River, at Mungyena.  I have not heard any particulars in connection with the fatal circumstances.  Moree, Aug. 16, 1853

DRAYTON.

On the evening of Sunday, the 31st ultimo, a serious accident occurred where the party is employed cutting the new road over the main range.  A man named RIELLY, a stonemason, was on that day in company with the men forming the party, who, it appears, had a keg of spirits, and were drinking to excess – a practice which, I regret to say, is but too common among them, especially on the Sabbath.  Rielly got so drunk that he rolled into the fire, and was nearly burned to death.  He was brought into Drayton, and placed under the care of a surgeon; but it is feared that there is but little chance of his recovery.  It is a great pity that the men are allowed to indulge in such excesses while employed on this work; for accidents are sure to happen where such conduct is permitted.  -  I regret also to have to report another accident, of a different nature, which occurred about five miles from here, on Monday, the 1st instant.  Mr. and Mrs. SANDEMAN, with a child, were proceeding in a gig from Drayton to Mr. Sandeman’s station at Pilton, when the gig upset, and all the party sustained some in jury.  The gig passed over Mr. Sandeman’s legs, and I am informed that Mrs. Sandeman was so injured that she still lies seriously ill.  I trust, however, soon to hear that the effects of the accident have passed away.  Providentially, no limbs were broken.  Moreton Bay Courier, Aug. 13

INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held yesterday, before the Coroner, at the Wellington Inn, Parramatta-street, on view of the body of JANE ROBINSON.  It appeared from the evidence, that the deceased, who resided in the same house as a man named BOYLE, at Cook’s River, retired to rest on a sofa in the kitchen, on the day previous to the inquest; Boyle was sleeping in another room.  In a short time the latter was awoke by a neighbour calling to him, Jane was burning to death.  On proceeding to the kitchen where the female slept, he found her enveloped in flames.  It appeared that the woman had been drinking during the evening.  Dr. NORRIS deposed to having viewed the body, on which he found injuries produced by the burning, sufficient to cause death.  Verdict – Accidental burning.

TRAGICAL EFFECTS OF JEALOUSY.  -  On Thursday morning, about 4 a.m., a young man named [PATRICK] KENNY, the brother of Kenny, alias the Eel, the well-known prize-fighter, who had been spending the night at a wedding party, committed suicide by drowning himself in Darling Harbour, close to Barker’s Mills.  The motive ascribed for the fearful deed was jealousy of some young girl who was present at the wedding festivities.  His friends have been making every search for his body for the last two days, both by dragging, and also by firing cannon repeatedly over the spot where he is supposed to have sunk; but their efforts have hitherto proved unavailing.  Englishman, Aug. 27

ATTEMPTED SUICIDE.  -  A man named MONIGHAN, residing in York-street, attempted to put a period to his existence by shooting himself.  He was soon afterwards taken into custody by the police, and will be brought before the bench this morning.  We are informed that he inflicted but a slight wound upon his head, - that there is no apprehension of danger.  The cause of the rash act we have not heard.  Herald, Aug. 27

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/957, 03/09/1853

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON.  -  DEATH OF THE MAN THAT WAS SHOT LAST WEEK.  -  We regret that we have to record the death of the poor man, JOHN MACKIN, who was shot last week by AMBROSE GRAVES, his decease having taken place last night.  A post mortem examination of the body will be held this day; after which an inquest will be held.  September 2nd, 1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  Several inquests have been held this week which have not yet been reported in the papers.  In the absence of other matter, and as possibly they may be considered interesting, the following are the particulars of some:-  The first was held on Tuesday, at Mr. Driver’s Three Tuns Tavern, King-street, JAMES MILLER being in custody, touching the death of DAVID WADE, whose body was viewed by the jury at the Infirmary on the 23rd July.  STEPHEN ROOTS deposed that prisoner and the deceased were mates in the service of Mr. MASTERS, at Luddenham, twelve miles from Penrith, as splitters, and lived together in a hut situated about a dozen rods from Mr. Master’s house; on last Sunday three weeks witness was at Luddenham, and heard some one ask for Davy (deceased); the inquiry was answered by prisoner, who said, “he’s in the hut – I’ll burn the -----------;”  prisoner then went away alone; witness was taking dinner, when in consequence of information brought by some children, he jumped up and proceeded to the hut; found deceased lying outside the hut, his clothes burning, and the prisoner walking away with a can as if to fetch water; witness cut off deceased’s clothes to prevent further mischief, and found him much burnt in various parts of the body; on going into the hut there was not much fire in the hearth, but the ashes look as if some one had been upon them; prisoner returned with the can, but without water; witness accused him of having burnt Davy, to which he replied that he had – adding that they all wanted burning; afterwards he made the same admission to some neighbours who gathered about the place, but in a jocular way; deceased appeared to be very drunk, and prisoner had the appearance of having been drinking; Dr. CLARKE desired witness and another man to take custody of Miller (who however made his escape) until he could send a constable; deceased was then brought down to the Sydney Infirmary, where he was attended by Dr. M’EWAN, until his death.  On the 18th ultimo, four days before Wade’s decease, his dying declaration was taken at the Infirmary by Mr. M’LERIE.  It was to the effect that on the 7th ultimo he and Miller were drinking and quarrelling; all he knew was that he lay down beside the fire in the hut, and that GEORGE MASTERS pulled him off the fire; how he came on the fire he could not tell.  He was then perfectly sensible, and remained so until lockjaw ensued.  Dr. M’Ewan deposed that deceased was attended by him from the period of his admission into the Infirmary until his death; lockjaw, produced by extensive and severe burning, was the cause of death.  The jury found a verdict of wilful murder against John Miller.
   Another was held on the body of PATRICK KENNY, aged 24.  On last Thursday morning, between the hours of two and three, returning home from a party, he took it into his head to jump into the water of Darling Harbour from the wharf at the foot of Liverpool-street, and returning to shore, swam out again across the bay; when about half way across he cried out, but there was no one near who could render any assistance.  His body was not found until Sunday afternoon, when it was taken out of the water by JAMES GLEESON.  It did not transpire that deceased was intoxicated, and the only reason presumed for the foolish freak was that he wished to alarm the females of the company.  Verdict – accidental drowning.
   An inquest was held at Mr. Broughton’s, the Black Horse Tavern, Kent-street, on the body of CHARLES WILLIAMS, a Swede, aged about 45.  From the evidence of a person named MOORE, with whom deceased had for some time lodged, it appeared that on Monday evening he retired to bed in his usual health, but about an hour afterwards Moore was alarmed by his groaning; proceeding to his room, Moore found him apparently in a dying state, a frothy substance exuding from his mouth and nostrils; he instantly despatched a messenger in search of medical aid; he called on several, some of whom were not at home, and others declined to attend; the police were then informed of the circumstance, and Constable HARRIS succeeded in procuring the attendance of Dr. SILVER, but the unfortunate man had ceased to breathe ere he arrived.  Dr. Silver, having made a post mortem examination, deposed that he found disease of the heart sufficient to account for the suddenness of decease.  Verdict, death by natural causes.
   And on Wednesday an inquest was held at Mr. Crane’s public-house, the Sir Maurice O’Connell, Riley-street, on view of the body of GEORGE M’KENZIE, aged 49.  It appeared that about Christmas last deceased had been a cripple, and unable to work at his trade, but otherwise enjoyed good health, and did not manifest any depression of spirits; on Tuesday, however, some old acquaintances called to see him, expressed their sympathy, and spoke of an intention to institute a subscription for his benefit; he was then much affected, and shed tears, but soon apparently recovered his equanimity; about nine o’clock in the evening Mrs. M’Kenzie went up stairs to put the younger children to bed, and was absent about a quarter of an hour; on returning, she found the door of the room shut in which she left her husband, and on opening it was horrified by seeing him suspended by a rope to an iron in the wall; she of course made an alarm, a neighbour came in and took down the body, and a medical man was sent for, who was in immediate attendance, but the vital spark had flown – the unfortunate man was quite dead, and must have been dead when first discovered by his wife.  The jury found that George M’Kenzie put a period to his existence while labouring under temporary insanity.  The widow has a family of eight children dependent on her unaided exertions for a maintenance.
SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.  -  The Elora reports having lost her boatswain, named DUNCAN BELL, overboard, in a gale of wind, in getting the spanker-boom amidships.  This was in the middle-watch, and the night being very dark, nothing could be seen of the unfortunate man.  The vessel was rounded to, but finding that no boat could possibly live in the water, and the gale increasing, the ship was kept on her way.  Mr. Bell was a native of Port Glasgow, and only 19 years of age.

THE GOLD FIELDS

DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  We regret to learn that JAMES MARTIN, better known as “Jimmy the Jockey,” was drowned in the Queanbeyan River, in attempting to cross it in a gig with Mr. STANTON, of Maneroo.  Mr. Stanton was saved, but his pilot was lost.  The body of the unfortunate man was found twelve days after the event.  Goulburn Herald, Aug. 27
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DEATH.  -  In the Mercury of the 3rd August we mentioned that the operation of cutting off the leg of an old man, THOMAS HOLDEN, aged 84 years, had been performed in the Maitland Hospital, he having met with a severe accident; and that notwithstanding his great age he appeared to be going on very favourably.  The old man appeared to do well for some weeks, and the stump had healed up, but within the last week he began to sink, and gradually became weaker, and on Monday he died.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON

THE MURDER AT SINGLETON.  -  On Friday afternoon a coroner’s inquest was held at Mr. NATHAN JOSEPH’S, the Golden Fleece Inn, by HENRY GLENNIE, Esq., coroner, and a jury of twelve, touching the death of JOHN MAKIN, then lying dead.
   The prisoner AMBROSE GRAVES was present during the inquest, handcuffed to a constable.  He is a fine stout looking man, of rather a mild aspect, and lately received a ticket of leave for this district, having served a colonial sentence at Cockatoo Island.  He did not appear to be much moved.

   The first witness called was MARGARET MAKIN, who deposed that she was the wife of the deceased; on the night of the 24th August a man came to her house and asked for her daughter ELLEN; witness asked the man if he knew her, and invited him in to see who he was, but the man refused to come in or to say who he was; witness’s husband then said, “I’ll see who he is,” and brought the light and asked the man what brought him there; witness then went in; deceased then said he would give him a hit in the head, to which the other replied, “you are not game,” when deceased struck the man; the man then said “I beg your pardon if I have offended you, but I was sent here by Jack;”  they then shook hands and parted, the man saying that he was sorry for offending deceased.  The man then went in a direction to Mr. Halstead’s; did not know the man at the time, but thought from the voice it was Mr. Halstead’s man.  About a quarter of an hour afterwards the prisoner rushed into the house, and went over to the table; witness’s husband was sitting on the sofa; prisoner had his hands down; he then asked deceased if he as the man that struck him; deceased said “yes, I am, and if you do not get out of my house I’ll hit you again;” prisoner then said “I’ll shoot you,” and presented a pistol at his breast, which witness pulled back; prisoner then pushed witness away; deceased then stood up and struck prisoner; witness afterwards heard the piece go off in the house; witness ran in, and saw that deceased was on fire at his side, and blood flowing; witness put out the fire; deceased, after being shot, tried to secure the prisoner, and a struggle ensued between them, when the prisoner struck deceased on the head with the pistol.  Witness asked deceased if he was dead; deceased replied that he was not, and there was no fear, when prisoner said, “If you’re not I’ll load the pistol, and shoot you again;” deceased then ran away.  Witness then went into Mr. Joseph’s house (a near neighbour), and afterwards gave information to Mr. HORNE, the chief constable.  While witness was there saw prisoner come up with deceased’s hat (the one produced) upon his head.  When witness came back to her house found deceased at home; he had received a wound under his left armpit, through the shoulder blade; the wound bled for here or four hours.  The deceased died on Thursday night, about eleven o’clock.  The pistol produced is like the one deceased was shot with.  Witness was present part of the time when deceased made a deposition before Mr. BROWNE; prisoner was present also.  Deceased and prisoner had not had any previous quarrel, as deceased had only returned from the diggings two days; prisoner appeared at the time quite sober; deceased was also sober.
  ELLEN GUEST, daughter of the last witness, corroborated the evidence of her mother in every point.

   GEORGE HOWELL, constable in the Patrick’s Plains police, deposed to having apprehended prisoner opposite Mr. Horne’s residence, about nine o’clock on the evening of the 24th August, owing to information he received from Mrs. Makin; after handcuffing prisoner witness searched him, and out of his right-hand pocket took the pistol produced; it was not loaded, but was on full cock; it had no cap on; the hat produced was on his head, over his own hat; prisoner when apprehended appeared to have been drinking.
   Mr.  SAMUEL HENRY HORNE identified the pistol as a Government pistol, in his charge, for Government service; about five or six weeks since witness loaded it with eight buck shot, similar to those produced, being all cast in one mould, and capped; on the evening of the 7th or 8th of August this pistol, and a pair of handcuffs, were handed over to the prisoner, the pistol loaded as described, for police purposes.  Prisoner was in the employ of Mr. L.D. HALSTEAD, who resides about 150 yards from deceased’s residence.  About nine o’clock on the evening of the 24th August, having heard that Makin had been shot, witness went and found deceased lying at Mr. Joseph’s, and helped him home, he being very weak; upon examining the premises found eight shot holes at the corner of the room; witness picked up two buck shot of the same description that he loaded the pistol with; the wadding also was the same; there was blood on the pistol, but there was not when witness gave the prisoner the pistol.  The reason witness gave the prisoner the pistol was, that he required him to do police duty.
   The inquest then adjourned till the following morning, at ten o’clock, a medical gentleman from Maitland having been sent for to perform a post mortem examination.

   The inquest was resumed on Saturday, when Mr. FREDERICK JOSHUA BEARDMORE, surgeon, deposed that he had examined the body of John Makin internally; he found a gun shot wound under the left armpit, which had passed through the left blade bone of the shoulder; deceased had long been labouring under disease of the lungs, a portion of which adhered to the side; a part of the lungs was much diseased, being solid instead of soft and spongy.  The gun shot wound was the immediate cause of death.  The wounded part was very much decomposed.

   The coroner having carefully summed up, and read over portions of the evidence, the jury retired for a short time, when they returned with a verdict “that the deceased, John Makin, came by his death from a pistol shot wound, inflicted by the prisoner, Ambrose Graves, and that the said Ambrose Graves is guilty of wilful murder.”

  The prisoner was then committed for trial at the next Circuit Court, and the witnesses bound over to prosecute.
Wednesday, August 24

JOSEPH MORRIS was indicted for the murder of HENRY CHEESEMAN, at Flyer’s Creek, on the 8th March.  Cheeseman was overseer, and Morris a servant, in the employ of Mr. LAWSON; Cheeseman found Morris with others drinking in a hut, and it appeared he drank also himself, but ordered Morris to his station; eventually they left the hut together, Cheeseman being on horseback, and Morris, who was drunk, and angry, beating Cheeseman’s horse with a stick; they were seen to go some little distance this way, by the side of the creek, and Morris returned alone to the hut, in about a quarter of an hour.  A sudden fall of rain about the same time, rose the creek to a great height, and Cheeseman’s body was found on the following Sunday, three miles from the hut, on the bank of the creek.  He had never been seen alive again, and his horse returned without him.  Morris had let fall some drunken expressions “Oh!  I ran the b------ into the creek;” an injury on the head was deposed by a medical man to have more probably resulted from a fall than a blow; Cheeseman’s horse had frequently before returned without him, he being a bad rider.  The judge directed the jury that no case of murder was made out, and directed them to consider the evidence as on a charge of manslaughter.  The jury returned a verdict of not guilty, and Morris was discharged.

SUICIDE.  -  A gentleman of the name of Mr. JAMES BAKER, who of late resided in the Cornwallis, and is well known about Windsor, put a period to his existence on Tuesday last by blowing out his brains with a fowling-piece.  Mr. Baker, at the death of his father, came into possession of a large sum of money, and also considerable property.  Through bad management he ran through the whole of his fortune, and of late had shown symptoms of insanity.  On Tuesday last he took his gun, and went into the bush, accompanied by his wife and son.  The wife shortly returned home, and was soon followed by his son, who stated that his father had ordered him home.  Search was then made for Baker, and on Wednesday morning he was found dead, with his skull completely fractured, and his right boot off.  From appearances it is supposed that he placed the stock of the gun against a stump, the muzzle to his forehead, and pushed the trigger with his toes.  He leaves a wife and three children.  Correspondent of Bell’s Life.
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A CHILD DROWNED IN A WELL.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held at Morpeth, by Mr. PARKER, on the body of GEORGE EMANUEL SUTLIFF, a little boy nearly two years old.  It appeared from the evidence of his mother that there is a well about twenty yards from her house, the water of which is nearly on a level with the ground around; it is fenced in, but one or two of the palings are down; the little boy came home from school about mid-day on Tuesday, and she went on with her occupation of washing the floor; within a quarter of an hour from the time she last saw him she went to call him in, and saw his hat near the well, and going to pick it up, she was horrified to see him floating on the surface of the water in the well; she instantly got him out and ran to a neighbour’s house, and Dr. GETTY was sent for, but life was extinct.  No other person was about the well at the time.  The jury returned a verdict that death was caused by drowning in a well, and they added a rider that the well ought to be more securely enclosed, as another child had drowned in it before.

SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.  -  The Annette Gilbert reports having had the misfortune to lose an apprentice overboard on the 15th August last.  The boy was named ALBERT CLOTHIER, aged 16; he was a native of Bristol.  He was washed overboard by a heavy sea which struck the ship abaft, carrying away quarter boats, quarter bulwarks, and boats’ davits.  The water filled the after cabin, and set everything awash.
REMARKABLE DEATH.  -  An inquest was yesterday held at the Australian Inn, Market-street, on view of the body of MICHAEL M’GRATH, about forty years of age, by trade a wheelwright.  DOMINICK BYRNE deposed that about a quarter before midnight of Sunday he was walking homeward along Kent-street, when he observed what he took to be the figure of a female standing against the fence; he went up to see; he found it was a man with his head jammed between the paling; having lifted him up, he recognised the features at once as those of Michael M’Grath; his body was warm, but both hands and feet were cold; having called for assistance M’Grath was carried into his own house, not more than twenty yards distant; a medical man was sent for; Dr. O’BRIEN was in immediate attendance, but could do no good.  Other witnesses were called, who deposed that deceased had been in general a sober man, and had realised a little property, some uneasiness in connexion with which had lately led to occasional intemperance; on Sunday evening he had been drinking, and a friend offered to see him home, which however he would not accept.  Dr. O’Brien deposed that he was called in to see deceased, but he was quite dead; he found on each side of the neck marks such as would be produced by lateral pressure, and might have been produced in the manner described by the witnesses; death was caused by suffocation.  The jury returned a verdict of accidentally suffocated while in a state of intoxication.  Herald, Sept. 6
DEATH FROM INJURIES INFLICTED BY ANIMALS.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held by the coroner on the body of SARAH CORBETT.  It appeared from the evidence that Mrs. Corbett, who was 72 years of age, left her daughter’s residence, on the Botany Road, on Thursday evening, at sundown, to return to Camperdown, where she lived; on her way she had to pass through a paddock adjoining Mr. RAPER’S slaughter-house, between O’Connor’s town and Camperdown; in this paddock are kept a number of pigs, and two ferocious bull-dogs are kept on the premises, which can get into the paddock; and these or some other dogs had frequently attacked Mrs. Corbett’s daughter in passing through the paddock.  Mrs. Corbett, who was in liquor when she left her daughter’s residence, never reached her home, and next morning her dead body was found lying in Mr. Raper’s paddock, her neck, breast, and thigh having been greatly torn by some animals, either dogs or pigs.  The medical evidence showed that these injuries had been inflicted either before or immediately after death, and that they were sufficient to account for death.  The jury returned a verdict of died from severe injuries inflicted either by dogs or pigs.  Abridged from the Empire, Sept. 6

WILFUL MURDER.

An inquest was yesterday held at the Wellington Inn, George-street South, on view of the body of a female infant, name unknown, then lying dead at the Benevolent Asylum, which on Saturday was found in the sand, outside the new fence of the Burial ground; the body was wrapped in a shirt and a sheet, and the feet were tied together with tape; the bottom of the box in which the body was was marked “R. and J. Wilson, Dublin, 9 W. 21.”  Dr. NORRIE having examined the body, deposed that in his opinion the child had been born alive, and that death was caused by strangulation.  The jury found a verdict of wilful murder against some person or persons unknown.  Herald, Sept. 8
…SHOCKING AFFRAY, which resulted in the death of GEORGE DAVIS, the constable of the village of Foy, about three miles from Ross; inquest; six charged with wilful murder.  Bell’s Messenger, June 13
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A GIRL BURNT TO DEATH.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Glenarvon, on the body of ANNE DUNN, aged seventeen years.  It appeared from the evidence of her father, JOHN DUNN, who is a small farmer, and a married woman whom deceased told how she was injured, that Dunn, on Wednesday afternoon, returned home (Glenarvon) from Maitland; in a few minutes his daughter went to make some tea for him, the kettle being boiling on the fire, and somehow in stooping and rising the back part of her clothes caught fire; smelling something burning she looked behind her and saw her clothes blazing up; she ran screaming to her father, who was just outside the door, and he instantly tore off all the clothes he could, and his ploughman running up tore off the remainder, the poor girl’s back clothes being completely burnt off from her stockings to her bonnet.  A medical man was instantly sent for, and neighbours came to render assistance; but the injuries were fatally severe, and the poor girl died on Friday.  The jury returned a verdict of death by burning.

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A young man named [HERMAN] MILLER, one of a party of pleasure on the water yesterday, in a sudden squall, fell overboard with the boat’s anchor, sank immediately, and has not since been recovered.

SUICIDE IN PARRAMATTA GAOL.  -  The Parramatta Correspondent of the Herald reports an inquest held in the Parramatta gaol, on Friday, 2nd September, on the body of RACHEL STANLEY, a prisoner, who had been found dead, hanging by a handkerchief to a crook inside her cell door, that morning.  It appeared that the deceased, who was about forty years old, and had been sentenced at the Bathurst Circuit Court in April last, for arson, to seven years’ hard labour, had frequently expressed great concern at the length of her sentence, saying she would as soon be dead as serve so long a sentence; in other respects she was in good health, and appeared as usual in the evening of the 1st September, when she was locked into her cell, which she occupied alone.  The jury returned a verdict that Rachel Stanley did unlawfully, feloniously, and of malice aforethought, kill and murder herself.  The corpse was interred that night, after nine o’clock, without burial service.

GOULBURN CIRCUIT COURT.

Tuesday, Sept. 6

JOHN M’SPADDEN was indicted for the murder of JAMES KIRWAN, at Cooma, on the 8th October, 1852.  The prisoner, who was described by all the witnesses as a quiet inoffensive man, was in the employ of Mr. Kirwan as gardener and ostler, his wife and children living in a hut on the premises; on that day some sudden determination to murder somebody seems to have seized prisoner, as he addressed successively two guests of the house who were leaving, as “rogues,” and fired a pistol at each, and then on Mr. Kirwan’s asking him what he was quarrelling for he fired a third pistol at Mr. Kirwan; neither of these shots appears to have done injury; prisoner ran to his hut, Mr. Kirwan went after him, and in less than three minutes the report of a gun was heard, prisoner was seen in the hut with a gun in his hand, and on persons hurrying up and forcing open the door Mr. Kirwan was found lying dead on the floor, having been killed by a gunshot wound on the right side.  Prisoner after loaded his gun again, threatening to shoot whoever came near him, and he then took to the mountains, and afterwards accepted employment at a distance, nor was he apprehended till he gave himself up.  The defence set up was that the discharge of the gun was accidental.  The jury returned a verdict of guilty, and the prisoner was sentenced to death.
JOHN HASSETT was indicted for the murder of JAMES LLOYD, at Yass, on the 18th July, 1853.  Lloyd’s dray was stopping near Mr. Hart’s inn, and within a short time after Lloyd left the inn to go out to sleep under his dray, Hassett going out at the same time, two constables coming up saw Hassett stooping over Lloyd’s body, and on examining Lloyd he was found greatly injured by blows about the head, apparently from a broken paling lying by, and he died in a few minutes.  No one had heard quarrelling except a carrier who heard two men quarrelling, and one saying feebly “Don’t kick me any more.”  Guilty of manslaughter; fifteen years on the roads.

MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On Saturday afternoon, CHARLES, the second son of Mr. Alderman ALLEN, was accidentally killed by the fall of a tree, at Mulgoa, where he was paying a visit to a friend.  The deceased, a fine intelligent youth, was one of the students at the University.  Herald, Sept. 12
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FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Golden Lion, East Maitland, on the body of JOHN WILSON.  It appeared from the evidence that Wilson was employed by Mr. PATRICK WELSH, of Louth Park, to drive a coal team between Four Mile Creek and Morpeth; on Tuesday, about noon, three of Mr. Welsh’s laden teams were on their way to Morpeth, the first driven by JOHN ROACH, the second by Wilson, and the third by JOHN WELSH, Mr. Welsh’s son.  The teams were some 200 or 300 yards apart from each other, and when last seen in health, Wilson was seated on the front of his dray; this was about half a mile from East Maitland, on the bush road; when next seen by John Welsh, whose dray overtook him, Wilson had been fatally injured by his dray wheel going over him, he having been apparently jerked off by the wheel going into a hole.  Welsh found him on his hands and knees in the road, trying in vain to get up; Welsh cooeyed to Roach, who came back, and they placed poor Wilson under a tree, Roach remaining with him while Welsh rode in for Dr. WILTON.   Before Dr. Wilton could reach the spot, however, Wilson died, the wheel having broken several ribs, with other injuries.  The jury returned a verdict of died from his dray wheel passing over him.
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS
COOLAH

THE MURDER OF MR. GRANGER.  -  I enclose you a memorandum of the particulars connected with the discovery of the murder of Mr. Granger, of Tooloon.  The chief constable and his specials deserve the greatest praise for their exertions in tracing the matter up.  They leave this place to morrow for Dubbo, with the last two Chinamen.

   On the 31st July information was received at Dubbo, that Mr. RICHARD KEATE GRANGER, of Tooloon, was missing from his station since the 25th July.  The chief constable started with Constable RICHARDSON, for Tooloon, on the 1st August, where they arrived on the 3rd; they commenced searching for the body, and continued it for four days.  There was a large dam in front of Mr. Granger’s hut, about 20 yards off, and Mr. Granger could be tracked along the edge of the dam for about 40 yards, but he could not be traced back to the hut.
   On the 7th August the chief and the other constable started for the Warrumbungle Mountains, in pursuit of Mr. Granger’s Chinese servants, who had bolted.  They received information that three of them had been seen between Tundaban and Willumberrywang, but the Chinese, who are very numerous in that locality, concealed them in the mountains.

   On the 14th August, the chief constable apprehended two of them at Bollahr, one named SIN SIN at the head station, and the other LY SIE at a station about two miles off.  In the hut where Ly Sie was apprehended, was found a watch belonging to Mr. Granger, which had been given by another of Mr. Granger’s servants to a Chinaman, for a damper, but he had left that locality.  Sin Sin and Ly Sie made a voluntary statement, through an interpreter, that HIN TIE cut Mr. Granger’s throat, whilst TAH SIE and TSIN TSOON held him, and that they had buried him in a sheep yard at Tooloon.

   On the 18th August, Lin Sin and Ly Sie were taken to Tooloon, and they pointed out where Mr. Granger was buried in one of the sheep yards, with his throat cut, and his head almost severed from his body.  After they murdered him they wrapped a cloth round his throat, and buttoned his monkey jacket (which he had on at the time) over his breast; they then placed him in a hole with all his clothes on, except his hat, which has not been found, his face downwards, and underneath his face they placed a puppy.  The hole was just wide enough to receive the body.  They made a ledge at the head and foot of the body, and placed two pieces of wood, intended for a hand-barrow, over him, resting them on the ledge at the head and foot.  They then put earth at the top of the wood, and rammed it well down, and then sheep dung on top of the earth.  They then turned the sheep into the yard, and removed the superfluous earth, which gave all the yard the same appearance, and level.
   Another of the Chinese servants was apprehended by the chief constable, at Camilees, in the Liverpool Plains district, on the 5th September, and a fourth at Toorawundi, in this district, on the 11th September.  There are two still at large.  Coolah, 12th Sept., 1853

ARMIDALE

(From the Empire, Sept. 13)

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  An accident of a fatal result happened at a station on the Bundarra, a short time ago.  The owner, in attempting to shoot a bullock in the stock-yard, by some error of aim missed his mark, and the ball pursuing its deadly course, struck a man at the distance of 100 yards, in so mortal a place that he died shortly after.  We may call it accident, chance, ill-luck, fate, misfortune, or any other term, but this adds another incident to the chapter, putting us in mind how many ways men may meet their deaths.  It is miraculous that more men have not been shot in this way.

SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.

The steamer Unicorn left this port on Saturday last, with 50 passengers, bound to Melbourne.  Upon reaching as far as 40 miles S.W. of Cape Howe, a terrific gale sprung up from S.S.W., which continued with unabated fury all Saturday night, Sunday, and Monday morning.  During the gale she made a great quantity of water, rendering it necessary to be incessantly working the pumps, at which the passengers took regular turns.  The principal leak was found to be in the starboard sponson beam, and Captain LAPIDGE finding it unsafe to proceed on the passage to Melbourne, deemed it most prudent to return to Sydney.  It is to be regretted that an accident of a fatal nature occurred during the gale.  The carpenter, whose name was DANIEL CORBETT, a native of Inverness, went down into the engine room to examine the larboard main pump, which every now and then became choked, and in rising his head it came in contact with the side lever, crushing the poor man’s skull completely flat, between the lever and the ship’s side, killing him instantaneously.  The body is still on board awaiting a coroner’s inquest.
ADVERTISEMENT.
FEMALE BURNED TO DEATH AT BOLWARRA.  [“the young woman so severely burned last week”] By F.J. BEARDMORE with advice on how to deal with clothes fires.
MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On Sunday morning several gentlemen went on a pleasure excursion in the harbour, in the sailing yacht Arab; amongst the number was a Mr. HERMAN MILLER, a young German gentleman, who arrived in the colony in the Peter Godeffroy, in the month of October last.  About three o’clock in the afternoon, the weather became very squally, and the party endeavoured to return home, to Woolloomooloo Bay, but while between Bradley’s Head and Shark Island, the anchor slipped from the deck into the water, and Mr. Miller having seized the rope attached to it, in a sudden lurch of the vessel was drawn overboard, and from the state of the weather before assistance could be rendered, had disappeared.  The unfortunate gentleman was in the establishment of Messrs. Haege and Prell; and both by his employers and a very large circle of acquaintances, both of his own countryman and colonists, was esteemed and respected for his amiable disposition and sterling worth.  Although diligent search has been made for the body it has not yet been found.  Some few months ago a fellow-passenger of the deceased, a Mr. G. FULDA, also a young German gentleman of much intelligence and respectability, met a similar calamitous fate.  Herald, Sept. 13

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On yesterday se’nnight, a bricklayer named JOHN BRYANT a native of the colony, while employed at Mr. Topham’s public house in Grafton-street, fell down a flight of very steep stairs, and was so much injured in the spine that he died on the following day.  An inquest was held on the body on Sunday, at which a verdict of accidental death was recorded.  Goulburn herald, Sept. 10

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/962, 21/09/1853

DISAPPEARANCE OF A WOMAN, AND DISCOVERY OF HER DEAD BODY.
For some weeks past a woman named MARY ANNE RICHARDSON, the wife of a tailor formerly living in Maitland, but who has been separated from her husband for some years, has been missing.  She has latterly been living with a collier named HENRY FARMER, near Four Mile Creek, but in consequence of rumours that she had been seen in Maitland since she was first missed, suspicion was not excited.  On Monday farmer himself informed the police that her dead body had been found, having been seen floating on the water at the bottom of an old coal pit at Four Mile Creek.  The pit, which is some thirty or forty feet deep, has been abandoned so long that the ground about its mouth is insecure, and so great a quantity of foul air has accumulated in it, that a man who on Monday attempted to bring the body up was but just drawn up again in time to escape death himself.  At two o’clock yesterday afternoon we were told the body had not yet been got up, and doubtless it would be got up in the course of the afternoon.  Farmer is in custody, awaiting the result of the inquest.
WELLINGROVE.
On the 25th and 26th ultimo, an inquiry was held at Wellingrove, before P. DITMAS, Esq., J.P., respecting the death of a civilised black boy, who had been in the service of Mr. VIVERS, of King’s Plains, named CURRY, or CORRY.   It appears from the evidence adduced, that the unfortunate boy, who was killed, left the public-house in Wellingrove, on the evening of the 24th, in company with a lad named RICHARD BURKE, and a man named WILLIAM LONG.   They had proceeded about a mile along the road to Mr. Viver’s station, and called at a hut on the way; they were all mounted.  After some little delay, Burke and Long (who were intoxicated) continued their journey, but Curry remained behind.  Burke soon returned towards Wellingrove, and, on meeting Curry, some words and a scuffle ensued about a riding whip, when both fell, and Burke called for assistance, saying the black boy was biting him; another civilised black, named SANDY, pushed or kicked Curry off from Burke, who limped into the hut, and found that one of his legs was severely cut in five places below the knee; Curry then rushed at Sandy with an open knife, when the latter struck him (he says) with a stick.  Curry was subsequently found lying, at some short distance from the hut, almost insensible.  The police heard cries of murder, and on going to the place matters were found as above stated.  Curry was bleeding from the head; he spoke several times, and said he was dying – that the white fellow had done it; but he was evidently wandering in his mind.  Constable EASTAUGHLIFFE sat up with him until about two a.m., and, with some assistance, brought him to the lock-up, where he died in the morning, about seven o’clock.  It was stated in evidence that Curry was drunk; that Burke although excited by drink, could not be said to have been drunk at the time.  Curry was a very valuable servant, and is a great loss to his master.  The youth Burke will probably be disabled for life.  Wellingrove, Sept. 13, 1853
SUICIDE AT SHOALHAVEN.  

A person named THOMAS GRIFFIN, for a number of years resident at Shoalhaven, put a period to his existence last Sunday morning by cutting his throat. A few weeks ago Griffin removed to Sydney with his family, who are still residing in this city.  It appears that Griffin, who had been for some time a severe sufferer from epilepsy, felt [?] much dissatisfied with the change, and left Sydney again for Shoalhaven, by the Sarah coasting vessel.  On arrival in his old neighbourhood, he stopped at the residence of a Mr. WILLIAM ROBSON, where, on Sunday morning, he made a hearty breakfast.  Soon afterwards Griffin went into Robson’s bed-room, and, taking up a razor, he instantly cut his throat, in the presence of several persons, and almost immediately died.  Empire, Sept. 15
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MARY ANNE RICHARDSON.  -  The body of this unfortunate woman was got up out of the old coal pit, at Four Mile Creek, on Tuesday afternoon.  An inquest was commenced on the body, by Mr. PARKER, but was adjourned for further evidence.

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Tuesday last a young man named M’FADYEN was killed on the Dunmore road.  He was riding, and had got over the brow of a hill out of sight of the persons he had just left, when a cloud of dust was observed, and on parties going up he was found lying in the road on his stomach, the horse having gone on.  An inquest has been commenced on the body, but was postponed, a necessary witness being too ill to attend.

ACCIDENTAL DROWNING.  -   A seaman belonging to the coaster Lass o’ Gowrie, was drowned yesterday week at Shoalhaven.  The master of the vessel left her, as she was coming down the river, for the purpose of calling upon Mr. GLANVILE, of Bamanang, for orders, his intention being to join the vessel again as she passed that point.  As soon as he had left it, it appears that the vessel grounded on a sandbank formed in the river by the late floods, when one of the men on board took an oar to push her off, which unfortunately broke.  The man lost his balance and fell overboard, and as there was only one other hand in the vessel, and the boat was away with the captain, no assistance could be rendered till it was too late.  The body was recovered after much exertion, by some of the native blacks.  The drowned man, whose name we have not heard, had been several trips in the Lass o’ Gowrie.  Empire, Sept. 22

ATTEMPTED SUICIDE.  -  PATRICK CROWLEY, the soldier who was, in July last, committed to take his trial for the murder of Sergeant PEARSON, on Sunday last attempted to cut his throat with a piece of iron hoop.  It is very questionable whether he has not so far succeeded as to die before trial can be had.  Herald, Sept. 21
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DEATH BY BURNING.  -  On Sunday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at the Maitland Hospital, on the body of GEORGE HORTON.  From the evidence it appeared that Horton and a man named JOHN GRACE, both shoemakers, and in the employ of Mr. PRYOR, lived together in a hit, West Maitland; on the 26th July they were both drunk, as they had been for some days, and during that night Horton was dreadfully burned on one side, his own account of the occurrence afterwards being that as well as he could remember he was sitting on a log by the fire, drunk, and fell into it.  He was taken to the Hospital, and treated carefully there, but the injuries received proved fatal, and he expired on Friday last.  The jury returned a verdict of death from injuries caused by fire, deceased being intoxicated at the time.

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday, an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Mr. Cleary’s Inn, West Maitland, on the body of JOHN O’NEAL.  It appeared from the evidence that O’Neal, who was considered a good rider, was trying a mare for another man on Monday afternoon, and while in High-street was seen to strike the mare very fast with his whip; a dog ran out at the same time at the mare, and she kicked out, and turning down Bulwer-street, she galloped down as hard as she could, the dog after her; O’Neal was thrown off in Bulwer-street; no person was near at the time, but it appeared to a person some distance off, as if the mare, after he fell, ran over his body, and then galloped off, buck-jumping; several persons ran up at once, but O’Neal was dead, the base of his skull being crushed in, and a large wound being cut in his forehead.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death.
INQUESTS.  -  In addition to the inquests reported above, Mr. PARKER has been engaged with the adjourned inquests on the bodies of --------- M’FADYEN, at Dunmore, and of MAY ANN RICHARDSON, at East Maitland.

INQUESTS AT BERRIMA.  

The Berrima correspondent of the Sydney Morning Herald reports two inquests recently held at and near Berrima.  One was on the body of THOMAS BIFFAN, a settler, in comfortable circumstances, who having sent for a bottle of rum, appears to have been left by himself in his house that night, his family spending the night at a neighbour’s; in the morning early a young man called at Biffan’s hut, and was horrified to find him lying dead, burnt to death, on the floor of the hut, and parts of his clothing still on fire.  A verdict of accidentally burned to death while intoxicated was returned.

  The second inquest was on a man named GEORGE FAIRBROTHER, who it appears had been labouring under great depression of spirits for some time, and had more than twice previously attempted to destroy himself, but was prevented each time.  He was in the habit of being away from home for days together, and after such an absence recently he was found dead in a paddock, having strangled himself with a leather strap.  Verdict – that he strangled himself, while labouring under temporary insanity.

SUICIDE OF A MURDERER.  -  PATRICK CROWLEY, the soldier of the 11th regiment, who wounded himself in Darlinghurst Gaol last Sunday, while awaiting his trial for the murder of Sergeant PEARSON, breathed his last yesterday.  The medical officer of the prison considered his case hopeless from the first, in so determined a manner had he lacerated his throat.  Herald, Sept. 23  [At the subsequent inquest held on Crowley it appeared that his mind had seemed affected for some days, and that he cut his throat in a privy with a piece of hoop iron which he had been sharpening.  The jury returned a verdict that he inflicted the wound while labouring under temporary insanity.  – Another of the soldiery in confinement in the Darlinghurst prison, named  JORDAN, also expired yesterday.  Jordan, it appeared at the inquest, had never been out of bed since his reception at the gaol; he was labouring under delirium tremens when received, and gradually sunk.  The verdict was death from intemperance.]
DRAYTON.  -  Mr. St. GEORGE GORE, of Bedumba, Darling Downs, has met with a melancholy accident, breaking (fracturing) his left thigh, by a fall from his horse; this occurred on Friday or Saturday last.

MAN DROWNED.  -  The body of a man named HYLAND, commonly called “Jack Hyland,” well known in this district, was recently found drowned in a water hole at Bundanbah Creek, about two miles from this township; and it is generally supposed that the unfortunate man committed the rash act purposely, during a fit of temporary insanity, which he has been subject to since the last Ipswich races, when an ex-publican, now absent from the district, cut him severely on the head with a bottle.  Moreton Bay Courier, Sept. 10
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THE MURDER OF MARY ANNE RICHARDSON.  -  On Tuesday afternoon, the inquest on the body of MARY ANNE RICHARDSON, recently found floating in an old coal pit at Four Mile Creek, was terminated by the jury finding a verdict of wilful murder against HENRY FARMER, the man with whom she had been living.  Farmer was thereupon committed by the Coroner for trial.  Fresh evidence has however since been ascertained, and yesterday four additional witnesses were examined by Mr. PARKER, before the bench, and there still remain one or two more to be called.

THE INQUEST ON HUGH M’FADYEN.  -  This inquest has not yet terminated, having been again adjourned, till the 1st October, to allow one of the witnesses to recover sufficiently from the shock to give her evidence collectedly.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

SINGLETON

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  This morning an inquest was held before HENRY GLENNIE, Esq., coroner, and a jury of twelve, at the Rose Inn, Singleton, touching the death of PATRICK FARROLL, who was lying dead at the Hospital.  From the evidence of JOHN GREGORY and THOMAS FRANCIS DOYLE, it appeared that on Tuesday last, about four o’clock in the evening, deceased mounted his horse, at the Forbes Hotel, (where it appeared he had but one glass of ale, the landlord refusing to serve him with more, seeing he was in liquor,) and in riding past the Phoenix Steam Mill he was seen to jerk up the reins, when the horse commenced bucking, and in rearing up threw the deceased backwards to the ground, deceased falling heavily upon his head, and the horse upon him.  Deceased was then carried into the Forbes Hotel, quite insensible, and was subsequently taken to the Hospital, where he died about two o’clock yesterday.  Both witnesses stated that he was intoxicated.  Deceased was a horse-breaker, and the horse was a young one.  The jury returned a verdict that deceased came by his death by a fall from his horse, while in a state of intoxication,

TAMWORTH.  

SHOCKING AND FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  A man of the name of THOMAS ROGERS (better known by the name of “One-armed Tom”), a ration carrier in the employ of the Australian Agricultural Company, having been sent to one of the Company’s stations with hurdles, was returning home on Thursday evening, the 22nd instant, when, between Tamworth and Killala, in crossing the creek near the broken bridge, the cart upset, and the wheel or cart falling upon the deceased’s head completely smashed it.  The cart appears to have gone over twice.  The accident was not discovered till the following morning, when the deceased was removed to the Benevolent Institution.  It appears the deceased had been drinking at Tamworth, and was drunk when leaving the place, as he had to be assisted into the cart just outside the town; a keg was found in the cart with about a gallon of rum in it.  The deceased was about fifty-six years of age, and had been upwards of twenty years in the A.A. Company’s service.  The leading horse was quietly standing in the traces attached to the cart when found, but the shaft horse by some means got twisted in the shafts, with his head towards the cart, and in endeavouring to extricate himself, he dashed his brains out against the cart.  Tamworth, Sept. 27, 1853
KEMPSEY.

On the 11th instant two men proceeded from the residence of J. WARN, Esq., Steam Works, near Kempsey, to the latter place in a small boat.  After delivering a note at the residence of E.W. RUDDER, Esq., they repaired to the Bush Inn, and from thence on their way back to their employer’s, when one of them, EGAN, fell overboard, and never rose again to the surface alive.  It is supposed the unfortunate man was not perfectly sober, and that in rising to relieve his companion in rowing he rolled over into the river.  His remains were not recovered till many days afterwards, being found by some of the crew of a vessel, in a very advanced stage of decomposition.  The number of individuals who have lost their lives through intemperance on the M’Leay is truly very deplorable.  The lessons of the past all appear to be lost in the low degrading pleasures so freely indulged in by the worthless and depraved.
   On the 18th instant information was conveyed to E.W. RUDDER, Esq., J.P., that a murder had been committed of an aboriginal named RALPH.   On that gentleman proceeding to the place where the murder was committed a scene presented itself which clearly indicated a fierce and bloody encounter had taken place.  Blood stained implements of war, broken in the violence with which they had been used, strewed the ground; the grass in places was covered with blood, and where the wounded man fell the tree was much stained, and a large quantity of coagulated blood remained beneath where it had flowed from the death wound.  The dead body had been removed by the relatives to some distance, where it was found laid out and carefully enclosed in bark.  On removing it a fearful wound was found on the forehead, but the chief wounds were not fully developed till the post mortem examination took place, when three more were discovered, one of which, apparently inflicted by a battleaxe on the back of the head, was found to have penetrated to the brain.  On the following day Mr. Rudder examined several witnesses, from whose testimony it appeared to have been solely perpetrated by natives.  The brother of the deceased, who was wounded severely on the occasion, gave a distinctive account of the circumstances, from which it appears the deceased was attacked when asleep, and defended by himself and two more who were overpowered by the assailants.  This murder was consummated in the township within a very short distance of three residences.  It is to be deeply lamented that all protection is withheld from the aborigines; in consequence of the supposition that they have no knowledge of a future state, the law will not allow their evidence to be taken.  It may perhaps be denied that protection is withheld; nominally, it is not, but practically it is.  This is not all; had a white man in the present instance lost his life instead of a black, no evidence could have been taken which would be held receivable by law in any court of justice in this colony.  The natives perfectly understand that their evidence will not be received, and therefore cautiously avoid such murders in the presence of Europeans.  Kempsey, Sept. 2 4, 1853

DUNGOG

(From the Empire Correspondent)

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Sunday, the 18th instant, while three lads, named YATES, FARLEY, and BOING, were riding from Stroud to Thalaba, about two miles south of Dungog, the horse of Farley took fright and galloped through the bush, the others following at full speed.  Boing and Farley kept together for a considerable time, when the horse of Boing dashed him with all his force against a tree.  He fell, but never spoke, his companions merely hearing the fall.  Assistance was soon procured, and the body carried to the nearest hut on a shutter.  Dr. STREET, on examining the body, found several bones broken, and the skull fractured in two places.  Boing lived till 4 o’clock a.m. on Monday, after which an inquest was held before the Coroner of the district, and the jury returned a verdict of killed by accident.

ST. MARY’S.  -  An inquest was held this day, at the Fitz Roy Inn, St. Mary’s, South Creek, on view of the body of CHARLES JOHN TINDAL, Esq., barrister, and the son of the late Sir Nicholas Conyngham Tindal, Chief Justice of the Common Pleas, who had come to this colony for the benefit of his health, some few months since.  The first witness called was MARIA WHITFORD.  She stated that deceased had been staying at her father’s house for the last few days, and that she attended on him; that deceased, who was very ill, took an airing yesterday afternoon, and went to bed about nine o’clock, prior to which she saw him, and he appeared much as usual, said that he wanted nothing, but requested that she would come to him at seven o’clock in the morning to give him his medicine; that upon doing so she found that he was dead,  Mr. WILMOTTS, a medical practitioner, residing at Penrith, having been sworn, said, I attended the deceased gentleman professionally for the last ten days; he was suffering from cardial asthma; considered his case hopeless from the first; I saw him yesterday, he was very ill.  A verdict of died by the visitation of God was returned.  September 26, 1853. – Empire

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  The steamer Hawk, on her passage down from Ipswich on Tuesday, called at Mr. Lumsden’s wharf, on the Brisbane, to take in some cargo, when, as a young man employed on board was in the act of throwing out the quarter line to haul the vessel in, he slipped and fell into the river, and soon sank.  The boat was at once put out, but although every practicable effort appears to have been used, the body was not recovered until ten minutes after the accident.  All attempts to restore animation were unsuccessful, and the dead body of the unfortunate man was brought to Brisbane in the steamer.  His name was JOHN RYAN.  Moreton Bay Courier, Sept. 24
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MANSLAUGHTER BY A MIDWIFE.  -  On Monday, an inquest was held at Hinton, by Mr. PARKER, on the body of ANNE CHILDS, a married woman.  ANNE SCANNELL, a midwife, was in custody, pending the result of the investigation.  It is impossible to report the evidence in the case.  Mrs. Childs, whose husband is at the diggings, was confined on Saturday last, and was attended by Mrs. Scannell, a midwife; Mrs. Childs’ sister-in-law, and a neighbour, a widow, were also present.  It was deposed by them, and by two other married neighbours who were in the house part of the time, that Mrs. Scannell, who refused to comply with the repeated request of the deceased to send for a medical man, not only used great and unnecessary violence during the birth, but some time afterwards used most extraordinary violence to the deceased, making her scream fearfully, Mrs. Scannell acting with such violence that witnesses said she must be either intoxicated or out of her mind.  From that moment, when Mrs. Childs lost a great deal of blood, she sank visibly, and although Dr. DOUGLAS was sent for in the afternoon, she continued sinking, and died between two and three o’clock on Sunday morning.  The baby survived.  The jury returned a verdict that deceased’s death was caused by violence and neglect, and that they found the midwife, Anne Scannell, guilty of manslaughter.  Mrs. Scannell was committed for trial by the coroner, but admitted to bail.
THE INQUEST ON HUGH M’FADYEN.  -  On Saturday the adjourned inquest on the body of HUGH M’FADYEN, killed by a fall from a horse, was resumed by Mr. PARKER, at the Lamb Inn, Dunmore.  The evidence taken in this case ran to a great length, in order to inquire whether the owner of the horse, a young man named CHARLES TOMPSON, and who was in custody, was the cause of M’Fadyen’s death.  Mr. TURNER (by Mr. MULLEN) appeared for Tompson.  It was proved by all parties that Tompson and M’Fadyen were drinking together at the Lamb Inn, on the afternoon of the 27th September, and that M’Fadyen went and took Tompson’s horse from the post where he was hanging, and rode him off, for a ride; it was proved also that Tompson was a consenting party to this.  Mrs. M’Fadyen and Mrs. Brown, deceased’s wife and sister, deposed that Tompson remarked to deceased that he would bet five shillings he had a horse that no man in Dunmore would ride a mile backwards and forwards, and that some ten minutes afterwards, in spite of the entreaties of Mrs.M’Fadyen and Mrs. Brown, M’Fadyen mounted the horse and rode off.  But another witness, WALTER WEEKS, said to be present when this bet was offered, deposed that he never heard it, and that Tompson told M’Fadyen if he was not a good rider he ought not to ride the horse.  Other witnesses deposed to their sdeeing Tompson and others ride the horse, which appeared a quiet animal.  M’Fadyen, it appears, galloped the horse as hard as he could, and when out of sight of the inn, was heard by a man in the bush to shout, and was then seen to fall off on his head; and in less than half an hour afterwards he was dead.  The jury returned a verdict that deceased “was accidentally killed by falling off Charles Tompson’s horse, who wer acquit of the crime of manslaughter.”   

STRAY CHINAMAN.  -  On Friday last a Chinaman, taller than they usually are, and who gave his name as TAN TEAN, was brought before the bench, on suspicion of being a runaway.  He admitted, through a Chinese interpreter, that he was a runaway, from the service of a person named Jim, at Yass, and said he was going to Sydney.  The bench questioned him to ascertain the road he had travelled, as he had been partly apprehended on suspicion of being one of the late murdered Mr. GRANGER’S men, but nothing distinct could be got from him.  He was remanded, for inquiry to be made.  -  The inquiries that have since been made have tended to increase the suspicions against him, and he has been forwarded to Newcastle, where Mr. Granger hired his six Chinamen.  From thence he will be returned here to be further dealt with.  When before the court on Friday he seemed remarkable uneasy and restless, and on Saturday he got quite outrageous in the lockup; during Saturday night he attempted to hang himself, but chanced to step on a man who was sleeping in the same cell, when an alarm was given, and Tan Tean’s purpose frustrated.

BODY FOUND.

Yesterday morning Sergeants Newton and Harris, of the district police, found the body of a man in Johnston’s bush, Annandale, his throat cut from ear to ear, and a razor lying quite close by the body.  They removed the body to the infirmary, where it awaits an inquest.  Herald, October 1.
SYDNEY NEWS.

A man named YOUNG, lately the proprietor of a hackney-carriage, yesterday attempted to put a period to his existence by hanging himself, but was discovered by his wife before life was extinct, and, medical aid being in prompt attendance, he is now able to pursue his business.  It appears to have been caused by “the horrors,” he having given himself up to constant intemperance since the conversion of his coach and horses into cash.

THE MURDER OF MARY ANNE RICHARDSON.  

On the 21st September an inquest was commenced by Mr. PARKER, on the body of MARY ANNE RICHARDSON; and the jury having that day viewed, at Four Mile Creek, the body, the pit in which it was found, and the hut and premises where she had lived with HENRY FARMER, the inquest was adjourned till the 26th, at the Red Lion, East Maitland.  It was resumed on the 26th, and continued on the 27th, when the jury returned a verdict of wilful murder against Henry Farmer.
   The evidence taken was very lengthy, but the following is a summary of the chief particulars:-

Henry Framer is a coal miner, living in a hut near the coal works on the Four Mile Creek, and Mary Anne Richardson, a married woman described as about forty years old, lived with him.  Farmer is described as a quiet man, but Mrs. Richardson as having been a passionate woman.  Both drank to excess at times, as is common among the coal miners, and Mrs. Richardson is described as having been a woman of very loose character.  She herself told a female shipmate that Farmer used her well, but sometimes quarrelled with her, and was jealous of JAMES CLIFF when in liquor.

   On a Tuesday afternoon in August, either the 9th or 16th, (for the time was not positively fixed,) a coal miner named James Cliff, accompanied by a lad named JOHN BIVEN, was returning from East Maitland to his hut, some few hundred yards from Farmer’s, when in passing Farmer’s, Mrs. Richardson called him in, and a bottle of rum having been poured out from a keg of rum Biven was carrying for Cliff, the whole party, including JOHN SHEPLARS, a miner lodging with Farmer, and generally known as “Lankey Jack,” drank freely, except Biven.  Sheplars went to bed drunk.  Cliff got drunk and lay down, but having been roused up later in the evening to take some tea, he left for home after tea, accompanied by the boy Biven, Farmer, and Mrs. Richardson, Farmer carrying a light.  More rum was poured out and drank at Cliff’s hut, and then Farmer and Mrs. Richardson, who appeared to Biven to be on friendly terms, left Cliff’s hut for their own, Farmer carrying a light.
   A miner named JAMES LELLYOUTT lives in a hut somewhere between Cliff’s and Farmer’s, and on that evening there was in his hut a Mrs. ELLIOTT, who lives with him, and a man named SHELTON, Shelton being in liquor.  Some of these had seen the party going towards Cliff’s hut, and Shelton followed them, and had some more liquor at Cliff’s hut, but he had returned, and was standing at Lellyoutt’s door with Lellyoutt, when Farmer and Mrs. Richardson passed the hut on their return home, between eight and nine o’clock.  So far as the evidence went at the inquest, Mrs. Richardson was never seen alive after that moment by any person but Farmer.  Farmer and Mrs. Richardson were talking pretty loudly as they passed the hut, but not as if quarrelling.  Soon after Shelton and Lellyoutt went to bed.

  About three quarters of an hour after, as Mrs. Elliott was going to bed, she was startled by hearing a woman crying out sharply and quickly, “Murder, murder, murder”; the sound came from the direction of Farmer’s hut, and there was no other inhabited hut in that direction.  Mrs. Elliott aroused Lellyoutt from sleep, and he with her listened at the door for a considerable time, but they heard no further sound although the night was very still, but dark.  Shelton was so drunk that they could not awake him.

  In Farmer’s hut Lankey Jack had lain in a drunken sleep all this time, unconscious of these movements, but some time in the night he was awakened by Farmer, who said, “Come with me and fetch Mary down”; Lankey said, “Where is she?” Farmer said, “Up at James Cliff’s.”  Lankey got up, and Farmer and he went to Cliff’s hut.  As Lankey Jack deposed, they found Mrs. Richardson was not there, and they got a bottle of rum, with which they returned home, and while drinking it Farmer remarked that they had not properly searched in and under the bed at Cliff’s for the woman, on which they again started for Cliff’s hut, and were readily admitted to search the whole place, Cliff saying he had seen nothing of her since she left with Farmer.  As Biven, however, deposed, Farmer and Lankey Jack came in the middle of the night to Cliff’s hut, to ask for a bottle of rum, which by Cliff’s direction he poured out for them, and they left with it, no other conversation passing then; but just before daylight in the morning, Farmer and Lankey returned to Cliff’s hut, and Farmer said to Cliff, “Did you see anything of my woman?”  Cliff said he had not, and Lankey then searched the bedrooms.

   The next morning, Wednesday, it became generally known among the miners that the woman was missing, and Farmer and Lankey came into Maitland that day to look for her, when they both got drunk.  Different persons looked about for her in the neighbourhood, but in vain.

   About thirty-three yards from Farmer’s hut is an old coal-pit, some forty or fifty feet in depth, and having sixteen feet of water in it.  It has not been worked for several years, and though originally left covered in, the mouth of the pit has fallen in partially from the effect of rains, and this has loosened and brought down the timber covering, the slabs of which are now lying on the water in the pit.  Consequently the pit-mouth is in a very dangerous condition, and in the immediate neighbourhood of thoroughfare paths.  Cliff had not long previously saved a drunken man from falling into it.

   Cliff suspected that the woman in her drunken state might have fallen into the pit, and he deposed that he and Lankey looked into that pit on the same day that she was reported to be missing, and he was positive that there was then nothing visible in it but timber and water.  He also examined other pits, and also the creek and waterholes, but could not find any trace of the missing woman.

   Some days afterwards it was said that some of the miners had seen Mrs. Richardson drinking in Maitland, and Farmer himself spoke of hearing this, and of being told by a man named ARMITAGE, that he saw her in Maitland.  Lellyoutt, however, deposed that he heard Shelton ask Farmer if he had seen anything of the woman that was living with him, and Farmer answered No, he had not, and that she would not be seen on this earth alive any more.  Lellyoutt added that Sheltyon, who is now at Liverpool Plains, called his attention to this remarkable answer.  No other witness, however, deposed to the slightest expression or act of Farmer’s evincing any knowledge of what had really become of Mrs. Richardson.

   The rumours that reached the police were qualified by the report that the woman was seen in Maitland, but some weeks after, Mr. WOOD visited the locality in search, but could find nothing suspicious.

   Several weeks had elapsed, when, on Sunday, the 18th September, two lads, named EDMUND CLIFFORD and RICHARD ASHMORE, being out looking for a horse, noticed that the mouth of the pit looked disturbed, and thinking it possible the horse might have fallen in, Clifford looked down the pit, and called Ashmore to look.  They saw a body lying on the slabs, on the water in the pit, which they thought a human body, but two men whom they called to see, JOHN BARRY and JOHN HARRIS, thought it the body of a dog.  Clifford subsequently told his father, who intended coming in to report it to the police, but meantime Farmer himself, who had heard the report, came in and told Mr. Wood the boys had seen a body either male or female, in the pit.

   The body could not be got out on Monday, the 19th, the foul air in the pit nearly killing JOSEPH DOWSON, a miner who tried to get it up; but on Tuesday, the 20th, it was got up by Dowson, in the presence of the police, and proved to be Mrs. Richardson’s body.  A subsequent post mortem examination, made by Dr. WILTON, disclosed the fact that there were only two external injuries on the body, namely a flesh wound, of the size of a shilling, about the left eye, sinking to the bone; and a part of the left thumb missing, apparently eaten off by vermin.  The skull was not fractured, nor was there any bone broken.  The body was in an excellent state of preservation if it had been dead six weeks, the upper part discoloured, but the lower parts quite white and fresh; but Dr. Wilton thought this preservation might be owing to the gases escaping from the coal strata.  To all appearances death had been caused by suffocation, and death either by strangulation or foul air would present the appearances observed.   

********

The above is a summary of the evidence at the inquest, but additional evidence has been taken by the magistrates at the request of Mr. PARKER, when it appeared that although Mrs. WILSON, shipmate of Mrs. Richardson, came into Maitland to search for her, and could not find her, being told that she was at Hexham; Farmer was really told by Armitage, in the presence of SAMUEL SIMCOX, that he (Armitage) had seen Mrs. Richardson in Maitland, and that another man was present when this was said, JOSEPH SAYER, said he had seen her and shaken hands with her in Maitland, on hearing which Farmer said “Thank God, that has eased my mind.”  Mrs. Wilson washed some clothes for Farmer a fortnight after Mrs. Richardson was missing, and the back of his waistcoat she noticed small stains of blood, but another woman, MARY CRANFIELD, had washed for him in the interval.
SUDDEN DEATH OF A VERY OLD COLONIST.  -  On the 28th ultimo, the coroner of the city of Sydney held an inquest at Mr. Driver’s, Three Tuns Tavern, in Elizabeth-street, upon view of the body of the late Mr. JOSEPH RAPHAEL, an old respected colonist.  GEORGE WEST, Esq., M.D., stated that he was called in between seven and eight o’clock on Monday evening to visit the deceased.  He was moaning very heavily, and said he was dying.  He, nevertheless, spoke quite strongly, but upon examination, witness found that his fears would speedily be verified.  The deceased appeared to be suffering from suffocation, and his body and extremities were quite cold.  Dr. West since made a post mortem examination, and found the lungs healthy and full of air, but gorged with blood.  There was a great deal of serous effusion into the chest.  The heart and aorta were extensively diseased.  Dr. West believed that death was caused by disease of the heart.  Mr. Raphael, who had attained the advanced age of 73 years, died while Dr. West was in the room.  The jury returned a verdict – “Died from natural causes.”  Bell’s Life, Oct. 1

INQUEST.  -  Yesterday, the inquest on the body of JOHN GUTSELL, adjourned from Wednesday, was brought to a conclusion at the Digger’s Arms South Head Road.  The deceased came to his death by the upsetting of a gig, in which he was sitting in Market-street, caused by a collision with a horse and dray.  The witnesses examined yesterday were Mr. MARTYN, of Pitt-street, and a man in his employ, who was leading the horse at the time of the occurrence.  It appeared that the horse in the dray had been left with Mr. Martyn for sale, the owner telling that gentleman that the horse was broken to harness.  The horse was being tried at the time of the accident, and had become unmanageable, although he did  not run away, bringing the dray into contact with the gig, and injuring the man who was leading as well as deceased.  Verdict – died from injuries accidentally received.  The jury appended a rider to their verdict requesting the coroner to apply at the proper quarter for the enactment of a law against breaking or trying horses on public streets.  Empire, 1st October
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/967, 08/10/1853

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Aberglaslyn, on the body of SIMON KATEN.  It appeared from the evidence that Katen, a young man between sixteen and seventeen years old, residing at Aberglaslyn with DANIEL HARTIGAN, by whom he had been brought up, was in Maitland on Friday, the 30th September, with Hartigan and JOHN M’DERMOT.  They were all on horseback, and when they returned home in the evening, Katen, who was in liquor, kept showing off his mare, a spirited animals, making her prance about.  Hartigan tried to check him, and at Mr. Toby’s inn, at the entrance of the Aberglaslyn paddocks, remonstrated with him on his quarrelsome conduct.  On leaving that inn, Katen rode off homewards at full speed; Hartigan and M’Dermot followd, fearing he might meet with some accident in his drunken and excited state, and about a quarter of a mile from Mr. Toby’s they found their fears realised; Katen was lying on his back on the ground, insensible, his head bleeding from having come into violent collision with a stump.  Katen was conveyed home, and Dr. BEARDMORE sent for, but he never recovered, and on Wednesday he died.  Dr. Beardmore deposed that there was a severe contusion on the back part of the head, and that Katen died from concussion of the brain.  The jury returned a verdict that deceased died by being thrown from a horse when suffering from intoxicating liquors.

HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

MERRIWA

APPREHENSION OF THE CHINAMAN TSIN TSOON.  -  Another of the Chinamen charged with having murdered Mr. RICHARD KENTS GRANGER, of Tooloon, Castlereagh River, has been apprehended by district constable MUNRO, and constable STYGHE, of the Merriwa police.  Mr. Munro having gained information at a strange Chinaman was in the neighbourhood, he proceeded to a sheep station of Mr. J.B. Bettington’s, about 8 miles from the village, at 12 o’clock on the night of the 3rd instant, and succeeded in capturing him.  He is forwarded to be dealt with.  Merriwa, October 5, 1853.

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

This court opened on Monday, October 3, before Mr. Justice Dickinson.

DAVID MAHONEY was indicted for the wilful murder of THOMAS QUINN, at Sydney, on the 17th August.  Mahoney, Quinn, and others, were drinking together, on that night, in the waterman’s hut, at the Queen’s Wharf, when some national dispute took place, and Mahoney said he was a Yankee, and that Englishmen, Irishmen, and Scotchman, were no good; Quinn invited him to go outside and see what an Irishman could do; they went outside, and fought two or three rounds, Mahony having rather the advantage until the last round, when Quinn, who had the best, suddenly exclaimed that he was stabbed, and Mahoney ran away with a knife in his hand.  Quinn bled profusely, and died in a short time, having been stabbed in three places, one wound penetrating the heart.  Guilty of manslaughter; five years on the roads, the first two in irons.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/968, 12/10/1853

A CHILD DROWNED IN AN UNCOVERED WELL.  -  On Saturday, an inquest was held before Mr. PARKER, at the Victoria Inn, Hinton, on the body of WALTER RASH, a little boy, two years and three months old.  It appeared from the evidence, that on the property of Mr. JOHN PEARSE, at Hinton, are some wells, now uncovered, although after he bought the property he placed a locked cover on one of them; but it was subsequently broken by people coming by night for water, in dry seasons.  Near the wells live some of Mr. Pearse’s tenants and farm servants, and amongst them JOHN RASH.  On Friday, at noon, when Rash returned home for his dinner, his little boy Walter was at home, but before Rash left for work after dinner he was missing, nor could his brother find him about; as he was in the habit of wandering about the farm, nothing serious was dreaded, and Rash went to work; but at a later hour, getting uneasy from seeing that his wife was still looking about, he went home, and getting a long pole, he probed the two uncovered wells, and at the bottom of one, which contained ten feet of water, he felt the body of the poor boy.  The body in a few minutes was raised to the surface, but of course life was extinct.  The jury returned a verdict of death by drowning in a well, and requested the Coroner to ask Mr. Pearse to cover the well again forthwith, which Mr.Pearse immediately promised to do.
INQUEST.

The coroner, yesterday, held an inquest at the Cockatoo Arms, Elizabeth-street, touching the death of a man named Samuel [Staines                                              ]from the effects of injuries received while engaged in a row in the Spread Eagle public-house, corner of Elizabeth and park-streets, on Monday night last.  The inquest was adjourned until twelve o’clock on Saturday next.  Empire, Oct. 7.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/969, 15/10/1853

INQUEST.  -  Yesterday, an inquest, which on the 6th inst. was opened by the Coroner and adjourned, was resumed at the Central Police Office, on view of the body of SAMUEL STAINES, then lying dead; WILLIAM HENRY CAVE, BENJAMIN COOPER LANCASTER, and C. DOYLE being in custody.  Mr NICHOLS and Mr. SHUTTLEWORTH watched the proceedings on the part of the persons in charge.  From the evidence it appeared that all these parties, with others, were in a public-house, kept by Mr. JAMES TEARE, on Monday evening, and were playing dominoes, and on friendly terms.  Some jocular altercation taking place between Cave and a man named PREVOST, Staines, who was very tipsy, got up and said he would take Prevost’s part.  Staines and Cave then fought a little, but not in earnest, and Staines twice afterwards began fighting again with Cave, Cave evincing no desire himself to fight.  In the third fight, in which Lancaster and Doyle voluntarily acted as seconds, Staines fell from overreaching himself, and struck his head against the leg of the table.  At the request of Mr. Teare, Cave then left the house.  Staines said he was not hurt, and would fight Cave for £10 next day.  Staines went home some time after, and his manner appeared strange to his wife, but thinking he was only very tipsy, she let him lie on a sofa till he fell off, when she tried to get him upstairs to bed, but failed; Staines was again laid on the sofa, but awoke his wife some time after by falling off again, and when she came to him he appeared hurt.  She then sent for a doctor, who found him suffering from concussion of the brain.  Staines continued to get worse, and died on Wednesday morning.  The post mortem examination showed bruises and contusions on the head and other parts of the body, and effusion on the brain had followed one of the contusions.  The jury returned a verdict of death by violence, but without evidence to show who inflicted it.  The prisoners were then all discharged.  Abridged from the Herald, Oct. 13
MURDER AND ATTEMPTED SUICIDE

Intelligence has just reached Bathurst, of an atrocious murder which was committed last week, a few miles beyond Cowra.  The following particulars may be relied on, and we expect at an early period to be furnished with the result of the investigation which has been instituted.  The victim in this case is a Mrs. ATKINS, whose husband died about 15 months ago, and her murdered is a man with whom she has been cohabiting, but whose name did not transpire.  Bering possessed of considerable property, the deceased has had several suitors, and amongst the number, one whose honourable intentions led him to propose marriage.  His proposal it appears was favourably received, and the circumstance having reached the ears of her paramour, he sought an early opportunity of taking her life, which it is supposed he effected with an axe, as her head was literally dashed to pieces.  Whether fearful of the consequences of his crime, or seized with remorse, or from any other cause, he subsequently stabbed himself with a knife, and although not dead when our informant left Cowra, there was little hopes of his recovery.  Upon receipt of the news in Cowra the resident Roman Catholic clergyman, The Rev. Mr. MURPHY, and Dr. BROWN, started for the scene of the tragedy, and several of the neighbouring magistrates were holding themselves in readiness for an inquest.  As may be readily supposed, the event has caused considerable excitement on the Lachlan.  Bathurst Free Press, Oct.8

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  On Saturday an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, King and Elizabeth streets, on view of the body of ROBERT KENDALL, then lying dead at the Sydney Infirmary.  It appears from the evidence that the deceased was a labourer engaged in pressing wool and other ship’s work at the Circular Quay.  About a fortnight since, previous to the bell ringing for the men returning from breakfast, they were sky-larking in the Government shed, leaping on the bales of unpacked wool, when suddenly the deceased was accidentally struck by one of the bales, which was loosely placed.  He was much hurt, and by Dr. M’KELLAR’S orders was taken to the Infirmary.  Dr. NATHAN stated that he had attended the deceased when he was received into the Infirmary.  He was suffering from paralysis of the lower extremities, and other symptoms, the effects of an injury to the spinal column and its contents.  He died on Thursday last.  Death was the result of this injury.  Deceased had a wife and seven children.  Verdict – died from injuries accidentally received.  Herald, Oct. 10
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/970, 19/10/1853

THE SUSPECTED CHINAMAN.  -  On Friday last TAN TEAN, the Chinaman detailed in custody on suspicion of being one of the Chinamen employed by the late murdered Mr. GRANGER, of Tooloon, was discharged from custody by the bench, the enquiries made having satisfied them that he was never in Mr. Granger’s employ.
SUPREME COURT.  -  FRIDAY, OCT. 14

THE QUEEN V. BARKER

DRAYTON.  -  A report from the Lower Condamine reached Drayton on the 22nd ultimo, that Messrs. Bell’s overseer at Jimbour, a person named BOURKE, had been murdered by the blacks.  No particulars were known, but a messenger from the station rode after the postman with some letters reporting the affair.

  The aboriginal native committed by the Callandoon bench, for the murder of an unfortunate German woman, at Messrs. Easton and Robertson’s station, arrived at Drayton last week, escorted by two mounted troopers and a sergeant of the native police, who are bringing him down to Brisbane gaol.  It had been understood that this prisoner would be tried at Maitland, but this resolution seems to be changed, unless he is to be merely sent here for shipment to Sydney.
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/971, 22/10/1853

DEATH OF MR. JOHN KERRIGAN.  -  We regret to have to announce the death, from an accident, of an old resident of Maitland, Mr. JOHN KERRIGAN, formerly of the Sportsman’s Arms, and who has lately been keeping an inn at Singleton.  Mr. Kerrigan was at Tocal, Paterson River, on Wednesday, and, as we are told, mounted a young horse he was about to get from there to train, but had not been long mounted, when the horse commenced bucking, and threw him.  Whether Mr. Kerrigan was kicked by the horse as he fell, or whether he fell against a stump, does not appear to be yet clearly known here, but in some way he received a serious injury on the stomach, producing serious laceration of the internal parts.  Medical assistance was immediately sent for, both from Maitland and Paterson, and Mr. Kerrigan’s relatives were also apprised of the unfortunate occurrence.  On Thursday Mr. Kerrigan was removed into Maitland in a carriage, at his own request, and under the charge of his brother, Mr. WILLIAM KERRIGAN.  No hope had however been from the first entertained of his recovery, and he died on Thursday, about three o’clock in the afternoon, at the Seven Stars Inn.  An inquest was commenced on the body yesterday by Mr. PARKER, but was adjourned till Tuesday next, to obtain the evidence of parties present at the time of the accident.
ATROCIOUS MURDER.  -  YASS, OCTOBER 12.  -  An inquest was held this day at Kangalera, nears Yass, touching the death of a man named BARRY, a carpenter by trade.  It appeared from evidence that deceased and another man named JAMES TALBOT, a shoemaker, resided together at Mr. Besnard’s; on Monday last Talbot took his cutting knife and stabbed deceased twice in the heart, from the effects of which he immediately died.  After the body became cold, horrible to relate, he cut the belly open, and took out the kidneys of his murdered victim; he then made off to CHEW’S hut, a distance of 3 miles, when he cooked the kidneys in a frying pan, and after eating one of them said, “I am satisfied now I have eaten one of the b-------‘s kidneys.”  The man Chew inquired “Whose kidneys?” when the murdered said “Barry’s.”  He was, I am glad to inform you, immediately secured by Mr. Besnard, who was fortunately home at the time.  He was fully committed to take his trial for the wilful murder of Barry.  Correspondent of Goulburn Herald
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  One of the most melancholy accidents that it has ever been our duty to record, occurred last Wednesday morning to a boy aged nine years, son of Mr. Newman, inn-keeper, of Clinton-street, in this town.  It appears, the deceased JOHN NEWMAN, with several other boys, were proceeding to Mr. Patterson’s school on the morning of the above-named day, when they were overtaken by CHARLES PAYNE (son of the landlord of the Gold Digger’s Arms) who is another of Mr. Patterson’s scholars; shortly after joining the others, this lad dismounted, and young Newman was placed upon the horse, and the party went on towards the schoolhouse, at the old township.  When about half way across the plains, the horse started into a gallop, breaking away from the lad who held it; young Newman lost his seat, and his foot retaining its hold in the stirrup-leather, he was dragged about a hundred yards, when he became disentangled from the horse, and was picked up dead.  At the coroner’s inquest a verdict of accidental death was returned.  Goulburn Herald, 15th October

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held yesterday, at the Three Tuns Tavern, Elizabeth-street, on the body of WILLIAM WANDSWORTH, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary, when the following circumstances attending the death of the deceased were deposed to:- ROBERT H. STRANGLAN affirmed that he was second officer of the ship Walmer Castle, of which the deceased had been boatswain; on the previous morning, about seven o’clock, he saw the deceased standing on the booms which were laid alongside the long-boat, when his attention was attracted by the cook of the vessel shouting out to some person on deck; the deceased was in the act of turning round to see what was the matter, when, the booms being slippery from the wet, he fell to the deck, a distance of about eight or nine feet; when lifted up he was quite insensible, and continued so about half an hour; he then became quite conscious, and remained so until about half-past ten o’clock, when he again became unconscious, and never spoke again, and died this morning (Tuesday), about half-past nine o’clock.  JOHN T. CHAMPION, surgeon of the Walmer Castle, deposed to the injuries received by the deceased when he fell, and which ultimately were the cause of his death.  The verdict of the jury was given in accordance with the above facts.  Empire, Oct. 19

DEATH BY BURNING.  -  On Saturday last a poor old man named RICHARD WOOD, better known by the name of Dick the Splitter, was found burned to death, by a person named FITZPATRICK.  An inquest was held over his remains on Monday by Dr. BUSBY, the coroner for the district, when the following circumstances transpired.  The deceased, who was 75 years of age, pursued the vocation of splitter, and resided at Dick’s Creek, near Rodd’s new line of road.  For some time previous to his melancholy end he had been in an infirm state of health, and residing alone in a bandicoot gunyah was dependant for occasional assistance upon Fitzpatrick, who frequently visited his place and administered to his wants.  On Friday week he called and found him almost without provisions, and learnt that for some days past he had been too weak to make himself a fire.  Having lit a fire and procured a few eatables from a house three miles distant, he left him and returned on Saturday, when, to his horror, he found the poor old man lying near the smouldering remains of a fire, quite dead, the greater portion of his clothes having been burnt to ashes.  A verdict of accidental death was returned.  Bathurst Free Press, Oct. 15
AWFULLY SUDDEN DEATH.  -  A person named CLARKE left Sydney for Melbourne by the Hellespont on Tuesday afternoon.  His wife, who went to see him off, no sooner reached her home that she had a fit, which almost instantly ensued in death.  Herald, Oct. 20

BIRTH.

At her residence, High-street, West Maitland, on the 21st October, Mrs. Charles M’Neall, of a son, still-born.
RUN OVER.  -  During the forenoon of yesterday, one of those lamentable occurrences, the result of that too common and most dangerous practice, furious driving, occurred in York-street.  DANIEL BUTTERS, driver of a ginger-beer cart, while driving at a furious pace through the above street, rode over a little girl named SARAH DEVEREUX, the wheels of the vehicle passing over her body, and so severely injuring her, that Dr. NATHAN, who attended to her, entertains little jope of her recovery.  Butters was taken in charge by Inspector SINGLETON.  Empire

AN ABORIGINAL MURDERER.  -  By the steamer City of Melbourne, from Moreton Bay, yesterday, “Mickey,” an aboriginal, was brought heavily manacled in the charge of two constables, and lodged in Darlinghurst Gaol.  Mickey was a short time since put upon his trial at Brisbane, and found guilty of the murder of his master, which he committed by spearing him through the body; he was sentenced to be executed, but subsequently the sentence was commuted, and he has been sent herr to undergo the lesser punishment of seven years labour on the roads.  Empire, Oct. 18

THE LACHLAN MURDER.

We have received intelligence to the effect that JAMES M’LOUGHLAN has been fully committed to take his trial at the ensuing Circuit Court for the wilful murder of SARAH ATKINS with a smoothing iron.  The miserable man confesses to the murder, and the evidence goes to show that previous to the deed being committed he had expressed an intention of killing the deceased, the person whom she was about to be married, and every individual connected with the affair.  Although the prisoner asserted that the stab wound from which he was suffering was inflicted by his victim, the surgeon who conducted the post mortem examination gave it as his decided opinion that the wound was self-inflicted.  Bathurst Free Press

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/972, 26/10/1853

THE DEATH OF MR. KERRIGAN.  -  Yesterday the inquest touching the death of Mr. JOHN KERRIGAN was resumed by Mr. PARKER.  From the evidence of Mr. CHARLES REYNOLDS, of Tocal, and GEORGE WARD, it appeared that Mr. Kerrgan had looked out for a two-year colt of Mr. Reynolds’s to train for the next year’s races, and having also asked for a three-year old for the St. Leger, one was brought and ridden about by Ward, which had been broken in some nine months, when Mr. Kerrigan said he would like to try him himself.  Mr. Kerrigan accordingly mounted, and rode away out of sight, and when Ward went to look after him he saw the horse rider-less; mounting another horse Ward rode off to see what was the matter, and about half a miler from the house he found Mr. Kerrigan lying on his side, having been apparently thrown by the horse in shying or leaping aside from a stump.  The horse proved to have been rather freely spurred by Mr. Kerrigan.  In answer to the questions of Mr. Reynolds, Ward, and Mr. HUGH M’GOWAN (who accompanied Mr. K. to Tocal), Mr. Kerrigan gave no account of how the accident happened.  The account of the subsequent illness and death of Mr. Kerrigan we have already given.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death.
CHILD RUN OVER BY A DRAY. -  ANDREW CASEY, a drayman, was yesterday brought before the bench under the following circumstances.  A respectable looking man named WILLIAM M’PHUN deposed that he has been but a few days in the colony, and on Thursday afternoon he, accompanied by his wife and three or four children, was crossing George-street, opposite Church Hill, two of the children, aged three and five years, walking hand in hand before them; a dray was coming down Church Hill, and seeing the children walking towards it he called out to the man to stop, and to the children to come back; he did not see the man, who was on the opposite side of the dray, and near to the horse’s flanks; one of the children drew back – the other ran to get a-head, and was knocked down by the horse’s fore feet, and with the hinder kicked from the spot on which it fell, and one of the wheels passed over her thighs; but for the removal of the child by the horse’s hind feet the wheel must inevitably have passed over the child’s head and killed her upon the spot; he did not think the driver could have seen the children; but had he stopped the horse when he (M’Phun) called to him, the accident would have been prevented; he could not say that Casey heard him call.  Another witness was called, from whose evidence it appeared that Casey was on the proper side of his horse, and he believed that he could not have known of a child being in the road.  The little sufferer is attended by a medical gentleman, who considers her to be in considerable danger.  Casey was remanded until Monday, and admitted to bail.  Herald, Oct. 22
CORONER’S INQUESTS.  -  On Wednesday two inquests were held before the coroner; the first was at the Hand and Heart Tavern, Redfern, upon view of the body of CHARLES BELL.  From the evidence it appeared that the deceased, who was about thirty-one years of age, went to see the fire in George-street on the night of Monday, the 9th instant, and received some injury from one of the horses ridden by the mounted police.  Upon his return to his master’s house, he complained of great difficulty in breathing, but no danger was apprehended.  On Sunday last he died, not having received any medical treatment.  Dr. SILVER stated that he had examined the body of the deceased externally.  There were no marks of violence upon it.  He also made a post mortem examination, and on opening the chest found a partial inflammation of the coats of the stomach, the liver enlarged and discoloured, the result of inflammation, and the left [lung?] being extensively hepatized and infiltrated with purulent matter, the result of pneumonia.  These combined effects were sufficient to cause death in a week or ten days.  The right lung was perfectly healthy and in a normal state.  Verdict, died from injuries received.  -  A second inquest was held before the coroner, at the Builder’s Arms, Sussex and Liverpool streets, on view of the body of MARGARET WHITE.  From the evidence it appears that deceased, who was about 38 years of age, was suddenly taken ill on Wednesday last, and before any assistance could be rendered expired.  Dr. M’NISH stated that he had made a post mortem examination of the body, the appearances of which he described.  The cause of death was, in his opinion, disease of the heart.  Verdict, died from natural causes.  Herald, Oct. 21 
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/973, 29/10/1853

A SAILOR DROWNED. --- Last night, at half past ten, a man commonly known by the name of George, who came out as assistant steward in the Star of the East, was drowned at the Circular Wharf.  It appears he had been paid off that day, and had gone aboard for his chest, and to bid his shipmates good bye.  He had been drinking at the Circular Quay Hotel, and was somewhat elevated.  In getting from the ship’s ladder to the plank gangway, connecting it with the wharf, he slipped and fell overboard alongside the vessel.  A boat belonging to her majesty’s brig Fantome happened to be at the stairs, and one of the crew on hearing the splash in the water, jumped overboard to save the man.  After 3 or 4 minutes delay he caught him, and got him into the boat, when the body was still warm.  Under the direction of the first lieutenant, they took the body to the Circular Quay Hotel, when the landlord, Charles V. Earle, refused to take him in, saying “he had nothing to do with dead men, and they might take him elsewhere.”  About 20 minutes were consumed in endeavouring to persuade the flinty-hearted landlord to take him in, but without avail.  The body was then carried to the Infirmary, and on arriving there, the man was found to be dead.  It now awaits a coroner’s inquest.  Empire, Oct. 25.
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS
DUNGOG

SHOCKING OCCURRENCE.  -  On Friday last, as Mr. and Mrs. BARKER were crossing the street to their own house, a working bullock that had knocked up the day before, and was then being driven along, ran at Mrs. Barker without any previous notice, and knocked her down, and actually lifted her up again on the point of his horns.  Mr. Barker rushed to the rescue of his wife, and made two or three fruitless attempts before he could get her loose.  His distraction was such that he thought to cut the animal’s throat with his pocket-knife before he could get her extricated from off his horns.  At length the poor woman was taken off, and carried to her house, when it was discovered that the brute’s horn had entered her stomach, and that a good deal of her intestines were protruding.  Doctors MALLON and STREET were immediately in attendance, and under their able care I am happy to say the unfortunate woman is doing well.
SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.  -  A seaman on board the Midlothian was drowned during the voyage from Singapore, having lost his balance whilst fixing the quarter boat, and fallen over.  The ship was at once hove to, and the life buoys were thrown over, but as the poor fellow could not swim, he sank before the boat could be got near him.
DEATHS.

Died, on the 20th instant, Mr. JAMES DORAN, of Armidale, in his 41st year, deeply regretted.
THE LATE ATROCIOUS MURDER NEAR YASS.  -  Last week we furnished our readers with a brief narrative of a murder, of more than common atrocity, committed at the station of N.R. BESNARD, Esq., near Yass.  From reliable sources of information, we have gathered the following further particulars of this most horrible affair.  Talbot, the murderer, and Barry, his victim, were at the time of the commission of the offence, living together in a hut, on the station of N.R. Besnard, Esq., and, up to the time of the perpetration of the foul act, appeared to be on very friendly terms with each other.  On Monday se’nnight, while Barry was lying in the hut on his back, in a helpless state of drunkenness, Talbot stabbed him twice in the heart with a shoemaker’s knife.  It appeared from the surgeon’s evidence taken at the coroner’s enquiry, that the prisoner, after inflicting the death wound, must have left the body alone for a considerable time, indeed until it became stiff and cold; then, whilst it was in that state, he attempted to decapitate it, severing the arteries of the throat, and nearly succeeding in separating the head from the trunk.  It would appear that the inhuman wretch then cut open the body, commencing at the top of the left thigh, and cutting upwards to the right breast; that he then dragged out his victim’s entrails, and after carefully selecting the kidneys from them, flung the remainder across the room.  Having wrapped the kidneys up, he put them into his pocket, and proceeded to a hut about a mile and a half distant, occupied by a man named CHOUGH, from whom he requested the loan of a frying-pan, which being unable to obtain, he threw the kidneys from his pocket, and placed them on some hot cinders, and coolly seated himself by the fireplace until they were cooked.  In the course of about five or six minutes he took them off the fire, and eat the greater part of them; he then suddenly jumped up and shouted out, “Now I am satisfied, I have eaten the b----y b-------‘s kidneys;” on being asked what he meant, he replied coolly, “Why, Barry’s kidneys,” and then narrated what he had done.  He was secured, and committed on the coroner’s warrant to take his trial at the next Goulburn Assize Court, which will be held in February next.  The prisoner’s conduct was quite calm and collected after his apprehension and during the time he was being conveyed to gaol, at which he arrived at a late hour on Tuesday evening.  He was formerly an assigned servant of W.H. BROUGHTON, Esq.  It has been stated to us that he and Barry had been drinking for some time previous to the murder, and that when the act was committed, he was labouring under a fit of delirium tremens. We cannot credit this, as from the time he was apprehended to the present hour he has not shown the least sign of insanity.  Goulburn Herald, Oct. 22 
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/974, 02/11/1853

SYDNEY NEWS.  -  A man named FUNNELL died suddenly last night after a three weeks’ debauch.

  Between eight and nine o’clock yesterday morning an old man named DONOHUE was found dead in a water hole, at Newtown, into which he is supposed to have fallen on his way home on the previous evening.

   This morning the body of a man named HUGH GILLIGAN was found in a well, at Newtown, belonging to the Railway Company, and which must have been left uncovered and unprotected by some of the servants.

DEATH OF GEORGE KENNEDY.  -  The Herald and Empire of Friday report fully the particulars of the evidence taken at the magisterial inquiry held by the Water Police Magistrate (the Coroner being ill) into the death of GEORGE KENNEDY, assistant steward of the ship Star of the East, who was drowned on Monday night, the 22nd, at the Circular Quay.  The evidence substantiated fully the report given at the time of the accident, and of the subsequent inhuman conduct of the landlord of the Circular Quay Hotel, Mr. C.V. EARLE, in refusing to admit into his house the body of the dying (or dead) man, when taken from the water.  Mr. BRENAN having severely commented on Mr. Earle’s conduct; and intimated his intention of taking steps to see if his recognizance could not be estreated, as having been guilty of a breach of his license, recorded his opinion that deceased was accidentally drowned while in a state of intoxication.

SUPREME COURT.  -  WEDNESDAY, OCT. 26

THE QUEEN V. BARKER

The Chief Justice delivered the judgement of the court in this case, reserved by himself from the last sittings of the Maitland Circuit Court.  The prisoner, mate of the wrecked barque Tory, had been convicted of manslaughter, a child having been drowned in the landing of the passengers by a boat upsetting.  The point reserved, was whether or not this was not an injury too remote from the actual wrecking, imputed by the jury to the negligence of the prisoner, to justify the verdict.  The court held that it was not, that unless the wrecking had preceded, the upsetting of the boat and the death would not have occurred.  They therefore sustained the verdict.   

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/975, 05/11/1853

THE NORTHERN GOLD FIELDS

ACCIDENTAL DEATH.  -  A digger by the name of THOMAS WILKINSON was found drowned in a waterhole on Wednesday last.  At one period of his like Wilkinson had been a remarkable steady man, but latterly he was much addicted to drinking, which led him away into all manner of excesses.  He was returning home after one of his bacchanalian feats when he met his death as aforenamed.  His mortal remains were interred neat the Peel River on Friday last.  This sudden death from drunkenness should deter the diggers from excessive use of spirits.  We hope they will take a timely warning before it is too late.  We have frequently seen men intoxicated have narrow escapes of their lives, and we are only surprised that similar accidents which caused Wilkinson’s death are not more frequent.

MURDER BY THE BLACKS.  -  The report mentioned in our Drayton intelligence last Saturday week, respecting the murder of Mr. Bell’s overseer, named BURKE, at Jimbour, is fully confirmed.  He was murdered by the aboriginal natives, with whom he had been on terms of kindness and familiarity, but the full particulars of the case have not come to hand.  Moreton Bay Courier, Oct. 15

DEATHS FROM INTEMPERANCE.  -  This frightful vice, which slays more of our fellow creatures than the sword, pestilence, or famine, supplied the Coroner yesterday and Monday, with no less than four cases for investigation into the death of its victims.  It is curious to consider what would be the effect on the public mind were any strange nuisance or accident to inflict a similar amount of mortality on the community.  Supposing a foul drain struck four victims with mortal disease in two days, or some dilapidated building s killed two or three people on the average every week, with what energy would every member of society join to expose the crime of the negligent, and to abate the wrong.  Even in cases of attempted suicide the law interposes, and punishes the malefactor, that is supposing the suicide is stupid enough not to use poisonous alcohol to terminate his existence.  The evil has now arrived at such a height that some preventative measures seem absolutely necessary.  Empire, Nov. 2
ACCIDENT.  -  DISCHARGE.  -  ANDREW CAREY, the driver of the dray by which, about ten days since, a child was injured, almost by a miracle escaping instant death, was yesterday discharged from custody, the magistrates being of opinion that no blame whatever was attributable to him in the matter.  It was incidentally mentioned, as a rather singular circumstances, that the very child in whose person the small pox was first introduced into the colony should, within a few hours after landing in Sydney, have been the subject of so hair-breadth an escape from death by another instrumentality.  Herald, Nov. 1

MELANCHOLY AND FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On the 27th ult., the wife of constable KNIGHT, of Orange, met with an accident which terminated fatally eight days afterwards.  The unfortunate woman it appears was subject to fits, and during the absence of her husband, who was away about half an hour, she was attacked by the disease whilst dressing herself, and fell into the fire, where he found her on his return in a state of insensibility, burning like a log.  Although literally roasted alive, she continued perfectly sensible to the period of her decease.  The sorrowing widower is left with three children, the youngest of whom is not more than a few weeks old.  Bathurst Free Press, Oct. 29

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Mr. JAMES WATKINS, a small settler in the Hartley district, met with his death on the 5th October, under the following circumstances:- He was at a station called Kariwarbutty, in the Lachlan district, collecting fat cattle, and while attempting to fix a rail in the stockyard to keep the cattle safe, a vicious bullock rushed at him and struck one of the rails with such violence that it burst from the mortice and hit him in the face which was literally smashed to pieces.  The deceased leaves a wife and eight children to deplore their loss, and the widow is again near her confinement.  Bathurst Free Press, Oct. 29

DEATHS.  -  About ten o’clock on Saturday night, a man named FUNNELL died suddenly at his own house, in Union Lane.  He was walking about within half an hour of his death.  -  On Sunday morning JAMES DONOHUE, about seventy years, and for some time past a resident at Newtown, was found dead in a clay hole at Newtown.  -  Yesterday morning the body of a man named GILLIGAN was found in a well at Newtown.  The well is said to belong to the Railway Company, and by some one was left uncovered on Saturday night.  Herald, Nov. 1
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/978, 09/11/1853

ACCIDENT.  -  A boy, named [HENRY] MAGEE, on Friday afternoon, met with an accident which it is feared will terminate fatally.  He had accompanied his father to witness the funeral of the late Captain Sir Everard Home, and had returned as far as Christ Church, when he was knocked down by a horse drawing a dray, and the wheel passed over his head, crossing the cheek bone.  The poor little fellow – he is about seven or eight years of age – was instantly conveyed to the Benevolent Asylum, and put under the care of Dr. NORRIE, and it was for some time hoped that the injury would not prove fatal.  We regret to hear, however, that on Saturday all hope of his recovery was destroyed.  The driver of the dray was taken into custody, brought before the bench, and remanded on his own recognizance to appear on Wednesday.  From the enquiry we have made we understand that no blame whatever is attributable to the driver, he being on one side leading his horse on account of the concourse, while the little sufferer was on the off side and out of his sight.  Herald, Nov. 7
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/979, 12/11/1853

THE GOLD FIELDS

BRAIDWOOD.  (From the Goulburn Herald)

NOV. 1.  - Last week I mentioned that a woman was in custody on suspicion of having killed her infant.  Since then the body of the child has been found in a creek 3 miles from the spot where they were camping.  An inquest was held before the coroner, and a post mortem examination conducted by Mr. M’ALISTER.  Bruises were found on the brain, which must have been inflicted before the body was immersed in water, and must of themselves have caused congestion and death.  The woman, whose name is LANNIGAN or LANDRIGAN, was committed to take her trial on the charge of wilful murder.  The whole scene, dreadful as it must appear to every rightly constituted mind, has caused no little excitement in the district.
CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  Tuesday, an inquest was held before the coroner, at the Three Tuns Tavern, King and Elizabeth-streets, upon view of the body of a female whose name was unknown, then lying dead in the Sydney Infirmary.  WILLIAM BAILEY, a labourer, employed in the Commissariat stores, and stationed at Fort Macquarie, stated that on the morning of Thursday last, a waterman drew his attention to the body of the deceased, which was then floating in the water.  The waterman said he had no time to convey the body to the Water Police Wharf, and witness thereupon took his dingy and rowed the body to the shore.  Deceased appeared to have been about 25 years of age; she had on a black cloak and black bonnet.  Dr.MACKELLAR stated that he was called upon last Thursday morning to see the body of a female, who was then dead.  The Water Police constables who called him in were under the impression that she was still alive.  From the appearances of the body, he (Dr. M.) was of opinion that death had been caused by drowning, and that very recently.  He applied at the Sydney Infirmary, by the coroner’s order, to be allowed to make a post mortem examination of the body on Saturday last, in order to satisfy himself as to the cause of death, but was refused, and at his (Dr. M.’s) own request, from the decomposed state of the body, the coroner had withdrawn the order.  Verdict, found drowned, but how and by what means, no evidence appearing, the jury cannot say.  Herald, 10th November
FOUND DEAD.  -  The Bathurst Free Press of the 5th instant reports the evidence at an inquest held in Bathurst on the body of a man named WILSON.  Wilson, who was formerly employed at the Commercial Hotel, Bathurst, was stopping there a few days to receive medical advice; his bedroom opened on to a balcony, the front of which was formed by the signboard of the Hotel, but the board having been removed to be repainted, a large opening was left in its place; Wilson went to bed on Sunday evening, the 30th ult., as usual, but at two o’clock on Monday morning was found by a constable lying on the ground in front of the Hotel, insensible and nearly dead, his skull having been fractured.  Two persons who slept in the same room with Wilson, stated that they had heard no noise.  The post mortem examination found that death resulted from the fracture of the skull, which might have been caused by a fall from a height or by a heavy blow.  The jury returned an open verdict of found dead.

DISTRESSING ACCIDENT.  -  Yesterday afternoon a youth about 13 or 14 years of age was playing with a companion at ball, close to the excavation above the Exchange Hotel, in George-street, when stepping backwards to catch the ball, he fell down into the bottom of the quarry, a height of about 14 feet.  His cries soon brought some of the workmen to his assistance, and he was carried into the yard of the Commissariat office.  Mr. SMITH, the surgeon of Jamieson-street, was promptly in attendance, and it was found that he had sustained a severe concussion of the brain; blood issued freely from his ear.  He was put into a cab and conveyed to the Infirmary, where he now lies.  Empire, 9th November

SUICIDE.  -  On Thursday morning week an old man named NIXON, who has for several years past been employed as tutor to Mr. ROBERT M’PHILLAMY, of Campbell’s River, committed suicide by cutting one of his arms across with a razor in his bed room.  The unfortunate man, who had betrayed undoubted symptoms of imbecility for some time prior to his decease, bled to death before medical aid could be procured.  An inquest was held over his body, and a verdict returned to the effect that deceased had destroyed himself during a fit of temporary insanity.  Bathurst Free Press, Nov. 5

KILLED BY A COW.  -  About three weeks ago a stockman known in the Lower Lachlan by the name of LITTLE DICKY BROWN, whilst drafting cattle was charged by a cow, who ran one of her horns through his belly, and killed him on the spot.  The necessity for gates in drafting yards in lieu of slip rails is now becoming generally recognised, and if acted upon, many of these painful and fatal accidents would be prevented.  Bathurst Free Press, Nov. 5
THE ACCIDENT AT SIR E.HUME’S FUNERAL.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held on the body of HENRY MAGEE, the poor boy who was knocked down and run over by a dray on Friday, while looking at the procession at the funeral of Sir Edward Hume.  The evidence showed that the unfortunate occurrence was purely accidental, and a verdict to that effect was returned, the drayman being discharged from custody.  Abridged from the Herald, Nov. 8

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/980, 16/11/1853

TWO GIRLS DROWNED.  -  Last week Mr. PARKER, the coroner, held inquests on the bodies of two little girls who had been drowned.  The first inquest was held at Bowthorne, Hinton, on the 7th instant, on the body of MARGARET GRAHAM, six years old.  It appeared that the little girl was out with other children on the 5th, when they desired her to go home; they were after leeches at the time, and whether the little girl, in her way home, was looking for them also does not appear, but when, after an hour’s absence, her parents got alarmed and searched for her, she was found dead, but standing upright, in a pool of water in the paddocks; this pool, formed to water bullocks, had been dry for a long time, but the late heavy rains had filled it and inundated the ground around for some distance, and it is supposed the poor girl, forgetting the hole, walked through the shallow water into it, and was drowned.  The jury returned a verdict of found drowned.  -  The second inquest was held at Gresford, Upper Paterson, on the 9th, on the body of ALICE GREENAWAY, nine years old.  It appeared that Alice, her younger sister, and a little German girl, left school on the 7th to return home, but on their way turned aside to visit a shoemaker to be measured for shoes; in doing so they had to cross the Allyn, then slightly in fresh, but which had been in flood some fortnight before; that flood brought down and lodged across a dead oak tree, and the little girls appear to have tried to cross by this tree, but whether it broke or they slipped they all fell in, the water being some eight or nine feet deep.  A settler, named JOSEPH JONES, working at his farm close by, had heard the children’s voices at the river, and then suddenly heard cries of distress; he ran to the spot, but could see only one child, the German, on the opposite bank, running about as if out of her mind; he crossed to her, but could only gather from her: “Save them; oh! save them.”  Looking closely into the river, he saw a little head just under the water, some eight yards from the log, and jumping in he swam to the spot, and happily caught the little girl by a hand as her body was sinking again.  By the time Jones reached the shore with the girl, a German, working near, had also come to the spot, and Jones handed the girl to him, and knowing there were three children, Jones plunged in again, and dived in search of the third until completely exhausted, but could not find her.  Her body was not found till the next morning.  The younger Greenaway, saved by Jones, recovered after a considerable time.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death, and pointed out that the tree was very unsafe for any one to cross.  Jones was highly complimented by the Coroner on his bravery and perseverance in trying to rescue the second child.

SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Wednesday last Mr. CHARLES HUGHES, of Black Creek, a very old resident of Maitland and that neighbourhood, died very suddenly.  Information was sent to the coroner of the death, but that officer was detailed at Gresford, by the rising of the rivers, several days after the inquest on ALICE GREENAWAY, above reported.  An inquest would have been held yesterday on Mr. Hughes, but meanwhile the nearest magistrate, Mr. WYNDHAM, learning the continued absence of the coroner, had held a magisterial inquiry for him.  It appeared that Mr. Hughes, who, it is said, was about seventy years old, mentioned to Mrs. Hughes that morning that he felt unwell, and had had a very curious dream, having dreamt four times in succession that he saw himself a corpse; he, however, went out to saw some wood, and while engaged sawing a log, he said to the man working with him, “Wait a bit, my head feels giddy,” and leaning his head forward on his hands he fell down, and expired almost instantly.

NEWCASTLE SHIPPING

THE LOSS OF THE BRIG “FANNY”
This fine vessel went on shore on the Oyster Bank while endeavouring to work out on Saturday last, with the wind northeast, and ebb tide; she went on shore stern foremost.  Captain LIVINGSTON, the pilot on board, with the aid of Mr. BEACHY, soon got anchors out, but the wind increased, and the heavy swell setting in with the flood tide, she brought the anchors home, and turned her head towards the beach; in this position she lay till Sunday night, when she broke up.  She was loaded with coals, for Sydney, and was the property of Messrs. James and Alexander Brown, of this city, and was latterly purchased for the sum of £1150, and had not made one trip for them.  I am sorry to say that two men were drowned in attempting to get the crew on shore, at 10 o’clock, p.m., on Saturday; one of them, JAMES M’LEOD, of the pilot boat, leaves a widow and eight children to deplore their loss.  On Sunday afternoon the body of M’Leod was picked up near the scene of the wreck; an inquest was held on it on Monday, when the jury returned a verdict of accidentally drowned.  JAMES M’LUNE, master of the schooner Perseverance, who was one of the crew on the pilot boat on Saturday night, in giving his evidence before the jury, observed – “We should have taken the life-boat in preference to the pilot boat, but there were neither oars nor grummets belonging to her.”  The jury added a rider to their verdict, requesting the coroner would call the attention of her Majesty’s Government to the very inefficient state of the life boat at Newcastle.  Newcastle, Nov.14th, 1853

MUDGEE.  -  On Monday last an inquest was held at Mr. Rosseter’s inn, before D.R. MACDONALD, Esq., coroner, on the body of JOHN  HOWARD, who, from the evidence adduced, was employed in sheep-washing at Pulabucca, and whilst passing one of the coppers of boiling water, in a state of intoxication, fell in and was scalded to death; in accordance with which information, the jury returned a verdict that the deceased John Howard was accidentally scalded to death whilst in a state of intoxication.

DARLING DOWNS, OCT. 29 – MURDER BY THE ABORIGINES. 

The unfortunate sufferer was one MICHAEL BURKE, an overseer of JOSHUA P. BELL, Esq., at Ballo, on the Lower Condamine.  The murderers have not yet been apprehended, though the native police have been on the search.  It is surmised that the commission of the murder was more owing to the imprudence and reckless bearing of the deceased at the time, as well as to his general harsh treatment of the natives, than to a preconcerted design on the part of the aborigines to murder and rob.  They committed no robbery of stock.  The natives indeed, on most of the stations in that neighbourhood, are quite subdued, having a due respect for the police, and being of considerable service to the several owners of stock, supplying the place of much white labour, which is becoming scarcer and scarcer.

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/980, 19/11/1853

DEATHS.  

At Black Creek, suddenly, on the 11th of November, Mr. SAML. G. HUGHES, aged 63 years.

At Newcastle, on Saturday night, Nov. 12, Mr. JOHN M’LEOD, aged 38 years, son-in-law of Mr. Ewen M’Lean, of Watersash, Isle of Skye, Danvegan, Scotland, and brother-in-law of Mr. JOSEPH WAGDON, saddler, West Maitland, who was accidentally drowned while endeavouring to save the lives of the crew of the ill fated brig Fanny, and leaves a widow and eight helpless children to deplore his untimely loss, and is much lamented by a large number of friends and well wishers.  Mr. John M’Leod was for many years a tenant farmer, under ANDREW LANG, J.P., of Dunmore; he was a man of the strictest integrity, a loving husband, and a kind father; and may He who is a father to the fatherless and the widow’s stay, protect this disconsolate widow and family, is the sincere prayer of her brother-in-law, Joseph Wagdon, saddler, West Maitland.  Nov. 18th, 1853
HUNTER RIVER DISTRICT NEWS

BRAIDWOOD

A melancholy instance of death by the use of firearms, occurred last week.  The boy of a settler in the district named ELIJAH HORNE had been out duck shooting; as he returned he was dragging his gun after him, the trigger caught in a bush, the gun went off, and the charge entered the leg passing up the thigh.  The poor fellow lingered about forty-eight hours and died.

THE GOLD FIELDS

THE MEROO AND ITS TRIBUTARIES
MEROO, Nov. 7. -  Last night the river rose suddenly some feet, a heavy thunder storm passed over, and appears to have fallen about the upper part of the Long Creek; in one place there I understand there were hail stones as large as hen eggs.  One man lost his life while trying to get his tools out of the creek; this is the only accident that I have heard of yet.
SUICIDE.  -  On Saturday, the 5th, an inquisition was held on the body of CHRISTOPHER JARVIS.  The body was found in a water hole in the Mulwarren Ponds.  It appeared from the evidence that he had drowned himself, while labouring under the effects of intoxicating liquor.  The jury returned a verdict accordingly.  Empire’s Goulburn Correspondent

DROWNING.  -  On Saturday night, a man named CHRISTIE [CRESSEY] was drowned in Cook’s River.  He and another were working an overladen shell boat, which suddenly sank, taking the unfortunate man with it, whose body was not recovered until Sunday morning.  Herald, Nov. 15

MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/980, 23/11/1853

A BODY FOUND.  -  About one o’clock yesterday morning the dead body of a respectable looking man was found floating in the water at the Balmain Steam Ferry, bottom of Erskine-street.  It was dressed in a black stuff coat, white shirt, white marsala vest, black trousers, and black glazed or patent leather Wellington boots.  It appears to be the body of a person about 40 years of age, and may be seen in the dead house of the Benevolent Asylum.  
DEATHS

At Tamworth, on Wednesday, the 16th November, after a tedious illness, caused by a fall from his horse, JOHN CARDEN, eldest son of Mr. CERDEN TERRY WILLIAMS, aged 22 years.

ACCIDENTAL DROWNING.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Putney Inn, Cook’s River, upon view of the body of JOHN CRESSEY, then lying dead there.  From the evidence of EDWARD COUSINS, residing at Cook’s River, it appears that deceased was a seafaring man, and on Saturday last was engaged in a boat belonging to the father of the witness; the witness and deceased were gathering shells.  They loaded the boat rather too heavily, and the wind was blowing rather fresh.  Suddenly, as they came round the point, the wind blew upon the larboard side, and the boat immediately went down bow forward.  Witness was then in the blow, and immediately swam for his life.  Witness called to deceased, but he did not answer.  He saw deceased holding on by the boat in such a way that he thought his feet were touching the ground.  Witness reached the shore, but the boat had then sank, and the deceased had disappeared.  On Sunday morning last, after a long search, the body was found.  Verdict, accidental drowning.  Herald, Nov. 17

THE LATE JOHN M’LEOD.  -  We are happy to perceive by an advertisement in another column that a subscription has been commenced by a few charitable individuals for the widow and eight destitute children of JOHN M’LEOD, who in an attempt to save the lives of the crew of the Fanny, at Newcastle, unfortunately lost his own – leaving his family without the means of subsistence.  The peculiarity of M’Leod’s case demands the consideration of the humane.  Herald, Nov. 18

INFANTICIDE.  -  On Wednesday last a magisterial enquiry was held at the Immigration Barracks, before the Water Police magistrate, relative to a charger of infanticide preferred against a young woman named JEMIMA NEWTON, an immigrant by the ship Maidstone.  It appeared from the evidence of Mr. WILLIAM JAMES WILLIAMS, surgeon-superintendent of the Maidstone, that on the morning of the 17th September last, whilst on the high seas, he as induced, in consequence of information received from Mrs. PHILLIPS, the sub-matron, to inspect the water closet in the female’s department of the ship.  Here he found marks of blood on the floor and walls, which he traced to the girl’s bedside.  Upon making further enquiry he found that Newton had been keeping her bed for some time, and, as it appeared to him, under very suspicious circumstances.  He thereupon informed the girl of the suspicion which had been excited, and the circumstance which had caused it.  At his request she entered into the matron’s cabin for the purpose of being examined.  She confessed to the delivery of a child, and said that the body could be found under her berth.  On the doctor asking her if it was born alive, she said “Yes – that is the worst of it.”  Search was immediately made in the place indicated by the prisoner, and in accordance with what she had said the body of a full grown female child was found, concealed in a large canvass bag under her bed.  Round the neck was a linen ligature tied very tightly twice, which, according to the evidence of the doctor, as deduced from a post mortem examination, had evidently caused the death of the child.  There were no marks of violence on the body, but the head and face were much congested.  The lungs bore all the evidence of strangulation, and on opening the skull he found the vessels gorged with blood.  The foregoing facts were corroborated by the sub-matron, SOPHIA PHILLIPS, and MARY ANN SAUNDERS, an emigrant by the same vessel.  His worship committed the prisoner to take her trial at the next gaol delivery, to be held on the 5th of the ensuing month.  Herald, Nov. 19
MAITLAND MERCURY, 11/980, 26/11/1853

INQUEST.  -  On Thursday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Mr. Maher’s inn, Morpeth, on the body of WILHELMENA SCHULTZE, an infant of three months old.  It appeared from the evidence of the father of the child, HEINRICH SCHULTZE, that the child was born in Sydney, and that its mother having no milk for it she had fed it on artificial food, goat’s milk, sago, &c., as directed by a medical man; the child, however, which was always small and delicate, never throve, and latterly had suffered much from bowel complaint.  Mr. and Mrs. Schulze were on their way from Sydney to Black Creek, to commence business, when, on leaving the steamer, at Morpeth, the poor infant sickened and died.  On examining the body Dr. GETTY found it present a very emaciated appearance, as if from want of nourishment, but he said this might occur even if the child were regularly fed on artificial food, as it might not derive nourishment from it; the child appeared to have died from mesenteric disease.  The jury returned a verdict to this effect, stating they saw no reason to believe that the child was neglected by its parents.
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday last a man named CONSIDINE was killed at Tarlo by a kick from a horse.  It appears that the horse, which was in a team, fell down, and while assisting to lift it up, the unfortunate man was kicked in the chest, causing instantaneous death.  Goulburn Herald, Nov. 19

DROWNED.  -  On Thursday evening last, a man named JAMES REMINGTON, residing at Lane Cove, was proceeding to Sydney by water to dispose of a boat load of timber, and when opposite Cockatoo Island, as stated by a person who witnessed the occurrence, Remington was thrown out of the boat by the sail suddenly striking him.  The person further stated that he made all haste to the spot to render assistance, but the body of the unfortunate man had sunk to its watery bed, and has not yet been recovered.  Deceased was a married man, about twenty-five years old.  Previous to the fatal accident, deceased had divested himself of his coat and boots; the body may be further recognised by the arms, which were tattooed.  Empire, Nov. 21#
TWO BOYS DROWNED.  -  One of the most heartrending and melancholy occurrences took place at Mr. Fulton’s station on the Lachlan on Tuesday last, which has happened for many years past in these districts.  A poor widower named O’HARA, whose wife died about three months ago, and who was employed by Mr. FULTON as a shearer, for want of better protection was compelled to leave his two little boys in charge of an elder sister whilst pursuing his vocation, when during his absence on the day in question,. One of them dropped his hat into the river, and in endeavouring to recover it got into deep water, and sank to rise no more.  His brother perceiving what had happened, rushed to his rescue, when sorrowful to tell, he met with a similar fate.  The mental agony of the grief stricken father upon learning the sad recital from the lips of his sole surviving child, may be better imagined than described.  At the time our informant left, every effort was being made to procure the bodies by the people of the establishment and the neighbours, over whom the accident had cast a melancholy gloom.  Bathurst Free Press, Nov. 19

FOUND DROWNED.  -  About seven o’clock yesterday morning, the body of a man was found floating in the water at the foot of Cochrane’s Wharf, Windmill-street.  The police had the body conveyed to the Infirmary, where it at present remains, pending the coroner’s inquest, which will be holden this day (Wednesday).  Upon inquiry, the police ascertained that the body was that of a sailor named WILLIAM OLSEIN, lately belonging to the ship Fleur.  There was no property found on the body.  Empire, Nov. 23

SHOCKING DEATH.  -  A distressing accident resulting from intoxication occurred on Saturday evening to a man named ROBERT WALLING, residing in a house at the back of Elizabeth-street.  The deceased had been drinking at a public house during the evening, and was taken home by his wife about half-past nine o’clock in a state of intoxication.  He laid himself down on the bed and fell fast asleep, and his wife then went out to buy some necessaries, locking the front door of the house to prevent her husband returning to the public house.  She was absent about a quarter of an hour, but during the time the unfortunate man awoke, and, in his fit of drunkenness had, in endeavouring to get out through the window, struck his right arm with great force against it, breaking a part of the sash and several panes of glass.  The glass had inflicted a frightful gash on the arm about six inches in length immediately above the elbow joint, dividing all the large blood vessels, and extending to the bone.  The wife returned immediately afterwards and on entering the house beheld her husband weltering in his blood.  Herr distressing cries brought assistance to the spot, but all efforts to save the man were fruitless, for blood had ceased to flow, and he expired in a few minutes afterwards.  An inquest was held on the body at ten o’clock yesterday morning, at the Donnybrook Hotel, before Dr. CANNAN, the coroner, when after hearing the evidence the jury returned a verdict of accidental death, the result of intoxication.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Nov. 5
DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  Intelligence has been received at Drayton of the discovery of the body of Mr. MYLES, a surgeon, long resident on Darling Downs, in a creek in the district.  The unfortunate gentleman had been on a visit to M’Intyre Creek, and is supposed to have been accidentally drowned on his return.  The body appeared to have lain in the water six or seven days.  Moreton Bay Courier, Nov. 5

GAYNDAH.  -  A MAN SHOT.  -  It is with feelings of much regret that I inform you of the loss of another valuable life in this locality.  Mr. WEBBER, a gentleman much respected by all who knew him, has fallen a victim to the effects of the demoralising and debasing habit of intemperance in another.  The particulars are these: “Mr. MACKENZIE, the clerk of petty sessions, was, on Wednesday last, in company with three other gentlemen at Mr. Reid’s station, Iduraway.  He was suffering at the time from delirium tremens, and imagined that some bushrangers were coming to kill him.  He therefore took up a double-barrelled gun, one of the barrels of which was loaded with shot, to protect himself from the imaginary attack.  He presented the gun at the door, and it was not thought he could do any harm with it, as an attempt had been made to fire it off before, which had failed.  Unfortunately, Mr. Webber moved between him and the door, when the gun went off and shot that gentleman in the neck.  He never spoke afterwards, and survived only about an hour and a half.  Mr. Mackenzie has been since committed to take his trial at the next Brisbane Assizes.  Correspondent of the Moreton Bay Free Press.
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THE LATE JAMES M’LEOD.  -  The readers of the Herald will remember that on the 12th instant the schooner Fanny was wrecked off Newcastle, and that a man named JAMES M’LEOD, seeing the perilous situation of the vessel, put off alone in a small boat in order to rescue the crew from a watery grave; that in the attempt he broke one of the paddles, he himself was capsized, and met a watery grave, leaving a widow and eight children, who were entirely dependent upon his exertions for their maintenance.  So soon as the melancholy intelligence reached Sydney, a subscription was instituted by Captain MALCOLM and Mr. ALDIS for the benefit of the family; and we are happy to learn that about £330 has already been received, of which the noble sum of £300 was contributed at Newcastle, where their exemplary conduct in their station of life had secured for them the respect of all with whom they had any intercourse.  Subscriptions are also in progress at Maitland, at Melbourne, and several other places in the colony, and it is anticipated that a respectable sum of money will be raised, which, while it will place the family above destitution, will be at the same time nothing more than a fitting tribute to the memory of a man who would risk his own life in an attempt to save the lives of others.  It is proposed, we believe, to invest the money subscribed in such a way that it shall prove of permanent utility to the sorrowing widow and orphans.  S.M. Herald, 25th November

[????????] ABORIGINAL.  -  On Sunday an inquest was commenced by Mr. PARKER, on the body of TAYLOR, an aboriginal; the inquest was adjourned till Monday at the request of the jury, to allow of a post mortem examination being made.  From the evidence it appeared that Taylor was so much addicted to drink whenever he entered Morpeth, that the constables had specially cautioned people not to supply him with liquor; but on Saturday morning he and other blacks were drinking b[??]d out of a spirit cask, and about the middle of the day Taylor by importunity obtained two glasses of rum from the first and second engineers of the City of Melbourne steamer, at the Globe Inn.  At five o’clock that afternoon he was found dead.  Dr. GETTY found that death was caused by apoplexy arising from frequent acts of intemperance, and was of opinion that the two glasses of rum could not have brought the attack on.  The jury returned a verdict of death from apoplexy, brought on by intemperance; and desired the Coroner to caution people against giving the aboriginals liquor.

A FERRYMAN DROWNED.  -  On Monday evening JAMES HALFPENNY, a man who plied a small ferry boat on the Hunter, at Morpeth, was drowned; his boat, which was leaky, sinking with his as he was crossing the river alone.  The body was found yesterday, we heard, in the boat.
DEATHS.

At Richardson’s Point, on the 17th instant, being accidentally killed by falling from a cart, WALTER WILLIAM KEPPIE, aged 13; a youth greatly admired for his gentle and amiable disposition, and much lamented by his sorrowing parents.

FOUND DROWNED.  -  The body of a man was found floating in the water of Rose Bay, by Mr. REYNOLDS, of that place, on Thursday last, 18th instant; the body was conveyed to the Benevolent Asylum, where it at present remains awaiting identification.  The name of “THOMAS CHATTO, Islington, London,” was signed to a memorandum among his papers.  -  Empire, Nov 21.  [At the inquest, held on the 21st, it appeared that Mr. Chatto was the son of a linen draper, at Morpeth, England, and that being unable to obtain assistance (or employment) from the parties he applied to in Sydney, he had nearly starved to death, and contemplated suicide in consequence.  These particulars were gathered from the papers found on him, but no person in Sydney of the name mentioned therein appeared to know anything whatever of Mr. Chatto.  The jury found that deceased had drowned himself in a fit of temporary insanity, caused by destitution and extreme mental depression.]
ESCAPE OF THE ABORIGINAL “SIPPEY” FROM GAOL – CRUEL OUTRAGE.  

This black, who it will be remembered was committed by the Callandoon bench to take his trial for the murder of a German woman at Messrs. Easton and Robertson’s station, succeeded in effecting his escape from her Majesty’s gaol on Thursday evening last, during the continuance of a violent thunderstorm , accompanied by a heavy fall of rain.  At daylight on the following morning, Mr. FEENEY, the keeper of the gaol, having procured a black guide, set out in search of the fugitive.  Chief constable SNEYD also went after him.  They succeeded in tracing him to Mr. M’Grath’s station, Moggill Creek, where he stopped and took breakfast, the pursuers arriving about half-an-hour after his departure.  On leaving there he encountered the brother of Mr. HARGRAVES, the boot maker of this town – a mere boy.  He was on horseback, and SIPPEY begged for a lift on the road, which the boy good-naturedly granted, allowing him to get up behind him on the horse.  They had not proceeded far when the black threw the poor boy from the horse, and finding that he still retained hold of the reins, he jumped off and belaboured the poor little fellow most unmercifully with a heavy stick; he then, horrible to relate, endeavoured to break the boy’s legs by placing them across his knee and employing force for that purpose, but, fortunately, did not carry his purpose into effect.   His object in this would appear to have been to prevent the boy from giving an alarm.  He then stripped him of a portion of his clothes, took off his spurs, which he fastened on himself, and leaving the boy insensible, it seems probable, he thought dead, made off on the horse as fast as he could.  The wretch was traced as far as the crossing of Mr. R.J. Smith’s, at Town Marie, where his track was lost in consequence of a mob of cattle having passed the same road after he did; and Mr. Feeney and Mr. Sneyd have returned without being able to get any further intelligence of him.  On recovering his senses, young Hargraves succeeded in gaining his residence at Moggill Creek, whence he was brought into town on Saturday afternoon.  Dr. HOBBS was immediately sent for, and having examined the wounds and bruises, pronounced no bones to be broken; and we are glad to say he is now doing well.  The poor little fellow was severely beaten indeed, particularly about the head, on which were several severe lacerations, and there was a complete rent or tear in the flesh of the left wrist.  Moreton Bay Free Press, Nov. 15
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DEATH FROM FALLING DOWN A BANK.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Lidney Park, on the body of TIMOTHY COUGHLAN.  It appeared from the evidence of JOHN SLANEY that Slaney and Coughlan were neighbouring tenant farmers on Lidney Park, and that on the evening of Friday, the 25th November, about seven o’clock, Coughlan, who was perfectly sober, left Slaney’s house to return home.  He had only to cross a small paddock, the path laying by the bank of the river, and as he afterwards told Slaney, the edge of the bank gave way at one point as his foot was on it, and he fell over, a height of some eighteen or twenty feet.  The river washes the base of the bank, and poor Coughlan’s spine was injured by the fall, but he managed to crawl to a small tree lying in the water, thus keeping himself from being drowned, and called for assistance while he had strength; but Slaney, however, did not hear him, nor did any one happen to pass that night, a storm coming on.  Early the next day a passer-by saw poor Coughlan lying in the water close to the edge of the bank, and immediately telling Slaney, the two went down, found him alive, but feeble, and soon got him up, and carried him into Slaney’s hut.  A medical man was immediately sent for, but he pronounced the injury a fatal one, and Coughlan sunk gradually, and died on Thursday evening.  The jury returned a verdict of accidental death by falling over the bank and injuring his spine.

MEROO.  -  MELANCHOLY ACCIDENT.  -  On Thursday evening, the 17th November, as Master WALTER KEPPIE, son of Mr. Keppie, publican, residing at Richardson’s Point, was driving a cart in company with two other lads to the Devil’s Hole Creek, the horse started away, and whilst the young lad endeavoured to stop the horse by jumping from the cart on his back, his foot slipped, and, sad to relate, the wheel passed over his chest, and before medical aid could be procured, the young lad died.  On Friday an inquest was held on the body of the deceased, before Dr. R. MACDONALD, Esq., coroner.  The jury brought in a verdict of accidental death.  Young Keppie’s remains were brought into Mudgee to be interred, and to show the respect in which this amiable and intelligent young man was held by our community, a large concourse of the most respectable inhabitants of the township followed him on Sunday morning, the 20th November, to the grave.  S.M. Herald, 29th November
THE DEATH OF JAMES HALFPENNY.  -  On Tuesday an inquest was held at Morpeth, by Mr. PARKER, on the body of JAMES HALFPENNY, the ferryman, whose death by his ferry boat sinking with him in crossing the Hunter, we have already recorded.  The jury returned a verdict that Halfpenny was drowned when crossing the river Hunter in a state of intoxication.
INQUEST ON A ABORIGINAL.  -  On Thursday Mr. PARKER held an inquest at Paterson, on MAJOR, an aboriginal.  It appears that Major, who was frequently drunk, and who worked for the settlers about Paterson, called at BERNARD FEGAN’S, a tanner, working for Mr. Womersley, on Tuesday last, and complained of being ill; Fegan invited him to his hut, to have something to eat, and Major went there, but only took some tea; he said he had not been drinking, but complained much of pains in his back; he did not appear dangerously ill, and promised to go to work for Mr. WOMERSLEY the next day.  He slept that night in Fegan’s hut, and appeared to suffer much pain, and the next morning he was found to have died as he lay.  Another black stated that his back had been hurt by his falling backwards on a stone.  The jury returned a verdict of death from natural causes, produced by frequent acts of intemperance.  
LIVERPOOL.  -  DEATH OF AN INFANT FROM NEGLECT.  -  The Liverpool correspondent of the Empire reports an inquest that was held there, on the 24th November, on the body of HENRY HERBERT, the infant child of a woman named HANNAH BALES.  The evidence showed that Hannah Bales had been habitually a drunkard ever since the birth of the poor child, and that frequently the neighbours had been induced, by the screaming of the infant, to enter her house and put it to the breast, she being too drunk to attend to it.  The post mortem examination showed that the stomach and alimentary canal were quite empty, and that the child died from inanition and want of food.  The jury returned a verdict that death was caused by the neglect of the mother to provide maintenance for the child, and she was committed by the coroner for trial.

FATAL COACH ACCIDENT.  -  On Sunday afternoon last, the mail coach on its upward route to Bathurst was precipitated into a deep abyss whilst descending Mount Victoria, together with the driver, horses, and passengers, when Mr. THOMAS FITZPATRICK, brother to Mr. JAMES FITZPATRICK, storekeeper of this town, was so dreadfully bruised and lacerated that he has since died.  Of the other passengers several were more or less injured, but none so seriously as to require medical assistance.  Three of the horses were killed on the spot, and the vehicle, a two-wheeled affair, was dashed to pieces.  Considering the depth of the gully where the accident happened, the source of astonishment which seems to prevail, is that a single individual escaped with his life.  One man to save himself instinctively sprang from his seat whilst the coach was making its first revolution, and without noticing the direction, leaped down the precipice, rolling and tumbling from rock to rock until he landed at a depth variously estimated at 120 to 150 feet.  Singular to say he was not seriously injured.  An inquest was held over the body of Mr. Fitzpatrick, but at the time of writing (Friday) the jury had not given in their decision.  Bathurst Free Press, Nov. 26

PARRAMATTA.  -  ROAD ACCIDENTS.  -  But a few days have elapsed since a most distressing accident occurred on the Bathurst road, when three horses were killed on the spot, one passenger left for dead, and the reaminder had broken bones and serious bruises. …

BRISBANE CIRCUIT COURT.  

This court opened on the 21st November, before the Chief Justice.

KENNETH MACKENZIE was indicted for the manslaughter of FRANCIS GERALD WEBBER, at Iduraway.  The melancholy facts of the case were recently copied into the Mercury from a Moreton Bay paper.  The following summary given in the opening address of the prosecuting counsel, Mr. PUREFOY, was fully borne out by the evidence, Mr. SEWELL expressing his belief that his knocking up the gun when the prisoner’s finger was on the trigger, caused it to go off; “Mr. Purefoy stated the case.  The prisoner occupied the position of a gentleman, and held the office of clerk to the bench at Gayndah; and it was painful to see him now standing at the bar before a jury of his countrymen, to take his trial for depriving a fellow creature of life.  It was the more distressing as the victim was his friend, and as the offence was caused by the indulgence in that curse of the colony, the vice of intemperance.  The facts were these.  The prisoner had been suffering from delirium tremens, and some of his friends, among whom was the deceased, thought it desirable to have him removed from temptation at Gayndah, to a station of Mr. Reid’s at some distance.  Here at first he seemed to improve, but as he subsequently got worse, Mr. Sewell, superintendent at the station, and brother to Dr. Sewell, sent for his brother, who attended the prisoner, and prescribed for him.  Having occasion to visit some sick children, the doctor left Mr. Reid’s station, and in his absence Mr. Mackenzie appeared to have been seized with a delusion that bush-rangers were seeking his life, and, seizing a loaded gun, levelled it at the door.  As it was not believed that the gun would go off, Mr. Webber passed in a line with the muzzle, for the purpose of lighting his pipe.  At this moment Mr. Sewell struck up the barrel of the gun with his hand, and it immediately went off.  The contents lodged in the neck of Mr. Webber, who fell, and did not speak afterwards.”  The jury returned a verdict of not guilty, and Mr. Mackenzie was discharged.
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SYDNEY NEWS.

A Mrs. CUTHBERT [Harriet M’Loughlin??] last evening lost her life through the upsetting of a boat, caused by a sudden squall which came on whilst rounding Peacock’s Point, in Darling Harbour.  The body, I believe, has not yet been found. Her husband and two other persons were in the boat, who also would have found a watery grave but for the prompt assistance rendered by the mate of a Dutch ship lying near the scene of the occurrence.

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  An inquest was held on Saturday last, 3rd instant, on view of the body of  ELIZABETH MELROSS, then lying dead in the Lands End Tavern, Pyrmont, when the following evidence was given.– WILLIAM SOLOMON, residing in Parliament-street, Sydney, deposed that he was fishing in Johnson’s Bay on Friday evening last; upon which occasion, between five and six o’clock, he observed the body of the deceased floating in the water, face downwards; witness immediately brought it ashore; the deceased, of whom he had no previous knowledge, was fully dressed; there were no marks of violence on the body.  JAMES G. MELROSS deposed that he had been married to the deceased for about 14 years; she was about 40 years of age; about four years ago, deceased was much afflicted by the death of three children which occurred in one week, and her spirits had been, since that period, very much depressed; witness saw deceased last alive on Tuesday evening, 30th ultimo, about seven o’clock; she was then apparently in very good spirits; the paper produced is in her hand-writing; I found it in the house some time after her disappearance; on the paper alluded to deceased had written the following; “When you receive this I shall be no more.”  FREDERICK HARPER, surgeon, deposed that he made a post mortem examination of the body of the deceased; it presented all the appearances which are produced by death from drowning.  The jury found, that the deceased Elizabeth Melross frowned herself while in a state of temporary insanity.  Empire, Dec. 5.                [CHECK BACK – flu epidemic?]

BIRTHS.

At Bullawar, Namoi River, on the 29th November, Mrs. MARY ANN WOOLASTON, of a daughter, still born.

THE LATE FATAL COACH ACCIDENT.  -  The inquest upon the body of the late Mr. THOMAS FITZPATRICK, who was killed by the capsizing of the mail on Mount Victoria, resulted in the following verdict:- That the deceased came by his death accidentally by the upsetting of the coach, caused by not having a fence at this particular spot; and the jury desire the coroner to report it to the authorities to place a fence on the dangerous parts of Mount Victoria.  Bell’s Life, Dec. 3

INTEMPERANCE.  -  Yesterday, an inquest was held before the Coroner at the Forester’s Arms, Glebe, upon view of the body of WM. VALENNTINE THOMAS, then lying dead.  From the evidence it appears that deceased was a gardener, and addicted to intemperate habits.  On the night of Tuesday he had been drinking very hard, and in place of going to bed, he sat upon a chest in the bedroom.  When his wife awoke early on the following morning she found deceased dead and cold.  There were no marks of violence on the body.  The jury found that death had been caused by previous habits of intemperance.  Deceased leaves a wife and nine children.  Herald, Nov. 5

AN UNKNOWN MAN FOUND DROWNED.  -  On Tuesday, at the Wellington Inn, an inquest was held on the body of a man, name unknown, then lying in the Benevolent Asylum.  THOMAS SMITH, constable in the Water Police, deposed, that from information received he proceeded to a schooner anchored off Cockatoo Island; made fast to the schooner he found a portion of a human body which he subsequently, by order of the coroner, put into a coffin and brought ashore.  ROBERT G. NORRIE, surgeon of the Benevolent Asylum, deposed that he examined the remains of the deceased, the lower extremities were wanting, the remaining portion was in a very decomposed state; witness believed from the fibrous appearance of the margin of the flesh that sharks or other large fish had carried off the missing portions.  The head, legs, and arms were wanting.  Verdict – Found dead, but how deceased came to his death there is no evidence to show.  Empire, Nov. 24
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SUICIDE OF MR. BEARDMORE, SURGEON. -  On Thursday morning early great sensation was produced in West Maitland by the statement that Mr. FEREDRICK JOSHUA BEARDMORE, surgeon, an old and respected resident, had committed suicide.  Mr. Beardmore had for many years successfully practised his profession in Maitland, but latterly had been at time afflicted with slight illness, which produced great depression of spirits.  For the last three months this had been the case more particularly, although few had taken any notice of his occasional expressions that his life was a burthen to him, that he would be unable to provide for his family, &c.  He was during the last few weeks under medical treatment, and had been too unwell to practise much himself, although he saw a patient so lately as Saturday last.  On Wednesday he continued very much depressed in spirits, and remained in bed nearly all day, having had leeches to his head, but talked quite collectedly.  On Thursday morning, after six o’clock, he got up and partly dressed himself, and went down stairs into his back yard; he was there seen and spoken to by his adjoining neighbour, and he returned into the house; and in a few minutes afterwards Mrs. Beardmore, going down stairs to answer a knock at the front door, was shocked to find her husband lying on the sofa in the parlour with his throat cut, and the floor covered with blood.  Mr. Beardmore was still alive, but could not speak.  Medical assistance was instantly sent for and obtained, but in a few minutes Mr. Beardmore expired.  An inquest was held on the body the same day, by Mr. PARKER, and a verdict returned that he died from a wound inflicted by his own hand, while labouring under a fit of temporary insanity.  Notwithstanding considerable eccentricity of manner, Mr. Beardmore was much respected as a man of kindly disposition, and of strict probity and integrity, and a very general feeling of sorrow is expressed for the loss sustained by his bereaved wife and four young children.
SHIPPING INTELLIGENCE.  -  During the strong northerly gale on Sunday, one of the lads belonging to the brig Vulture, from Hobart Town, fell from aloft on the deck, causing instantaneous death.  The Captain informs us that he consigned the body to the deep yesterday morning, although within so short a distance of port.  Dec. 6

FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  Wednesday afternoon, just after the hail storm, a little girl five years of age, the daughter of Mr. EDWARD DAVIS, tanner, residing near the Mulwarree Ponds, ran out from her home for the purpose of gathering the hailstones.  Her father, who was lying on the sofa at the time, missing his daughter for about ten minutes, went in search of her, when he found her body floating in the soaking pit of the tan-yard – a place in which hides and sheepskins are thrown before the hair or wool, as the case may be, is taken off.  The distracted father immediately got the body out, and while taking every means to restore suspended animation, he despatched his wife for the purpose of procuring the attendance of Dr. WAUGH.  On the arrival of that gentleman, which was prompt, it was found that the vital spark had fled.  An inquest was held on the body, and the jury returned a verdict of “Found drowned.”  -  It is with feelings of pain we state, that this is the second child that Mr. Davis has lost under similarly painful circumstances.  Goulburn Herald, Dec. 3

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

Dec. 6.  -  Before the Chief Justice.

WILLIAM MILLER was indicted for the wilful murder of DAVID WADE, at Penrith, on the 7th August.  Miller and Wade were engaged as mates in clearing off a piece of land for Mr. GEORGE MASTERS, and they lived together in a hut or gunyah on Master’s place; on Sunday both men were drunk, and Miller said, laughingly, to Masters that if he could find Wade he would burn him; he had also said this in the presence of a person dining with Masters.  Miller went to his hut, and shortly after Masters’s little boy gave an alarm that “Davy was burning”; Masters hurried to the hut, and found Wade’s clothes on fire, and he put the fire out.  At the time he came up Miller was near the hut with a can in his hand, as if looking for water, and subsequently Miller several times told a witness that he had burned Wade, and that they all wanted burning, just like the trees and logs.  Wade was taken to Sydney Infirmary, and died there a fortnight afterwards, and in his dying declaration he stated that he and Miller were drunk, that he was quarrelling with Miller, that he was lying by the fire, and did not know who put him on, but George Masters pulled him off.  The jury returned a verdict of manslaughter, and the prisoner was sentenced to twelve months on the roads.
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SUDDEN DEATH.  -  On Monday, an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Anambah, on the body of JAMES YOUNG, sixty years old, a farmer on that estate.  It appeared that Young, who on the previous day (Sunday) appeared in perfect health, was taken suddenly ill about eleven o’clock on Sunday night; his wife, in terror, ran and obtained a neighbour’s assistance, but Young was dead before the neighbour could reach the house.  No cause of death appeared till Dr. M’CARTNEY made a post mortem examination, when it proved that a blood vessel on the chest had burst, from natural causes, and caused death.  The jury returned a verdict to that effect.

CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  On Thursday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at the Wellington Inn, George-street, on view of the body of Mrs. HARRIET M’LOUGHLIN, then lying dead at the Benevolent Asylum.  The melancholy accident, resulting in the death of this lady, has been already described in these columns.  It is therefore only necessary to state (as given in evidence before the Coroner) that on Sunday last, deceased, with her husband and three other persons were returning down the harbour from South Head, and that when off Peacock’s Point a gale of wind suddenly arose, and before the sail could be taken in, the boat was capsized.  All the persons in the boat were precipitated into the water; but, with the exception of deceased, they were rescued by two boats whose crews perceived their danger.  The body of deceased was found on Thursday morning, and brought ashore by constable HAGGARTY of the water police force.  Dr. NORRIS, gave his opinion, pro forma, that death was the result of suffocation from drowning, and the jury found a verdict of accidental drowning.  Herald, Dec. 10

DEATHS

At his residence, West Maitland, on the 8th December, aged 39, FREDERICK JOSHUA BEARDMORE, Esq., surgeon, second son of Joshua Beardmore, Esq., of Green End House, Hemel Hampstead, London; leaving a widow and four children to deplore his loss.

CENTRAL CRIMINAL COURT.

Thursday, December 8.  -  (Before Mr. Justice Dickinson)

JEMIMA NEWTON was indicted for having, on the 17th September, on the high seas, on board the ship Maidstone, murdered her female child, shortly after its birth.  The jury acquitted the prisoner of the capital offence, but found her guilty of concealing the birth.  She was sentenced to twelve months’ imprisonment in Darlinghurst Gaol.

ANN BUCKLEY was indicted for having, on the 23rd November, at Liverpool, murdered one HENRY HERBERT, an infant, about one month old.  She was found guilty of manslaughter, and sentenced to two years’ imprisonment in Parramatta Gaol.

(Before Mr. Justice Therry)

JOHN HALEY was indicted for the wilful murder of one JOHN DALEY, at the M’Leay River, on the 20th May last.  The evidence went to show that Daley met his death by accident in a drunken spree.  The prisoner was acquitted and discharged with a serious admonition to abstain from the use of intoxicating drinks for the future.  He emphatically declared that he would adopt the advice.

PARRAMATTA.  -  DEATH BY DROWNING.  -  An inquest was held at the house of Mr. GUBERT, on the Windsor Road, beyond Baulkham Hills, on Monday last, on view of the body of Mrs. Gubert, wife of the above.  It appears from the evidence that the husband of the deceased had fetched from Parramatta a portmanteau containing sundry important papers, and should, according to the statement of the deceased, have also contained a large sum of money; this was missing, and she said it had been abstracted by the person in whose charge it had been left at Parramatta.  The circumstances created more than ordinary excitement and temper with deceased, and certain domestic duties had not been attended to; on Saturday evening Mrs. Gubert was missing.  Search was made everywhere in the bush near the house, as well as in the neighbourhood, till at last it was thought advisable to obtain grappling irons, and drag the well, and at about half past ten o’clock on Sunday morning, the body was brought on the surface from a depth of twenty feet of water.  The jury returned a verdict of found drowned in a well.  -  An inquest was held on Thursday, 8th instant, on the Bedlam Road, Kissing Point, by the coroner for the district, on view of the body of a child aged about five years, named JOHN HENRY MELVILLE, then and there lying dead.  The father of the child is a gardener working in the neighbourhood.  The mother was lying in bed, and in the meantime the deceased child wandered from the house, and an older child going to an opened and uncovered well observed the cap of the deceased floating on the surface of the water; the alarm was raised, and the well dragged; after a short time the body was brought to the surface, and life quite extinct.  Dr. CAMPBELL was sent for, and promptly attended, but it was of no avail.  A verdict was returned in accordance with the evidence.  S.M. Herald Correspondent
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FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Wednesday last a young man named CONSIDINE was killed by the upsetting of a cart, between Bathurst and Winburndale Creek, at a place known as the Little Plain.  When found the side-rail of the cart rested upon his neck, in all probability having produced suffocation, and his body lay underneath the vehicle.  Judging from the appearances of the ground, and the circumstance that the tail-board of the cart was found lying some distance behind on the road, the inference is, that the horse, a spirited animal, had bolted, and thus brought about the accident.  An inquest was held upon the unfortunate man’s remains on Thursday, and a verdict of accidental death returned.  The deceased, we hear, was a married man, and leaves a wife and family to deplore his untimely fate.  Bathurst Free Press, Dec. 10
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DEATHS

At Gostwyck, New England, on the 14th December, from concussion of the brain, caused by being thrown and dragged by his horse, LORENZ AULBERT.

BRAIDWOOD.  -  Since my last, another melancholy accident has occurred, similar to those which we have occasionally had to record.  A man named HENRY LANGFORD, working on the property of Messrs. Shepherd and Alger, was killed by the falling in of a bank.  The poor fellow was quite dead when extricated.  He was a sober well conducted man, and has left a wife and young family.  S.M. Herald

COUP DE SOLEIL.  -  A small settler residing upon Brown’s Creek, named COOK,  complained, on his return home on Sunday evening last with a flock of sheep which he had been shepherding, of a most violent head-ache, and after supper betrayed symptoms of intellectual derangement.  Continuing to grow worse, Dr. M’HATTIE was sent for, who pronounced his ailment to be a case of coup de soleil.  The Doctor administered, and for a short time the patient appeared to rally, but the attack set in with redoubled virulence, and finally terminated in death.  One or two other cases, we hear, have occurred, but with the above exception none have proved fatal.  Bathurst Free Press, Dec. 10

MELANCHOLY EFFECTS OF INTEMPERANCE.  -  On Thursday last information was received by Mr. M’LERIE, Superintendent of the Metropolitan Police, that a medical gentleman, of the name of LLOYD, residing in King-street East, had been for some weeks confined to his bed from illness resulting from intemperance, without having received any professional assistance, and that his wife, from the same cause, was lying in an adjoining room perfectly insane, in which state she had existed for upwards of six weeks, totally dependent upon the assistance of a female servant, who had been induced by the neighbours to continue her service to the unfortunate couple.  Mr. M’Lerie requested Dr. RUTTER, the medical officer of the police, to investigate the case, and report to him what could be done.  Dr. Rutter found the unfortunate gentleman in a state of great prostration from excessive drinking, and having immediately administered the usual remedies, directed his attention to Mrs. Lloyd, with a view to her removal to Tarban Creek.  Inquiry detailed the painful though not astonishing information that Dr. Lloyd’s circumstances were much involved, a bailiff being in possession of what little property remained in the house from previous executions.  Yesterday morning, the servant, upon entering Dr. Lloyd’s room, found him upon his knees by the bedside, his face buried in the bedclothes, perfectly dead, and, in the opinion of the medical gentleman who was immediately called in, must have been dead for several hours previously.  The Coroner was made acquainted with the case, but, after inquiry into the circumstances, declined to hold an inquest upon the body, deeming it unquestionable that death was the result of natural causes.  We are glad to be able to add that the widow will receive from the police authorities every attention that her case demands.
CORONER’S INQUEST.  -  Yesterday an inquest was held before the Coroner, at St. John’s Tavern, Newtown, on view of the body of JAMES FISHER.   It appears from the evidence that deceased was about nineteen years of age, and arrived in the colony from Huddersfield in May last.  He was employed at Mr. Armitage’s establishment.  On Wednesday evening last, after leaving work, he went to bathe in the dam at Bridgend Bottom.  He seemed then in perfect health, but suddenly cried out to a fellow workman, “Jemmy, Jemmy,” and appeared to be violently struggling in the water.  Jemmy and another man who had been bathing, and were still undressed, sprang into the water to his assistance, but before they could reach him deceased had sunk.  Every exertion was made to recover the body, but it was not found until the next morning.  Verdict, accidental drowning.  Herald, Dec. 17
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COUP DE SOLEIL.  -  On Wednesday an inquest was held by Mr. PARKER, at Bolwarra, on the body of WILIAM CARTER, an elderly man.  It appeared that Carter was in the habit of drinking, and was drunk on Monday evening; he was working for a farmer named PAINE, and although he appeared well on Tuesday morning, eat his breakfast, and went to work in the field, he did little work that day; Tuesday was, it will be remembered, excessively hot, and Carter, who had not come in to dinner, was found at four o’clock lying dead in the field, on his face.  The jury returned a verdict of died from coup de soleil.
MORETON BAY, DEC. 14.  -  The native black whose escape I mentioned in former communications, has, I am happy to say, been captured.  He made his way with the utmost speed to the native ground of his tribe, when he no doubt considered himself safe; but he was seen and known by a Mr. GOODFELLOW in the Callandoon district, who much to his credit succeeded in again making him fast.
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RAYMOND TERRACE.  

To the Editor of the Maitland Mercury

SIR – On Wednesday night, about 8 o’clock, a person named LEE, belonging to a small craft lying off Raymond Terrace, on returning to his vessel fell overboard.  His mate gave the alarm, and several boats put off to his assistance; his hat was picked up about 100 yards from his vessel, but all traces of the unfortunate individual (in consequence of the darkness of the night) was lost.  The boats after about a quarter of an hour’s search returned, and no further search was made, although we have a police boat, 4 constables, and a chief, denizens of our township.  On Saturday afternoon, news arrived that some fisherman had found the body about a mile or more down the river, and about 5 o’clock our feelings were shocked by seeing two constables rowing a boat, with the body towing astern by a rope passed round its middle.  The body was not so decomposed but that it might have been laid in the boat, with a few boughs or a cloth thrown over it, and those pulling the boat not have felt any very great inconvenience.  Hoping these remarks will cause our constabulary to be more thoughtful in future, I am, Sir, your obedient servant, 

                                                                                      OBSERVER.

FATAL BOAT ACCIDENT.
On Saturday evening, about nine o’clock, the cutter belonging to H.M. steamer Torch, was working up the harbour, having on board Mr. W. WARD HARVEY, lately acting-mate and in charge of the Torch, Messrs. W.S. VESEY, and A.G. WILSON, and a lad named E. SWEENEY, belonging to the steamer.  When mid-way between Garden Island and Bradley’s Head, a heavy squall suddenly struck the boat, and nearly filled her, but she righted, and the sail was at once lowered and reefed; but while hoisting it again a second p[???] struck her, and she immediately capsized.  The boy Sweeney stuck to the boat, and for a short time saw the others struggling in the water, but could render no assistance.  Mr. Harvey had one of the oars, and called to the boy to come to him as he would have a better chance of reaching the shore; but he would not leave the boat, and eventually drifted within a short distance of the shore, near Captain Moriarty’s.  The Hellespont steamer, was coming in at the time, and the boat was observed so close that it was necessary to put the helm a-starboard to clear her.  The engines were immediately stopped, Captain POCKLEY ordering a boat tp be lowered at the same time.  This was done without delay; life buoys were thrown overboard, and every exertion made to pick the men up, the steamer’s boat being also assisted by a boat from the Thomas Arbuthnot, which was promptly manned on the accident being known; but all search was ineffectual, although the boats and steamer had lights; and rockets being fired to attract attention.  The Hellespont remained at anchor on the spot for upwards of an hour and a half, when finding all search unavailing, she weighed again and came to the wharf.  The boat was found early in the morning, bottom up, and some little distance from the shore, the grapnel having caught the bottom.   The bodies have not yet been recovered, although the boats from the steamer and Calliope were searching all yesterday, assisted by those from the Thomas Arbuthnot.  Mr. Harvey was universally respected both as an officer and a gentleman, and his loss will be sincerely felt by his shipmates.  Herald, 26th December
MELANCHOLY OCCURRENCE.  -  Yesterday the Water Police magistrate held an enquiry at the house of Mr. Surgeon Harpur, at Balmain, touching the death of Miss HARRIET HARPUR, who was accidentally shot by her brother on the previous day.  It appeared from the evidence adduced, that Mr. WILMOT HARPUR, the brother of the deceased young lady, was oiling a loaded fowling piece in his father’s dispensary, at Balmain, and that she, accompanied by a baby, was coming up the steps leading to the room, when the piece, which was not cocked, fell from his hand upon the counter of the dispensary, and exploded, the contents entering behind the ear of his sister, who was almost instantaneously killed.  She was only twelve years of age.  The evidence showed that the fatal occurrence was purely accidental, and the finding of the Water Police magistrate was to that effect.  Herald, Dec. 22
FATAL ACCIDENT.  -  On Tuesday evening, about six o’clock, a lad named JOSEPH TAYLOR, thirteen years of age, son of Joseph Taylor, of Dapto, was driving a bullock team up Crown-street, in Wollongong, sitting at the time on the front rail of the dray, with his feet resting on the pole, and when nearly opposite Mr. Robert Osborne’s, the nut of the bolt that secured the pole to the dray worked off.  The pole immediately dropped down, when the bullocks rushed on, and the boy, in endeavouring to jump off, fell in such a position that the wheel of the dray passed over his stomach, crushing the intestines in a fearful manner.  The boy’s father was walking behind the dray at the time.  He was removed to a neighbour’s house, where he died about eleven o’clock the same night.  An inquest was held on the body the following day, when a verdict was returned in accordance with the evidence.  Herald, Dec. 24
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ATTEMPTED SUICIDE.  -  Yesterday, the steward of the ship Duke of Wellington, at present lying in harbour, made an attempt on his own life, which he strove to put an end to by cutting his throat.  The unfortunate man is a Portuguese, and had been drinking for some days previous.  The evening before, he expressed his intention of committing suicide, to some boatmen at the Queen’s stairs; but as he was in an excited state his words were disregarded.  About noon yesterday, however, he made the attempt, but was fortunately seen almost in the act, and although he inflicted a severe injury, surgical assistance having been promptly obtained, the wound was sewn up, and the man was conveyed to the hospital, where every attention was paid to him, and in all probability he will recover.  It is somewhat strange that one who sought to take his own life, as this man did at the hospital, express strong fear that he should die from the result of his own act.  Herald, 27th Dec.

THE LATE MR. SINCLAIR’S REMAINS.  -  A respectable party who arrived from the Ovens diggings one day last week states, that the remains of a tall man with long digger’s boots, had been found near Reed’s mill.  It is supposed that they are the remains of the unfortunate Mr. JAMES SINCLAIR, whose mysterious disappearance created such a sensation in town nearly twelve months ago.  Goulburn Herald, Dec. 24

THE LATE BOAT ACCIDENT.  -  Mr. HARVEY’S body and that of Master VEYSEY were recovered on Tuesday, near Captain Moriarty’s house, on the North Shore; Master WILSON’S has not, although the boats were out all day yesterday, as yet been recovered.  Herald, Dec. 29

SHOCKING OCCURRENCE.  -  Yesterday morning WILLIAM HALL, aged fourteen, residing at Newtown, obtained the permission of his father to play with some other lads in the neighbourhood.  He had not been absent more than half an hour, when his father’s attention was attracted by hearing an alarm; and, on proceeding to the spot where the boys were playing, he was horror-struck at finding his son a corpse.  It appears one of the boys, named Campbell, was carrying a fowling piece, which he alleges slipped from under his arm and exploded, lodging the contents in the breast of the unfortunate youth above-named.  Empire, Dec. 28.  -   ANDREW CAMPBELL, aged 12 years, was placed before the court, having been apprehended for shooting the unfortunate child Hall, under the circumstances detailed in our issue of yesterday.  He was remanded to the Coroner’s Court.  Empire, Dec. 29
